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Completing the Platform for Growth

Since the fourth quarter of 2002, Phoenix has been executing a focused turnaround strategy,
which is expressed in the five strategic objectives below. This chart represents some of the
significant steps we have taken-and plan to take-to execute according to these objectives

and build a platform for growth.

Stabilize: 2002-2003 Refocus: 2003-2005 Grow: 2005-2007

RISK MANAGEMENT

To develop enterprise-wide risk management with a focuson a risk-adjusLed return on capital approach.

+ Sold $154 million in equity units * Disposed of $494 million in non- +» Maintain ongoing expense
. . core assets management
* Disposed of $208 million in non- g
core assets * Implemented $177 million cumulative + Continue to exit non-
gross annual expense reductions core assets

* Closed on new bank facility
* Strengthened capital position
* Maintained pricing discipline

* Sold Aberdeen and Lombard interests

PERFORMANCE CULTURE

To develop a performance-based culture by attracting, developing and re!aining high-performing,
talented and creative people.
* Built out management team |+ Continue to execute

* Redesigned compensation plans performance management

* Implemented employee performance
management system * Focus on talent development

* Introduced talent development programs

PRODUCT EXCELLENCE AND INNOVATION -

To be recognized as a best-in-class manufacturer in our target markets.

* Repositioned annuities * Focus on innovation and

* Restructure Asset Management product development

PARTNER OF CHOICE

:
cted distribution organizations.

To be a partner of choice for sele

* Sold retail distribution * Expand wholesaler force
* Established strategic accounts * Leverage distribution
management function relationships

» Identify additional strategic
partners

j

MASS CUSTOMIZATION

i
To build a mass-customization model that
continuously reduces unit costs while delivering
consistent and competitive service and quality.

* Implemented Lean * Build mass customization
service model

* Create capacity through Lean




Dear Shareholder,

In 2004 we returned Phoenix to profitability and put the company on track
for sustainable growth in the future. We:

> Generated net income of $86.4 million in 2004, compared with a loss of
$6.2 million in 2003;

° Increased total segment income™ by 41 percent, to $80.6 million; and

> Improved total segment return on equity by .1 percent, to 4.1 percent —
a meaningful rise that must be followed by further improvement.

These indicators alone do not convey the * Embedded Lean management
scope of the profound organizational and principles in the business with broad
cultural changes we made to build a platform participation at all levels of the company;
for growth and return value to our and

shareholders. Specifically, we: . Announced additional

+ Sharpened our distribution focus by annualized expense
selling our affiliated retail distribution and reductions of $30 million,
reconfiguring our institutional asset bringing our total annualized
management sales organization; expense reductions since 2002

* Invested in new product development to $177 million.

by hiring seasoned actuaries and building We faced challenges, as well. Sales

disciplined processes around product in most of our major business

development; . .
evelopme lines were lower. In our Life and

* Reduced our risk profile by selling large Annuity business, the decline was
positions in non-strategic assets and due in part to a conscious
demonstrated risk management discipline decision not to compete with ° S e
g P P Dona D. Young, Chairman, President
by avoiding aggressively priced product certain products and in part to and Chief Executive Officer
guarantees; the result of the sale of our

« Increased our financial flexibility affiliated retail distribution. In Asset

through a successful $175 million, 30-year Management, mutual fund sales increased

. : 12 per: nt and
surplus note refinancing and a new, multi- percent, but managed account a

year line of credi; institutional asset management sales declined

because of poor relative investment

+ Outsourced our IT infrastructure, the .
performance at some of our equity asset

first step of a multi-year, transformational
managers. We expect new products and

technology strategy; . Co
gy gy continued focus on our major distribution

relationships to revive sales growth in 2005.

* Total segment income is a non-GAAP measure. See reconciliation to GAAP measure in our 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K.




Building the Foundation for Growth

When | assumed leadership of Phoenix on

January |, 2003, we faced significant challenges.

Our first priority was to stabilize the company

— strengthen the balance sheet, reduce risk

CFO’S PERSPECTIVE

Our financial profile
continued to improve In
2004. We have
dramatically lowered
expenses since 2002, and
have continued to
strengthen our capital
position and balance
sheet while lowering risk.

Mike Haylon
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

and return to profitability.
This work is largely
complete. We are now
focused on completing a
restructuring of the Asset
Management business.

Our platform for growth
also reflects the changing
dynamics of our industry.
Consolidation will
remain a reality. At the
same time, opportunity
exists for smaller, more
nimble companies who
focus relentlessly on the
needs of their target
markets. Niche
companies in the life
insurance and asset

management industries

have delivered consistent growth and

double-digit returns on equity over the past

decade. We are pursuing a focused niche

Net Income (Loss), 2002-2004

$ in millions

100 ¢

2002

2003 2004

strategy targeting the affluent and high-net-
worth segment of the marketplace — a
segment that is projected to grow
exponentially over the next decade. To
succeed, we must and will continue to
execute successfully around the five strategic
objectives | outlined in my letter last year:

* To develop an integrated, enterprise-wide
risk management approach.

* To develop a performance culture of

talented and creative people.

* To be recognized for product excellence
and innovation.

* To be a partner of choice for select

distribution partners.

* To build a mass customization service

model.

These objectives drove our priorities in
2004, and will continue to do so, helping us
move Phoenix from a turnaround story to a
best-in-class manufacturer — and, in the
process, exceed the expectations of our
clients, create value for our shareholders and

expand opportunities for our employees.

Risk Management

At the end of 2004 we significantly reduced
our risk profile by exiting two large, non-
strategic equity investments owned by our
life insurance company. We sold our stake in
Lombard International Assurance and set in
motion the ultimate sale of our remaining
stake in Aberdeen Asset Management. Both
transactions closed in January of 2005. Total
proceeds were $129 million, to be reinvested
in bonds.




These sales capped a process of systematic
risk reduction within our life insurance
portfolio that we have been focusing on
since | became CEQ. In total, this process
has generated proceeds of more than
$700 million from exiting various non-core

investments.

The markets last December acknowledged
this progress when we successfully refinanced
$175 million of surplus notes with new 30-
year surplus notes. We also put in place a
new, $150 million, three-year bank credit line

in lieu of our previous one-year line.

But risk management is more than risk
reduction. After all, we are in the risk
business. That is why a disciplined
framework for assessing, taking and
managing risk is a key priority. Under CFO
Mike Haylon’s leadership we have put in
place a risk management framework that
allows us to balance risk and return. A key
aspect of this framework is that it takes a
true enterprise perspective, understanding
that risk management is the responsibility of
every employee. We also enhanced our
internal financial controls in 2004, in keeping
with evolving best practices within our

increasingly complex industry.

Performance Culture

Long-term success depends on having the
right people highly motivated and focused on
common business objectives. We spent a lot
of time in 2004 identifying talent — both
outside and within Phoenix — and putting in
place programs to create a performance
culture throughout the company. | believe
great companies require great people at all
levels of the organization, and | have personally
devoted significant time to talent, leadership
development and recruiting in 2004.

In particular, we added several members to
the management team. Phil Polkinghorn joined
us to lead the Life and Annuity business, and
brought several strong leaders to the Life and
Annuity team. John LaGrasse came on board
late in the year to lead our

IT organlzatlon. InAsset LIFE & ANNVUITY PERSPECTIVE

Management, we hired new
leadership and talent in

We've built a process ¢o
institutional sales and

generate innovative

marketing.

product ideas, vet them

Equally important, we put in
place initiatives to make

thoroughly, and fast-track

sure that our best people

them to market.

are recognized and given

opportunities to increase Phil Polkinghorn
Executive Vice President,

Life and Annuity

their contribution to the
company’s success. For
example, we organized a
series of “Think Tanks” that provide
opportunity for high-potential employees to
come together and develop plans on issues
critical to our future — issues such as
innovation, execution and mass
customization. We also introduced a
performance management process that
explicitly links each employee’s goals and
compensation to measurable corporate and
departmental objectives. This year, we
introduced an annual “Execution Excellence
Award” to recognize and reward the top-
performing department in each area of our

company.

Our new approach has not been easy for
everyone — it challenges comfortable ways of
the past and continually raises the bar for
performance. Ultimately, this will help us
create a company that is smart, nimble,

flexible and disciplined in execution.




INVESTMENT PERSPECTIVE

Over the past year, the -
quality of our investment
portfolic continued to
improve. We also
significantly reduced

investment risk

concentrations in Aberdeen
Asset Management and
Lombard Insurance.

Jirm Wehe

Executive Vice President and

Product Excellence

With the benefit of a performance culture
and strengthened risk management
framework, our attention has shifted to
earnings growth, driven
by increased sales of
our core products. This
is a critical priority and
it relies on the quality
of our products.

We believe product
excellence is
fundamentally a matter
of discipline and
execution. With that
understanding in mind,
we have built a process
that makes senior
leaders directly
accountable for
consistently producing
innovative, differentiated

Chief Investment Cfficer

products, and we have

established a high-level
Product Strategies Committee to ensure
products are thoroughly vetted before being
brought to market.

It is clear from our research and others’ that
affluent and high-net-worth individuals seek
products and planning solutions that let them
efficiently accumulate, preserve and manage
wealth over time. This demand will only
increase as baby boomers reach their
retirement years. It is equally clear that the
solutions available in the market are still very
complex and that knowledgeable advisors play
an important role in developing sound

financial plans.

That is why our product strategy emphasizes
providing long-term value to customers. For
example, late in 2004 we introduced an
annuity benefit that guarantees the customer
the return of his premium after 10 years -
plus a 5 percent bonus. This type of “living
benefit” has been a key driver of annuity
industry sales, and our design is both
innovative and prudent from a risk

management perspective.

In life insurance we have eschewed product
designs and no-lapse guarantees which,
though appealing today, rely on long-term
assumptions that we consider unsustainable.
Instead, in 2004 we invested in shortening
our product development cycle,'formalizing
our research and development processes and
focusing on innovative applications of our
products to our target market. The resulting
product pipeline for 2005 contains several
innovative ideas, including a simplified variable
universal life policy specifically tailored to
creating a stream of retirement income. We
expect to launch this product in the spring.

In asset management, our overall equity
investment performance must improve. In
2004, less than half of our assets under
management outperformed their respective
benchmarks. To address this issue, we put in
place a new product management and
oversight process that | expect will begin
showing results. But despite this, the
aggregate performance obscures a number of
very strong track records at several of our
managers. In particular, performance of our
Goodwin fixed income strategies has been
outstanding. Our utility and real estate
investment trust (REIT) strategies at Duff and




Phelps have also had excellent performance.
For these managers and other areas of
strength, we are emphasizing product
extensions and new sales opportunities.

Partner of Choice Distribution

Our goal is to be the partner of choice within
select distribution channels. Independent
market research suggests that independent,
non-affiliated producers will continue to
increase their share of the market for
individual life insurance and annuities. At the
same time, national producer groups are
expected to gain clout in the coming years as
independent distributors seek to take
advantage of their superior leverage.
Therefore, our distribution strategy is geared
toward meeting the needs of independent
producers and building relationships with
producer groups.

With the sale of our affiliated retail
distributors in May of last year, more than
900 former WS Griffith and Main Street
Management advisors are now no longer
affiliated with Phoenix. These transactions

completed our transformation to becoming a

Total Segment Income (Loss}*

$ in millions

80

40

-40

2002 2003 . 2004

* Total segment income is a non-GAAP measure. See
reconciliation to GAAP measure in our 2004 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

pure manufacturer; and, while they

contributed to a drop in life and annuity

sales in 2004, we remain confident the

decision was in our best interest over the

long term. We have realized significant

savings from the sale, and we remain fully

committed to distributing
our products through
these and other non-
affiliated advisors.

We believe that our
assisted sales distribution
model, which promotes
our wholesalers’ superior
product expertise, backed
by home office experts in
tax and estate law,
financial planning and
other areas, will become
increasingly valuable as
independent producers
compete to meet the
complex wealth

management needs of

ASSET MANAGEMENT PERSPECTIVE

Were in the midst of

a fundamental
transformation of Asset
Management that is
changing the way we
operate and unlocking
expertise that we can use
across the organization.

Dan Geraci
Executive Vice President,
Asset Management

their affluent and high-net-worth clients. As

part of our plans to grow wholesaled life,

annuity and asset management business, we

are increasing our wholesaling, marketing

and sales support in 2005.

We also feel very good about the

relationships we have established with State

Farm and Linsco/Private Ledger, two

companies whose broad national distribution

networks complement our specialized

product knowledge. Identifying similar

strategic distribution relationships where our

products can add value to established

national brands continues to be a priority for

us in 2005.




LAW & COMPLIANCE PERSPECTIVE

Today, more than ever,
companies are being
judged on the credibility,
trustworthiness and
integrity of their
empioyees, officers and
directors. Phoenix has
operated for over 150
years in accordance with
the strong ethical

Mass Customizatien

One of our key goals for 2005 is to build a
mass customization service model that
ensures we offer appropriate and valuable
choices to customers.
Our design process is
driven by the proposition
that customers do not
necessarily want more
choice, they want choice
that is matched to their
needs. We believe that by
understanding where
product options add real
value, as opposed to
adding complexity and
cost, we will be able to
offer products better
matched to our
customers’ needs while
maintaining pricing

discipline.

framework that continues

to serve us well today.

Tracy Rich

Executive Vice President and

General Counsel

Lean is critical to our
mass customization
efforts. In 2004, we used
principles of Lean
management to
restructure our Albany,
N.Y., customer service facility. Over a six-
month period, we held Lean events to re-
examine each of our customer service
processes. As a result of these findings, we
changed workflow, job descriptions and the
physical layout of the facility itself. By doing
so, we were able to free up 10 percent of our
existing Albany staff to focus on new business
initiatives — while identifying $1 million in

annualized savings in the process.

We will continue to use Lean management
and Lean thinking to build a product
customization model that delivers value to

our customers.

Our Future

{n 2004, we continued to refine our strategic
focus and execute with precision according
to our five strategic objectives. in executing
on our objectives, our overriding goals were
to deliver shareholder value, provide a
customer value proposition that resonates in
the marketplace and foster an environment
that attracts and retains talented employees.

As the charts on page 8 show, our execution
has been successful. We saw quantifiable
results that confirm our progress, and we
demonstrated a level of discipline that sets

the tone for our company going forward.

In the process we made fundamental changes
with the goal of positioning Phoenix for
future growth. Now, our task is to capitalize
on the accomplishments of 2004 by
continuing to execute well in support of our

business growth objectives in 2005.

Total Segment ROE™

percent

2002 2003 2004

* Total segment ROE is a non-GAAP measure. See reconciliation
to GAAP measure in our 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K.




Our Values

Our core values remain central to Phoenix,
and they have guided our turnaround. These
- values are the product of our |54-year
history: integrity, resilience, a desire to serve
our customers and strong ties to the
community. In acting on our values, we are
driven by the principle of sustainability.
Sustainability is based on long-term value
creation for our sharehblders, and every
decision we make has to be made from that
standpoint.

Nowhere are our values more on display than
in the volunteer work and community
involvement of our employees. Throughout
the year, we supported high impact
community programs through employee
volunteerism, employee giving, executive
leadership and corporate grants. In 2004, we
returned $1.3 million to our communities
through corporate and Phoenix Foundation
grants, and hundreds of employees dedicated
nearly 4,000 hours to dozens of nonprofit
organizations. | believe the spirit of Phoenix is
well represented by our employees’
generosity and their commitment to helping
others while making their communities better

places to live.

Our Thanks

In closing, | want to thank our Board of
Directors for their support and guidance
throughout the year. | especially want to
thank Richard Cooper and Marilyn
LaMarche, who are retiring from our Board
this year. Dick’s knowledge, integrity and
commitment to Phoenix spanning 3| years
cannot be replaced. Dick has continuously
challenged us to consider all issues from the
perspective of customer, shareholder and
employee interests. Marilyn's dedication to
Phoenix is equally immeasurable. She has no
peer when it comes to practical,
straightforward and savvy observations and
suggestions. Marilyn’s contribution to
Phoenix will continue as she remains a

Trustee on the Phoenix Series Fund Board.

Finally, | want to thank our shareholders,
employees, policyholders and distributors for
their continued support.

JMJW

Dona D. Young, Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

March 21, 2005




Financial Highlights

Year Ended December 31,

in millions except per share amounts 2004 2003 2002
Net Income (Loss) $ 864 $ 62 $ (272.3)
Total Segment Income (Loss)' 80.6 57.3 (60.4)
Earnings (Loss) Per Diluted Share 0.86 (0.07) 2.78)
Segment Income (Loss) Per Diluted Share’ 0.80 0.59 (0.62)
Revenues 2,743.2 2,633.5 2,467.4
Invested Assets 17,334.6 17,242.8 16,812.8
Total Assets 28,362.6 27,559.2 25,235.9
Total Stockholders’ Equity 2,022.4 1,947.8 1,826.8
Assets Under Management? $42,908.5 $ 46,260.5 $41,835.3

1. Segment income is a non-GAAP measure. See reconciliation to GAAP measure in our 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
2. Assets under management excludes our life companies’ general account assets.

Our Goal

How We Executed on the Goal

To focus on the high net worth

To grow through strategic
partnerships

To lead the market consistently
with innovative products

To build a performance culture

To establish a disciplined risk
management process

To streamline our operations
continually

To exit non-strategic assets

To exit non-core operations

To enhance financial stability

To invest in growth

* Highest average life face amount in the industry
* Variable annuity average value well above industry average

* Distribution agreements with largest domestic personal insurer
and largest independent broker/dealer

* Formal, disciplined idea generation process instituted

* Employee compensation tied to company and business
area success

+ Established focus on talent development

* Formal risk management review process instituted for all
significant initiatives

* $177 million in annualized expense savings identified since 2002

* Over $700 million in asset dispositions since 2002

+ Sold affiliated broker-dealer and outsourced |T infrastructure
in 2004

+ Financed surplus notes
+ Opened new bank facility on more favorable terms

*+ New investments in distribution, marketing, underwriting and
sales support in 2004/05




Form 10-K ‘

| The Phoenix Companies, Inc. (NYSE: PNX) is a leading manufacturer of life
‘ insurance, annuity and asset management products for the accumulation,

preservation and transfer of wealth. Through a variety of advisors and
financial services firms, the company provides products and services to
affluent and high-net-worth individuals and to institutions. Phoenix has

corporate offices in Hartford, Connecticut.

®PHOENIX




UNITED STATES
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Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
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Unless otherwise stated, at all times on and after June 25, 2001, the effective date of Phoenix Home Life Mutual
Insurance Company’s demutualization, “Phoenix,” “we,” “our” or “us” means The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

(the “Company” or “PNX ") and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. At all times prior to June 25, 2001, “we,”
“our” or “us” means Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company (which has been known as Phoenix Life
Insurance Company since June 25, 2001) and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. Furthermore, “Phoenix Life”
refers to Phoenix Life Insurance Company, “Life Companies” refers to Phoenix Life and its direct and indirect

subsidiaries and “Phoenix Investment Partners”’ refers to Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd and its direct and
indirect subsidiaries.

PART1

Item 1. Business

Description of Business

We are a manufacturer of insurance, annuity and asset mana
and transfer of wealth. We provide products and services to affluent and high-net-

The affluent and high-net-worth market is a growing market with sj

services. We define affluent as those households with a net worth of $500,000 or greater, excluding their primary
residence. We define high-net-worth, a subset of the affluent category, as those households that have net worth,
excluding primary residence, of over $1,000,000. Our wealth management products and services are designed to
assist advisors and their clients in this target market to achieve three main goals:

gnificant demand for customized products and

* the accumulation of wealth, primarily during an individual’s working years;

the preservation of income and wealth during retirement and following death; and

* the efficient transfer of wealth in a variety

of situations, including through estate planning, business
continuation planning and charitable giving

We distribute our wealth management products and services throu

national and regional broker-dealers, banks, financial
companies.

gh various financial intermediaries such as
planning firms, advisor groups and other insurance

Segments

We have two operating segments, Life and Annuity and Asset Management, which include three product lines:

life insurance, annuities and asset management. Both segments serve the affluent and high-net-worth market,
which presents opportunities to leverage our capabilities and relationships.

investments that are part of the closed block. Corporate and Other in
kabilities and expenses; and certain businesses not of sufficient scale

significant for financial reporting purposes, but do not contain produc
manufacturing operations '

cludes: indebtedness; unallocated assets,

to report independently. These segments are
ts or services relevant to our core

—




Operating Segments

SUMMARY OF OPERATING SEGMENTS

December 31, 2004
Market Presence Distribution Channels ~ Products
| Life and Annuity k "

e  $48.1 billion of net life insurance e National and regional broker-dealers e  Variable universal life insurance

in force ¢  Financial planning firms ¢ Universal life insurance
o  $7.6 billion of annuity assets under e  Advisor groups e Term life insurance

management s Insurance companies ¢  Variable annuities

e Banks e Immediate annuities

Principal operating subsidiaries: e Private placement life insurance

e Phoenix Life and annuities
e PHL Variable Insurance Company

. Asset Management

* Private client proguc;s
e $42.9 billion of third-party assets e National and regional broker-dealers e  Managed accounts

under management * Institutional asset management o Mutual funds
consultants e (Closed-end funds
Principal operating subsidiary: ¢ Financial planning firms Institutional products:
e  Phoenix Investment Partners s  Affiliated asset managers s Institutional accounts

e  Structured products
s  Phoenix Life general and
separate accounts

Life and Annuity Segment

Our Life and Annuity segment offers a variety of life insurance and annuity products through non-affiliated
distributors. We believe our competitive advantage in this segment consists of six main components:

our innovative products;

our broad asset management capability;

our distribution relationships with institutions that have access to our target market;

the value-added our distributors provide those institutions;

our ability to combine products and services that distributors and their clients find attractive; and
our underwriting expertise.

Life and Annuity Products

Life Products
Our life insurance products include variable universal life, universal life, term life and other insurance products.
We offer single life, first-to-die and second-to-die products. Under first-to-die policies, up to five lives may be
insured with the policy proceeds paid after the death of the first of the five insured lives. Second-to-die products
are typically used for estate planning purposes and insure two lives rather than one, with the policy proceeds paid
after the death of both insured individuals.

Variable Universal Life. Variable universal life products provide insurance coverage and give the policyholder
various investment choices, flexible premium payments and coverage amounts and limited guarantees. The
policyholder may direct premiums and cash value into a variety of separate investment accounts, accounts that are
maintained separately from the other assets of the Life Companies and are not part of the general accounts of the
Life Companies, or into the general account. In separate investment accounts, the policyholder bears the entire
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risk of the investment results. We collect fees for the management of these various investment accounts and the
net return is credited directly to the policyholder’s accounts. With some variable universal products, by
maintaining a certain premium level the policyholder receives guarantees that protect the policy’s death benefit if,
due to adverse investment experience, the policyholder’s account balance is zero. We retain the right within
limits to adjust the fees we assess for providing administrative services. We also collect fees to cover mortality
costs; these fees may be adjusted by us but may not exceed contractual limits.

Universal Life. Universal life products provide insurance coverage on the same basis as variable universal life
products, except that premiums, and the resulting accumulated balances, are allocated only to our general account
for investment. Universal life products may allow the policyholder to increase or decrease the amount of death
benefit coverage over the term of the policy, and also may allow the policyholder to adjust the frequency and
amount of premium payments. Some universal life products provide guarantees that protect the policy’s death
benefit if specified minimum premiums are paid. We credit premiums, net of expenses, to an account maintained
for the policyholder. We credit interest to the account at rates that we determine, subject to certain minimums.
Specific charges are made against the account for expenses. We also collect fees to cover mortality costs; these
fees may be adjusted by us but may not exceed contractual limits.

Term Life. Term life insurance provides a guaranteed benefit upon the death of the insured within a specified
time period, in return for the periodic payment of premiums. Specified coverage periods range from one to 30
years, but not longer than the period over which premiums are paid. Premiums may be level for the coverage
period or may vary. Term insurance products are sometimes referred to as pure protection products, in that there
are normally no savings or investment elements. Term contracts expire without value at the end of the coverage
period. Our term insurance policies allow policyholders to convert to permanent coverage, generally without
evidence of insurability.

Annuity Products
We offer a variety of variable annuities to meet the accumulation and preservation needs of the affluent and high-
net-worth market. Deferred annuities, in which funds accumulate for a number of years before periodic payments
begin, enable the contractholder to save for retirement and also provide options that protect against outliving
assets during retirement. Immediate annuities are purchased by means of a single lump sum payment and begin
paying periodic income immediately. We believe this product is especially attractive to those affluent and high-
net-worth retirees who are rolling over pension or retirement plan assets and seek an income stream based entirely
or partly on equity market performance.

Variable annuities are separate account products, which means that the contractholder bears the investment risk as
deposits are directed into a variety of separate investment accounts. The contractholder typically can also direct
funds to a general account option in which case we credit interest at rates we determine, subject to certain
minimums. Contractholders also may elect certain enhanced living benefit guarantees, for which they are
assessed a specific charge. For example, in the fourth quarter of 2004 we introduced a Guaranteed Minimum
Accumulation Benefit option to our products which guarantees an account value of at least 105% of premium
after 10 years assuming other contractual obligations are met. Our major sources of revenues from annuities are
mortality and expense fees charged to the contractholder, generally determined as a percentage of the market
value of any underlying separate account balances, and the excess of investment income over credited interest for
funds invested in our general account.

Other Products and Services

Life and Annuity is focused on the development of other products and distribution relationships that respond to the
affluent and high-net-worth market’s demand for wealth management solutions.

For example, many of our products are designed to be used by corporations to fund special deferred compensation
plans and benefit programs for key employees, commonly referred to as executive benefits. We view these
products as a source of growing fee-based business. In addition, our products can be applied to a number of
situations to meet the sophisticated needs of business owners and individuals, including for charitable giving.




Private Placement Life and Annuity Products. Private placement products are individually customized life and
annuity offerings that include single premium life, second-to-die life and variable annuity products. These
products have minimum deposits of over $§500,000, targeting the wealthiest segment of the high-net-worth
market. The average face amount of life insurance policies sold by Philadelphia Financial Group, our private
placement distributor, in 2004 was $15.6 million and the average annuity deposit was $0.8 million.

Underwriting

Insurance underwriting is the process of examining, accepting or rejecting insurance risks, and classifying those
accepted in order to charge appropriate premiums or mortality charges. Underwriting also involves determining
the amount and type of reinsurance appropriate for a particular type of risk.

We believe we have particular expertise in evaluating the underwriting risks relevant to our target market. We
believe this expertise enables us to make appropriate underwriting decisions, including, in some instances, the
issuance of policies on more competitive terms than other insurers would offer. Phoenix Life has a long tradition
of underwriting innovation. Beginning in 1955, we were among the first insurance companies to offer reduced
rates to women. We believe we were the first company to offer reduced rates to non-smokers across all policy
lines, beginning in 1967. Our underwriting team includes doctors and other medical staff to ensure, among other
things, that we are focused on current developments in medical technology.

Our underwriting standards for life insurance are intended to result in the issuance of policies that produce
mortality experience consistent with the assumptions used in product pricing. The overall profitability of our life
insurance business depends, to a large extent, on the degree to which our mortality experience compares to our
pricing assumptions. Our underwriting is based on our historical mortality experience, as well as on the
experience of the insurance industry and of the general population. We continually compare our underwriting
standards to those of the industry to assist in managing our mortality risk and to stay abreast of industry trends.

Our life insurance underwriters evaluate policy applications on the basis of the information provided by the
applicant and others. We use a variety of methods to evaluate certain policy applications, such as those where the
size of the policy sought is particularly large, or where the applicant is an older individual, has a known medical
impairment or is engaged in a hazardous occupation or hobby. Consistent with industry practice, we require
medical examinations and other tests depending upon the age of the applicant and the size of the proposed policy.

In the executive benefits market, we issue life policies covering multiple lives on a guaranteed issue basis, within
specified limits per life insured, whereby the amount of insurance issued per life on a guaranteed basis is related
to the total number of lives being covered and the particular need for which the product is being purchased.
Guaranteed issue underwriting applies to employees actively at work, and product pricing reflects the additional
guaranteed issue underwriting risk.

Reserves

We establish and report liabilities for future policy benefits on our consolidated balance sheet to reflect the
obligations under our insurance policies and contracts. Our liability for variable universal life insurance and
universal life insurance policies and contracts is equal to the cumulative account balances, plus additional reserves
we establish for policy riders. Cumulative account balances include deposits plus credited interest, less expense
and mortality charges and withdrawals. Reserves for future policy benefits for whole life policies are calculated
based on actuarial assumptions that include investment yields and mortality.




Reinsurance

While we have underwriting expertise and have experienced favorable mortality trends, we believe it is prudent to
spread the risks associated with our life insurance products through reinsurance. As is customary in the life
insurance industry, our reinsurance program is designed to protect us against adverse mortality experience
generally and to reduce the potential loss we might face from a death claim on any one life.

We cede risk to other insurers under various agreements that cover individual life insurance policies. The amount
of risk ceded depends on our evaluation of the specific risk and applicable retention limits. Under the terms of
our reinsurance agreements, the reinsurer agrees to reimburse us for the ceded amount in the event a claim is
incurred. However, we remain liable to our policyholders for ceded insurance if any reinsurer fails to meet its
obligations. Since we bear the risk of nonpayment by one or more of our reinsurers, we cede business to well-
capitalized, highly rated insurers. While our current retention limit on any one life is $10 million ($12 million on
second-to-die cases), we may cede amounts below those limits on a case-by-case basis depending on the
characteristics of a particular risk. Typically our reinsurance contracts allow us to reassume ceded risks after a
specified period. This right is valuable where our mortality experience is sufficiently favorable to make it
financially advantageous for us to reassume the risk rather than continue paying reinsurance premiums.

We reinsure 80% of the mortality risk on a block of policies acquired from Confederation Life Insurance
Company, or Confederation Life, in 1997. We entered into two separate reinsurance agreements in 1998 and
1999 to reinsure a substantial portion of our otherwise retained individual life insurance business. In addition, we
reinsure up to 90% of the mortality risk on some new issues. As of December 31, 2004, we had ceded $80.0

billion in face amount of reinsurance, representing 62.5% of our total face amount of $128.1 billion of life
insurance in force.

On January 1, 1996, we entered into a reinsurance arrangement that covers 100% of the excess death benefits and
related reserves for most variable annuity policies issued through December 31, 1999, including subsequent
deposits. We retain the guaranteed minimum death benefit risks on the remaining variable deferred annuities in
force that are not covered by this reinsurance arrangement.

The following table lists our five principal life reinsurers, together with the reinsurance recoverables on a

statutory basis as of December 31, 2004, the face amount of life insurance ceded as of December 31, 2004, and
the reinsurers” A .M. Best ratings.
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Reinsurance Face Amount of

Recoverable Life Insurance A.M. Best
Reinsurer Balances Ceded Rating!"
RGA Remnsurance COMPANY .....ccovevrereeirianeeerireenrereneeesaeesesneens $ 19.8 million $ 21.4 billion A+
ABEGONUSA .ottt ettt $ 15.2 million $ 12.8 billion A+
Swiss Re Life & Health America, Inc........c.oooo v $ 13.6 million $ 11.6 billion A+
Employers Reassurance COrporation .......c.cocevvcevvnnivecninennnenns $ 6.2 million § 8.0 billion A-
KL CaPUal...occvivcire e s e e § 6.9 million $ 6.2billion A+

() A M. Best ratings are as of December 31, 2004.

Life and Annuity Financial Information

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K

for Life and Annuity segment financial information.




Asset Management Segment

We conduct activities in Asset Management with a focus on two customer groups — private client and
institutional. Through our private client group, we provide asset management services principally on a
discretionary basis, with products consisting of open-end mutual funds, closed-end funds and managed accounts.
Managed accounts include intermediary programs sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated broker-dealers, and
direct managed accounts which are sold and administered by us. These two types of managed accounts generally
require minimum investments of $100,000 and $1 million, respectively. Our private client business also provides
transfer agency, accounting and administrative services to most of our open-end mutual funds.

Through our institutional group, we provide discretionary and non-discretionary investment management services
primarily to corporations, multi-employer retirement funds and foundations, as well as to endowments and special
purpose funds. In addition, we manage alternative financial products such as structured finance products.
Structured finance products include collateralized obligations such as collateralized debt obligations, or CDOs,
backed by portfolios of public high yield bonds or commercial mortgage-backed or asset-backed securities.

Affiliated Asset Managers

We offer investment management services through our affiliated asset managers. We provide our affiliated asset
managers with a consolidated platform of distribution support, thereby allowing each manager to devote a high
degree of focus to investment management activities. On an ongoing basis, we monitor the quality of the
affiliates’ products by assessing their performance, style consistency and the discipline with which they apply
their investment process.




Our affiliated managers, and their respective styles, products and assets under management, are as follows:

Assets Under

Management at
Alffiliated Advisor/ December 31, 2004
Ownership/Location Investment Styles Products (in billions)

Goodwin™™ Capital Advisors"”, | Fixed Income — Mutual Funds
or Goodwin / 100% / Multi-Sector Institutional Accounts
Hartford, CT Structured Finance Products $6.1
Seneca Capital Management Equities — Mutual Funds
LLC, or Seneca / 68.4% / Growth with Controlled Risk | Sponsored Managed Accounts
San Francisco, CA Earnings-Driven Growth Direct Managed Accounts

Tax Sensitive Growth Institutional Accounts

Fixed Income — Structured Finance Products

Value Driven $12.1
Kayne Anderson Rudnick Equities — Sponsored Managed Accounts
Investment Management, LLC, | Quality at Reasonable Price Direct Managed Accounts
or Kayne Anderson Rudnick / Institutional Accounts
65.2% / Los Angeles, CA Mutual Funds $10.4
Duff & Phelps Investment Equities — Mutual Funds
Management Co., or DPIM / REITs Sponsored Managed Accounts
100% / Chicago, IL Large Cap Value Direct Managed Accounts

Small Cap Core Institutional Accounts

Fixed Income — Closed-end Funds

Core $5.9
Engemann Asset Management, | Equities — Mutual Funds
Inc."”, or Engemann / 100% / Classic Growth Sponsored Managed Accounts
Pasadena, CA Direct Managed Accounts

Institutional Accounts $3.8

Oakhurst™ Asset Managers“), Equities — Mutual Funds
or Oakhurst / 100% / Large Cap Value
Scotts Valley, CA Large Cap Core $2.0
Walnut Asset Management LLC, | Equities — Direct Managed Accounts
or Walnut / 100% / Relative Value Institutional Accounts
Philadelphia, PA Fixed Income —

Quality Fixed Income $0.8
Zweig Fund Group, or Zweig / Equities/Fixed Income — Mutual Funds ‘
100% / New York, NY Tactical Asset Allocation Closed-end Funds

Market Neutral

Small Cap Value $1.3
Sub-advised Assets Equities — Mutual Funds

Mid-cap Value

International $0.5
Total Third-Party Assets Under Management $42.9

() As of December 31, 2004, Goodwin and Oakhurst were divisions of Phoenix Investment Counsel, Inc., an indirect wholly-

owned subsidiary of Phoenix Investment Partners. Effective January 1, 2005, Oakhurst became a division of Engemann.




Asset Management Products

Private Client Products
Managed Accounts. We provide investment management services through participation in 52 intermediary
managed account programs sponsored by various broker-dealers such as Merrill Lynch, Morgan Stanley and
Salomon Smith Barney. These programs enable the sponsor’s client to select one or more of Phoenix Investment
Partners’ affiliated asset managers as the provider of discretionary portfolio management services, in return for an
asset-based fee paid by the client to the broker-dealer, which then pays a management fee to us. Seven of these
programs include more than one of our affiliated asset managers. As of December 31, 2004, we managed 43,667
accounts relating to such intermediary managed account programs, representing approximately $9.0 billion of
assets under management. In addition, we offer direct managed accounts, which are individual client accounts
sold and administered by us. As of December 31, 2004, we managed 3,127 direct managed accounts representing
$4.5 billion of assets under management.

Mutual Funds. Our affiliated asset managers are investment advisors or sub-advisors to 39 open-end mutual
funds, which had aggregate assets under management of $10.2 billion as of December 31, 2004. These mutual
funds are available primarily to retail investors. Of these funds, 14 are included as investment choices to
purchasers of our variable life and variable annuity products. '

Closed-End Mutual Funds. We manage the assets of five closed-end funds, each of which is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange: DTF Tax-Free Income Inc.; Duff & Phelps Utility and Corporate Bond Trust Inc.; DNP
Select Income Inc.; The Zweig Fund, Inc. and The Zweig Total Return Fund, Inc. Our closed-end fund assets
under management totaled $4.3 billion as of December 31, 2004.

Institutional Products
Institutional Accounts. We have over 1,000 institutional clients, consisting primarily of medium-sized pension
and profit sharing plans of corporations, government entities and unions, as well as endowments and foundations,
public and multi-employer retirement funds and other special purpose funds. Our institutional assets under
management totaled $12.0 billion as of December 31, 2004.

Structured Finance Products. We manage eight structured finance products. These products are collateralized
obligations backed by portfolios of high yield bonds, emerging markets bonds and/or asset-backed securities. Our
structured bond produets assets under management totaled $2.9 billion as of December 31, 2004.

Life Companies’ General Accounts. Goodwin, in conjunction with Phoenix Life’s portfolio management group,
manages most of the assets of the Life Companies’ general accounts. As of December 31, 2004, Phoenix
Investment Partners managed $13.2 billion of the Life Companies’ assets. The assets under management,
revenues and expenses associated with the general accounts are not included in the Asset Management segment.
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Asset Management Assets under Management

The following table presents information regarding the third-party assets under management by Phoenix

, Investment Partners for the years indicated:

]

| Assets Under Management As of December 31,

($ amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
TOTAL

} DIEPOSILS w.oreereeveeeveeereeesessseseseseeseseeeess s eseessesees e eneeesesesessssesereeeseseesrerereeee $ 66698 $ 6987.8 $ 102468

l Redemptions and Withdrawals........coccecciienrnnnnnnsn et . (13,255.8) (8,148.6) (9,575.6)

: Acquisitions'™ and diSPOSTHONS .............oovvvreeevereeeesreeereeeeeeeeseeesseeees oo - - 7,422.0

' PEITOMNANCE ... eeee e eae st oees e 2,923.0 5,788.1 (7,863.1)

| 0t T 311.0 (202.1) (118.3)

| Change in assets UNder MaANAZEMENt.. ..o eirer et (3,352.0) 44252 1118

i Beginning balance ... et 46,260.5 41,8353 41,7235

'[ Ending balance. ... e $ 42,908.5 $ 46,260.5 $ 41,8353

: INSTITUTIONAL PRODUCTS

' DIPOSIES ..o evveeeeeeessteeeeesse e ee e s st $ 27439 $ 29747 $ 43126
Redemptions and withdrawals..........ccccrrrnini i (5,750.9) (3,452.2) (4,480.0)
Acquisitions and diSPOSItIONS ......ccc.crrereeeincmreeriiire s -- - - 1,507.7

! PIfOIMNANCE .vvveiiii et ettt b 997.2 2,304.3 (2,178.9)

! OEFD oo ereesosesresees s seesese e 37.5 (19.9) (1,294.6)
Change in assets under Management.........ccoccceririnmieirerieemrrerenererseneeneas (1,972.3) 1,806.9 (2,133.2)
Beginning balance ..o s 16,866.5 15,059.6 17,192.8
Engding Dalance.............ccocoviiiiiinincce st e $ 14,894.2 $ 16,866.5 $ 15,059.6

! PRIVATE CLIENT PRODUCTS

| Mutual Funds

| DIEPOSILS 1. vevcrvesevrecesessereeeriss e reess s $ 18160 $ 17448 § 15131

E Redemptions and withdrawals.............cococooiiiiiic e (2,301.9) (2,039.8) (2,379.2)

! PerfOrMANCE ...ttt 975.5 1,946.3 (2,406.0)

0111 SO 273.5 - (182.2) (153.7)
Change in assets under Management.........c.coovveiveeormerereenrnrerereene e renenenns 763.1 1,469.1 (3,425.8)
Beginning balance ..ot 13,735.6 12,266.5 15,692.3
Ending Balance...........coocovcviiiviiiinieec s $ 14,498.7 $ 13,735.6 $ 12,266.5
Intermediary Managed Account Programs ’
DIEPOSIES .1 eeeriveiiririitcee st eesee st eeter st et eesaseenesi st re e et ese s st ae bt s etas s ene b s enenenes § 1,637.1 $ 2,0064.3 $ 4,116.9
Redemptions and withdrawalS...........c.ccooeiiiiiiieiii e, (4,177.4) (2,362.1) (2,317.9)
ACGUISTHONS™ .1 oooro e eecseersesses e - - 4,723 4
PErfOrMANCE ....o.vi ettt st ettt 844.7 1,590.2 (2,902.9)
Change in assets Under ManagemeNnt.........c.cvcvvcrurereeeeerecrnenreeressnnenecseersaessnsens (1,695.6) 1,292.4 3,619.5
Beginning balance ........c.c.c.oeoeevirveiniicceeece ettt 10,731.5 9,439.1 5,819.6
Ending balance ..o $ 90359 $ 10,7315 $ 94391
Direct Managed Accounts '
DIEPOSIES ...veveivtiitieieiete ettt eee ettt e st et easebese et ettt e b ene et es e neas $ 4728 $ 204.0 $ 304.2
Redemptions and withdrawals............c..ccoveeeivieiiciiic e (1,025.6) (294.5) (398.5)
ACGUISTEONS" 11111 - - 1,190.9
PerfOrmAanCe. ..ot 105.6 (52.7) (375.3)
OB - - 1,330.0
Change in assets under ManaemMeENt..........c..ocovcriiieeeveseeens e (447.2) (143.2) 2,051.3
Beginning Dalance ...........occcoeeveiieiiiiiec et 4,926.9 5,070.1 3,018.8
Ending Dalance. ... $ 44797 $ 49269 $ 507041

M Includes assets of $7.8 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick in 2002.
@ Includes reclassification of certain Seneca funds from institutional products to direct managed of $1.3 billion.




Asset Management Financial Information

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Asset Management segment financial information.

Competition

We face significant competition from a wide variety of financial institutions, including insurance companies and
other asset management companies, as well as from proprietary products offered by our distribution sources such
as banks, broker-dealers and financial planning firms. Our competitors include larger and, in some cases, more
highly-rated insurance companies and other financial services companies. Many competitors offer similar
products, use similar distribution sources, offer less expensive products, have greater access to key distribution
channels and have greater resources than us.

Competition in our businesses is based on several factors including ratings, investment performance, access to
distribution channels, service to advisors and their clients, product features, fees charged and commissions paid.

As we continue to focus on the development of our distribution channels, we increasingly must compete with
other providers of life insurance, annuity and private client products to attract and maintain relationships with
productive distributors that have the ability to sell our products. In particular, our ability to attract distributors for
our products could be adversely affected if for any reason our products became less competitive or concerns arose
about our asset quality, financial strength or ratings.

Distribution

We maintain a broad range of distribution relationships. We seek to build relationships with distributors who are,
or who have access to, advisors to the affluent and high-net-worth market. In May 2004, we disposed of our
affiliated retail distribution channel to focus our distribution efforts on our non-affiliated distribution channels, in
which we have a long history. We began to use non-affiliated distribution in 1954, primarily by selling life
insurance products through agents of other companies.

Our distribution strategy is to increase sales of profitable products by increasing the number of producers selling
Phoenix products within existing relationships, by offering a greater array of products through existing
distribution sources and by developing new relationships.

Since 2002, we have focused on increasing the number of producers selling Phoenix products within existing
relationships. In 2004, over 600 new producers wrote life insurance business with us, over 700 new producers
wrote annuity business with us and over 10,900 new producers placed asset management business with us.

Since late 1999, we have significantly strengthened our wholesaling teams, in order to enhance our relationships
with distributors in each of our product areas. As of December 31, 2004, we employed 63 life insurance
wholesalers, 19 annuity wholesalers and 13 asset management wholesalers, compared to 42, one and 25,
respectively, as of December 31, 1999.

We also engage in collaborative account development among our life insurance, annuity and asset management
wholesalers through joint marketing presentations and specialized services to advisors. We believe having many
of the same investment choices available in each of our product lines contributes to the success of our strategy.

State Farm. In 2001, we entered into an agreement with a subsidiary of State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance
Company, or State Farm, to provide our life and annuity products and related services to State Farm’s affluent and
high-net-worth customers, through qualified State Farm agents. We are the only third-party provider of life and
annuity products and services at State Farm. By the end of 2004, we had trained and certified approximately
10,474, or 92%, of State Farm’s approximately 11,437 securities licensed agents to sell Phoenix products. Our
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relationship with State Farm gives us potential access to approximately 30% of the high-net-worth households in
the United States. For 2004, State Farm ranked first among our distributors in the sale of life insurance and
second in the sale of anmuity products.

National and Regional Broker-Dealers. National and regional broker-dealers are brokerage firms that engage
financial advisors as employees rather than as independent contractors. To meet the evolving wealth management
needs of their customers, national and regional broker-dealers offer products from third-party providers such as
Phoenix. Simultaneously, many of these firms are seeking to reduce the number of relationships they have with
product providers in favor of those that offer a range of products together with services designed to support
advisors’ sales efforts. We believe our ability to offer a variety of life insurance, annuity and asset management
products and services positions us to benefit from this trend. We have relationships across all product lines in many
important distribution outlets that target the high-net-worth market including UBS, A.G. Edwards and Merrill
Lynch.

Advisor Groups. The recent industry trend toward affiliations among small independent financial advisory firms
has led to advisor groups becoming a distinct class of distributors. We believe we have a particularly strong
position as a provider of life insurance products through Partners Marketing Group, Inc., or PartnersFinancial,
which, since 1999, has been an important component of the National Financial Partners, or NFP, organization.

Insurance Companies. Insurance companies have been moving their agents into an advisor/planner role, resulting
in a need to provide their agents, particularly their top producers, with a wider selection of life insurance products
to sell. Insurance companies responded to this need, in part, by negotiating arrangements with third-party
providers, including other insurance companies. We have distribution relationships with financial services
providers such as AXA Financial Inc., or AXA, and its brokerage outlet for internal producers, AXA Network. In
addition, we continue to maintain relationships with individual agents of other companies and independent agents.

Financial Planning Firms. Financial planning firms are brokerage firms that engage financial advisors as
independent contractors rather than as employees. Financial planning firms have begun to expand their offerings
to include wealth preservation and transfer products. To capitalize on this trend, we establish relationships with
the financial planning firm, and then build relationships with the individual advisors within the firm. This
approach permits us to maximize the number of individual registered representatives who potentially may sell our
products.

Emerging Distribution Sources. Philadelphia Financial Group offers private placement life and annuity products
through a variety of distribution sources with access to the high-net-worth market including family offices,
financial institutions, accountants and attorneys. We also offer our life and annuity products through non-
traditional sources such as private banks, private banking groups within commercial banks and regional and
commercial banks that are focused on their high-net-worth client base.

Affiliated Distribution

Effective as of May 31, 2004, Linsco/Private Ledger Financial Services, or LPL, purchased our affiliated retail
distribution operations and as a result, we no longer have affiliated distribution channels. As part of the
transaction, advisors affiliated with WS Griffith Securities, Inc., or Griffith, and Main Street Management
Company, or Main Street, had the opportunity to move to LPL as independent registered representatives. As of
December 31, 2004, LPL had successfully recruited about 45% of Griffith’s representatives, representing
approximately 50% of Griffith’s total 2003 gross dealer concessions. Since the sale, the Company has pursued an
expansion in its distribution relationship with LPL, adding life and annuity products to existing asset management
offerings and recently commenced a plan to market these products through LPL and its more than 5,500
producers.
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During 2004, 2003 and 2002, 6%, 15% and 11%, respectively, of total life insurance sales, as measured by new
annualized and single premiums, were conducted through affiliated distribution sources. Annuity sales through
affiliated distribution accounted for 18%, 18% and 35% of gross annuity deposits, excluding discontinued
products, during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In all three years, asset management sales through affiliate
distribution accounted for 1% of sales.

Institutional Products Distribution

We have an Institutional Marketing Group, or IMG, which markets our institutional product offerings to
consultants and other institutional clients. There are experienced institutional salespeople at several of our
affiliated asset managers, as well as specialists in products such as sub-advisory and defined contribution
investment only retirement services who operate across the enterprise. IMG also provides coordinated marketing
support and services.

We direct our institutional marketing efforts primarily toward consultants who are retained by institutional
investors to assist in competitive reviews of potential investment managers. These consultants recommend
investment managers to their institutional clients based on their review of investment managers’ performance
histories and investment styles. We maintain relationships with these consultants and provide information and
materials to them in order to facilitate their review of our funds.

Support and Services

We believe we have a competitive advantage through the service and support we provide our distributors,
including:

e customized advice on estate planning, charitable giving planning, executive benefits and retirement
planning, provided by a staff of professionals with specialized expertise in the advanced application of
life insurance and variable annuity products. This staff includes three attorneys with an average of
approximately 15 years’ experience, who combine their advice with tailored presentations, educational
materials.and specimen legal documents;

e market research and education programs designed to help advisors better understand which financial
products the affluent and high-net-worth market demands. We assist advisors in marketing to specific
customer segments such as senior corporate executives, business owners and high-net-worth households;

e nationwide teams of life, annuity and asset management product specialists who provide education and
sales support to distributors and who can act as part of the advisory team for case design and technical
support;

¢ asset management and investment allocation strategies, including our Complementary Investment
Analysis tool, which identifies investment options offered both by us and by third parties that are suitable
for an individual’s allocation needs;

» an underwriting team with significant experience in evaluating the financial and medical underwriting
risks associated with high face-value policies and affluent and high-net-worth individuals; and

e internet-accessible information that makes it easier for our distributors to do business with us, including
interactive product illustrations, educational and sales tools, and online access to forms, marketing
materials and policyholder account information.

Non-operating Segments

Venture Capital Segment
We have invested in the venture capital markets for over 25 years through Phoenix Life’s investment portfolio.

The Venture Capital segment represented 1% of total investments and cash and cash equivalents as of both
December 31, 2004 and 2003. The carrying value of partnership investments in the Venture Capital segment was
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$202.9 million as of December 31, 2004. The segment does not include venture capital investments held within
Phoenix Life’s closed block.

Phoenix Life’s venture capital investments are limited partnership interests in venture capital funds, leveraged
buyout funds and other private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties.” We refer to all of
these types of investments as venture capital. We currently have 110 partnership investments through 49 sponsors
in our Venture Capital segment. We believe our long-standing relationships and history of consistent
participation with many well-established venture capital sponsors gives us preferred access to attractive venture
capital opportunities.

Historically, we viewed our venture capital investments as an opportunity to enhance returns on our participating
life products. In the past, we allocated between 1% and 2% of Phoenix Life’s annual investable cash flow to
venture capital investments. Since 2002, we have made new venture capital commitments only in our closed
block. In addition, in February 2003, we sold a 50% interest in certain of our venture capital partnerships to an
outside party and transferred the remaining 50% interest in those partnerships to our closed block. The carrying
value of the partnerships sold and transferred totaled $52.2 million after realizing a loss of $19.4 million ($5.1
million recorded in 2002 and $14.3 million recorded in 2003).

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Venture Capital segment financial information.

Corporate and Other Segment

The Corporate and Other segment includes: indebtedness; unallocated assets; liabilities and expenses; and certain
businesses not of sufficient scale to report independently. Corporate and Other also includes certain international
operations. As of December 31, 2004, we had a total of $156.1 million in these international holdings. Among
our international holdings was Aberdeen Asset Management PLC, or Aberdeen, a Scottish investment
management company with institutional and retail clients in the United Kingdom, as well as in continental
Europe, Asia, Australia and the United States. At December 31, 2004, our ownership in Aberdeen stock was
16.5%. On January 14, 2005 we closed the sale of our equity holdings in Aberdeen for net proceeds of $70.4
million. See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Note
5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Corporate and Other segment financial information. :
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General Development of Business

PNX was incorporated in Delaware in 2000. Our principal executive offices are located at One American Row,
Hartford, Connecticut 06102-5056. Our telephone number is (860) 403-5000. Our website is located at
www.PhoenixWealthManagement.com. (This and all other URLs are intended to be inactive textual references
only. They are not intended to be an active hyperlink to our website. The information on our website is not, and
is not intended to be, part of this Form 10-K and is not incorporated into this report by reference.)

Phoenix Mutual Life Insurance Company was organized in Connecticut in 1851. In 1992, in connection with its
merger with Home Life Insurance Company, or Home Life, the company redomiciled to New York and changed
its name to Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company, or Phoenix Home Life.

On June 25, 2001, the effective date of its demutualization, Phoenix Home Life converted from a mutual life
insurance company to a stock life insurance company, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX and changed
its name to Phoenix Life Insurance Company. All policyholder membership interests in the mutual company
were extinguished on the effective date. At the same time, Phoenix Investment Partners became an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX.

In addition, on June 25, 2001, PNX completed its initial public offering, or [PO, in which 48.8 million shares of
common stock were issued at a price of $17.50 per share. Net proceeds from the [PO were $807.9 million, which
was contributed to Phoenix Life, as required under the plan of reorganization. On July 24, 2001, Morgan Stanley
& Co. Incorporated exercised its right to purchase 1,395,900 additional shares of the common stock of PNX at the
IPO price of $17.50 per share less underwriter’s discount. Net proceeds of $23.2 million were contributed to
Phoenix Life. Our shares outstanding were subsequently reduced through share repurchases through October
2002.

The following chart illustrates our corporate structure as of December 31, 2004.

( THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC. ]

r !

100% 100%
PHOENIX LIFE PHOENIX INVESTMENT
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT COMPANY,
COMPANY INC.
100% 100%
PM HOLDINGS, INC. PHOENIX INVESTMENT PARTNERS, LTD.
] ]
Various %s Various %s
: l |
OTHER DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES OTHER DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES

At December 31, 2004, we employed approximately 1,500 people. We believe our relations with our employees
are good.
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Item 2. Properties

Our executive headquarters consist of our main office building at One American Row and two other buildings in
Hartford, Connecticut. We own these buildings and occupy most of the space contained in them. In addition to
these properties, we own offices in East Greenbush, New York for use in the operation of our business. In
February 2005, we entered into an agreement for the sale and short-term leaseback of the East Greenbush property
with an anticipated relocation in 2006 of business functions currently located at that property to a site to be leased
in the Albany area. In May 2004, we sold our offices in Enfield, Connecticut. Business functions from Enfield

are being relocated to our existing Hartford offices. We also lease office space within and out of the United States
as needed for our operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

General

We are regularly involved in litigation, both as a defendant and as a plaintiff. The litigation naming us as a
defendant ordinarily involves our activities as an insurer, employer, investor or taxpayer. Several current
proceedings are discussed below. In additional, state regulatory bodies, the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or NASD, and other regulatory bodies
regularly make inquiries of us and, from time to time, conduct examinations or investigations concerning our
compliance with, among other things, insurance laws, securities laws, and laws governing the activities of broker-
dealers. For example, during 2003 and 2004, the New York State Insurance Department conducted its routine
quinquennial financial and market conduct examination of Phoenix Life and its New York domiciled life
insurance subsidiary and the SEC conducted examinations of certain Phoenix Life variable products and certain
Phoenix Life affiliated investment advisors and mutual funds. The New York State Insurance Department’s
report, for the five-year period ending December 31, 2002, was recently received. It cited no material violations.
In 2004, the NASD also commenced examination of Phoenix broker-dealers, which is ongoing. The NASD
recently notified the Company of apparent violations by one of our broker-dealer subsidiaries of certain trade

reporting requirement. The Company is developing its response. We continue to actively cooperate with these
regulators.

Federal and state regulatory authorities from time to time make inquiries and conduct examinations regarding
compliance by Phoenix Life and its subsidiaries with securities and other laws and regulations affecting their
registered products. The Company endeavors to respond to such inquiries in an appropriate way and to take
corrective action if warranted. Recently, there has been a significant increase in federal and state regulatory
activity relating to financial services companies, with a number of recent regulatory inquiries focusing on late-
trading, market timing and valuation issues. Our products entitle us to impose restrictions on transfers between
separate account sub-accounts associated with our variable products.

The Boston District Office of the SEC recently completed a compliance examination of certain of the Company’s
affiliates that are registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.
Following the examination, the staff of the Boston District Office issued a deficient letter primarily focused on
perceived weaknesses in procedures for monitoring trading to prevent market timing activity. The staff requested
the Company to conduct an analysis as to whether shareholders, policyholders and contract holders who invested
in the funds that may have been affected by undetected market timing activity had suffered harm and to advise the
staff whether the Company believes reimbursement is necessary or appropriate under the circumstances. A third
party has been retained to assist the Company in preparing the analysis. Until this analysis is completed, whether
any of these affiliates of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. would be required to make any reimbursement payments
and if so the amount thereof cannot be determined.
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A number of companies have recently announced settlements of enforcement actions with various regulatory
agencies, primarily the SEC and the New York Attorney General’s Office. While no such action has been
initiated against us, it is possible that one or more regulatory agencies may pursue this type of action against us in
the future.

We recently received a subpoena from the Connecticut Attorney General’s office requesting information
regarding certain distribution practices since 1998. Over 40 companies received such a subpoena. We are
cooperating fully.

These types of regulatory actions may be difficult to assess or quantify, may seek recovery of indeterminate
amounts, including punitive and treble damages, and the nature and magnitude of their outcomes may remain
unknown for substantial periods of time. While it is not feasible to predict or determine the ultimate outcome of
all pending investigations and legal proceedings or to provide reasonable ranges of potential losses, we believe
that their outcomes are not likely, either individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial condition, or consideration of available insurance and reinsurance and the provision made
in our consolidated financial statements. However, given the large or indeterminate amounts sought in certain of
these matters and litigation’s inherent unpredictability, it is possible that an adverse outcome in certain matters
could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect on our results of operation or cash flows.

Discontinued Reinsurance Business

During 1999, our Life Companies placed their remaining group accident and health reinsurance business into run-
off, adopting a formal plan to terminate the related contracts as early as contractually permitted and not entering
into any new contracts. As part of the decision to discontinue these reinsurance operations, we reviewed the run-
off block and estimated the amount and timing of future net premiums, claims and expenses. We also purchased
aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance to further protect us from unfavorable results from this discontinued
business. On February 7, 2005 we notified the aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurer that we were exercising our
option to commute this contract. The commutation will be effective during the second quarter of 2005. The
effect of the commutation will not be material to our consolidated financial statements.

We have established reserves for claims and related expenses that we expect to pay on our discontinued group
accident and health reinsurance business. These reserves are based on currently known facts and estimates about,
among other things, the amount of insured losses and expenses that we believe we will pay, the period over which
they will be paid, the amount of reinsurance we believe we will collect under our aggregate excess-of-loss
reinsurance, the amounts we believe we will collect from our retrocessionaires and the likely legal and
administrative costs of winding down the business.

Our total reserves, including coverage available from our aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance and reserves for
amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires, were $110.0 million and $185.0 million as of December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Our total amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires related to paid losses were $60.0
million and $165.0 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. We did not recognize any gains or
losses during the years 2004, 2003 and 2002.

See the Risks Related to Our Business section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis as well as Note 17 to
our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by
this report.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market

Shares of our common stock trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “PNX”. As of
February 14, 2005, there were approximately 270,000 registered holders of our common stock.

Unregistered Shares

We issued the following shares of common stock to eligible policyholders of Phoenix Life, effective as of June
25,2001, in connection with Phoenix Life’s demutualization on that date: 56,174,373 shares in 2001; 4,237 shares
in 2002; 1,853 shares in 2003; and 54 shares in 2004. We issued these shares to policyholders in exchange for
their membership interests without registration under the Securities Act of 1933 in reliance on the exemption
under Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act of 1933.

In 2004, we also issued 43,334 restricted stock units, or RSUS, to 11 of our independent directors, without
registration under that act in reliance on the exemption under Regulation D for accredited investors. Each RSU is
potentially convertible into one share of our common stock.

Stock Price

The following table presents the intraday high and low prices for our common stock on the New York Stock
Exchange for the years 2004 and 2003. The closing price of our common stock at December 31, 2004 was
$12.50.

2004 2003
High Low High Low
First QUATtEr.......ceveeviiceicneetieeccreet et s et s v s eeae $ 14.53 $ 12.06 $ 9.25 $ 6.03
Second QUATTET ...ccc.vvieeeieee vttt eren e § 1421 $ 11.08 b 9.80 $ 6.95
Third QUATET ......eeiviiiieeiiiec ettt e $ 12.34 $ 9.51 § 12.10 $ 8.60
Fourth QUAarter ........cocoeieiiceeciere et $ 12,60 $ 947 § 1265 £ 1026

Dividends

In 2004 and 2003, we paid a dividend of $0.16 per share to shareholders of record on June 14, 2004 and June 13,
2003, respectively. For a discussion of restrictions on our ability to pay dividends, see the Liquidity and Capital
Resources section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Repurchases

We did not repurchase any shares of our common stock during the two years ended December 31, 2004,
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Our selected historical consolidated financial data as of and for each of the five years ended December 31, 2004
follows ($ amounts in millions, except earnings per share). We derived the balance sheet data for 2004 and 2003
and the income statement data for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002 from our consolidated financial statements in this
Form 10-K. We derived the balance sheet data for 2002, 2001 and 2000 and the income statement data for the
years 2001 and 2000 from audited consolidated financial statements not in this Form 10-K. We have reclassified
certain amounts for prior years to conform with our 2004 presentation. Prior to June 25, 2001, Phoenix Life was
the parent company of our consolidated group. In connection with its demutualization, Phoenix Life became a
subsidiary and PNX became the parent company of our consolidated group.

We prepared the following financial data, other than statutory data, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP. We derived the statutory data from the Annual Statements of
our Life Companies filed with state insurance regulatory authorities and prepared it in accordance with statutory
accounting practices prescribed or permitted by state insurance regulators, which vary in certain material respects
from GAAP.

You should read the following in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.
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Selected Financial Data:
($ amounts in millions)
Income Statement Data
Premitms.......coooveeieveeiecrere e e e
Insurance and investment product fees...........
Broker-dealer commission and

distribution fee revenues.........cccocooeoveeercnnnne
Net investment inCOME ......cccvevviveriveieerrrenns
Unrealized gain on trading equity securities...
Net realized investment gains (losses)............
Total revenues............c.ccocovvvveeecnniinnencreenns
Total benefits and expenses..........................

Income (loss) from continuing operations.......
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of INCOME tAXES ..coovveveevirrevr e
Income (loss) before cumulative effect
of accounting changes ...........cccoeeercvneeneenne.
Cumulative effect of accounting changes.......
Net income (10SS)...oooverivreeiinrrecirrireerenennn,

Basic Earnings Per Share'”
Income (loss) from continuing operations......

Net income (10S8).....cceoverrererrirrrenieieeeresienenens

Diluted Earnings Per Share'"
Income (loss) from continuing operations......
Net income (10S8)....vevrrrviveenrircrcerenne s

Dividends per share..................ccoccooiiinnn.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges™ ..............
Supplemental ratio of earnings to fixed
charges — excluding interest credited
on policyholder contract balances™ .............
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and general account investments ...........
Total @SSetS ..ovvvrvrieieiircrcen e
Indebtedness ...
Total liabilities........ccorvvrrieirirriiice e
Minority interest in net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries .......cocoovecvirrrennn

Total stockholders’ equity ........ccoveicvecrnnncne

Asset Management Segment
Third-party assets under management.....

Consolidated Statutory Data

Premiums, deposits and fees.........c.cocceeernne.
Net income (10SS) ..oocvevrrrirrreeicrinenreceee
Capital and surplus™ .........c..ccooeorvererriicnnnn.
Asset valuation reserve, or AVR® ...
Capital, surplus and AVR ..o

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
$ 9906 $ 10422 § 1,0820 $ L1127 $ 1,1474
534.9 500.9 493.8 469.7 559.1
56.9 81.5 85.0 96.3 97.3
1,075.7 1,107.4 940.5 882.9 1,131.9
85.9 - - - -
(0.8) (98.5) (133.9) (84.9) 89.2
$ 27432 $ 26335 § 24674 $ 24767 $ 3,024.9
$ 26060 $ 26537 $§ 2,671.0 S 27388 $ 2867.1
$ 83 $ (41) $ (140.7) $ (1473) $ 960
0.1 @.1) (1.3) 2.5) (12.7)
86.4 (6.2) (142.0) (149.8) 83.3

- - (130.3) (65.4) -

$ 8.4 S  (62) $ (2723) § (2152) $ 833
$ 091 $ (004 S (144 $ (141) $ 092
$ 091 8 (007) $ (278 $ (206 $ _ 0.80
$ 08 $ (004 $ (144 $ (14 0§ 092
$ 08 $ (007) $ (278 $ (206 $  0.80

$ 016 $ 016 S 016 § - $§ -
1.7 - - - 1.8

45 - - - 4.1
$173346  $172428  $16812.8  $144004  §12,767.5
$28362.6  $275592  $252359  $225359  $20313.5
$ 6908 $ 6390 $ 6443 $ 5993 § 4251
$26299.2  $25588.8  §23380.9  §$20266.6 $ 18,3416
$ 410 $ 226 § 192 § 12§ 1307
$ 20224 S 19478 § 18268 $ 23078 $ 18409
$42908.5  $46260.5  $41,8353  $41,723.5  $ 47,3919
$ 21511 $ 33649 $ 39197 $ 3,1448 $ 234438
$ 463 8  (260) S (130.7) $ (66.0) $  266.1
$ 8146 $ 7624 § 8614 $ 11498 $ 13228
221.2 200.0 147.8 223.4 560.4
$ 10358 8§ 9624 § 10092 § 13732 $ 18832
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(D'We calculated earnings per share for each of the two years from 2000 through 2001 on a pro forma basis, based on 104.6
million weighted-average shares outstanding. The pro forma weighted-average shares outstanding calculation for 2001 is
based on the weighted-average shares outstanding for the period from the demutualization and IPO to the end of the year.

@ Due to our losses during 2003, 2002 and 2001, the ratio of earnings to fixed charges for those years was less than 1:1. We
would need $11.4 million, $113.6 million and $131.6 million in additional earnings for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, to achieve a 1:1 coverage ratio.

®Due to our losses during 2003, 2002 and 2001, the ratio coverages, excluding interest credited on policyholder contract
balances, were less than 1:1. We would need $11.4 million, $113.6 million and $131.6 million in additional earnings for
the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, to achieve a 1:1 coverage ratio.

“n accordance with accounting practices prescribed by the New York State Insurance Department, Phoenix Life’s capital
and surplus includes $205.2 million and $175.0 million principal amount of surplus notes outstanding at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively.

)The AVR is a statutory reserve intended to mitigate changes to the balance sheet as a result of fluctuations in asset values.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT

The following discussion may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Phoenix Companies, Inc., or the Company, intends these forward-looking
statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions of the federal securities laws relating to forward-looking
statements. These include statements relating to trends in, or representing management’s beliefs about, the
Company’s future strategies, operations and financial results, as well as other statements including words such as
“anticipate,” “believe,” “plan,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “should” and other similar
expressions. Forward-looking statements are made based upon management’s current expectations and beliefs
concerning trends and future developments and their potential effects on the Company. They are not guarantees
of future performance. Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by forward-looking statements
as a result of risks and uncertainties which include, among others: (i) changes in general economic conditions,
including changes in interest and currency exchange rates and the performance of financial markets; (ii)
heightened competition, including with respect to pricing, entry of new competitors and the development of new
products and services by new and existing competitors; (iii) the Company’s primary reliance, as a holding
Company, on dividends and other payments from its subsidiaries to meet debt payment obligations, particularly
since the Company’s insurance subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends is subject to regulatory restrictions; (iv)
regulatory, accounting or tax developments that may affect the Company or the cost of, or demand for, its
products or services; (v) downgrades in the financial strength ratings of the Company’s subsidiaries or in the
Company’s credit ratings, (vi) discrepancies between actual claims experience and assumptions used in setting
prices for the products of insurance subsidiaries and establishing the liabilities of such subsidiaries for future
policy benefits and claims relating to such products; (vii) movements in the equity markets that affect our
investment results, including those from venture capital, the fees we earn from assets under management and the
demand for our variable products; (viii) the Company’s continued success in achieving planned expense
reductions, (ix) the effects of closing the Company’s retail brokerage operations, and (x) other risks and
uncertainties described in any of the Company'’s filings with the SEC. The Company undertakes no obligation to
update or revise publicly any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise.

L2 NT] FIaNY]
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

Poor relative investment performance of some of our equity asset management strategies has led to
material redemptions which have reduced assets under management and revenues. We could have
continued underperformance and outflows.

In 2004, 61% of third-party assets under management underperformed against their respective one-year
benchmarks. Partly as a result, our asset management business experienced net outflows of $6.6 billion during
* the year. This poor relative performance could continue, which could result in lower assets under management
and lower revenues.

Poor performance of the equity markets could adversely affect sales and assets under management of our
asset management, variable universal life and variable annuity products, as well as the performance of our
Venture Capital segment and potential future pension plan funding requirements.

The United States equity markets can be volatile and experience both periods of strong growth and of substantial
declines.

There are four ways in which equity market declines and volatility have affected, or have the potential to affect,
us negatively.

e First, because the fee revenues of our asset management and, to a lesser degree, variable products
businesses are based on the value of assets under our management, poor performance of the equity
markets limits our fee revenues by reducing the value of the assets we manage.

e Second, returns on venture capital investments are correlated with the performance of the equity markets.
During the severe market declines of 2002 and 2001, our venture capital investments decreased our
income from continuing operations by $38.5 million and $54.9 million, respectively. If equity markets
decline, we could again experience losses in our venture capital investments.

e Third, the funding requirements of our pension plan are dependent on the performance of the equity
markets. As of December 31, 2004, the portfolio funding the Company’s pension plan consisted of 67%
equities. In a severe market decline, the value of the assets supporting the pension plan would decrease,
increasing the requirement for future funding. This funding requirement would increase expenses and
decrease the earnings of the Company.

e Fourth, significant market volatility or declines could cause potential purchasers of our products to refrain
from investing, and current investors to withdraw from the markets or reduce their level of investment.
We cannot estimate the impact of prior market declines on our sales.

Changes in interest rates could harm cash flow and profitability in our life and annuity businesses.

Our life insurance and annuity businesses are sensitive to interest rate changes. In periods of increasing interest
rates, life insurance policy loans and surrenders and withdrawals could increase as policyholders seek investments
with higher perceived returns. This could require us to sell invested assets at a time when their prices are
depressed by the increase in interest rates, which could cause us to realize investment losses.

Conversely, during periods of declining interest rates, we could experience increased premium payments on
products with flexible premium features, repayment of policy loans and increased percentages of policies
remaining in force. We would obtain lower returns on investments made with these cash flows. In addition,
borrowers may prepay or redeem mortgages and bonds in our investment portfolio so that we might have to
reinvest those proceeds in lower interest-bearing investments. As a consequence of these factors, we could
experience a decrease in the spread between the returns on our investment portfolio and amounts credited to
policyholders and contractholders, which could adversely affect our profitability.
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We depend on non-affiliated distribution for our product sales and if our relationships with these
distributors were harmed, we could suffer a loss in revenues.

We distribute our products through non-affiliated advisors, broker-dealers and other financial intermediaries.
There is substantial competition for business within most of these distributors. We believe that our sales through
these distributors depend on factors such as our financial strength, the quality of our products and on the services
we provide to, and the relationships we develop with, these distributors. Our distributors are generally free to sell
products from a variety of providers, which makes it important for us to continually offer distributors products
and services they find attractive. We may not be able to establish or maintain satisfactory relationships with
distributors if our products or services do not meet their needs. Accordingly, our revenues and profitability would
suffer.

Downgrades to PNX’s debt ratings and Phoenix Life’s financial strength ratings could increase policy
surrenders and withdrawals, adversely affect relationships with distributors, reduce new sales and
earnings from certain of our life insurance products and increase our future borrowing costs.

Rating agencies assign Phoenix Life financial strength ratings, and assign us debt ratings, based in each case on
their opinions of the relevant company’s ability to meet its financial obligations.

Financial strength ratings reflect a rating agency’s view of an insurance company’s ability to meet its obligations
to its insureds. These ratings are therefore key factors underlying the competitive position of life insurers. The
current financial strength and debt ratings are set forth in the chart below.

Financial Strength Rating Senior Debt Rating
Rating Agency of Phoenix Life of PNX
A .M. Best Company, Inc. A (“Excellent”) Bbb+ (“Adequate”)
Fitch AA- (“Very Strong”) A- (“Strong”)
Standard & Poor’s A (“Strong™) BBB (“Good”)
Moody’s A3 (“Good”). Baa3 (“Adequate™)

Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s each have a stable outlook for our ratings, while A.M. Best and Fitch have a
negative outlook.

Any rating downgrades may result in increased interest costs in connection with future borrowings. Such an
increase would decrease our earnings and could reduce our ability to finance our future growth on a profitable
basis.

Downgrades may also trigger defaults or repurchase obligations.

Downgrades could adversely affect our reputation and, hence, our relationships with existing distributors and our
ability to establish additional distributor relationships. If this were to occur, we might experience a decline in
sales of certain products and the persistency of existing customers. At this time, we cannot estimate the impact on
sales or persistency. A significant decline in our sales or persistency could have a material adverse effect on our
financial results.
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We might need to fund deficiencies in our closed block, which would result in a reduction in net income
and could result in a reduction in investments in our on-going business.

We have allocated assets to our closed block to produce cash flows that, together with additional revenues from
the closed block policies, are reasonably expected to support our obligations relating to these policies. Our
allocation of assets to the closed block was based on actuarial assumptions about our payment obligations to
closed block policyholders and the continuation of the non-guaranteed policyholder dividend scales in effect for
2000, as well as assumptions about the investment earnings the closed block assets will generate over time. Since
such assumptions are to some degree uncertain, it is possible that the cash flows generated by the closed block
assets and the anticipated revenues from the policies included in the closed block will prove insufficient to
provide for the benefits guaranteed under these policies even if the non-guaranteed policyholder dividend scale
were to be cut. If this were to occur, we would have to fund the resulting shortfall from assets outside of the
closed block, which could adversely affect our profitability.

The independent trustees of our mutual funds and closed-end funds, intermediary program sponsors,
managed account clients and institutional asset management clients could terminate their contracts with
us. This would reduce our investment management fee revenues.

Each of the mutual funds and closed-end funds for which Phoenix Investment Partners acts as investment advisor
or sub-advisor is registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and is governed by a board of trustees or
board of directors. SEC rules require a majority of each board’s members to be independent, and proposed
amendments would increase that requirement to 75%. Each fund’s board has the duty of deciding annually
whether to renew the contract under which Phoenix Investment Partners manages the fund. Board members have
a fiduciary duty to act in the best interests of the shareholders of their funds. Either the board members or, in
limited circumstances, the shareholders may terminate an advisory contract with Phoenix Investment Partners and
move the assets to another investment advisor. The board members also may deem it to be in the best interests of
a fund’s shareholders to make other decisions adverse to us, such as reducing the compensation paid to Phoenix
Investment Partners or imposing restrictions on Phoenix Investment Partners’ management of the fund.

Our asset management agreements with institutional clients, intermediary program sponsors (who “wrap,” or
make available, our investment products within the management agreements they have with their own clients),
direct managed account clients and institutional clients are generally terminable by these sponsors and clients
upon short notice without penalty. As a result, there would be little impediment to these sponsors or clients
terminating our agreements if they became dissatisfied with our performance.

The termination of any of the above agreements relating to material portion of assets under management would
adversely affect our investment management fee revenues and could require us to impair the goodwill or
intangible assets associated with our asset management partners.

We might be unable to attract or retain personnel who are key to our business.

The success of our business is dependent to a large extent on our ability to attract and retain key employees.
Competition in the job market for professionals such as securities analysts, portfolio managers, sales personnel
and actuaries is generally intense. In general, our employees are not subject to employment contracts or non-
compete agreements.

Goodwill or intangible assets associated with our Asset Management business could become impaired
requiring a non-cash charge to earnings in the event of significant market declines, net outflows of assets,
changes in investment management contracts or the departure of key employees.

As of December 31, 2004, our Asset Management business had $725.3 million in goodwill and intangible assets
associated with our various partners. The amount of goodwill and intangible assets on our balance sheet is
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supported by the assets under management and the related revenues of each of the partners. It might be necessary
to impair those assets if:

e we experienced a drop in assets under management due to a significant market decline or continued
outflows such as in 2004 when we had net outflows of $6.6 billion;

¢ amaterial investment management contract, such as one with one of our mutual funds, were terminated,
in this case by the independent trustees; or

e certain key employees at our Asset Management partners left the Company, which could cause outflows
as clierits opt to withdraw their funds following such departures.

We face strong competition in our businesses from mutual fund companies, banks, asset management firms
and other insurance companies. This competition could impair our ability to retain existing customers,
attract new customers and maintain our profitability.

We face strong competition in each of our businesses, comprising life insurance, annuities and asset management.
We believe that our ability to compete is based on a number of factors, including product features, investment
performance, service, price, distribution capabilities, scale, commission structure, name recognition and financial
strength ratings. While there is no single company that we identify as a dominant competitor in our business
overall, our actual and potential competitors include a large number of mutual fund companies, banks, asset
management firms and other insurance companies, many of which have advantages over us in one or more of the
above competitive factors. Recent industry consolidation, including acquisitions of insurance and other financial
services companies in the United States by international companies, has resulted in larger competitors with
financial resources, marketing and distribution capabilities and brand identities that are stronger than ours. Larger
firms also may be able to offer, due to economies of scale, more competitive pricing than we can. In addition,
some of our competitors are regulated differently than we are, which may give them a competitive advantage; for
example, many non-insurance company providers of financial services are not subject to the costs and
complexities of insurance regulation by multiple states. Further, national banks, with their pre-existing customer
bases for financial services products, may compete with insurers as a result of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of
1999, which permits mergers among commercial banks, insurers and securities firms under one holding company.

We could have material losses in the future from our discontinued reinsurance business.

In 1999, we discontinued our reinsurance operations through a combination of sale, reinsurance and placement of
certain retained group accident and health reinsurance business into run-off. We adopted a formal plan to stop
writing new contracts covering these risks and to end the existing contracts as soon as those contracts would
permit. However, we remain liable for claims under those contracts. We also purchased aggregate excess-of-loss
reinsurance to further protect us from unfavorable results from this discontinued business. On February 7, 2005
we notified the aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurer that we were exercising our option to commute this contract.
The commutation will be effective during the second quarter of 2005. The effect of the commutation will not be
material to our consolidated financial statements.

We have established reserves for claims and related expenses that we expect to pay on our discontinued group
accident and health reinsurance business. These reserves are based on currently known facts and estimates about,
among other things, the amount of insured losses and expenses that we believe we will pay, the period over which
they will be paid, the amount of reinsurance we believe we will collect under our aggregate excess-of-1oss
reinsurance, the amounts we believe we will collect from our retrocessionaires and the likely legal and
administrative costs of winding down the business. Qur total reserves, including coverage available from our
reinsurance and reserves for amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires, were $110.0 million as of December 31,
2004. Our total amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires related to paid losses were $60.0 million as of
December 31, 2004.
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We expect our reserves and reinsurance to cover the run-off of the business; however, the nature of the underlying
risks is such that the claims may take years to reach the reinsurers involved. Therefore, we expect to pay claims
out of existing estimated reserves for up to ten years as the level of business diminishes. In addition, unfavorable
claims experience is possible and could result in additional future losses. For these reasons, we cannot know
today what our actual claims experience will be.

In addition, we are involved in disputes relating to certain portions of our discontinued group accident and health
reinsurance business. See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more
information.

In establishing our reserves described above for the payment of insured losses and expenses on this discontinued
business, we have made assumptions about the likely outcome of the disputes referred to above, including an
assumption that substantial recoveries would be available from our reinsurers on all of our discontinued
reinsurance business. However, the inherent uncertainty of arbitrations and lawsuits, including the uncertainty of
estimating whether any settlements we may enter into in the future would be on favorable terms, makes it hard to
predict outcomes with certainty. Given the need to use estimates in establishing loss reserves, and the difficulty
in predicting the outcome of arbitrations and lawsuits, our actual net ultimate exposure likely will differ from our
current estimate. If future facts and circumstances differ significantly from our estimates and assumptions about
future events with respect to the disputes referred to above or other portions of our discontinued reinsurance
business, our current reserves may need to be increased materially, with a resulting material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.

Some of the Bush administration’s legislative proposals would reduce or eliminate the benefit of deferral of
taxation for our insurance and annuity products. In addition, legislation eliminating or modifying either
the federal estate tax or the federal taxation of investment income could adversely affect sales of and
revenues from our life and annuity products.

The attractiveness to our customers of many of our products is due, in part, to favorable tax treatment. Current
federal income tax laws generally permit the tax-deferred accumulation of earnings on the premiums paid by the
holders of annuities and life insurance products. In 2003, the tax rate on long-term capital gains and certain
dividend income was reduced until 2008. President Bush’s 2006 budget proposal would make these rate
reductions permanent. If this happens, it could have a negative impact on our sales and revenues. In addition,
President Bush has indicated that fundamental changes to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the
Code, are among his legislative priorities for his second term. These changes might include the adoption of a flat
tax, value-added tax or similar alternative structure, modifications to Social Security, the creation of new and
expanded vehicles for tax-exempt savings and lower taxes on investment income. The impact of these proposals,
if enacted, cannot reasonably be estimated.

Some of our life insurance products are specifically designed and marketed as policies that help a decedent’s heirs
to pay estate tax. Legislation enacted in the spring of 2001 increased the size of estates exempt from the federal
estate tax, phased in reductions in the estate tax rate between 2002 and 2009 and repealed the estate tax entirely in
2010. This legislation, despite its reinstatement of the estate tax in 2011, could have a negative effect on our
revenues from the sale of estate planning products. President Bush and members of Congress have expressed a
desire to modify the existing legislation, which could result in faster or more complete reduction or repeal of the
estate tax. '

Changes in insurance and securities regulation could affect our profitability by imposing further
restrictions on the conduct of our business. ‘

Our life insurance and annuity businesses are subject to comprehensive state regulation and supervision
throughout the United States. State insurance regulators and the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners, or the NAIC, continually reexamine existing laws and regulations, and may impose changes in
the future that put further regulatory burdens on us, thereby increasing our costs of doing business or otherwise

28




harm our business. This could have a material adverse affect on our results of operations and financial condition.

The United States federal government does not directly regulate the insurance business. However, federal
legislation and administrative policies in areas which include employee benefit plan regulation, financial services
regulation and federal taxation and securities laws could significantly affect each of our businesses, most notably
our costs.

We and some of the policies, contracts and other products that we offer are subject to various levels of regulation
under the federal securities laws administered by the SEC as well as regulation by those states and foreign
countries in which we provide investment advisory services, offer products or conduct other securities-related
activities. We could be restricted in the conduct of our business for failure to comply with such laws and
regulations. Future laws and regulations, or the interpretation thereof, could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition by increasing our expenses in order to comply with these regulations.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s discussion and analysis reviews our consolidated financial condition at December 31, 2004 and
2003; our consolidated results of operations for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002; and, where appropriate, factors
that may affect our future financial performance. This discussion should be read in conjunction with “Selected
Financial Data” and our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a manufacturer of insurance, annuity and asset management products for the accumulation, preservation
and transfer of wealth. We provide products and services to affluent and high-net-worth individuals through their
advisors and to institutions directly and through consultants. We offer a broad range of life insurance, annuity
and asset management products and services through a variety of distributors. These distributors include
independent advisors and financial services firms who make our products and services available to their clients.

We manufacture our products through two operating segments — Life and Annuity and Asset Management —
which include three product lines — life insurance, annuities and asset management. Through Life and Annuity
we offer a variety of life insurance and annuity products, including universal, variable universal, term life
insurance, and a range of variable annuity offerings. Asset Management comprises two lines of business —
private client and institutional.

Through our private client line of business, we provide investment management services principally on a
discretionary basis, with products consisting of open-end mutual funds, closed-end funds and managed accounts.
Managed accounts include intermediary programs sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated broker-dealers and
direct managed accounts sold and administered by us. These two types of managed accounts generally require
minimum investments of $100,000 and $1 million, respectively. Our private client business also provides transfer
agency, accounting and administrative services to our open-end mutual funds.

Through our institutional group, we provide discretionary and non-discretionary investment management services
primarily to corporations, multi-employer retirement funds and foundations, as well as to endowments and special
purpose funds. In addition, we manage alternative financial products such as structured finance products.
Structured finance products include collateralized obligations such as collateralized debt obligations, or CDOs,
backed by portfolios of public high yield bonds, commercial mortgage-backed or asset-backed securities.

We report our remaining activities in two non-operating segments — Venture Capital and Corporate and Other.
Venture Capital includes limited partnership interests in venture capital funds, leveraged buyout funds and other
private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties. These assets are investments of the general
accounts of our Life Companies. See Business—Venture Capital Segment. Corporate and Other includes
indebtedness; unallocated assets, liabilities and expenses; and certain businesses not of sufficient scale to report
independently. See Business—Corporate and Other Segment. These non-operating segments are significant for
financial reporting purposes, but do not contain products or services relevant to our core manufacturing
operations.

We derive our revenues principally from:

premiums on whale life insurance;

insurance and investment product fees on variable life and annuity products and universal life products;
investment management and related fees; and

net investment income and net realized investment gains.
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Under GAAP, premium and deposit collections for variable life, universal life and annuity products are not
recorded as revenues. These collections are reflected on our balance sheet as an increase in separate account
liabilities for certain investment options of variable products. Collections for fixed annuities and certain
investnient options of variable annuities are reflected on our balance sheet as an increase in policyholder deposit
funds. Collections for other products are reflected on our balance sheet as an increase in policy liabilities and
accruals.

Our expenses consist principally of:

insurance policy benefits provided to policyholders, including interest credited on policies;
policyholder dividends;

deferred policy acquisition costs amortization;

intangible assets amortization;

interest expense;

other operating expenses; and

income taxes.
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Our profitability depends principally upon:

o the adequacy of our product pricing, which is primarily a function of our:
« ability to select appropriate underwriting risks;
* mortality experience;
* ability to generate investment earnings;
+ ability to maintain expenses in accordance with our pricing assumptions; and
* policies’ persistency (the percentage of policies remaining in force from year to year as measured by
~ premiums);
¢ the amount and composition of assets under management;
¢ the maintenance of our target spreads between the rate of earnings on our investments and dividend and
interest rates credited to customers; and
¢ our ability to manage expenses.

Prior to Phoenix Life’s demutualization, we focused on participating life insurance products, which pay
policyholder dividends. As of December 31, 2004, 74.0% of our life insurance reserves were for participating
policies. As a result, a significant portion of our expenses consists, and will continue to consist, of such
policyholder dividends. Our net income is reduced by the amounts of these dividends. Policyholder dividends
expense was $404.7 million during 2004, $418.8 million during 2003 and $401.8 million during 2002.

Our sales and financial results over the last several years have been affected by demographic, industry and market
trends. The baby boom generation has begun to enter its prime savings years., Americans generally have begun to
rely less on defined benefit retirement plans, social security and other government programs to meet their
postretirement financial needs. Product preferences have shifted between fixed and variable options depending on
market and economic conditions. Our balanced product portfolio including universal life, variable life and
variable annuity products, as well as a broad array of mutual funds and managed accounts, is well positioned to
meet this shifting demand.

Discontinued Operations
During 2004, we completed the sale of 100% of the common stock held by us in Phoenix National Trust
Company. The effect of this transaction is not material to our consolidated financial statements. Phoenix

National Trust Company is presented as a discontinued operation in our consolidated financial statements for all
periods presented.
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In 1999, we discontinued our reinsurance operations. See Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements in this
Form 10-K for detailed information regarding our discontinued operations.

Recent Acquisitions and Dispositions
Life and Annuity

On October 25, 2004, we entered into an agreement with Friends Provident plc, or Friends Provident, to sell our
12% interest in Lombard International Assurance S.A., or Lombard, and to relinquish our notes receivable from
Lombard’s affiliate, [nsurance Development Holdings A.G., or IDH. This transaction closed on January 11, 2005
for consideration of $59.0 million and, under the terms of the sale, we may be entitled to additional consideration,
in the form of cash, based on Lombard’s financial performance through 2006. We currently expect to recognize
an after-tax realized gain of between $7.0 million and $10.0 million in the first quarter of 2005 related to our sale
of Lombard.

During the second quarter of 2004, we sold our retail affiliated broker-dealer operations to LPL. As part of the
transaction, advisors affiliated with Griffith and Main Street had the opportunity to move to LPL as independent
registered representatives. As of December 31, 2004, LPL had successfully recruited about 45% of Griffith’s
total representatives, representing about 50% of Griffith’s total gross dealer concessions. As of December 31,
2004, we have not determined the ultimate persistency of the business written by these advisors, but our
experience through that date shows no material deterioration, reflecting the quality of our in-force products and
the professionalism of these advisors. As part of this transaction, we are expanding our distribution relationship
with LPL, adding life and annuity products to our existing asset management offerings, and we have recently
commenced a marketing plan to position these products within LPL and its more than 5,500 producers.

Revenues net of eliminations and direct expenses net of deferrals and certain transaction related costs included in
our consolidated financial statements related to our retail affiliated broker-dealer operations sold during 2004 are
as follows:

Revenues and Direct Expenses of Year Ended December 31,

Retail Affiliated Broker-Dealer Operations: 2004 2003 2002

($ amounts in millions)

Insurance and investment product fees revenues, net of eliminations............... $ 32.0 § 60.8 $ 61.8
Direct other operating expenses, net of deferrals.........c.cocoeviinenninncnienn 38.7 72.8 74.4

During 2004, we incurred a $3.6 million after-tax charge for an impairment of goodwill related to Main Street,
offset by a $2.7 million after-tax gain on the sale of the broker-dealer operations. Both the charge and the gain
were recorded to realized investment gains and losses. In addition, we incurred a $10.2 million after-tax charge
related to lease termination costs, offset by a $4.4 million after-tax gain related to curtailment accounting in
connection with employee benefit plans.

In 2003, we acquired the remaining interest in PFG Holdings, Inc., or PFG, the holding company for our private
placement operation, for initial consideration of $16.7 million. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we
may be obligated to pay additional consideration of up to $86.5 million to the selling shareholders, including
$10.0 million during 2005 through 2007 based on certain financial performance targets being met, and the balance
in 2008 based on the appraised value of PFG as of December 31, 2007. During the year ended December 31,
2004, we paid $3.0 million under this obligation.

In 2002, we acquired the variable life and variable annuity business of Valley Forge Life Insurance Company (a

subsidiary of CNA Financial Corporation). See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K
for further information regarding the acquisition of Valley Forge Life Insurance Company.
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Asset Management

In March 2004, we acquired the remaining minority interests in Walnut Asset Management LLC and Rutherford
Brown & Catherwood, LLC for $2.1 million. This additional purchase price was accounted for as a step-

acquisition by Phoenix Investment Partners and was allocated to goodwill and definite-lived intangible assets,
accordingly.

In 2002 we acquired a 60% equity interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick, LLC, or Kayne Anderson Rudnick, for
$102.4 million. This acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method under FASB Statement No. 141,
Business Combinations, or SFAS 141. In connection with this acquisition, the Acquisition Agreement and the
related Amended and Restated Operating Agreement resulted in the creation of mandatorily redeemable
noncontrolling interests, or noncontrolling interests, representing 40% of Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s members’
interests held by certain of its members. Certain of these noncontrolling interests in Kayne Anderson Rudnick
have scheduled redemption dates (5% at each date) as of December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006, at a price based
upon operating results of Kayne Anderson Rudnick for the year then ended. These 15% noncontrolling interests,
as well as the remaining 25% of Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s noncontrolling interests, are mandatorily redeemable
upon death of a member and, as such, are reported as a liability on our consolidated balance sheet in accordance
with FASB Statement No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both
Liabilities and Equity, or SFAS 150. Separate agreements in connection with the 25% noncontrolling interests
held by certain Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s members give the noncontrolling interest-halders the right to require
Phoenix Investment Partners to redeem all or a part of their noncontrolling interest at specified future dates and at
a price determined based upon operating results of Kayne Anderson Rudnick. Conversely, the terms of these
agreements also give Phoenix Investment Partners the right to redeem the outstanding minority interests at the
same price as the noncontrolling interest-holder may exercise its right to sell. These agreements may expire
unexercised should Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s operating results decline from the initial measurement date.

In addition to the initial cost of the purchase of Kayne Anderson Rudnick, in the first quarter of 2004 we made a
payment of $30.1 million in contingent consideration, which was based upon management fee revenues for the
purchased business through the end of 2003. Phoenix Investment Partners had accrued for this payment as of
December 31, 2003 and allocated it entirely to goodwill.

In January 2004, one member of Kayne Anderson Rudnick accelerated his portion of the 15% noncontrolling
interest redemption, at which time we acquired an additional 0.3% of the company. Phoenix Investment Partners
has accrued $11.4 million related to the remaining 4.9% redemption required as of December 31, 2004, has
accounted for this payment as a step-acquisition and has allocated the purchase price to goodwill and definite-
lived intangible assets, accordingly. The two remaining 4.9% noncontrolling interest redemptions will be
accounted for as step-acquisitions as the purchase price contingency resolves.

During 2004, we purchased a contract to manage the assets of the FMI Sasco Contrarian Value Fund, an open-end
mutual fund. This transaction is not material to our consolidated financial statements.

Corporate and Other

During 2004, we sold the stock of Phoenix Global Solutions (India) Pvt. Ltd., our India-based information
technology subsidiary, and essentially all of the assets of its United States affiliate, Phoenix Global Solutions,
Inc., to Tata Consultancy Services Limited, a division of Tata Sons Ltd. This transaction is not material to our
consolidated financial statements.

In January 2005, we sold our equity interest in Aberdeen for net proceeds of $70.4 million as further described in
Notes 1 and 5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.
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The Demutualization

Phoenix Home Life demutualized on June 25, 2001 by converting from a mutual life insurance company to a
stock life insurance company, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX and changed its name to Phoenix Life
Insurance Company, or Phoenix Life. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for
detailed information regarding the demutualization and closed block.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Share-Based Payment: On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued
FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, or SFAS 123(R), which requires that
compensation cost related to share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements at the fair
value of the instruments issued. While prior to the issuance of SFAS 123(R), recognition of such costs at fair
value was optional, we elected to do so for all share-based compensation that we awarded after December 31,
2002. Accordingly, we do not expect our adoption of SFAS 123(R) to have a material effect on our consolidated
financial statements.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairments.: Portions of Emerging Issues Task Force Abstract EITF 03-1, The Meaning
of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments, or EITF 03-1, are effective for
fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2004. EITF 03-1 provides guidance as to the determination of other-than-
temporarily impaired securities and requires additional financial disclosures with respect to unrealized losses.
These accounting-and disclosure requirements largely codify our existing practices as to other-than-temporarily
impaired securities and thus, are not anticipated to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
The effective date of certain portions of EITF 03-1 has been delayed pending further interpretive guidance.
Because significant uncertainty remains surrounding what form the guidance will ultimately take, we cannot
predict what effect, if any, adoption of the pending portions will have on our consolidated financial statements.

Postretirement Benefits: On May 19, 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 106-2, Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of
2003, or the FSP. For employers that sponsor postretirement benefit plans, or plan sponsors that provide
prescription drug benefits to retirees, the FSP requires any effects of the anticipated federal tax subsidy related to
those drug benefits be treated as an actuarial gain. The effect of our adoption of the FSP is not material to our
consolidated financial statements.

Effective July 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS 150. The effect of our adoption was to reclassify the mandatorily
redeemable noncentrolling interests related to our asset management subsidiaries from “minority interest” to
“other liabilities” in our consolidated balance sheet. In addition, within our consolidated statement of operations,
we reclassified earnings attributed to those interests from the caption “minority interest in net income of
subsidiaries” to “other operating expenses.” These changes in presentation were not material to our consolidated
financial statements. '

Accounting Changes

Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and Separate Accounts: Effective January 1, 2004, we adopted the
AICPA’s Statement of Position 03-1, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain
Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts, or SOP 03-1. SOP 03-1 provides guidance
related to the accounting, reporting and disclosure of certain insurance contracts and separate accounts, including
guidance for computing reserves for products with guaranteed benefits such as guaranteed minimum death
benefits and for products with annuitization benefits such as guaranteed minimum income benefits. In addition,
SOP 03-1 addresses the presentation and reporting of separate accounts, as well as rules concerning the
capitalization and amortization of sales inducements. Since this new accounting standard largely codifies certain
accounting and reserving practices related to applicable nontraditional long-duration contracts and separate
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accounts that we already followed, our adoption did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

Variable Interest Entities. A new accounting standard was issued in January 2003 that interprets the existing
standard on consolidation. This new accounting standard was revised and reissued in December 2003 as

FIN 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51, or FIN 46(R). It clarifies
the application of standards of consolidation to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the
characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties (“variable interest entities”). As of
December 31, 2003, we adopted FIN 46(R) for special purpose entities, or SPEs, where we may hold a variable
interest. Qur adoption of FIN 46(R) resulted in no additional variable interest entities being consolidated by us.

In accordance with previous guidance, we continue to consolidate certain collateralized obligation trusts, or
CDOs, which we sponsor.

Effect of Consolidation of Certain CDOs on

Consolidated Financial Statements: 2004 2003 2002

($ amounts in millions)

Decrease in net income or increase in NEt LSS ...c.vvvivvecrvvrririereeceineseeenas $§ (129 § 24 § (263
Reduction in stockholder’'s eqUIt ........cocooiveiiviiviiiice e § (75 $§ (773) § (2049

The above non-cash charges to earnings and stockholders’ equity primarily relate to realized and unrealized
investment losses within the CDOs. Upon maturity or other liquidation of the trusts, the fair value of the
investments pledged as collateral will be used to settle the non-recourse collateralized obligations with any
shortfall in such investments inuring to the third-party note and equity holders. To the extent there remains a
recorded liability for non-recourse obligations after all the assets pledged as collateral are exhausted, such amount
will be reduced to zero with a corresponding benefit to earnings. Accordingly, these investment losses and any
future investment losses under this method of consolidation will ultimately reverse upon the maturity or other
liquidation of the non-recourse collateralized obligations. These non-recourse obligations mature between 2011
through 2014 but contain call provisions. The call provisions may be triggered at the discretion of the equity
investors based on market conditions and are subject to certain contractual limitations.

GAAP requires us to consolidate all the assets and liabilities of these collateralized obligation trusts which results
in the recognition of realized and unrealized losses even though we have no legal obligation to fund such losses in
the settlement of the collateralized obligations. The FASB continues to evaluate, through the issuance of FASB
staff positions, the various technical implementation issues related to consolidation accounting. We will continue
to assess the impact of any new implementation guidance issued by the FASB as well as evolving interpretations
among accounting professionals. Additional guidance and interpretations may affect our application of
consolidation accounting in future periods.

Stock-based Compensation: A new standard was issued by the FASB in December 2002 which amends an
existing standard on accounting for stock-based compensation. The new standard provides methods of transition
for a voluntary change to fair value accounting for stock-based compensation. We adopted fair value accounting
for stock-based compensation in 2003 using the prospective method of transition provided by the new standard,
which results in expense recognition for stock options awarded after December 31, 2002. See Note 11 to our
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional disclosure on the requirements of the new
standard as it relates to our business.

Gooadwill and Other Intangible Assets. At the beginning of 2002, we adopted a new accounting standard for
goodwill and other intangible assets, including amounts reflected in our carrying value of equity method
investments. Under this new standard, we discontinued recording amortization expense on goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite lives, but we continue recording amortization expense for those assets with
definite estimated lives. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for a
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comprehensive discussion of the adoption of the new standard and its effects on our consolidated financial
statements.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting estimates are reflective of significant judgments, often as a result of the need to make
estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. The following are areas that we believe require
significant judgments, together with references to the footnote(s) in which each accounting policy is discussed in
relation to our business:

e Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs and Present Value of Future Profits
The costs of acquiring new business, principally commissions, underwriting, distribution and policy issue
expenses, all of which vary with and are primarily related to production of new business, are deferred. In
connection with our 1997 acquisition of the Confederation Life business, we recognized an asset for the
present value of future profits representing the present value of estimated net cash flows embedded in the
existing contracts acquired. This asset is included in deferred acquisition costs.

We amortize deferred acquisition costs and present value of future profits based on the related policy’s
classification. For individual participating life insurance policies, deferred acquisition costs and present
value of future profits are amortized in proportion to estimated gross margins. For universal life, variable
universal life and accumulation annuities, deferred acquisition costs and present value of future profits are
amortized in proportion to estimated gross profits. Policies may be surrendered for value or exchanged
for a different one of our products (internal replacement). The deferred acquisition costs balance
associated with the replaced or surrendered policies is amortized to reflect these surrenders.

The amortization of deferred acquisition costs and present value of future profits requires the use of
various assumptions, estimates and judgments about the future. Significant assumptions include those
. concerning expenses, investment performance, mortality and policy cancellations (i.e., lapses,
withdrawals and surrenders). These assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and are generally based
on our past experience, industry studies, regulatory requirements and judgments about the future.
Changes in estimated gross margins and gross profits based on actual experiences are reflected as an
adjustmerit to total amortization to date resulting in a charge or credit to earnings. Finally, analyses are
performed periodically to assess whether there are sufficient gross margins or gross profits to amortize the
remaining deferred acquisition cost balances. )
We regularly evaluate our estimated gross profits to determine if actual experience or other evidence
suggests that earlier estimates should be revised. Several assumptions considered to be significant in the
development of estimated gross profits include separate account fund performance, surrender and lapse
rates, estimated interest spread and estimated mortality. The separate account fund performance
assumption is critical to the development of the estimated gross profits related to our variable annuity and
variable and interest-sensitive life insurance businesses. The average long-term rate of assumed separate
account fund performance used in estimating gross profits was 6.0% for the variable annuity business and
6.9% for the variable life business at December 31, 2004.

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements and Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk in this Form 10-K for more information.
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Policy Liabilities and Accruals
See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements and Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk in this Form 10-K for more information.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At the beginning of 2002, we adopted a new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible assets,
including amounts reflected in our carrying value of equity-method investments. Under this new
standard, we discontinued recording amortization expense on goodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives, but we continue recording amortization expense for those intangible assets with definite
estimated lives. For goodwill and intangible assets, we perform impairment tests at the reporting-unit
level at least annually. For purposes of the goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets impairment
test, the fair value of the reporting units is based on the sum of: a multiple of revenue, plus the fair value
of the units’ tangible fixed assets. Prior to 2002, we amortized goodwill principally over 40 years and
investment management contracts and employment contracts over five to 16 years and three to seven
years, respectively. All amortization expense has been and continues, for intangible assets with definite
lives, to be calculated on a straight-line basis.

See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.

Valuation of Debt and Equity Securities

We classify our debt and equity securities held in our general account, as well as those pledged as
collateral, as available-for-sale and report them in our balance sheet at fair value. Fair value is based on
quoted market price, where available. When quoted market prices are not available, we estimate fair
value by discounting debt security cash flows to reflect interest rates currently being offered on similar
terms to borrowers of similar credit quality, by quoted market prices of comparable instruments and by
independent pricing sources or internally developed pricing models.

Fair Value of General Account Fixed Maturity Securities As of December 31, 2004
by Pricing Source: Fixed
(8 amounts in millions) Maturities % of Total
at Fair Value Fair Value
Priced via independent market QUOTALIONS ........ccvrvvvicviirieiirimeseeeiec e $ 10,9044 80.9%
Priced via MATICES «.ivviiireiiiecertiieentieeicceerarase e seaasaessseasseaassesssesasesasasessssassessssanss 2,149.5 16.0%
Priced via broker QUOLAtIONS .........c.cvvirmririiriirce e 298.6 2.2%
Priced via other methods ... 1193 0.9%
Short-termm INVESTMENES™ ... .ciii it iree e e vt e sab e s e eaneesraeesbereens 4.5 --%
TOAL. oo ettt $ 13,4763 100.0%

*Short-term investments are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Investments whose value, in our judgment, is considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired are
written down to fair value as a charge to realized losses included in our earnings. The cost basis of these
written-down investments is adjusted to fair value at the date the determination of impairment is made.
The new cost basis is not changed for subsequent recoveries in value. For mortgage-backed and other
asset-backed debt securities, we recognize income using a constant effective yield based on anticipated
prepayments and the estimated economic lives of the securities. When actual prepayments differ
significantly from anticipated prepayments, the effective yield is recalculated to reflect actual payments to
date and any resulting adjustment is included in net investment income. For certain asset-backed
securities, changes in estimated yield are recorded on a prospective basis and specific valuation methods
are applied to these securities to determine if there has been an other-than-temporary decline in value.
We report mortgage loans at unpaid principal balances, net of valuation reserves on impaired mortgages.
We consider a mortgage loan to be impaired if we believe it is probable that we will be unable to collect
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all amounts of contractual interest and principal as scheduled in the loan agreement. We do not accrue
interest income on impaired mortgage loans when the likelihood of collection is doubtful.

See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements, the Debt and Equity Securities section of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Item 7A,
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk in this Form 10-K for more information.

Valuation of Investments in Venture Capital Partnerships

We record our equity in the earnings of venture capital partnerships in net investment income using the
most recent financial information received from the partnerships and estimating the earnings for any lag
in reporting. To estimate the net equity in earnings of the venture capital partnerships for each quarter,
we developed a methodology to estimate the change in value of the underlying investee companies in the
venture capital partnerships. For public investee companies, we use quoted market prices at the end of
each quarter, applying liquidity discounts to these prices in instances where such discounts were applied
in the underlying partnerships’ financial statements. For private investee companies, we apply a public
industry sector index to estimate changes in valuations each quarter. We apply this methodology
consistently each quarter with subsequent adjustments to reflect market events reported by the
partnerships (e.g., new rounds of financing, initial public offerings and write-downs by the general
partners). Our methodology recognizes both downward and upward adjustments in estimated values
based on the indices, but when the general partner reduces the value of a private investee company, we do
not adjust the fair value upward (by applying the public sector index) in excess of the most recent value
reported by the general partner. Finally, we revise the valuations we have assigned to the investee
companies annually to reflect the valuations in the audited financial statements received from the venture
capital partnerships. Adjustments to the valuation of these companies to reflect reported valuations in the
audited financial statements received from the venture capital partnerships will be reflected in our
financial statements when received in the first and second quarters of 2005.

The estimation process for valuing the private investee companies is inherently less precise than the
estimation process for valuing public company investees. For private investee companies, we employ a
sector index based on biotechnology, telecom, computer and healthcare indices as a proxy for estimating
changes in fair value of individual private investee companies that will not necessarily match the
underlying changes in fair value of an individual private investee company. Based on our experience, we
have found that such indices represent a reasonable basis for estimating the fair value of an investee
company during a period of deteriorating public equity markets such as that experienced in 2002.
However, we believe this method is less reliable in rising markets such as that experienced in 2003 and
2004 relative to general partner valuations. Specifically, our experience indicates that upward revisions
of valuations by the general partners for private company investees tend to lag increases in public equity
markets as general partner valuations typically will be revised upward based on company specific
liquidity events including new rounds of financing, mergers and acquisitions and initial public offerings.

See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.

Deferred Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The
deferred tax assets and/or liabilities are determined by multiplying the differences between the financial
reporting and tax reporting bases for assets and liabilities by the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect
when such differences are recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances on deferred
tax assets are estimated based on the Company’s assessment of the realizability of such amounts.

We have elected to file a consolidated federal income tax return for 2004 and prior years. Within the
consolidated tax return, we are required by regulations of the Internal Revenue Service, or the IRS, to
segregate our companies into two groups: life insurance companies and non-life insurance companies.
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We are limited as to the amount of any operating losses from one group that can be offset against taxable
income of the other group. These limitations affect the amount of any operatmg loss carryforwards that
we have recorded in our deferred tax assets now or in the future.

As of December 31, 2004, we had deferred tax assets of $51.6 million related to net operating losses for
federal income tax purposes and $7.9 million for state income tax purposes. The related federal net
operating losses are scheduled to expire as follows: $61.2 million in 2017, $12.5 million in 2018, $1.1
million in 2019, $1.8 million in 2022, $33.5 million in 2023 and $44.8 million in 2024. The state net
operating losses relate to the non-life subgroup and are scheduled to expire as follows: $29.8 million in
2012 and 2013 and $72.0 million in 2019 through 2023. Due to the inability to combine the life insurance
and non-life insurance subgroups for state income tax purposes, we established a $7.9 million and a $4.6
million valuation allowance at the end of 2004 and 2003, respectively, relative to the state net operating
loss carryforwards.

We have determined, based on our earnings and future income, that it is more likely than not that the
deferred income tax assets after valuation allowance already recorded as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
will be realized. In determining the adequacy of future income, we have considered projected future
income, reversal of existing temporary differences and available tax planning strategies that could be
implemented, if necessary.

Our federal income tax returns are routinely audited by the IRS and estimated provisions are routinely
provided in the financial statements in anticipation of the results of these audits. The IRS has examined
our consolidated group’s federal income tax returns through 2001. The IRS is currently examining our
federal income tax returns for 2002 and 2003. While it is often difficult to predict the outcome of these
audits, including the timing of any resolution of any particular tax matter, we believe that our reserves, as
recorded in other liabilities on the balance sheet, are adequate for all open tax years. Unfavorable
resolution of any particular issue could result in additional use of cash to pay liabilities that would be
deemed owed to the IRS. Additionally, any unfavorable or favorable resolution of any particular issue
could result in an increase or decrease, respectively, to our effective income tax rate to the extent that our
estimates differ from the ultimate resolution. During 2004 we recognized a $5.7 million favorable tax
benefit as a result of the favorable resolution of certain tax matters with the IRS.

See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information related to
income taxes.

Pension and other Postemplovment Benefits
See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information on our
pension and other postemployment benefits.
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Consolidated Results of Operations

Summary Consolidated Financial Data:
(3 amounts in millions, except per share data)

REVENUES
Premitums.....coceceneiinreeeneni e
Insurance and investment product fees...........
Broker-dealer commission and

distribution fee 1eVeNUESs...........ccvvciciiinnninn,
Investment income, net of expenses ...............
Unrealized gain on trading equity securities...
Net realized investment gains (losses)............
Total revenues............cccooveiviiiiniinnnnns,

BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
Policy benefits, excluding
policyholder dividends ...
Policyholder dividends ..........coovviiininn
Policy acquisition cost amortization...............
Intangible asset amortization ...
Intangible asset impairments ................cevevvans
Interest expense on indebtedness....................
Interest expense on non-recourse
collateralized obligations..........c.cccevvvvennenn
Other operating expenses.........coccvvivieinnnann,
Total benefits and expenses........................
Income (loss) before income taxes, minority
interest, equity in earnings of affiliates and
cumulative effect of accounting changes......
Applicable income taxes (benefit).................
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before minority interest, equity in earnings
of affiliates and cumulative effect of
acCOUNting Changes.......covvverricrcririnicennins
Minority interest in net income
of consolidated subsidiaries............coceernnnan.
Equity in undistributed earnings (loss)
of affiliates ...oovevereiecie
Income (loss) from continuing operations ..
Income (loss) from discontinued operations...
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of
accounting changes..........................
Cumulative effect of accounting changes.......
Net income (10SS) ........cocoovrvviirinnnniii,

Earnings (loss) per share:
BaSIC v it ceei e e

Diluted .o

Weighted-average common shares
OULSTANAING 1.vvoveve e

Weighted-average common shares outstanding
and dilutive potential common shares ..........

Year Ended December 31, Changes
2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02
990.6 $ 1,042.2 $ 1,082.0 (51.6) (39.8)
534.9 500.9 493.8 34.0 7.1
56.9 81.5 85.0 (24.6) (3.5
1,075.7 1,1074 940.5 (31.7) 166.9
85.9 ~-- -- 85.9 -
(0.8) (98.5) (133.9) 97.7 354
2,743.2 2,633.5 2.467.4 109.7 166.1
1,422.2 1,454.0 1,436.1 (31.8) 17.9
404.7 418.8 401.8 (14.1) 17.0
110.2 94.1 59.2 16.1 349
338 332 325 0.6 0.7
- - 66.3 - (66.3)
40.8 39.6 314 1.2 8.2
33.6 48.9 30.5 (15.3) 18.4
560.7 5635.1 613.2 4.4 (48.1)
2,606.0 2,653.7 2,671.0 7.7 17.3)
137.2 (20.2) (203.6) 1574 183.4
40.3 (18.3) (58.8) 58.8 40.5
96.7 (1.9) (144.8) 98.6 142.9
-- (0.4) {0.5) 04 0.1
(10.4) (1.8) 4.6 {8.6) (6.4)
86.3 4.1) (140.7) 90.4 136.6
0.1 2.1) (1.3) 2.2 (0.8)
86.4 (6.2) (142.0) 92.6 135.8
-- -- (130.3) -- 130.3
86.4 S 62) § (2723 92.6 266.1
0.91 $ 0.07) §$ (2.78) 0.98 2.71
0.86 3 0.07) § (2.78) 0.93 2.71
94.7 94.2 97.9 0.5 3.7)
100.8 94.2 97.9 42 (1.3)
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Executive Overview and Qutlook

Full year 2004 net income of $86.4 million, or $0.86 per diluted share, is substantially improved from 2003 net
loss of $6.2 million, or $0.07 per diluted share and 2002 net loss of $272.3 million, or $2.78 per share as a result
of higher operating eamings from our Life and Annuity and Asset Management businesses, higher net investment
gains and a lower effective tax rate, somewhat offset by lower earnings from venture capital in 2004 as compared
to 2003, and a higher loss from Corporate and Other segment. Full year 2004 net income includes a net $41.2
million after-tax gain on our equity investment in Aberdeen, a $6.4 million after-tax charge related to the fourth
quarter tender of $144.8 million in surplus notes, and net after-tax restructuring charges of $21.9 million,
principally related to severance and other transition costs related to the sale of our Life and Annuity retail
affiliated distribution operations and the outsourcing of our information technology infrastructure to with
Electronic Data Systems, or EDS. Full year 2003 net income includes a $55.0 million after-tax charge for the
impairment of our equity investment in Aberdeen and after-tax restructuring charges of $8.5 million principally
related to employee severance costs, while full year 2002 net income includes after-tax restructuring charges of
$28.5 million and a $192.6 million after-tax writedown of goodwill related to the adoption of new accounting for
goodwill and an impairment charge. Finally, full year 2004 results include $12.9 million of realized investment
losses related to CDOs consolidated by us under FIN 46(R), which will reverse upon the maturity or other
liquidation of the non-recourse collateralized obligations. Full year 2003 and 2002 results include a $2.4 million
and $26.3 million, respectively, in realized losses related to these CDOs consolidated under FIN 46(R).

Total segment income for 2004 of $80.6 million, or $0.80 per diluted share, is substantially improved from 2003
full year total segment income of $57.3 million, or $0.59 per diluted share, and 2002 total segment loss of $60.4
million, or $0.62 per share, as a result of higher earnings in both the Life and Annuity and Asset Management
segments, somewhat offset by lower Venture Capital earnings in 2004 as compared to 2003 and a higher
Corporate and Other segment loss. Both the Life and Annuity and Asset Management businesses benefited in
2004 as compared to 2003 and 2002 from lower distribution, general and administrative expenses, and favorable
equity market conditions. Life and Annuity also benefited from continued strong fundamentals in its in-force
block characterized by favorable mortality, strong persistency and improved investment margins. Asset
Management experienced a sharp increase in net outflows in assets under management during 2004, principally
the result of continued poor product performance in certain of our equity strategies. Asset Management expense
levels also continue to reflect structural challenges related to our operations that are not wholly-owned, primarily
Seneca Capital Management LLC, or Seneca, and Kayne Anderson Rudnick.

We ended 2004 with in a strong financial position. Shareholders’ equity grew to $2,022.4 million at December
31, 2004 compared to $1,947.8 million at December 31, 2003, Phoenix Life’s statutory capital, surplus and AVR
of $1,028.2 million at December 31, 2004 is improved from the December 31, 2003 amount of $961.5 million,
Phoenix Life’s risk-based capital, or RBC, is well above 300%, and Holding Company cash is $61.0 million at
December 31, 2004 compared to $22.8 million at the end of 2003. We also took steps to enhance our financial
flexibility. We closed on a tender offer for our 6.95% surplus notes scheduled to mature on December 1, 2006,
receiving valid tenders of $144.8 million of notes, and issued $175.0 million of 7.15% surplus notes maturing
December 15, 2034, We also entered into a new $150.0 million three-year, unsecured senior revolving credit
facility replacing the prior facility, which was to expire during the quarter. The five-year funding requirements
for our qualified pension plan improved from $107.8 million as of December 31, 2003 to $43.3 million as of
December 31, 2004. Finally, we laid the groundwork to dispose of our two largest non-strategic assets, Aberdeen
and Lombard, which resulted in the receipt of net proceeds of nearly $130.0 million in January 2005 and brought
closure to the issue of dispositions of non-strategic assets.

The benefits of many initiatives that we have implemented in recent years became increasingly apparent in 2004.
We have stabilized and strengthened the Company, significantly improved profitability, established a track record
of disciplined execution and built a solid foundation for growth. While earnings in Life and Annuity have
improved much more quickly than in Asset Management, we expect a stronger, better positioned Asset
Management business to emerge in 2005 as we continue to address structural, performance and profitability
challenges and begin to benefit from the expense initiatives we announced in the fourth quarter of 2004. A
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number of significant accomplishments in 2004 contributed to our earnings improvement and position us well for
the future. Our exit from affiliated retail distribution operations is already generating significant savings, and we
are building back sales from formerly affiliated producers. The outsourcing of our information technology
infrastructure will produce meaningful savings beginning in 2005 and will also improve service. We enhanced
our financial flexibility through our two surplus notes transactions and our new three-year credit facility.
Operationally, we continued to implement “lean” manufacturing principles to improve product and service
quality, create capacity for higher business volumes, and enhance speed to market. We are moving forward,
focused intensely on growth in 2005.

The Life and Annuity segment had pre-tax income of $142.8 million in 2004, compared to $99.4 million in for
2003 and $80.3 million for 2002. The life insurance business had full-year 2004 pre-tax income of $134.5
million, compared to $103.5 million reported for 2003 and $101.0 million in 2002. The annuity business also
demonstrated improvement with pre-tax income of $8.3 million, up from a $4.1 million pre-tax loss in 2003 and a
$20.7 million pre-tax loss in 2002. Full-year 2004 earnings improvements in Life and Annuity reflect the
benefits of expense savings, particularly from the sale of our retail affiliated distribution operations, and continued
strong fundamentals including mortality, higher investment margins and persistency. Life insurance and annuity
sales and deposits fell short of our expectations and were well below 2003 and 2002 levels. Life insurance sales
were lower due to our decision to maintain pricing and risk management discipline, particularly relating to the
universal life contracts with low-priced no-lapse guarantees that prevailed in the market throughout the year. In
addition, sales decreased as anticipated after the sale of our affiliated retail distribution operations to LPL during
the second quarter and were slower to rebound than originally projected. These factors were compounded by the
longer-than-anticipated time to achieve ratings improvement, which the company continues to pursue in 2005,
The decrease in annuity deposits reflects our strategic decisions in the fall of 2003 to discontinue sales of deferred
fixed annuities, and to focus annuity wholesaling on select distribution relationships, as well as the sale of our
affiliated retail distribution operations in the second quarter of 2004.

Looking forward, we are optimistic about our prospects for life and annuity sales in 2005 as we are building the
foundation for sustainable growth. We are focusing on three areas:

o First, we are rebuilding our product development capabilities. We added talented product development
staff last year and used “lean” manufacturing principles to streamline the process. Senior management
drives the product development process: vetting ideas, setting priorities and eliminating roadblocks. As a
result, in 2005 we will improve our time to market, shorten the product development cycle and focus on a
distinctive value proposition for our market. In life insurance, we have updates to our variable universal
life portfolio and a new investment-oriented life product coming out in the spring.

e The second driver of sales growth in 2005 will be a 50% expansion of our distribution force to reach out
more broadly in our existing relationships, particularly State Farm and LPL. The hiring process is under
way, and a number of new wholesalers are on board already.

¢ And third, we have significant resources focused on establishing new strategic distribution relationships.

The Asset Management segment had pre-tax segment income of $0.1 million for 2004, compared with a $8.7
million pre-tax loss in 2003 and a' $69.9 million pre-tax loss in 2002. The improvement in 2004 results was
driven by higher revenues from higher average assets under management and lower general and administrative
expenses, partially offset by higher formulaic compensation expense, which is driven by higher investment
product fee revenues. December 31, 2004 assets under management for the segment were $42.9 billion,
compared with $46.3 billion on December 31, 2003, although 2004 average assets under management were $44.9
billion as compared to 2003 and 2002 average assets under management of $42.9 billion and $45.5 billion,
respectively. Full-year 2004 net flows were negative $6.6 billion (inflows of $6.7 billion; outflows of $13.3
~billion), compared with negative $1.2 billion in 2003 (inflows of $7.0 billion; outflows of $8.2 billion) and
positive $0.6 billion (inflows of $10.2 billion and outflows of $9.6 billion) in 2002. The 2004 full year negative
net flows were driven primarily by poor equity product performance, particularly at Kayne Anderson Rudnick and
Seneca, and by $1.7 billion of fixed income institutional redemptions in the year that were unrelated to
performance. In Seneca’s case, the firm was put on hold or removed from several managed account programs

42




during the fourth quarter of 2004. These developments are likely to result in some additional outflows in 2005.
Fixed income products performed strongly, with positive net flows for the year, excluding the institutional
outflows noted above. Retail mutual fund sales rose by 12% for the full year, reflecting the strong fixed income
and specialty fund performance.

Asset Management achieved a higher operating margin in 2004 as compared to 2003 and 2002, but the business
only broke even and continued to have significant net outflows, although expense actions over the course of 2004
offset the consequent decline in revenues to some extent. We are focused on restructuring the asset management
business as this represents our largest opportunity for earnings growth in the near term. We are actively working
with our partners to address performance and structural issues in the context of our overall strategy. As such, we
have identified $17.0 million in additional annualized expense savings, which will begin to benefit Asset
Management earnings in 2005. A number of recent developments underscore the opportunity we have to leverage
some of our strong track records, especially in our fixed income and specialty strategies.

e The Goodwin Multi-Sector Short-Term Bond Fund was recognized as a five star fund by Morningstar.
The Goodwin Fund also received an award from Lipper in 2004 for superior long-term performance and
the Phoenix Mid-Cap Fund was similarly recognized early in 2005.

e Goodwin’s institutional strategies also delivered another year of outstandmg performance, beating their
benchmarks over one, three, five and ten years.

o On the specialty side, the Duff & Phelps REIT fund has been a standout and we are successfully selling
REIT strategies in the institutional market.

o The fixed income team at Seneca has a very strong track record across several ﬁxed income strategies and
has attracted institutional flows.

o In January 2005, we launched an open-end utility fund, which builds on our successful track record in
utilities at Duff & Phelps.

e Effective April 1, 2005, two of our funds, the Phoenix Mid-Cap Value Fund and Phoenix-Kayne Small-
Mid-Cap Fund will be on the platform of one of the largest 401K providers. This is a win both for our
new institutional sales team and the investment teams of the funds.

In addition to the above, we have implemented an institutional strategy focused on leveraging existing core
strengths while building out the distribution infrastructure. On the retail side, we expéct to implement a sub-
advisory strategy in mid-2005 to complement existing strengths with a focus towards the high-net-worth market.
These steps will not only help turn around flows but also lead to sustainable growth and a more flexible,
profitable business model. ‘

The Venture Capital segment had 2004 pre-tax income of $19.3 million, compared with income of $36.2 million
in 2003 and a loss of $59.3 million in 2002. The 2004 and 2003 results reflect generally favorable private equity
market conditions as compared to unfavorable market conditions experienced in 2002.

The Corporate and Other segment loss for 2004 of $59.1 million is higher than the 2003 and 2002 losses of $47. 8
and $40.0 million, respectively. The full-year 2004 results reflect higher earnings from the company’s
international operations offset by higher regulatory, compliance and corporate information technology costs and
lower corporate investment income. During 2003 and into 2004, we undertook a comprehensive review of our
internal control over financial reporting as required under Section 404 of The Seirban_es-Oxley Act of 2002, which
resulted in the dedication of more than 30,000 hours of internal management and staff time and nearly $4 million
in incremental corporate expense for 2004. As noted in Item 9A this Annual Report on Form 10-K, management
has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2004.

Our 2004 realized investment losses of $0.8 million (before offsets for deferred acquisition costs, policyholder
dividend obligation liability and taxes) compare to 2003 realized investment losses of $98.5 million and 2002
losses of $133.9 million. After offsets, realized investment losses were $7.2 million, $52.9 million and $65.6
million, respectively. Impairment losses, before offsets, of $49.5 million in 2004, are significantly reduced from
2003 and 2002 impairment losses of $210.8 million and $186.7 million, respectively, as a result of the
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considerable improvement in credit market conditions since mid-2003. Impairment losses for 2004 include an
$11.6 million impairment (§6.7 million after-taxes) related to our investment in an Argentina affiliate, while 2003
impairments include an $89.1 million impairment ($55.0 million after-taxes) of our equity investment in
Aberdeen. Transaction gains, before offsets, of $48.7 million for 2004 compares with gains of $112.3 million in
2003 and $52.8 million in 2002. Transaction gains in 2003 include $35.3 million in pre-tax gains from the sale of
interests in two General Electric life insurance subsidiaries and in PXRE Group, Ltd.

2004 ys. 2003

Premium revenue decreased $51.6 million, or 5%, in 2004 from 2003, primarily due to a $51.1 million decrease in
participating life insurance premiums. Since our demutualization in 2001, we no longer sell participating life
policies, resulting in a decline in renewal participating life premiums. This decline in policies in force results in a
reduction of reserves, resulting in lower policyholder benefit costs.

Insurance and investment product fees increased $34.0 million, or 7%, in 2004 from 2003 primarily due to $12.6
million increase in Asset Management fees and a $18.5 million increase for Life and Annuity. Asset Management
private client and institutional investment product fees which are asset-based increased $9.8 million and $6.2
million, respectively as a result of increased assets under management. These increases were partially offset by
lower other investment product fees as a result of decreased volumes in equity trading by certain of our clients,
which resulted in lower commissions earned. Approximately 57% of our management fee revenues are based on
assets as of the beginning of a quarter, which causes the trend in fees to lag behind that of assets under
management. The increase in Life and Annuity revenues in 2004 is primarily due to higher universal life
insurance fees of $14.3 million, principally from cost of insurance, or COI, fees, and higher annuity fees primarily
due to higher fee-based funds on deposit. Corporate and Other fees decreased in 2004 due to the sale of our India
software services subsidiary.

Broker-dealer commission and distribution fee revenues decreased $24.6 million, or 30%, in 2004 from 2003, due
to the sale of our retail affiliated broker-dealer operations in May 2004. This decrease was partially offset by a
modest increase in broker-dealer commissions for Asset Management.

Net investment income decreased $31.7 million, or 3%, in 2004 from 2003, primarily due to lower venture capital
earnings, which reflected the effect of less than favorable equity market conditions in 2004 compared to 2003.
Mortgage loan income also declined in 2004 compared to 2003, reflecting the continued decline in mortgage loan
assets, as the portfolio continues to run-off. Income reflected in the other invested assets category increased in
2004 compared to 2003, benefiting from higher investment income related to two direct equity investments. This
increase was partially offset by lower investment income from our debt securities pledged as collateral related to
our conselidated CDOs, which decreased $12.1 million from 2003, primarily due to decreased asset levels from
paydowns and defaults.

The $85.9 million unrealized gain on trading equity securities in 2004 relates to our investment in Aberdeen. See
Notes 1 and 5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

Net realized investment losses decreased by $97.7 million, or 99%, in 2004 compared to 2003, due primarily to
significantly lower impairments in general account debt and equity securities as a result of the improved in credit
environment in 2004, offset by lower transaction-related gains. Realized losses from impairments on general
account debt securities decreased $60.6 million from 2003. Impairment losses in 2004 included $12.6 million in
charges related to two international investments, while 2003 included a $96.9 million pre-tax charge for the
impairment of three international investments, $89.1 million of which related to the impairment of our equity
investment in Aberdeen.
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Policyholder benefits, including dividends, decreased $45.9 million, or 2%, primarily due to lower benefits and
changes in policy reserves and policyholder dividends for participating life from a decline in renewal premiums,
as discussed above; lower interest credited from reduced crediting rates, principally from universal life; and lower
general account funds on deposit for annuities. These decreases were partially offset by a larger increase in the
policyholder dividend obligation, higher reserves for annuities and higher benefits for universal life and variable
universal life insurance. The increase in universal life and variable universal life benefits was due to a large death
claim, for universal life, in the first quarter of 2004 combined with very favorable mortality for both lines of
business in 2003.

Policy acquisition.cost amortization increased $16.1 million, or 17%, in 2004 over 2003, due primarily to higher
amortization for annuities from higher gross margins, growth in funds on deposit and lower relative performance
in 2004. Amortization for variable universal life, universal life and term life increased modestly as a result of
growth in funds on deposit, or in-force policies, for term life. The effect of realized gains (losses) on the
amortization also contributed to the increase in 2004. These increases were partially offset by modestly lower

- amortization for participating life.

Interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations decreased $15.3 million, or 31%, in 2004 from 2003
due primarily to decreased liabilities from paydowns.

Other operating expenses, which include non-deferrable policy acquisition costs, commissions due to broker-
dealer registered agents, finders fees, formulaic compensation related to asset management revenue growth and
other segment and administrative expenses, decreased $4.4 million, or 1%, in 2004 from 2003. The decrease is
principally due to a decrease of $55.9 million for Life and Annuity ($48.1 million after elimination of inter-
segment expenses), partially offset by increases in management restructuring and early retirement costs of $23.2
million and surplus notes tender costs of $9.8 million in 2004. The Life and Annuity expense decrease is
primarily due to reductions resulting from the sale of our retail affiliated broker-dealer operations in May 2004
and lower general and administrative and non-deferred expenses from expense reduction initiatives. Asset
Management expense increased modestly due to an increase in formulaic compensation expense driven by higher
investment management fees partially offset by the impact of expense reduction initiatives. In addition, Corporate
and Other operating expenses increased due primarily to higher regulatory compliance and corporate information
technology costs.

Income tax expense of $40.5 million in 2004 increased by $58.8 million from a tax benefit of $18.3 million in
2003. This increase is primarily due to the tax effect of the increase to income before continuing operations
before minority interest and equity earnings of affiliates.

2003 vs. 2002

Premium revenue decreased $39.8 million, or 4%, in 2003 from 2002, primarily due to a continued shift in sales
from participating life to universal life and variable universal life products as well as to a continued decline of the
participating life in-force business. Compared to 2002, 2003 premium revenue for participating life policies
decreased by $40.5 million. Since our 2001 demutualization, we no longer sell participating life policies resulting
in a decline in renewal participating life premiums and related in-force business.

Insurance and investment product fees increased by $7.1 million, or 1%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to
higher sales of universal life and variable life products, a growing in-force business in universal life and variable
universal life products and slightly higher surrender fees for variable universal life products. These increases
were partially offset by lower fees for our Asset Management segment resulting from decreases in both private
client and institutional average assets under management.

Broker-dealer commission and distribution fee revenues decreased $3.5 million, or 4%, in 2003 from 2002, due to
modest decreases for both Asset Management and Lite and Annuity.
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Net investment income increased by $166.9 million, or 18%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to improved equity
market conditions and the related effect on our earnings from our Venture Capital segment and to increased
general account spread-type funds on deposit in our Life and Annuity segment partially offset by the impact of
reinvesting maturities at lower interest rates. In addition, investment income from our debt securities pledged as
collateral related to our consolidated CDOs increased $21.2 million from 2002, primarily due to investment
income from the Mistic CDO which closed in the third quarter of 2002.

Net realized investment losses decreased $35.4 million, or 26%, in 2003 from 2002, primarily due to lower
impairments from improved credit market conditions including a $26.6 million reduction in impairment losses
related to debt securities pledged as collateral related to our consolidated and higher net transaction related gains.

Policy benefits, including policyholder dividends, increased $34.9 million, or 2%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily
due to higher interest credited on guaranteed interest accounts, or GIAs, and fixed annuities from higher fund
account balances and higher mortality expense for universal life insurance. Policyholder dividend expense for
2003 was also higher compared to 2002, primarily due to growth in cash values of existing participating life
policies and the growth of our policyholder dividend obligation from favorable results, in part from the portion of
the venture capital funds transferred to the closed block in the first quarter of 2003.

Policy acquisition cost amortization increased $34.9 million, or 59%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to higher
amortization for participating life insurance and increased amortization for variable universal life and annuities
from the growth of in-force business and higher margins, partially offset by a $9.0 million acceleration of
amortization annuities related to a revision of long-term market return assumptions and a $4.5 million impairment
charge in the third quarter of 2002.

There were no impairments of goodwill or intangible assets in 2003. In 2002, the $66.3 million impairment
related to goodwill for certain of our asset management partners.

Interest expense on indebtedness increased $8.2 million, or 26%, in 2003 over 2002, due to a restructuring of debt
in late 2002 through the issuance of equity units to paydown borrowings from a lower cost bank credit facility.

Interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations increased $18.4 million, or 60%, in 2003 over 2002,
primarily due to interest expense from the Mistic CDO which closed in the third quarter of 2002.

Other operating expenses decreased $48.1 million, or 8%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to lower
management restructuring costs and lower overall operating expenses.

The income tax benefit of $18.3 million in 2003 decreased $40.5 million from an income tax benefit of $58.8
million in 2002. This decrease is primarily due to the tax effect of the decrease in loss from continuing operations
before income taxes, minority interest and equity earnings of affiliates offset by the tax effect of non-deductible
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets written off in 2002.

Effects of Inflation

For the years 2004, 2003 and 2002, inflation did not have a material effect on our consolidated results of
operations.

Results of Operations by Segment

We evaluate segment performance on the basis of segment income. Realized investment gains and losses and
certain other items are excluded because we do not consider them when evaluating the financial performance of
the segments. The size and timing of realized investment gains and losses are often subject to our discretion.
Certain items are removed from segment after-tax income if, in our opinion, they are not indicative of overall
operating trends. While some of these items may be significant components of net income reported in accordance
with GAAP, we believe that segment income is an appropriate measure that represents the earnings attributable to
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the ongoing operations of the business. Investment income on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral as
well as interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations, both related to three consolidated
collateralized obligation trusts we sponsor, are included in the Corporate and Other segment. Excess investment
income on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral represents investment advisory fees earned by our asset
management subsidiary and are allocated to the Asset Management segment as investment product fees for
segment reporting purposes only. Also, all interest expense is included in the Corporate and Other segment, as
are several smaller subsidiaries and investment activities which do not meet the criteria of reportable segments.

These include our remaining international operations and the run-off of our group pension and guaranteed
investment contract businesses.

The criteria used to identify an item that will be excluded from segment income include: whether the item is
infrequent and is material to the segment’s income; or whether it results from a business restructuring or a change
in the regulatory requirements, or relates to other unusual circumstances (e.g., non-routine litigation). We include
information on other items allocated to our segments in their respective notes for information only. Items
excluded from segment income may vary from period to period. Because these items are excluded based on our
discretion, inconsistencies in the application of our selection criteria may exist. Segment income is not a
substitute for net income determined in accordance with GAAP and may be different from similarly titled
measures of other companies.

Results of Operations by Segment Year Ended December 31,
as Reconciled to Consolidated Net Income: 2004 2003 2002
(8 amounts in millions)
Segment Income (Loss)
Life and annuity SEEMENt........covoveiiriireeieri et eeeceinstsre et ern s $ 1428 $ 99.4 $ 80.3
Asset Management SEEMENT. ......c..ooiiiiiiiriic oot s seene e 0.1 8.7 (69.9)
Operating segment pre-tax iNCoOME ..............ocoierirnniencinen e 142.9 90.7 10.4
Venture capital segment .........ooveceecenne. OOV POV OO PP UTPPTI 19.3 36.2 (59.3)
Corporate and other segment:
Interest expense on indebtedness........c.oveeiviiiieneiieee e (40.8) (39.6) (31.4)
OMHET oot RSO PORUURURURURON (18.3) (8.2) (8.6)
Total segment income (loss) before INCOME tAXES .....ecovvevervvreircvriieiiie e 103.1 79.1 (88.9)
Applicable income taxes (benefit) ... 22.5 21.8 (28.5)
Total segment iNCOME (J0SS) ..........cevvririecrieiiininiei e 80.6 57.3 (60.4)
Income (loss) from discontinued OPerations...........ccevevvverererierieieeeeeriiee e 0.1 2.1 (1.3)
Net realized investment gains (losses), net of income taxes and other offsets .. (7.2) 0.8 (65.6)
Unrealized gains (losses) on equity investment in Aberdeen .......ccocevviecnnn 55.9 (55.0) --
Share of Aberdeen extraordinary charge for FSA settlement.........cocoevceveenenene. (14.7) - -
Restructuring and early retirement costs, net of income taxes........covevecereninnn. (21.9) (8.5) (28.5)
Surplus Notes teNAET COSES...c.eviiiiiiiiieetrirere ettt benes (6.4) -- -
Other income, net of INCOME TAXES ..oveivverevieriererreee ettt ere e e n e -- 1.3 --
Deferred acquisition cost adjustment, net of INCOMe taxes........cvveevrvvrvevrerennan. -- -- 15.1
Demutualization related items, net 0f INCOME tAXES ....ccveveerreiierernriieeneeniae - - (1.3)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of income taxes............ccccceennen. - - (130.3)
Net inComMe (JOSS) ..c..ovrviiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt $ 86.4 $ 6.2) § (272.3)

Total segment income return on equity is 4.1%, 3.0% and (2.9)% for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Total
segment return on equity is calculated as total segment income as a percentage of the average of beginning and

end of year adjusted stockholders’ equity as follows:
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Total Segment Return on Equity: 2004 2003 2002 2001
(8 amounts in millions)

Stockholders’ equity, end of year.......c.cccoovvvienceeinincenncnnas $ 2,022.4 $ 1,947.8 $ 1,826.8 $ 2,307.8
Adjustments for:
Accumulated other comprehensive (income) [0sS................. (58.0) 63.7) 71.5 2.8)
Accumulated realized losses in retained earnings
related to consolidated collateralized obligation trusts......... 54.1 41.2 38.8 12.5
Stockholders’ equity attributed to discontinued operations... _(23.0) (28.2) (30.4) (23.6)
Adjusted stockholders’ equity, end of year ....................... $ 19955 $ 1,897.1 $ 1,906.7 $ 2,2939
Adjusted stockholders’ equity, average...........c....cooccceeee. 1,946.3 1,901.9 2,100.3
Total segment iNCOME .............ccooviinerienienine e $ 80.6 S 57.3 $ (604
Total segment return on equity ...........o.ccoevevciinineccnnnne. 4.1% 3.0% (2.9%
Segment Allocations

We allocate capital to our Life and Annuity segment based on RBC for our insurance products. We used 300%
RBC for 2002 through 2004. Capital within our Life Companies that is unallocated is included in our Corporate
and Other segment. We allocate capital to our Asset Management segment on the basis of the historical capital
within that segment. We allocate net investment income based on the assets allocated to the segments. We
allocate tax benefits related to tax-advantaged investments to the segment that holds the investment. We allocate
certain costs and expenses to the segments based on a review of the nature of the costs, time studies and other
methodologies.

Life and Annuity Segment

Summary Life and Annuity Year Ended December 31, Changes
Financial Data: 2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02
($ amounts in millions)

Results of Operations

PIemitumsS ......oeccvirvieiiiouiiienieeieeiecesie e § 9906 $ 1,0422 $ 1,082.0 $§  (516) S (39.9)
Insurance and investment product fees........... 296.9 278.4 259.5 18.5 18.9
Broker-dealer commission and

distribution fee revenues........coccoovverieereeennaes 28.8 54.6 55.6 (25.8) (1.0)
Net investment INCOME ........cocerererverneennens 996.5 993.2 9474 3.3 45.8
Total segment revenues..................ccocooeee. 2,312.8 2,368.4 2,344.5 _(55.6) 23.9
Policy benefits, including

policyholder dividends ........ccooooveriniiinnnnn 1,814.8 1,869.9 1,867.6 (55.1) 2.3
Policy acquisition cost amortization............... 110.6 98.2 88.5 12.4 9.6
Other operating eXpenses. ......ccoc.ocevvrervenenenns 244.6 300.5 307.5 (55.9) (6.9
Total segment benefits and expenses........... 2,170.0 2,268.6 2,263.6 (98.6) 5.0
Segment income before income taxes

and Minority IMteresSt.......coovverecvrereeirieaecens 142.8 99.8 80.9 43.0 18.9
Allocated income taxes.........ccoeeveeeneecrincnnenne. 36.4 31.1 28.0 5.3 3.1
Segment income before minority interest....... 106.4 68.7 52.9 37.7 15.8

Minority interest in net income of

consolidated subsidiaries...........ccoceervennene. -- 0.4 0.6 (0.4 0.2)
Segment iNCOME .........cc.oooviieriiiiiieinree, 106.4 68.3 52.3 38.1 16.0
Net realized investment losses, net of

income taxes and other offsets..................... (2.5) @7 (15.0) 2.2 10.3
Deferred acquisition cost adjustment,

net of iNCOME taAXES ....ovvevereieriiiiiriie e, -- (1.3) 14.4 1.3 (15.7)
Other adjustments, net of income taxes.......... (7.3) -- 0.7 (7.3) (0.7)
Segment net inCome..............ccooeernrccreannne $ 96.6 b 62.3 S 524 3 34.3 $ 9.9
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2004 vs. 2003

Premium revenue decreased $51.6 million, or 5%, in 2004 from 2003, primarily due to a $51.1 million decrease in
participating life insurance premiums. Since our demutualization in 2001, we no longer sell participating life
policies, resulting in a decline in renewal participating life premiums. This decline in policies in force results in a
reduction of reserves, thereby lower policyholder benefit costs.

Insurance and investment product fees increased $18.5 million, or 7%, in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to higher
universal life insurance fees of $14.3 million, principally from COI fees and higher annuity fees primarily due to
higher fee-based funds on deposit.

Broker-dealer commission and distribution fee revenues decreased $25.8 million, or 47%, in 2004 from 2003, due to
the sale of our retail affiliated broker-dealer operations in May 2004.

Policy benefits and dividends decreased $55.1 million, or 3%, in 2004 from 2003, primarily due to lower benefits
and changes in policy reserves and policyholder dividends for participating life from a decline in renewal
premiums, as discussed above; lower interest credited from reduced crediting rates principally from universal life;
and lower general account funds on deposit for annuities. These decreases were partially offset by higher reserves
for annuities and higher benefits for universal life and variable universal life insurance, as well as a larger increase
in the policyholder dividend obligation. The increase in universal life and variable universal life benefits was due
to a large death claim, for universal life, in the first quarter of 2004 combined with very favorable mortality for
both lines of business in 2003.

Policy acquisition cost amortization increased $12.4 million, or 13%, in 2004 compared to 2003, due primarily to
higher amortization for annuities from higher gross margins, growth in funds on deposit and lower relative
performance in 2004. Amortization for variable universal life, universal life and term life increased modestly as a
result of growth in funds under deposit, or in-force policies, for term life. These increases were partially offset by
modestly lower amortization for participating life.

Other operating expenses, which include non-deferrable policy acquisition costs, broker-dealer commissions due
to Griffith and Main Street registered agents and general and administrative costs, decreased $55.9 million, or
19% in 2004 from 2003. This decrease is principally due to lower broker-dealer commissions for Griffith and
Main Street registered agents, reduced operating expenses as a result of the sale of our retail affiliated broker-
dealer operations in May of 2004 and lower general and administrative non-deferred expenses as a result of recent
expense reduction initiatives,

Allocated income taxes increased by $5.3 million, or 17%, in 2004 compared to 2003 due to higher pre-tax
income, partially offset by tax benefits related to the favorable resolution of certain tax matters with the IRS.

2003 vs. 2002

Premium revenue decreased by $39.8 million, or 4%, in 2003 from 2002, primarily due to a continued shift in
sales from participating life to universal life and variable universal life products as well as to a continued decline
of the participating life in-force business. Compared to the prior year, the 2003 premium revenue for participating
life insurance policies decreased by $40.5 million. Since our 2001 demutualization, we no longer sell
participating life policies, resulting in a decline in renewal participating life premiums and related in-force
policies.

Investment product fees increased by $18.9 million, or 7%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to higher sales in
universal life products, the growth of in-force business for universal life and variable universal life products and
slightly higher surrender fees for variable universal life products. Specifically, higher net amounts at risk in these
two lines of business, as well as higher sales of universal life products, resulted in higher fees.
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Net investment income increased by $45.8 million, or 5%, in 2003 over 2002, due to increased general account
spread-type funds, primarily annuities, partially offset by lower rates earned on invested assets.

Policy benefits, including policyholder dividends, were relatively flat in 2003 compared to 2002. This was
primarily due to adecrease in reserves for the participating life insurance driven by lower in-force block of
business and an $0.8 million decrease in our reserves for minimum death benefit guarantees due to favorable
equity markets, partially offset by higher interest credited on GIAs and fixed annuities driven by higher average
fund balances and higher mortality expense for universal life insurance.

Policy acquisition cost amortization increased $9.6 million, or 11%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to the
growth of in-force business, higher margins and slightly higher surrenders, partially offset by lower amortization
expense for annuities due to the charges incurred in the third quarter of 2002, which did not recur in 2003,

Other operating expenses decreased $6.9 million, or 2%, in 2003 from 2002 as a result of generally lower non-
deferrable operating expenses, partially offset by higher employee benefit costs.

Minority interest expense relates to our subsidiary, PFG. We acquired the 33% of the minority interest in PFG we
did not already own in May 2003.

Allocated income taxes increased $3.1 million, or 11%, in 2003 over 2002 as a result of higher segment income
before income taxes as well as a current year allocation of the tax effects of tax advantaged investments to the
Life and Annuity segment.

Annuity Funds on Deposit: Year Ended December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) : 2004 2003 2002
DIEPOSIES 1.t evreceeceeare bt s et eb e bbb bbb s bbbt eb e er et $ 6709 $ 14281 $ 2,2584
Performance and interest credited ...........coooeceeieieiiiieeee e 664.6 865.3 (338.0)
FEOS ..ottt ettt e (59.8) (57.7) (58.8)
Benefits and surrenders ..........cooceeviiieineincenienn, ettt (856.0) (925.3) _(777.3)
Change in funds on deposit.........ccccrirrieroiinninen e, 419.7 1,3104 1,084.3
Funds on deposit, beginning of period..........ccocovvivnrcninmencnincnen e 7,143.8 5,833.4 4,749.1
Annuity funds on deposit, end of period ... $ 7,563.5 $ 7,143.8 $ 35,8334
Variable Universal Life Funds on Deposit: Year Ended December 31,
(3 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
DIEPOSIES 1...vevierrrevereeeeieeiaree et te e et et e bere e esestas st ese s tasese s e b s st e s s eesaseranene $ 2454 § 3534 $ 4657
Performance and interest credited ...........ccovvveveioriiniiincccn e 179.3 252.1 (149.8)
Fees and cost Of INSUIANCE ......ccorveiriieie e et s (103.0) (106.2) (102.2)
Benefits and SUITENAELS .........ocovvevevrievereeeerieetere e ere e teseeeseeesssereestaressseseseseenes (77.5) (70.8) (39.4)
Change in funds on deposit..........cecererrreeriniernerie e 2442 428.5 174.3
Funds on deposit, beginning of period...........cccoviiimiiiciiiens 1,698.8 1,270.3 1,096.0
Variable universal life funds on deposit, end of period .......................... $ 1,943.0 $ 1,698.8 $ 1,270.3
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Universal Life Funds on Deposit: Year Ended December 31,

(§ amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
DIEPOSIES ..ottt ettt sttt r et st b ettt ettt e ab e § 2294 $ 2178 § 1493
Interest credited .......oeciriiniiii e 74.6 78.0 85.8
Fees and coSt Of INSUTANCE ......ccuiiiriiiiiirieeice e (114.2) (103.8) (88.3)
Benefits and SUMTENAErs .......c.ocoeiveeirieiie e (143.1) (138.0) (132.4)
Change in funds on deposit........ccoceeiiriiiienir et 46.7 54.0 144
Funds on deposit, beginning of period.......ccoovniniiininiii e 1,564.0 1,510.0 1,495.6
Universal life funds on deposit, end of period ......... s $ 1,610.7 $ 1,564.0 $ 1,510.0
2004 vs 2003

Annuity, variable universal life and universal life funds on deposit experienced growth in 2004 as a result of positive
net flows for variable universal life and universal life blocks and the effects of favorable equity markets on variable
annuity and variable universal life funds on deposit.

Life insurance and annuity sales and deposits fell short of our expectations and were at levels well below 2003 levels
due to the following factors.

o Sale of retail affiliated broker-dealer operations. All producers associated with Griffith and Main Street
had to go through the complex process of changing broker-dealers. The effort required strained our
relationships with some of these advisors and distracted others from writing new business. We
underestimated the amount of time needed to recover and rebuild momentum, particularly as it related to the
fourth quarter, which had historically been a time of significant sales.

e Our decision not to compete with aggressive secondary no-lapse guarantees in universal life. We have seen
evidence suggesting that industry sales growth was fueled by products with secondary guarantees priced at
levels we do not view to be profitable.

o  The compounding impact of our ratings. Ratings improvement is a key priority for us. Despite significant
improvement in our profitability and risk profile, as well as our strong capital and liquidity, the rating
agencies have not yet responded favorably.

2003 vs. 2002
Annuity products 2003 deposits declined to $1.4 billion in 2003 from $2.3 billion in 2002 as the result of the forth
quarter 2002 decision to terminate sales of Retirement Planners Edge, or RPE, coupled with the forth quarter 2003

decision to exit certain unprofitable distribution relationships and a decision to terminate sales of fixed annuities.

Annuity and variable universal life funds under deposit benefited from strong performance of underlying funds due
to favorable equity markets in 2003 as compared to 2002.

Variable universal life deposits in 2003 decreased and universal life deposits increase as compared to 2002 amounts
as variable universal life product sales shifted to universal life products due to volatile equity markets.
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Life and Annuity Segment Revenues As of December 31, Changes

By Product: 2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02
($ amounts in millions)

Variable universal life insurance .................... $ 1171 $§ 1148 $ 1092 $ 2.3 $ 5.6
Universal life insurance...........cocvcveeevrccvconnn 213.4 196.9 195.8 16.5 1.1
Term life INSUrance.......ccococevevcrnnicniercennnnn, 15.9 14.6 12.2 1.3 24
Other life inSUrance ..........ccoccvvererencereee e 123.4 148.2 146.3 (24.8) 1.9
Total, non-participating life insurance............ 469.8 474.5 463.5 4.7 11.0
Participating life inSurance ...............occeeeveenen. 1,627.1 1,680.1 1,718.9 (63.0) (28.8)
Total, life insurance..........ococeeveevrennenenenene 2,096.9 2,164.6 2,182.4 (67.7) (17.8)
ANNUIEES .ot e e 2159 203.8 162.1 12.1 41.7
Segment revenues..............ccoceevcrvrerrcnrnerennns $ 2,312.8 $ 23684 $ 2,344.5 $ (556) § 23.9

2004 vs. 2003

Variable universal life insurance revenue increased $2.3 million, or 2%, in 2004 over 2003, due primarily to
higher COI fees from the growth of in-force business, partially offset by lower fees due to lower premium
deposits.

Universal life insurance revenue increased $16.5 million, or 8%, in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to higher COI
fees from the growth of in-force business, higher fees from higher premium deposits and slightly higher
investment earnings from higher funds on deposit.

Term life insurance revenue increased $1.3 million, or 9%, in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to higher premiums
from the growth of in-force policies and modestly higher investment earnings.

Other life insurance revenue decreased $24.8 million, or 17%, in 2004 from 2003, due primarily to lower broker-
dealer commission and distribution fee revenues resulting from the sale of our retail affiliated broker-dealer
operations in May 2004, offset by a modest increase in investment earnings, primarily related to an old block of
corporate-owned.life insurance.

Participating life insurance revenue decreased $63.0 million, or 4%, in 2004 from 2003, due to lower renewal
premiums and net investment income. Since our demutualization in 2001, we no longer sell participating life

insurance policies.

Annuity revenue.increased $12.1 million, or 6%, in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to higher investment earnings
from improved spreads and fees from increased fee-based funds on deposit.

2003 vs. 2002

Variable universal life product revenues increased $5.6 million, or 5%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to higher
COI fees from the growth of in-force business, and higher surrender charges, partially offset by slightly lower
sales and lower interest earned.

Universal life product revenues increased $1.1 million, or less than 1%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to
higher COI and other fees from higher sales and the growth of in-force business, offset by lower interest earned.

Term life revenues increased $2.4 million, or 20%, in 2003 over 2002, due to premium growth from higher sales.
Other life insurance revenues increased $1.9 million, or 1%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to higher revenue

in an old block of corporate-owned life insurance business and from higher investment income, partially offset by
lower revenues in non-life insurance subsidiaries.
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Participating life product revenues decreased $28.8 million, or 2%, in 2003 from 2002, primarily due to lower
renewal premiums, partially offset by higher net investment income. Since our demutualization in 2001, we no
longer sell participating life insurance policies.

Annuity product revenues increased $41.7 million, or 26%, in 2003 compared to 2002, primarily due to higher
fees from improved equity market performance and to an increase in interest earned on higher spread based asset
products. Earlier in 2004, we extended the duration of interests underlying our RPE annuity block to better align
the investment portfolio with actual lapse experience. This extension strategy contributed to higher investment
earnings for this block as compared to 2003.

Segment Income by Product: Year Ended December 31, Changes

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02
Variable universal life insurance .................. $ 357 $ 35.0 $ 359 $ 0.7 $ (0.9)
Universal life insurance...........cocovvevvnennnenn. 344 21.7 26.3 12.7 (4.6)
Term life INSUTance .......c.cocccevvinvcrniorncnnas 34 3.8 4.7 0.4) 0.9)
Other life INSUraNce .......ccoccovevvninccneicnnnnee. 16.0 6.9 0.8 9.1 6.1
Total, non-participating life insurance............ 89.5 67.4 67.7 22.1 0.3
Participating life insurance .............ccovinnns 45.0 36.1 333 8.9 23
Total, life INSUrance .......ccc.covvvervecviei e 134.5 103.5 101.0 31.0 2.5
ADNUITES ...t 8.3 4.1 (20.7) 12.4 16.6
Segment income before income taxes.......... $ 1428 8 994 $ 80.3 S 434 $ 19.1

2004 ys. 2003

Variable universal life pre-tax income increased $0.7 million, or 2%, in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to reduced
expenses from lower sales and expense reduction initiatives combined with higher revenues, as discussed above.
These increases were partially offset by higher benefit costs and slightly higher deferred acquisition cost
amortization in 2004.

Universal life pre-tax income increased $12.7 million, or 59%, in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to higher
revenues, as discussed above, lower interest credited from reduced crediting rates and lower general and
administrative expenses. These increases were partially offset by higher benefit costs resulting from a large death
claim in the first quarter of 2004, combined with very favorable mortality in 2003, which did not recur in 2004,

Other pre-tax income increased $9.1 million, or 132%, in 2004 over 2003, due primarily to higher investment
earnings, principally from an old block of corporate-owned life insurance, plus a premium received on a bond
investment.

Participating life pre-tax income increased $8.9 million, or 25%, in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to lower
general and administrative expenses. Because operating expenses are excluded for the closed block, such
operating expense savings inure to the benefit of shareholders. The decrease in revenues, as discussed above, are
largely offset by lower benefits, changes in reserves and dividends to policyholders.

Annuity pre-tax income increased to $8.3 million in 2004 from a loss of $4.1 million in 2003, due primarily to
higher revenues, as discussed above, lower interest credited from lower general account funds on deposit and
reduced expenses from lower sales and expense reduction initiatives, partially offset by higher deferred
acquisition cost amortization from higher gross margins, growth in funds on deposit, lower relatwe performance
in 2004 and slightly higher benefit costs.
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2003 vs. 2002

Variable universal life product pre-tax income decreased $0.9 million, or 3%, in 2003 from 2002. The decrease
can be attributed to lower sales, higher amortization of deferred acquisition costs and higher non-deferrable
expenses, partially offset by favorable insurance margins and higher surrender charges.

Universal life product pre-tax income decreased $4.6 million, or 17%, in 2003 over 2002, due to lower insurance
margins and surrender charges, partially offset by higher investment margins and lower expenses.

Term product pre-tax income decreased $0.9 million, or 19%, in 2003 from 2002, primarily due to slightly higher
expense levels partially offset by higher insurance margins.

Other life insurance pre-tax income increased $6.1 million in 2003 from 2002, due to favorable mortality in an old
block of corporate-owned life insurance business, the release of a reserve on a life contingent annuity due to the
death of the annuitant and higher income from certain non-life insurance subsidiaries.

Participating life product pre-tax income increased $2.8 million, or 8%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to a
one-time investment gain during the second quarter of 2003 and lower non-deferrable expenses, partially offset by
higher deferred acquisition cost amortization and the release of a policyholder tax contingency in 2002 that did
not recur in 2003.

Annuity product pre-tax loss was $16.6 million, or 80%, less in 2003 compared to 2002. This was primarily due
to lower amortization of deferred acquisition costs in 2003, a decrease in minimum guaranteed death benefits
expense in 2003, and higher investment margins from higher spread type funds on deposit. These were partially
offset by higher non-deferrable expenses and commissions as well as further spread compression in 2003.
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs was lower in 2003, due to acceleration of amortization from a revision
of long-term market return assumptions and an impairment charge in 2002, neither of which recurred in 2003.

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.
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Asset Management Segment

Summary Asset Management Year Ended December 31, Changes
Financial Data: 2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02
($ amounts in millions) :

Results of Operations

Investment product fees.......cccoevvvveriieeeninne. $ 2379 § 2253 § 2386 $ 12.6 $  (13.3)
Broker-dealer commission and

distribution fee revenues..........cc.oeecvcevnnnne 28.0 26.8 29.5 1.2 2.7
Net investment iNCOME ....coccoueeceeoneracneranns 0.8 0.7 1.0 0.1 0.3)
Total segment revenues.............cc.ocooccennnenn. 266.7 2528 269.1 13.9 (16.3)
Intangible asset amortization ..........c..ccceccoenn.. 33.8 33.2 325 0.6 0.7
Intangible asset iIMpairments ............cccceeevenenn. -- -- 66.3 -- (66.3)
Other operating eXpenses.........occecvvreeurrreeaens 232.8 228.3 240.2 4.5 (11.9)
Total segment eXPenses ..............cccovvererrerenens 266.6 261.5 339.0 5.1 (77.5)
Segment income (loss) before income taxes... 0.1 8.7) (69.9) 8.8 61.2
Allocated income taxes (benefit) ..o, 2.3 (3.3) (6.0) 5.6 2.7
Segment Joss ..o (2.2) 5.4 (63.9) 3.2 58.5
Net realized investment gains (losses)............ 1.8 0.3) - 2.1 (0.3)
Restructuring and other costs, net of

ITICOMNE LAXES ...vovevearrreseneereseeneaareanensnenavasens (1 2) 4.0) (8.4) 2.8 4.4
Cumulative effect of accounting change ........ -- (119.9) -- 119.9
Segment Net10SS .....ocoovvvrviveineinieccren $ (1 6) § 07 § (1922) § 8.1 § 1825

Our investment product fee revenues are based on assets under management. Approximately 57% of our
investment product fees are based on beginning of quarter assets under management while the remaining 43% are
based on end of day balances. End of year and average assets (based on how fees are calculated) under
management follow:

Assets Under Management: As of or for the Year Ended
(8 amounts in millions) December 31,

' 2004 2003 2002
BN OF AT ..ottt et st aceset s s et ecassesa s e sa s s ssatessesanbesancs $ 42,908.5 $ 46,260.5 $ 41,8353
Average (based on how fees are calculated)........cccoocovviccneinniinciienincnns $ 44,904.6 $ 42,900.2 $ 45,534.5

2004 vs. 2003

Investment product fees increased $12.6 million, or 6%, in 2004 over 2003. This increase was primarily due to an
increase in average assets under management compared to the prior year. Private client and institutional
investment product fees increased $9.8 million and $6.2 million, respectively, as a result of the increase in
average assets under management. Other investment product fees decreased $1.7 million due to decreased
volumes in equity trading by certain of our clients, which resulted in fewer commissions earned. Approximately
57% of our management fee revenues are based on assets as of the beginning of a quarter which causes the trend
in fee revenues to lag behind that of assets under management.

Assets under management were $42.9 billion and $46.3 billion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
decrease in assets under management during 2004 is due primarily to customer withdrawals of $13.3 billion for
the year. Sales of private client products in 2004 were $3.9 billion, which is a decrease of 2% from 2003. The
majority of this decline is due to reduced sales of sponsored managed accounts at Seneca and Kayne Anderson
Rudnick. Redemptions of private client products in 2004 were $7.5 billion, which is an increase of 60% from
2003. This increase is primarily related to the loss of sponsored managed accounts at Seneca. Sales of
institutional accounts in 2004 were $2.7 billion, which is an 8% decrease from 2003. Redemptions of institutional
accounts in 2004 were $5.6 billion, which is an increase of 67% from 2003. Of the institutional redemptions, $1.7
billion were not performance related.
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There were no impairments of goodwill or other intangible assets in 2004 and 2003. The $66.3 million charge in
2002 was associated with the impairment of goodwill related to certain of our asset management partners.

Other operating expenses increased $2.2 million, or 1%, in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to an increase in
formulaic compensation expense, which is driven by higher investment product fee revenues. Increases in
compensation expense were offset, in part, by lower general and administrative expenses, primarily related to a
decrease in information technology costs.

Allocated income tax expense increased $5.6 million in 2004 over 2003 as a result of segment income in 2004
compared to segment losses in 2003 and additional state taxes allocated to the Asset Management segment.

2003 vs. 2002

Investment product fees decreased $13.3 million, or 6%, in 2003 from 2002. This decrease was primarily due to
the decrease in average assets under management compared to the prior year. Private client and institutional
investment product fees decreased $8.9 million and $6.5 million, respectively, as a result of the decrease in
average assets under management. Approximately 56% of our management fee revenues are based on assets as of
the beginning of a quarter, which causes fee revenues to lag behind changes in average assets under management.

Assets under management were $46.3 billion and $41.8 billion at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
increase in assets under management during 2003 is due primarily to positive investment performance of $5.8
billion for the year. Sales of private client products in 2003 were $4.1 billion, which is a decrease of 29% from
2002. The majority of this decline is due to reduced sales of sponsored managed accounts at Seneca and Kayne
Anderson Rudnick. Redemptions of private client products in 2003 were $4.9 billion, which is a decrease of 11%
from 2002. This improvement was primarily a result of lower redemptions for mutual funds. Sales of
institutional accounts in 2003 were $3.0 billion, which is a 32% decrease from 2002. The decrease in sales is due
to the fact that 2002 included the issuance of a $1.0 billion CDO, which we consolidate in our financial
statements, that did not recur in 2003. Redemptions of institutional accounts in 2003 were $3.5 billion, which is a
decrease 0f 22% from 2002. The majority of the improvement in redemptions was attributable to Seneca.

There were no impairments of goodwill or other intangible assets in 2003. The $66.3 million charge in 2002 was
associated with the impairment of goodwill related to certain of our asset management partners.

Other operating expenses decreased $12.0 million, or 5%, in 2003 compared to 2002, of which $5.3 million
related to compensation expense and $5.5 million related to lower non-compensation related operating expenses.
The decrease in non-compensation related operating expenses was primarily the result of lower professional, rent,
depreciation, and travel related charges offset, in part, by increased computer services charges.

Allocated income tax benefits decreased $2.7 million, or 45%, from the comparable period in 2002 as a result of
lower segment losses offset by the impact of non-deductible asset impairments in the prior year.

See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.
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Venture Capital Segment

Our venture capital investments are limited partnership interests in venture capital funds, leveraged buyout funds
and other private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties. We record our investments in
venture capital partnerships in accordance with the equity method of accounting. (See Venture Capital
Partnerships in the Critical Accounting Estimates section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.) Venture capital investments are investments of the general account of
Phoenix Life. ‘

During 2003, we sold a 50% interest in certain of our venture capital partnerships to an outside party and
transferred the remaining S0% interest in those partnerships to our closed block. The carrying value of the
partnerships sold and transferred totaled $52.2 million after realizing a loss of $19.4 million (§5.1 million
recorded in 2002 and $14.3 million recorded in 2003). The unfunded commitments of the partnerships sold and
transferred totaled $27.2 million; the outside party and the closed block will each fund half of these commitments.
At the time of transfer, the partnerships transferred constituted less than 0.5% of the assets of the closed block.

Summary Venture Capital Financial Data: Year Ended December 31, Changes

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02

Results of Operations
Net realized gains (losses) on partnership

cash and stock distributions..............ccccov.e. $ 7.4 $ 4.9 $ 47 3 2.5 $ 9.6
Net unrealized gains (losses) on ‘

partnership investments .........c.coccveervurncnneae 13.6 37.1 (47.2) (23.5) 84.3
Partnership operating eXpenses..........ooveecvennne .n (5.8) (74 4.1 1.6
Segment net investment income (loss)......... 19.3 36.2 (59.3) (16.9) 95.5
Applicable income taxes (benefit) ................. 6.8 12.7 (20.7) (5.9) 334
Segment net income (1088) ...........ccccceeeene, 3 12.5 3 23.5 $ (386 $ (11.0) 62.1

2004 vs. 2003

Net investment income decreased $16.9 million in 2004 from 2003, due primarily to less favorable equity market
conditions in 2004 as compared to 2003.

Our accounting methodology recognizes both downward and upward adjustments based on public market indices,
but when the general partner writes down the value of a private investee company, we do not override the most
recent value reported by the general partner by applying the public sector index in excess of the most recent vaiue
reported by the general partner. Finally, we revise the valuations we have assigned to the investee companies
annually to reflect the valuations in the audited financial statements received from the venture capital
partnerships. As a result, the effect of our adjusting estimated partnership results to actual results increased
investment income by $7.8 million, $33.4 million and $12.8 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Adjustments to the valuation of these companies to reflect reported valuations in the audited financial statements
received from the venture capital partnerships will be reflected in our financial statements when received in the
first and second quarters of 2005.

2003 vs. 2002
Net investment income increased $95.5 million in 2003 over 2002 due to overall improved equity market

conditions and the true-up to the partnerships’ audited fourth quarter of 2002 financial statements from estimated
amounts as of December 31, 2002.
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Changes in Venture Capital Investments: Year Ended December 31, Changes
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02
Contributions (dollars invested) ...........co.ce... $ 37.7 $ 31.0 $ 42.2 $ 6.7 $ (112
Equity in earnings of partnerships .......c.......... 19.3 36.2 (59.3) (16.9) 95.5
DiStrTBULIONS .ot s (50.4) (32.2) (41.7) (18.2) 95
Proceeds from sale of partnership interests

and transfer to closed block .........ccoccoeeienie. -- (52.2) -- 52.2 (52.2)
Realized loss on sale of partnership interests

and transfer to closed block ............cccceoee. -- (14.3) é.D 14.3 9.2)
Change in venture capital investments ........... 6.6 (31.5) (63.9) 38.1 324
Venture capital segment investments,

beginning of period..........ccccoviiiiicnnen, 196.3 227.8 291.7 (3L.5) (639
Venture capital segment investments,

end of period ...............ccoeeiiicinniiiinn. $ 2029 $ 1963 $ 2278 $ 6.6 § (315

2004 vs, 2003

Venture capital iﬁvestments for 2004 increased $38.1 million over the change for 2003, primarily due to proceeds
from, and realized losses on, the sale of partnership interests and transfer to the closed block in 2003, which
reduced the venture capital balance by $66.5 million. This change was partially offset by a decrease in equity in

earnings of $16.9 million and higher distributions, which increased $18.2 million over 2003.

2003 vs. 2002

Venture capital investments for 2003 increased $32.4 million over the change for 2002, primarily due to $36.2
million in equity in earnings in 2003 compared to equity in losses of $59.3 million in 2002. This $95.5 million
improvement in equity in earnings in 2003 was partially offset by proceeds from, and realized losses on, the sale

of partnership interests and transfer to the closed block in 2003, which totaled $66.5 million.

Segment Investments in Venture Capital Partnerships As of December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003

TECRNOIOZY ...cvivivt ettt ettt s s bttt eb ettt et b s e b en e ne e bk ene e enen $ 269 $ 36.8
TeleCOMMUNICALIONS ...t evercereeeerere et ettt ere s st et st et st eneab e en et s ae b et saessare st s resns s r e et 7.9 13.3
BIOTECHNOIOZY ... et ettt st e s ere b 8.6 16.3
Health care........... et e e a e e et oA et E et eh L £kt ee bt e eae R et st eh ekt e R ee et ee b ene bt e R e seeere b esae st 6.7 8.2
Consumer and business products and SETVICES ........cevvvviieriiiiiiiire et 29.7 29.6
FINANCIAL SEIVICES ..vvviieiiiie ettt ettt et er e st st er ek e se st eme st senaeen s sesnetseaeeee 20.7 28.5
OHREL .ttt b et et et b e stk st b et b et Re e be e e h s b ae et ene 57.3 44.9
Private NOIAINGS ..cvoririeecie ettt st 157.8 177.6
PUBLC BOMINES ittt sttt ettt sttt st st b e s e e eb e et e st eenenenenan 20.7 11.3
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ..ot e 8.8 55
L 111 O O O U ST ST OO SRR PRSP SRRSO 15.6 1.9
Venture capital PartnershiPs ... et e $ 2029 $ 1963
Unfunded COMITIEMENTS .......ovivieieiivieritireeteteseeseseeessese e saeseass e sesasersaseseasstesesasassasessasosasesssssssensnns $ 53.5 3 76.7

See Note S to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information regarding our Venture

Capital segment.
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Corporate and Other Segment

Summary Corporate and Other Year Ended December 31, Changes
Financial Data: 2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02
($ amounts in millions) '

Results of Operations

Corporate investment inCome ..............c.coev.... $ 0.4 $ 43 $ 1.3 5 39 % 2.8
Investment income from

collateralized obligations........c.coocevevecerennnen 40.1 52.2 31.0 (12.1) 21.2
Interest expense on indebtedness................... (40.8) (39.6) (31.4) (1.2) (8.2)
Interest expense on non-recourse

collateralized obligations...........cccoccorecennnn (33.6) (48.9) (30.5) 153 (18.4)
COTporate EXPENSES.....cvvverirveeerreerereecrrercnnenne . (18.9) (11.0) (10.4) (7.9) (0.6)
International...........ocooereriricccnicieneecr e 3.7 (1.4 4.2 5.1 (5.6)
OthEr .ot (10.0) (3.4) (4.4) (6.6) 1.0
Segment loss, before income taxes................ . (59.D) 47.8) (40.0) (11.3) (7.8)
Allocated income tax (benefit) .........c.coceeiae (22.9) (18.8) (29.8) 4.1 11.0
Segment 1SS ..........oovoviiiiiviniicie e $ (362 § (290 $ (02 S (7.2) $ (188

2004 vs. 2003

Investment income from debt and equity securities pledged as collateral related to our CDOs decreased $12.1
million in 2004 from 2003, due primarily to decreased asset levels from paydowns and defaults. Consequently,
lower distributions were made to investment holders resulting in a $15.3 million decrease in interest expense on
non-recourse collateralized obligations during 2004. -

Corporate expenses increased $7.9 million in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to increases in liability insurance
costs, incremental regulatory compliance and audit costs associated with Section 404 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 and higher information technology costs.

International income increased $5.1 million in 2004 over 2003 due primarily to higher earnings from an Argentine
affiliate combined with lower losses from our India software services affiliate, which was sold in 2004.

Other results decreased $6.6 million in 2004 from 2003, due primarily to losses in a small group pension run-off
block, lower investment earnings, slightly higher employee benefit costs and higher administrative expenses
related to the CDOs. :

2003 vs. 2002

Investment income from debt and equity securities pledged as collateral related to our consolidated CDOs
increased $21.2 million, or 68%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily from earnings from the Mistic CDO which closed
in the third quarter of 2002.

Interest expense on indebtedness increased $8.2 million, or 26%, in 2003 over 2002, primarily due to a
restructuring of debt in late 2002 through the issuance of equity units to paydown shorter term, lower cost
borrowings under our bank credit facility.

Interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations increased $18.4 million, or 60%, in 2003 over 2002,
primarily due to interest expense from the Mistic CDO which closed in the third quarter of 2002.

Corporate expenses were relatively level for 2003 compared to 2002. Expenses increased $7.2 million for costs

related to the stock purchase contracts issued in 2002, but this was offset by lower unallocated corporate
expenses.
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International results decreased $5.6 million in 2003 from 2002, due primarily to lower equity in earnings from
Aberdeen,

The loss in other improved $1.0 million in 2003 over 2002, due primarily to lower losses from non-core
operations offset by slightly higher expenses related to debt and equity securities pledged as collateral related to
our consolidated CDOs of $2.8 million.

General Account

The invested assets in the Life Companies’ general accounts are generally of high quality and broadly diversified
across asset classes, sectors and individual credits and issuers. Our investment professionals manage these
general account assets in investment segments that support specific product liabilities. These investment
segments have distinct investment policies that are structured to support the financial characteristics of the related
liabilities within them. Segmentation of assets allows us to manage the risks and measure returns on capital for
our various businesses and products.

Separate Accounts

Separate account assets are managed in accordance with the specific investment contracts and guidelines relating
to our variable products. We generally do not bear any investment risk on assets held in separate accounts.
Rather, we receive investment management fees based on assets under management. Assets held in separate
accounts are not available to satisfy general account obligations.

Debt and Equity Securities Pledged as Collateral and Non-Recourse Collateralized Obligations

Investments pledged as collateral trusts are assets held for the benefit of those institutional clients which have
investments in structured bond products offered and managed by our asset management subsidiary.

See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.
Enterprise Risk Management

During 2003, we implemented a comprehensive, enterprise-wide risk management program. Early in 2004 we
appointed a Chief Risk Officer, reporting to the Chief Financial Officer, to oversee all of our risk management
activities. We have established an Enterprise Risk Management Committee, chaired by the Chief Executive
Officer, to ensure our risk management principles are followed and our objectives are accomplished. In addition,
we have established several management committees overseeing and addressing issues pertaining to all our major
risks—product, market and operations—and capital management.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events. We have established an Operational Risk Committee, chaired by the Chief Risk Officer, to
develop an enterprise-wide framework for managing and measuring operational risks. This committee meets
monthly and has a membership that represents all significant operating, financial and staff departments of the
company.

60




Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that we will incur losses due to adverse changes in market rates and prices. We have
exposure to market risk through both our investment activities and our insurance operations. Our investment
objective is to maximize after-tax investment return within defined risk parameters. Our primary sources of
investment risk are:

e interest rate risk, which relates to the market price and cash flow variability associated with changes in
market interest rates;

e credit risk, which relates to the uncertainty associated with the ongoing ability of an obligor to make
timely payments of principal and interest; and

e equity risk, which relates to the volatility of prices for equity and equity-like investments, such as venture
capital partnerships.

We measure, manage and monitor market risk associated with our insurance and annuity business, as part of our
ongoing commitment to fund insurance habilities. We have developed an integrated process for managing the
interaction between product features and market risk. This process involves our Corporate Finance, Corporate
Portfolio Management, Life and Annuity Finance, and Life and Annuity Product Development departments.
These areas coordinate with each other and report results and make recommendations to our Asset-Liability
Management Committee, or ALCO, chaired by the Chief Financial Officer.

We also measure, manage and monitor market risk associated with our general account investments, both backing
insurance liabilities and supporting surplus. This process involves Corporate Portfolio Management and
Goodwin, our Hartford-based asset management affiliate. These organizations work together, make
recommendations and report results to our Investment Policy Committee, chaired by the Chief Investment
Officer. Piease refer to the sections that follow, including “Debt and Equity Securities Held in General Account”,
for more information on our investment risk exposures. We regularly refine our policies and procedures to
appropriately balance market risk exposure and expected return.

Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in interest rates. Our
exposure to interest rate changes primarily results from our commitment to fund interest-sensitive insurance
liabilities, as well as from our significant holdings of fixed rate investments. Our insurance liabilities largely
comprise dividend-paying individual whole life and universal life policies and annuity contracts. OQur fixed
maturity investments include U.S. and foreign government bonds, securities issued by government agencies,
corporate bonds, asset-backed securities, mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loans, most of which are
mainly exposed to changes in medium-term and long-term U.S. Treasury rates.

We manage interest rate risk as part of our asset-liability management and product development processes. Asset-
liability management strategies include the segmentation of investments by product line and the construction of
investment portfolios designed to satisfy the projected cash needs of the underlying product liability. All asset-
liability strategies are approved by the ALCO. We manage the interest rate risk in portfolio segments by
modeling and analyzing asset and product liability durations and projected cash flows under a number of interest
rate scenarios.

One of the key measures we use to quantify this interest rate exposure is duration, as a measure of the sensitivity
of the fair value of assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates. For example, if interest rates increase by 100
basis points, or 1%, the fair value of an asset with a duration of five years is expected to decrease by 5%. We
believe that as of December 31, 2004, our asset and liability portfolio durations were well matched, especially for
our largest and most interest-sensitive segments. Since our insurance products have variable interest rates (which
expose us to the risk of interest rate fluctuations), we regularly undertake a sensitivity analysis that calculates
liability durations under various cash flow scenarios.
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The selection of a 100 basis point immediate, parallel increase or decrease in interest rates is a hypothetical rate
scenario used to demonstrate potential risk. While a 100 basis point immediate, parallel increase or decrease does
not represent our view of future market changes, it is a reasonably possible hypothetical near-term change that
illustrates the potential impact of such events. Although these fair value measurements provide a representation
of interest rate sensitivity, they are based on our portfolio exposures at a point in time and may not be
representative of future market results. These exposures will change as a result of on-going portfolio transactions
in response to new business, management’s assessment of changing market conditions and available investment
opportunities.

To calculate duration, we project asset and liability cash flows and discount them to a net present value using a
risk-free market rate adjusted for credit quality, sector attributes, liquidity and any other relevant specific risks.
Duration is calculated by revaluing these cash flows at an alternative level of interest rates and by determining the
percentage change in fair value from the base case.

We also manage interest rate risk by emphasizing the purchase of securities that feature prepayment restrictions
and call protection. Our product design and pricing strategies include the use of surrender charges or restrictions
on withdrawals in some products.

The table below shows the estimated interest rate sensitivity of our fixed income financial instruments measured
in terms of fair value. Given that our asset and liability portfolio durations were well matched for the periods
indicated, we would expect market value gains or losses in assets to be largely offset by corresponding changes in
liabilities.

Interest Rate Sensitivity of Fixed Income As of December 31, 2004

Financial Instruments: -100 Basis +100 Basis
(8 amounts in millions) Carrying Point Paint

Value Change Fair Value Change

Cash and cash equivalents .........c..cococerninnccvneieniin $ 4350 $ 4353 § 4350 $ 4347
Available-for-sale debt SECUrItIES .....ccccoeeviiiirieiii e 13,476.3 14,138.2 13,476.3 12,814.8
Mortgage loans ......oceeverree e 207.9 2259 2204 214.9
SUDBLOLAL.......ooviiiiiriiictct i e - 14,119.2 14,799.4 14,131.7 13,464.4
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral...................... 1,278.8 1,335.4 1,278.8 1,221.9
Totals .................. ettt et et a e et e et et b bt ne e etenns $ 15,398.0 $ 16,134.8 $ 15,410.5 $ 14,686.3

We use derivative financial instruments, primarily interest rate swaps, to manage our residual exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates. We enter into derivative contracts with a number of highly rated financial
institutions, to both diversify and reduce overall counterparty credit risk exposure.

We enter into interest rate swap agreements to reduce market risks from changes in interest rates. We do not enter
into interest rate swap agreements for trading purposes. Under interest rate swap agreements, we exchange cash
flows with another party at specified intervals for a set length of time based on a specified notional principal
amount. Typically, one of the cash flow streams is based on a fixed interest rate set at the inception of the
contract and the other is based on a variable rate that periodically resets. Generally, no premium is paid to enter
into the contract.and neither party makes payment of principal. The amounts to be received or paid on these swap
agreements are accrued and recognized in net investment income.

The table below shows the interest rate sensitivity of our general account interest rate derivatives measured in

terms of fair value. These exposures will change as our insurance liabilities are created and discharged and as a
result of ongoing portfolio and risk management activities.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity of Derivatives: As of December 31, 2004

(8 amounts in millions) Weighted- -100 +100
Average Basis Basis
Notional Term Point Point
Amount (Years) Change Fair Value Change
Interest rate SWaps ...covivvrreevereresrereresereereennens $ 540.0 9.4 $ 20.1 $ 13.3 $ 6.6
Other ..o e 50.0 35 - 0.1 0.3
Totals — general account....................... $ 5900 $ 20.1 $ 134 S 6.9
Non-recourse interest rate swaps
held in consolidated CDOs................c........ $ 1,118.2 4.8 $ 1435 § 1018 $ 61.3

See Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information on derivative

nstruments. :

In 1999, we began selling RPE, a no-load variable annuity. RPE was designed to attract contributions into
variable sub-accounts on which we earn mortality and expense fees. However, the bulk of the funds were

allocated to GIAs, which offered a 3% guaranteed interest rate. We anticipated the liabilities would be of a short -

duration and with the low level of interest rates, we were unable to invest funds at a rate that guaranteed a spread
that covered commissions and interest credited. In September 2002, we stopped accepting applications for RPE,

although existing policyholders have the right to make subsequent cumulative gross deposits up to $1 million per
contract.

Annuity Deposit Fund Balances: As of December 31,

($ amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Policyholder Deposit Funds

Retirement P1anners EAZE GLAS .....ccovvviriiiierierinecii ettt st ne s $ 1,1214 § 12094
Other variable annuity GIAS.....ccooiiiie ettt 817.7 858.0
Variable annuity GLAS ..ottt ettt b 1,939.1 2,067.4
FIXEA AMMUIEIES ..ottt cev et s e bttt e et et e et estena e e saeereeresaeat et e eeraebeeneenas 1,038.2 1,056.9
Total variable annuity GIAs and fixed annuities...................c.ccoiiiiiiiicc $ 2,977.3 $ 3,124.3

The funds in the RPE GIAs decreased by $88.0 million during 2004. We believe most contract holders currently
view RPE as an attractive alternative to money market investments and, absent a spike in money market rates, this
business is likely to run off slowly.

Because experience has shown that the duration of the RPE liabilities is longer than we had previously assumed,
beginning in the second quarter of 2004 we extended the duration of the assets. This has enhanced operating
income to the point where this product essentially breaks even.

Credit Risk Management

We manage credit risk through the fundamental analysis of the underlying obligors, issuers and transaction
structures. Through Goodwin, our Hartford-based asset management affiliate, we employ a staff of experienced
credit analysts who review obligors’ management, competitive position, cash flow, coverage ratios, liquidity and
other key financial and non-financial information. These analysts recommend the investments needed to fund our
liabilities while adhering to diversification and credit rating guidelines. In addition, when investing in private
debt securities, we rely upon broad access to management information, negotiated protective covenants, call
protection features and collateral protection. We review our debt security portfolio regularly to monitor the
performance of obligors and assess the stability of their current credit ratings.
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We also manage credit risk through industry and issuer diversification and asset allocation. Maximum exposure
to an issuer or derivatives counterparty is defined by quality ratings, with higher quality issuers having larger
exposure limits. We have an overall limit on below investment-grade rated issuer exposure.

Equity Risk Management

Equity risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in equity prices. Our exposure to
changes in equity prices primarily results from our commitment to fund our variable annuity and variable life
products, as well as from our holdings of common stocks, mutual funds and other equities. We manage our
insurance liability risks on an integrated basis with other risks through our liability and risk management and
capital and other asset allocation strategies. We also manage equity price risk through industry and issuer
diversification and asset allocation techniques. We held $391.6 million in equity securities, including $87.3
million in trading equity securities, on our balance sheet as of December 31, 2004. A 10% decline or increase in
the relevant equity price would have decreased or increased, respectively, the value of these assets by
approximately $39.2 million as of December 31, 2004.

Certain annuity products sold by our Life Companies contain guaranteed minimum death benefits. The
guaranteed minimum death benefit feature provides annuity contract holders with a guarantee that the benefit
received at death will be no less than a prescribed amount. This minimum amount is based on the net deposits
paid into the contract, the net deposits accumulated at a specified rate, the highest historical account value on a
contract anniversary, or more typically, the greatest of these values. To the extent that the guaranteed minimum
death benefit is higher than the current account value at the time of death, the company incurs a cost. This
typically results in an increase in annuity policy benefits in periods of declining financial markets and in periods
of stable financial markets following a decline. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the difference between the
guaranteed minimum death benefit and the current account value (net amount at risk) for all existing contracts
was $123.5 and $183.1 million, respectively. This is our exposure to loss should all of our contractholders have
died on either December 31, 2004 or December 31, 2003,

Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefit Exposure: 2004 2003

(3 amounts in millions)

Net amount at risk-on minimum guaranteed death benefits (before reinsurance)....................... $ 4411 § 6169
Net amount at risK reINSUTE. ........oocoiiiiiriiiei ittt st eb e st ss e b esessesens (317.6) (433.8)
Net amount at risk on minimum guaranteed death benefits (after reinsurance) ..............ccoo.e... $ 1235 $ 1831
Weighted-average age of contractholder.........oovvoiiiiiecciic e 61 61
Payments Related to Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefits, Year Ended December 31,

Net of Reinsurance Recoveries: 2004 2003 2002

(8 amounts in millions)

Death claims payments before reinsurance .............cooceovereiiirernnennneeeeeninennns § 5.4 $ 7.7 $ 8.6
REINSUIANCE TECOVETIES .....vevvive ittt sttt ettt s sta bt e earcaes (3.0) 5.H (6.4)
Net death claims PAYINIENES ....oo.oiiiiieeiec et are e $ 2.4 $ 2.6 $ 2.2

We establish a reserve for guaranteed minimum death benefits using a methodology consistent with the AICPA
SOP No. 03-01, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Non-traditional Long Duration
Contracts and for Separate Accounts. This reserve is determined using the net amount at risk taking into account
estimates for mortality, equity market returns, and voluntary terminations under a wide range of scenarios at
December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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Reserves Related to Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefits, As of December 31,

Net of Reinsurance Recoverables: 2004 2003

($ amounts in millions)

Statutory reserve (After IEINSUTAIICE). ... .cvurirerrireieiier ettt seaae $ 15.0 $ 17.3
GAAP reserve (After TOINSUTANCE) ....vvieeviirresiecciie e scerie e e b e anrasreerbe e eve e e b e e svaaeeeaes 9.1 7.6

We also provide reserves for guaranteed minimum income benefits and guaranteed payout annuity floor benefits.
The statutory reserves for these totaled $2.3 million and $2.0 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The GAAP reserves for these totaled $1.6 million and $0.4 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Interest Rate Sensitivity of Deferred Policy Acquisition Cost Asset and As of December 31, 2004
Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefit Liability: -10% +10%
(3 amounts in millions) . Equity Carrying Equity
Market Value Market
Deferred policy acquisition costs (variable annuities).........ccveveviecrniccnennnns $ 2830 $ 2860 $ 2893
Deferred policy acquisition costs (variable universal life) ..o 3252 326.4 327.0
Guaranteed minimum death benefit liability (variable annuities)...........ccc....... 12.1 9.1 7.1

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information regarding deferred
policy acquisition costs.

Certain annuity products sold by our Life Companies contain guaranteed minimum living benefits. These include
guaranteed minimum accumulation and income benefits. We have established a hedging program for managing
the risk associated with our new guaranteed minimum accumulation benefit feature. As of December 31, 2004,
sales of that benefit had not yet created a significant enough exposure to meet our requirement for executing a
derivative transaction under that hedge program. We continue to analyze and refine our strategies for managing
risk exposures associated with all our separate account guarantees.

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for our employees. For GAAP accounting purposes, we assumed an
8.5% long-term rate of return on plan assets in the most recent valuations, performed as of September 30, 2004,
May 31, 2004 and January 1, 2004. To the extent there are deviations in actual returns, there will be changes in
our projected expense and funding requirements. As of December 31, 2004, the projected benefit obligation for
our defined benefit plans was in excess of plan assets by $237.2 million. We expect to contribute $43.3 million to
the employee pension plan through 2009, including $6.5 million during 2005. As of May 31, 2004 we revalued
our employee benefit assets and liabilities in connection with the sale of our retail affiliated broker-dealer
operations. As a result of the revaluation, we recognized a net curtailment gain of $6.8 million ($4.4 million after
taxes). In addition, as of September 30, 2004 we revalued our employee benefit assets and liabilities in
connection with employee terminations associated with the information technology services agreement EDS. As
a result of this revaluation, we recognized an additional net curtailment gain of $1.6 million ($1.1 million after
taxes) for the year ended December 31, 2004. For the estimated 2004 contribution, quarterly payments of $2.5
million each were made to the pension plan in April, July and October 2004. In Séptember 2004, we made a
payment of $1.6 million, related to the 2003 minimum contribution. See Note 11 to our consolidated financial
statements in this Form 10-K for more information on our employee benefit plans.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk Management
Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. Our functional currency is the U.S. dollar. Our exposure to fluctuations in foreign

exchange rates against the U.S. dollar results from our holdings in non-U.S. dollar-denominated debt and equity
securities which is not material to our consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2004.
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Debt and Equity Securities Held in General Aecount

Our general account debt securities portfolio consists primarily of investment-grade publicly traded and privately
placed corporate bonds, residential mortgage-backed securities, commercial mortgage-backed securities and asset-
backed securities. As of December 31, 2004, our general account debt securities, with a carrying value of
$13,476.3 million, represented 79.7% of total general account investments. Public debt securities represented
77.9% of total debt securities, with the remaining 22.1% represented by private debt securities.

We consolidate debt and equity securities on our consolidated balance sheet that are pledged as collateral for the
settlement of collateralized obligation liabilities related to three collateralized obligation trusts which we sponsor.
See Note 8 of our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information on these debt
and equity securities pledged as collateral.

Each year, the majority of our general account’s net cash flows are invested in investment grade debt securities,
In addition, we maintain a portfolio allocation of between 6% and 10% of debt securities in below investment
grade rated bonds. Allocations are based on our assessment of relative value and the likelihood of enhancing risk-
adjusted portfolio returns. The size of our allocation to below investment grade bonds is also constrained by the
size of our net worth. We are subject to the risk that the issuers of the debt securities we own may default on
principal and interest payments, particularly in the event of a major economic downturn. Our investment strategy
has been to invest the majority of our below investment grade rated bond exposure in the BB rating category,
which is equivalent to a Securities Valuation Office, or SVQ, securities rating of 3. The BB rating category is the
highest quality tier within the below investment grade universe, and BB rated securities historically experienced
lower defaults compared to B or CCC rated bonds. As of December 31, 2004, our total below investment grade
securities totaled $1,074.1 million, or 8.0%, of our total debt security portfolio. Of that amount, $814.6 million,
or 6.1%, of our debt security portfolio was invested in the BB category. Our debt securities having an increased
risk of default (those securities with an SVO rating of four or greater which is equivalent to B or below) totaled
$259.5 million, or 1.9%, of our total debt security portfolio.

Our general account debt and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are reported at fair value
with unrealized gains or losses included in equity. Accordingly, the carrying value of such securities reflects their
fair value at the balance sheet date. Fair value is based on quoted market price, where available. When quoted
market prices are not available, we estimate fair value for debt securities by discounting projected cash flows
based on market interest rates currently being offered on similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality, by
quoted market prices of comparable instruments and by independent pricing sources or internally developed
pricing models. Investments whose value, in our judgment, is considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired
are written down to fair value as a charge to realized losses included in our earnings. The cost basis of these
written-down investments is adjusted to fair value at the date the determination of impairment is made. The new
cost basis is not changed for subsequent recoveries in value.
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General Account Debt Securities

at Fair Value: As of December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) Total Debt Securities Public Debt Securities Private Debt Securities
SVO S&P Equivalent (Fair Value) (Fair Value) (Fair Value)
Rating Designation 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
1 AAA/AA/A............ $ 8,668.9 $ 8,821.2 $ 7,123.2 $ 74421 $ 1,545.7 $ 1,379.1
2 BBB. ..o, 3,733.3 3,350.8 24936 2,160.6 1,239.7 1,190.2
Total investment grade 12,402.2 12,172.0 9,616.8 9,602.7 2,785.4 2,569.3
3 BB 814.6 764.9 698.6 635.5 116.0 129.4
4 B 150.9 218.9 97.3 157.8 53.6 61.1
5 CCC and lower ....... 68.9 94.6 51.1 53.7 17.8 40.9
6 In or near default .... 39.7 22.6 36.1 19.0 3.6 3.6
Total debt securities $13,476.3 $13,273.0 $10,499.9 $10,468.7 $ 29764 $ 2,804.3
General Account Debt Securities As of December 31, 2004
by Investment Type: Unrealized Gains (Losses)
(8 amounts in millions) Fair Gross Gross
Value Cost Gains Losses Net
United States government and agency............ $  679.1 $ 6254 $ 554 $ 17 $ 53.7
State and political subdivision...........c....c....... 446.5 4137 344 (1.6) 32.8
Foreign government..........cc.cececvvevneiriicennnnens 314.8 284.0 311 (0.3) 30.8
COTPOTALE ...crerieiri e 7,365.4 7,040.7 364.2 (39.5) 324.7
Mortgage-backed..........oooovniiiiii 3,2534 3,122.9 137.0 (6.5) 130.5
Other asset-backed......c.occovivnceviineiieninns 1,417.1 1,405.0 324 (20.3) C 121
Total debt securities.................ccocoevreivenenns 3 13,476.3 $ 12,891.7 $ 6545 3 (699) $ S84.6
Debt securities outside closed block:
Unrealized ains .......ovvvicviicrnceiiienns § 45347 $ 4,339.7 $ 1950 $ -- $ 1950
Unrealized 108S€S ..c..cvevivviivnirniircieieeens 1,992.0 2,036.8 -- (44.8) (44.8)
Total outside the closed block ..o 6,526.7 6,376.5 195.0 (44.8) 150.2
Debt securities in closed block:
Unrealized ains .......ccoovveeieeencrincviienrenne 5,913.8 5,454.3 459.5 -- 459.5
Unrealized 10SSES.....ccovrvviennrireirniiecines 1,035.8 1,060.9 - (25.1) (25.1)
Total in the closed block........ccovvriiicennnnn 6,949.6 6,515.2 459.5 (25.1) 434.4
Total debt securities..............co.ooccoevecrireennen, $ 13,476.3 $12,891.7 § 6545 $ (699 § 584.6
Debt Securities by Type and Credit Quality: As of December 31, 2004
(3 amounts in millions) Investment Grade Below Investment Grade
Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
United States government and agency .....o.o.oovvvveeeovrensvererras §  679.1 $ 6254 $ -- $ -
State and political SUbAIVISION.........ccoovvreveericiiiiiiene e, 446.5 413.7 -- --
Foreign ZOVEIMMENL. ........ccvicruiririerenenrerenies e eeseeeenieeeeras 194.9 175.9 119.9 108.1
COIPOTALE ..ottt eab bbb esenes 6,630.3 6,337.9 735.1 702.8
Mortgage-backed ...........ocoiiiniiiiiiii e 3,1954 3,073.6 58.0 49.3
Other as$et-backed.......cooviiviiveieiiiiieceeee et 1,256.0 1,230.0 161.1 175.0
Total debt Securities.............cc.ocoovvviivieviiceise e $ 12,402.2 $ 11,856.5 $ 1,074.1 $ 1,035.2
Percentage of total debt securities................ccocoevevencnn, 92.0% 92.0% 8.0% 8.0%
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Investment Grade Debt Securities at Fair Value: As of December 31, 2004

(3 amounts in millions) Total AAA/AA/A BBB
United States government and agency........cccoevervrvrirerimnenrierreererseenecsnnnnes § 679.1 $ 679.1 $ -
State and political SUBAIVISION ....c.ccocvriiiiriiniicnic et e 446.5 432.9 13.6
Foreign gOVEIMMENt.... ..ottt 194.9 91.3 103.6
COIPOTALE .....oevevisiereten ettt ettt sttt b et e b et esne s s e 6,630.3 3,478.6 3,151.7
Mortgage-Dacked . ...oocoovevireii e e 3,1954 3,037.8 157.6
Other asset-backed.........ooovi it 1,256.0 949.2 306.8
Total debt SECUNTLIES.........ooceiiiiiiiiiecie ettt $ 12,402.2 $ 8,668.9 $ 3,733.3
Percentage of total debt securities...............ccocveniniicnnn e 92.0% 64.3% 27.7%
Below Investment Grade As of December 31, 2004

Debt Securities at Fair Value: CCor In or Near
(8 amounts in millions) Total BB B Lower Default
Foreign government...........cooevvveiverneccnnesenne $ 1199 $ 1145 $ 5.4 $ - $ -
COTPOTALR ...e.cvecreireci e 735.1 587.5 117.7 217 8.2
Mortgage-backed ..., 58.0 58.0 - - -
Other asset-backed.........ccoooeeeiriiinniriicenn e, 161.1 54.6 27.8 47.2 315
Total debt securities...............coovvvviciniinnnn. $ 1,074.1 $ 814.6 $ 1509 3 68.9 S 39.7
Percentage of total debt securities............... 8.0% 6.1% 1.1% 0.5% 0.3%

We manage credit risk through industry and issuer diversification. Maximum exposure to an issuer is defined by
quality ratings, with higher quality issuers having larger exposure limits. Our investment approach has been to
create a high level of industry diversification. The top five industry holdings as of December 31, 2004 in our debt
securities portfolio are banking (4.98%), insurance (3.35%), electrical utilities (3.06%), diversified financial
services (2.54%), and publishing, broadcasting, printing and cable (2.25%).

Our corporate debt security exposure to recently troubled industries, including telecommunications equipment,
telephone utilities, airlines, media, publishing and broadcasting, comprises 5.1% of our debt securities portfolio at
December 31, 2004. In addition, within the asset-backed securities sector, securitized aircraft receivable
securities comprise approximately 1.0% of our debt securities portfolio, with less than one-third of that exposure
rated below investment grade at December 31, 2004.

The following table presents certain information with respect to realized investment gains and losses including
those on debt securities pledged as collateral, with losses from other-than-temporary impairment charges reported
separately in the table. These impairment charges were determined based on our assessment of factors
enumerated below, as they pertain to the individual securities determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired.
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Sources of Realized Investment Gains (Losses): Year Ended December 31,

(% amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Debt SECUTILY IMPAIITIENLS ..ot iirierariiiaiirasiraasaeareeressisasaesaseesassssesessasassessesnsanns § @ass5) $ (@6l § (1143)
Equity security IMPairmMeNtS .........cocooeeeiiniieoss ettt (1.5) (4.3) 9.8)
Mortgage 10an IMPAIITNENLS ........ocovrverirrirceireee e ess s -- 4.1) (0.6)
Venture capital partnership impairments - (4.6) (5.1
Affiliate equity SECUTItY IMPAITIIENES .......ovviiiniee et en s ene e (12.6) (96.9) --
Other invested asset IMPAITMENES ..........co.oocerreieieiiieee et (3.3 (16.5) (22.0)
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral impairments ..o (16.6) {8.3) (34.9)
IMPairmMent J0SSeS . ..o (49.5) (210.8) (186.7)
Debt security (ranSaction ZAINS ..o vveiceiierrietretecsirctae et sescsvennees 39.0 93.7 94.3
Debt security transaction LOSSES.......cocuvurirrerireriiieeiiiiiaieresesiee et eeaareeasseeseenes (10.6) (29.0) (45.9)
Equity security transaction GaINS ...........c.cweeermmereriesiomnensiosessssssesnssssesesesnens 17.7 58.8 245
Equity security transaction L0SSES.........cccveirvevrririererereeenterniee e eveie e 3.1 (9.6) (22.4)
Mortgage loan transaction gaing (10SSES)....c....cowvveeveiivnriiecereeee e 0.2 (1.3) 0.2
Venture capital partnership transaction lOSSES......coeevveeeivimereiecrreienrecvee e - 9.7) -
Other invested asset transaction BaINS.........ceceorerrreirierrieirereeeesreressieses e 5.5 9.4 2.1
Net transaction GAINS ..ot e 48.7 112.3 52.8
Net realized investment 1oSSeS ... $ 08 $ (985 S (1339
Net realized INVESUMENT I0SSES....c.evvrurrieiireririreieerireeena e $ (0.8) $ (985 & (1339
Applicable closed block policyholder dividend obligation (reduction).............. 3.7 (5.9) (40.3)
Applicable deferred policy acquisition costs (benefit) .........cocooveeiieniiiirnnnnn (0.4) 4.D (7.2)
Applicable deferred income tax expense (benefit) ..o 3.1 (35.6) (20.8)
Offsets to realized INVEStMENt LOSSES .....c.ovvviiriinieriie i 6.4 (45.6) (68.3)
Net realized investment losses included in net income....................coccooovvennnn, $ (7.2) $ (529) § (65.6)

Realized impairment losses on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral relating to our direct investments in
the consolidated collateralized obligation trusts are $3.7 million, $5.9 million and $8.6 million for 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Impairment losses of $49.5 million in 2004 are substantially improved as compared to 2003 and 2002 as a result
of a significant improvement in the credit environment in late 2003 into 2004. Impairment losses in 2004 include
$12.6 million in non-cash charges related to two international affiliates, and 2003 includes a writedown of an
equity interest in affiliates of $96.9 million ($89.1 million of which relates to Aberdeen). Transaction gains of
$48.7 million in 2004 are significantly lower than 2003 transaction gains of $112.3 million and modestly lower
than 2002 transaction gains of $52.8 million. Transaction gains in 2003 include realized gains of $35.3 million
related to our sale of equity investments in PXRE and certain GE Life & Annuity subsidiaries. See Notes 1 and 5
to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.
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Gross and Net Unrealized As of December 31, 2004

Gains (Losses): Total Qutside Closed Block Closed Block
(8 amounts in millions) Gains Losses Gains Losses Gains Losses
Debt Securities
Unrealized gains (losses) ................ $ 6545 § (699) $§ 1950 $§ (448) $ 4595 § (25.1)
Applicable policyholder dividend

obligation (reduction) .........c..cceveee. 459.5 (25.1) - -- 459.5 25.1)
Applicable deferred policy

acquisition costs (benefit)............. 1003 (16.5) 100.3 (16.5) -- -
Applicable deferred income

taxes (benefit) ....c.ccoevvveriicrnennnnn, ' 33.1 (9.9 33.1 (5.9) -- --
Offsets to net unrealized

£2ins (10SSE8) c.vvvevvvevrrereeriiirieieieces 592.9 (51.5) 133.4 26.4) 459.5 (25.1)
Unrealized gains (losses)

after offsets......... et s $ 616 § (184 S$ o616 $§ (184) $ - $ -
Net unrealized gains after offsets.. $ 43.2 $ 432 $ -

Equity Securities

Unrealized gains (losses) ................ $ 1083 § 33 S$ 940 S as) S 143 8 (1.8)
Applicable policyholder dividend

obligation (reduction) ..........c.c..e.c.. 14.3 (1.8) - -~ 14.3 (1.8)
Applicable deferred income

taxes (benefit) ......oocoovvvirvicrniennenns 329 (0.5 329 (0.5) - -
Offsets to net unrealized

2ains (10SSES) .vvvvvivererrereeercneeicen, 472 (2.3) 329 (0.5) 14.3 (1.8)
Unrealized gains (losses)

after offsets........ ettt $ 611 S 100 8§ 611 $ (1.0 S - $ -~
Net unrealized gains after offsets.. §  60.1 $ 601 p) --

Total net unrealized gains on debt and equity securities were $689.6 million (unrealized gains of $762.8 less

unrealized losses of $73.2). Of that net amount, $242.7 million was outside the closed block ($103.3 million after
applicable deferred policy acquisition costs and deferred income taxes) and $446.9 million was in the closed \
block ($0.0 million after applicable policyholder dividend obligation). '

At the end of each reporting period, we review all securities for potential recognition of an other-than-temporary
impairment. We maintain a watch list of securities in default, near default or otherwise considered by our

investment professionals as being distressed, potentially distressed or requiring a heightened level of scrutiny.

We also identify securities whose carrying value has been below amortized cost on a continuous basis for zero to

six months, greater than six months to 12 months, greater than 12 months to 24 months and greater than 24

months. This analysis is provided for investment grade and non-investment grade securities and closed block and

outside of closed block securities. Using this analysis, coupled with our watch list, we review all securities whose

fair value is less than 80% of amortized cost (significant unrealized loss) with emphasis on below investment

grade securities with a continuous significant unrealized loss in excess of six months. In addition, we review

securities that had experienced lesser percentage declines in value on a more selective basis to determine if a [
security is other-than-temporarily impaired. i
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Our assessment of whether an investment by us in a debt or equity security is other-than-temporarily impaired
includes whether the issuer has:

defaulted on payment obligations;

declared that it will default at a future point outside the current reporting period;

announced that a restructuring will occur outside the current reporting period;

severe lignidity problems that cannot be resolved; :

filed for bankruptcy;

a financial condition which suggests that future payments are highly unlikely;

deteriorating financial condition and quality of assets;

sustained significant losses during the current year;

announced adverse changes or events such as changes or planned changes in senior management,
restructurings, or a sale of assets; and/or

e been affected by any other factors that indicate that the fair value of the investment may have been
negatively impacted.

The following tables present certain information with respect to our gross unrealized losses with respect to our
investments in general account debt securities, both outside and inside the closed block, as of December 31, 2003.
In the tables, we separately present information that is applicable to unrealized losses both outside and inside the
closed block. We believe it is unlikely that there would be any effect on our net income related to the realization
of investment losses inside the closed block due to the current sufficiency of the policyholder dividend obligation
liability in the closed block. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more
information regarding the closed block. Applicable deferred policy acquisition costs and income taxes further
reduce the effect on our comprehensive income.
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Duration of Gross Unrealized Losses on
General Account Securities:
($ amounts in millions)

Debt Securities Outside Closed Block

Total fair VAIUE ..o
Total amOTtiZed COSt civviiniiiiiiiiieie e
Unrealized L0SSES .....oooviiiieiiiiiiiecre et
Unrealized losses after offsets........cocceeviviiviiviinenn e
Unrealized losses over 20%6 0f COSt...oooiiiveneiiininiinniincccne
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost after offsets ........cccovvenne

Investment grade:

Unrealized 10SSES ....viveeiiiiieieieiie e e
Unrealized losses after offsets ..o,
Unrealized losses over 20% 0f COSE.....covurrnimincnrncnicn:
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost after offSets ...................

Below investment grade:
Unrealized 10SSeS .......ocovviiiiroiiieet e

Unrealized losses after offSets ....oooovvvviviiriiiiiee s
Unrealized losses over 20% 0L COSt..vviiiiniiiiiiiiiee e
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost after offsets ...l

Equity Securities Outside Closed Block

Unrealized 10SSES ..iviiviiiiiieieiie e s
Unrealized losses after offSets .....coovnvoiinniivnncec
Unrealized losses over 20% of COSt....cooviviviieiniiciiiieeeien
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost after offsets........c............
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As of December 31, 2004

0-6 6-12 Over 12
Total Months Months Months
$ 1,992.0 $ 1,6129 $ 72.0 $ 3071
2,036.8 1,630.9 73.3 332.6

3 (448) § (18.0) § (1.3) $ (25.5)
$ (18.4) $ (7.8) $ (0.5) $ (10.1)
$ (16.8) % 0.0 § ~- $ (16.7)
$ (6.2) $ - $ -- $ (6.2)
3 (30.3) $ 161y $ 09 § {13.3)
$ (13.0) % 7.1y 8§ (0.4) $ (5.5)
$ (6.5) $ -- 8 - $ (6.5)
$ (2.6) $ -- $ -- $ (2.6)
$ (14.5) $ 19 3 (0.4) $ (12.2)
$ (5.3) $ 0.7 0.1) $ (4.5)
$ {10.3) § (0.1) $ - $ (10.2)
$ (3.6) 3 -- 3 -- 3 (3.6)
$ (1.5 8§ (1.) % 0.y % (0.3)
$ (1.0) $ 07 § (0.1) $ (0.2) ,
$ 14 8 (L1 8§ 0.1 3 0.2)
$ 08 $ 07) § 0.1) $ (0.1)




For debt securities outside of the closed block with gross unrealized losses, 68.0% of the unrealized losses after
offsets pertains to investment grade securities and 32.0% of the unrealized losses after offsets pertains to below

investment grade securities at December 31, 2004,

Duration of Gross Unrealized Losses on As of December 31, 2004

General Account Securities: 0-6 6-12 Over 12
(8 amounts in millions) _ Total Months Months Months
Debt Securities Inside Closed Block

Total fair value ..o $ 1,0358 $ 6465 $ 42.7 $§ 346.6
Total amortized COSt......oviivviiiiieeeivr e 1,060.9 655.2 43.5 362.2
Unrealized 10SSES .........ocvveviveerirerereceeeeeteres e $ @5 §$ 8D % 08 § (156
Unrealized losses after offSets .........ccoooevveeevevveeceieeieeene, $ -- 3 -- 3 -- $ -
Unrealized losses over 20% 0f CoSt....ovvivvvve v, $ (38 % (0.1) § -- $ (3.7
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost after offsets ..................... 3 -- $ -- 3 - 3 --
Investment grade:

Unrealized LOSSES .....ocvivrrvrceiireiiiceire e et ecenaa e $§ (186) S (7.6) % 08 § (102
Unrealized losses after offSets ..........ccocooveeeivvneieicecneennn, $ - $ - 3 -- 3 --
Unrealized losses over 20% 0f COSt....ovvnviveirierirernrienrerernen, $ (01 % 0.1) % -- 3 --
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost after offsets...................... $ -- $ - $ -- $ --
Below investment grade:

Unrealized LoSSES .....vvviiirericinniie e $ 6.5) 8§ (1.y 8 -- $ (5.4)
Unrealized 10sses after offSets .....c.ccocovveiieeireenvie e, $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --
Unrealized losses over 20% 0f COSt....vvrrririreenrienneeeeannn, $ 37 3 -- 3 -- § (37
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost after offsets...........c......... $ -- $ -- 3 -- $ --
Equity Securities Inside Closed Block ‘

Unrealized 10SSES ...vvrieiririieeirii e en e $ 1 $ (gn 8 Oy s {0.6)
Unrealized losses after offSets ......oovviveivivecivieeiirieeieeienan, $ - $ -- $ - $ --
Unrealized losses over 20% 0f COSt....covvrrinnirierireerienns $ 05 8§ @©H § -- $ (0.4)
Unrealized losses over 20% of cost after offsets ..................... $ -- $ - $ - $ --

For debt securities in the closed block with gross unrealized losses, 74% of the unrealized losses pertain to
investment grade securities and 26% of the unrealized losses pertain to below investment grade securities.

In determining that the securities giving rise to the previously mentioned unrealized losses were not other-than-
temporarily impaired, we evaluated the factors cited above, which we consider when assessing whether a security
is other-than-temporarily impaired. In making these evaluations, we must exercise considerable judgment.
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from our judgments and that such
differences may require the future recognition of other-than-temporary impairment charges that could have a
material affect on our financial position and results of operations. In addition, the value of, and the realization of
any loss on, a debt security or equity security is subject to numerous risks, including interest rate risk, market risk,

credit risk and liquidity risk. The magnitude of any loss incurred by us may be affected by the relative

concentration of our investments in any one issuer or industry. We have established specific policies limiting the

concentration of our investments in any single issuer and industry and believe our investment portfolio is

prudently diversified.
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Aberdeen Asset Management PL.C

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, we owned 16.5% of the outstanding shares of Aberdeen, which we sold to
third parties on January 14, 2005 for net proceeds of $70.4 million. We also owned a $27.5 million convertible
subordinated note issued by Aberdeen, which was repaid in full on November 19, 2004. These transactions
completed our disposition of our direct financial interests in Aberdeen. See Notes 1 and 5 to our consolidated
financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information related to our investments in Aberdeen.

Hilb Rogal & Hobbs Company

Our investment in Hilb Rogal & Hobbs, or HRH, a Virginia-based property and casualty insurance and employee
benefit products distributor, includes primarily common stock. See Notes 5 and 6 to our consolidated financial
statements in this Form 10-K for detailed information regarding our investment in HRH.

‘Liquidity and Capital Resources

In the normal course of business, we enter into transactions involving various types of financial instruments such
as debt and equity securities. These instruments have credit risk and also may be subject to risk of loss due to

interest rate and market fluctuations.

Liquidity refers to the ability of a company to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its cash requirements. The
following discussion combines liquidity and capital resources as these subjects are interrelated.

The Phoenix Companies, Inc. (consolidated)

Summary Consolidated Cash Flows: Year Ended December 31, Changes
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02
Cash from continuing operations.........c.......... $ 59.1 § 3976 § 3235 $ (3385 S 74.1
Cash from (for) discontinued operations......... 14.9 (36.5) (59.1) 514 22.6
Cash from (for) continuing operations

iNVesting activities .........c.cooooevvverrernenenen. 133.9 (1,139.2) (2,506.1) 1,273.1 1,366.9
Cash from (for) discontinued operations

INVEStING ACIVItIES .o.vevviviciviircieciereecir e 6.5 4.4 373 10.9 (417
Cash from (for) financing activities................ (227.3) 119.9 2,491.6 (347.2) (2,371.7)

2004 vs. 2003

Cash from continuing operations decreased $338.5 million, or 85%, in 2004 from 2003, primarily due to higher
benefits paid, which are funded through investing activities. Benefit payments were higher in 2004 due primarily
to scheduled surrenders and withdrawals of $184.2 million related to a portion of a group of large corporate-
owned policies and higher surrenders for an old run-off block of corporate-owned life insurance and for
participating life insurance.

Cash from continuing operations investing activities was $133.9 million for 2004 compared to cash for continuing
operations investing activities of $1,139.2 million for 2003. The $1,273.1 million change is primarily due to
lower investment purchases resulting from lower cash from operating and financing activities in 2004 and higher
cash balances at the beginning of 2003 that were invested during 2003.

Cash from financing activities decreased $347.2 million, or 289%, in 2004 from 2003, due to reductions in
policyholder deposit fund deposits of $416.9 million in 2004 compared to 2003. This decrease was partially
offset by net proceeds from borrowings in 2004 of $41.4 million. See Note 6 of to consolidated financial
statements in this Form 10-K for more information on financing activities.
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2003 vs. 2002

For 2003, cash from continuing operations increased $74.1 million over 2002, due primarily to higher investment
income collected and lower operating expenses paid, partially offset by lower premiums collected.

For 2003, cash for continuing operations investing activities decreased $1,366.9 million from 2002, due primarily
to lower cash from financing activities from lower policyholder deposit fund receipts and lower net proceeds from
collateralized obligations. Proceeds from collateralized obligations were higher in 2002 due to proceeds from
Mistic CDO, which closed in 2002.

For 2003, cash from financing activities decreased $2,371.7 million from 2002, due primarily to lower
policyholder deposit fund receipts and lower net proceeds from collateralized obligations (discussed above),

partially offset by treasury stock purchases in 2002 that were not continued in 2003.

The Phoenix Companies, Inc. (pavent company only)

Summary Cash Flows: Year Ended December 31, Changes

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004/03 2003/02
Cash from operating activities ..........ccocervenn. $ 61.2 $ 332 3 61.3 $ 28.0 § (@8
Cash for investing activities.........c.ccvvverenien (8.0) (25.7) (372.0) 17.7 346.3
Cash (for) from financing activities................ (15.0) (15.1) 136.1 0.1 (151.2)

2004 vs. 2003

Cash from operating activities increased $28.0 miilion in 2004 over 2003, primarily due to an increase of $25.2
million in the dividend received from Phoenix Life.

Cash for investing activities decreased $17.7 million in 2004 from 2003, primarily due to a decrease in subsidiary
purchases and advances to subsidiaries in 2004.

2003 vs. 2002

Cash from operating activities decreased $28.1 million in 2003 from 2002, primarily due to a decrease of $22.5
million in the dividend from Phoenix Life and slightly higher expense payments.

Cash for investing activities decreased $346.3 million in 2003 from 2002, due to reduced contributions and
advances to subsidiaries and lower equity security purchases. This resulted from reduced cash from financing as
discussed below.

Cash from financing activities decreased $151.2 million in 2003 from 2002, due to the proceeds from the issuance
of stock purchase contracts and equity units in 2002 for an aggregate of $ 283.0 million, partially offset by

common stock repurchases of $131.1 million. Those financing activities did not recur in 2003.

Our primary uses of liquidity include dividend payments on our common stock, loans or contributions to our
subsidiaries, debt service and general corporate expenses.
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Our primary sources of liquidity have been dividends from Phoenix Life and interest income received from
Phoenix Investment Partners. Under New York Insurance Law, Phoenix Life can pay stockholder dividends to
the holding company in any calendar year without prior approval from the New York Superintendent of Insurance
in the amount of the lesser of 10% of Phoenix Life’s surplus to policyholders as of the immediately preceding
calendar year or Phoenix Life’s statutory net gain from operations for the immediately preceding calendar year,
not including realized capital gains. Phoenix Life paid a dividend of $69.7 million in April 2004 and is able to
pay a dividend of $35.1 million in 2005 under this provision. See Note 15 to our consolidated financial
statements in this Form 10-K for more information on Phoenix Life statutory financial information and regulatory
matters.

We sponsor postemployment benefit plans through pension and savings plans and postretirement health care and
life insurance for employees of Phoenix Life and Phoenix Investment Partners. Funding of these obligations is
provided by Phoenix Life and Phoenix Investment Partners on a 100% cost reimbursement basis through
administrative services agreements with the holding company. See Note 11 to our consolidated financial
statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

Phoenix Investment Partners pays interest to the holding company on its debt from the holding company. The
holding company does not expect to receive dividends from Phoenix Investment Partners in the near term because
this subsidiary will likely use a substantial portion of its cash flows from operations to pay for additional
ownership in its existing majority-owned subsidiaries and to repay intercompany debt, including debt to the
holding company and interest on debt.

On November 22, 2004, we entered into a new $150.0 million three-year, unsecured senior revolving credit
facility to replace the prior $150.0 million credit facility that was to expire on December 20, 2004. The prior
facility consisted of two tranches: a $112.5 million, 364-day revolving credit facility and a $37.5 million three-
year revolving credit facility. Potential borrowers on the new credit line are The Phoenix Companies, Inc.,
Phoenix Investment Partners and Phoenix Life. We unconditionally guarantee any loans under this new facility to
Phoenix Life and Phoenix Investment Partners. Base rate loans will bear interest at the greater of Wachovia
Bank, National Association’s prime commercial rate or the federal funds rate plus 0.50%. Eurodollar rate loans
will bear interest at LIBOR plus an applicable percentage based on our Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s ratings.
The $25 million drawn by Phoenix Investment Partners on the prior facility was refinanced using this new facility
at the Eurodollar rate.

The new credit facility contains covenants that require us at all times to maintain consolidated stockholders’
equity, in accordance with GAAP, excluding the accounting effects of FIN 46(R), of $1,648.4 million, plus 50%
of positive quarterly net income and 100% of equity issuances and a maximum consolidated debt-to-capital ratio
of 30% and that limit consolidated indebtedness, subject to certain exceptions, to $750.0 million. In addition,
Phoenix Life must maintain a minimum RBC ratio of 250% and a minimum A.M. Best financial strength rating of
“A-", The new facility no longer has a fixed charge coverage covenant. Borrowings under the facility are not
conditioned on the absence of a material adverse change.

See Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information on the holding
company.

Life Companies

The Life Companies’ liquidity requirements principally relate to: the liabilities associated with various life
insurance and annuity products; the payment of dividends by Phoenix Life to us; operating expenses;
contributions to subsidiaries; and payment of principal and interest by Phoenix Life on its outstanding debt
obligations. Liabilities arising from life insurance and annuity products include the payment of benefits, as well
as cash payments in connection with policy surrenders, withdrawals and loans. The Life Companies also have
liabilities arising from the runoff of the remaining group accident and health reinsurance discontinued operations.
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Historically, our Life Companies have used cash flow from operations and investment activities to fund liquidity
requirements. Their principal cash inflows from life insurance and annuities activities come from premiums,
annuity deposits and charges on insurance policies and annuity contracts. In the case of Phoenix Life, cash
inflows also include dividends, distributions and other payments from subsidiaries. Principal cash inflows from
investment activities result from repayments of principal, proceeds from maturities, sales of invested assets and
investment income. The principal cash inflows from our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance
operations come from our reinsurance, recoveries from other retrocessionaires and investment activities. See
Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

Additional liquidity to meet cash outflows is available from our Life Companies’ portfolios of liquid assets.
These liquid assets include substantial holdings of United States government and agency bonds, short-term
investments and marketable debt and equity securities.

Phoenix Life’s current sources of liquidity also include the revolving credit facility under which Phoenix Life has
direct borrowing rights, discussed above, subject to our unconditional guarantee. Since the demutualization,
Phoenix Life’s access to the cash flows generated by the closed block assets has been restricted to funding the
closed block.

A primary liquidity concern with respect to life insurance and annuity products is the risk of early policyholder
and contractholder withdrawal. Our Life Companies closely monitor their liquidity requirements in order to
match cash inflows with expected cash outflows, and employ an asset/liability management approach tailored to
the specific requirements of each product line, based upon the return objectives, risk tolerance, liquidity, tax and
regulatory requirements of the underlying products. In particular, our Life Companies maintain investment
programs generally intended to provide adequate funds to pay benefits without forced sales of investments.
Products having liabilities with relatively long lives, such as life insurance, are matched with assets having similar
estimated lives, such as long-term bonds, private placement bonds and mortgage loans. Shorter-term liabilities
are matched with investments with short-term and medium-term fixed maturities.

Annuity Actuarial Reserves and Deposit Liabilities As of December 31,
Withdrawal Characteristics: 2004 2003
(8 amounts in millions) Amount'” Percent Amount” Percent
Not subject to discretionary withdrawal provision .................. $ 1749 7% $ 2208 3%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal without adjustment......... 720.8 29% 1,967.2 28%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal with market value

AQJUSETIENT. ...e v e 121.1 5% 811.6 11%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal at contract value

less surrender Charge ..........occvcviinviincesies e 43.1 2% 869.8 12%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal at market value............... 1,397.4 57% 3,294.0 46%
Total annuity contract reserves and deposit fund liability $ 24573 100% $ 7.,163.4 100%

O Contract reserves and deposit fund liability amounts are reported on a statutory basis, which more accurately reflects the
potential cash outflows and include variable product liabilities. Annuity contract reserves and deposit fund liabilities are
monetary amounts that an insurer must have available to provide for future obligations with respect to its annuities and
deposit funds. These are habilities on the balance sheet of financial statements prepared in conformity with statutory
accounting practices. These amounts are at least equal to the values available to be withdrawn by policyholders.

Individual life insurance policies are less susceptible to withdrawals than annuity contracts because policyholders
may incur surrender charges and be required to undergo a new underwriting process in order to obtain a new
insurance policy. As indicated in the table above, most of our annuity contract reserves and deposit fund
{fadirlities are subject to withdrawals.
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Individual life insurance policies, other than term life insurance policies, increase in cash values over their lives.
Policyholders have the right to borrow an amount generally up to the cash value of their policies at any time. As
of December 31, 2004, our Life Companies had approximately $11.7 billion in cash values with respect to which
policyholders had rights to take policy loans. The majority of cash values eligible for policy loans are at variable
interest rates that are reset annually on the policy anniversary. Policy loans at December 31, 2004 were $2.2
billion.

The primary liquidity risks regarding cash inflows from the investment activities of our Life Companies are the
risks of default by debtors, interest rate and other market volatility and potential illiquidity of investments. We
closely monitor and manage these risks.

We believe that the current and anticipated sources of liquidity for our Life Companies are adequate to meet their
present and anticipated needs.

On December 15, 2004, we repurchased $144.8 million of the previously $175.0 million outstanding principal
amount of our 6.95% surplus notes scheduled to mature in 2006, and recognized a loss of $10.4 million in
connection with the transaction. To finance the tender, we issued $175.0 million principal of 7.15% surplus notes
with a scheduled maturity of 30 years for proceeds of $171.6 million, net of discount and issue costs.

On April 30, 2004, Phoenix Life paid a dividend of $69.7 million to The Phoenix Companies, Inc., as Phoenix
Life’s sole shareholder. Under New York Insurance Law, Phoenix Life can pay dividends to The Phoenix
Companies in any calendar year without the approval from the New York Superintendent of Insurance in the
amount of the lesser of 10% of Phoenix Life’s surplus to policyholders as of the immediately preceding calendar
year or Phoenix Life’s statutory net gain from operations for the immediately preceding calendar year, not
including realized capital gains. Phoenix Life’s statutory gain from operations was $35.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004, net of a $16.0 million tax payment related to the forgiveness of debt on a restructured
investment, $10.2 million in after-tax restructuring charges primarily associated with the sale of our retail
affiliated broker-dealer operations and the outsourcing of our information technology infrastructure, and $8.3 in
after-tax costs related to the surplus notes tender and issuance transactions.

Phoenix Investment Partners

Phoenix Investment Partners’ liquidity requirements are primarily to fund operating expenses and pay its debt and
interest obligations. Phoenix Investment Partners also would require liquidity to fund the costs of any payments
for additional ownership in existing majority-owned subsidiaries, as well as any potential acquisitions.
Historically, Phoenix Investment Partners’ principal source of liquidity has been cash flow from operations. We
expect that cash flow from operations will continue to be its principal source of working capital. Its current
sources of liquidity also include a revolving credit facility under which it has direct borrowing rights subject to
our unconditional guarantee. We believe that Phoenix Investment Partners’ current and anticipated sources of
liquidity are adequate to meet its present and anticipated needs. See Notes 4 and 6 to our consolidated financial
statements in this Form 10-K for further details on our financing activities.
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Consolidated Financial Condition

Consolidated Balance Sheet

($ amounts in millions)

ASSETS

Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value ..........oocoeviv i
Available-for-sale equity securities, at fair value ..o,
Trading €qUILY SECUTIHIES ..cvvrveitireieierie ettt ettt ere et eresae e
Mortgage loans, at unpaid principal balances..........coccooeiiiniiciincn
Venture capital partnerships, at equity in NEt ASSELS ....ocvervvrrerevririreeirierienrinen
Affiliate equity securities, at equity N NEt ASSELS.....ccoveervereiceeirrinerrieerncaeeas
Policy loans, at unpaid principal balances............ccoeoovrvevinninncneclf .
Oher INVESIMENTS ...cviiiiiiieiiet ettt ettt

Available-for-sale debt and equity securities pledged as collateral,

AL TAIT VAIUC ..o sttt
Total INVESTIMENES ..ottt sne e
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ........ooviviiiiiirie et
Accrued INVESTMENT INCOIMIE .....ccvvviiriirrieririreeeraesrrereeteereesressteeesreeeetsesseesrerens
RECEIVADIES ... eeviiieiie ittt sttt eat et naaeseeeraenrees
Deferred policy acqUISTHON COSIS...orviuirieirrirer et srereee e sress e evaere e srannes
Deferred MCOME TAXES ......cvvvevieeeirereeceereerreceeerensescenses e
Other intangible aSSelS ..o
GOOAWILL. ..o ettt et s e et
OThET @SSEES...ectiiiiiiri ettt et esa e e e sb e ch e b e s b ssereera e e esassaesa et e se b nn
SeParate ACCOUINT ASSELS......evivirrrrieritreererireierisieresiesseseeetesessesesesese e seasensesebenens
Total assets .......... T PO USSP UUUP R RRO PSP

LIABILITIES A

Policy liabilities and acCruals .........ccooverreeiicieiensneer e
Policyholder deposit funds ........... et et bbb et ettt
Stock pUrchase COMTACES ......ovieeeiriieireerieie ettt ere e er et saat e saeee e
INAEDIEANESS ..ot et
Other liabilities ..........cocovveevennnnn et ettt e ebe sttt her b ere st et s et re st en b rnes
Non-recourse collateralized obligations ........c.ceececvvverirnienvininrcc e
Separate account HaDIlILIES ......ovevreeeeiie ettt srae e e .
Total liabilities .................oooiiii e

MINORITY INTEREST
Minority interest in net assets of consolidated subsidiaries ....................

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock and additional paid in capital........ccoecevniivciiiiiniieciiennene
Deferred compensation on restricted stock units.......ccceeovvvciriiiiinecnennne
CAccumulated defiCit. ..o
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME.........ocviveeiriiieiinieii e
TIEASUTY SEOCK (.vviiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt st s
Total stockholders’ eqUity.........c.oocooooveviveveiieeccees e, e
Total liabilities, minority interest and stockholders’ equity .....................

2004 vs. 2003

As of December 31,

2004 2003 Change
$13,4763  $13273.0 $ 2033
304.3 312.0 (7.7)
87.3 ~ 87.3
207.9 284.1 (76.2)
255.3 234.9 20.4
- 475 (47.5)
2,196.7 22414 (44.7)
371.8 402.0 (30.2)
16,899.6 16,794.9 104.7
1,278.8 1,350.0 (71.2)
18,178.4 18,144.9 335
435.0 4479 (12.9)
2223 2223 -
135.8 224.9 (89.1)
1,429.9 1,367.7 62.2
30.7 58.7 (28.0)
308.4 335.1 (26.7)
4272 419.9 7.3
244.6 254.6 (10.0)
6,950.3 6,083.2 867.1
$28362.6 $275592 S 8034
$13,1323  $13,0886 § 437
3,492.4 3,642.7 (150.3)
131.9 128.8 3.1
690.8 639.0 51.8
546.3 534.5 11.8
1,355.2 1,472.0 (116.8)
6,950.3 6,083.2 867.1
26,299.2 25,588.8 710.4
41.0 22.6 18.4
2,436.2 2,432.4 38
(3.6) (3.6) -
(285.6) (355.3) 69.7
58.0 63.7 (5.7)
(182.6) (189.4) 6.8
21,0224 1,947.8 74.6
$28362.6 $27,5592 3 8034

Available-for-sale debt securities increased $203.3 million in 2004 from December 31 2003, reflecting slight
appreciation of bond values as a result of a modest decline in risk-free interest rates and a tightening of credit

spreads since December 31, 2003.
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Trading equity securities gain of $87.3 in 2004 related to our equity holdings in Aberdeen. See Notes 1 and 5 to
our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information on Aberdeen.

Mortgage loans decreased $76.2 million, or 27%, in 2004 from December 31, 2003, due to continued paydowns
of this portfolio, which is in runoff.

The decrease in affiliate equity securities primarily relates to the change in accounting for Aberdeen from the
equity method to the fair value method. See Notes 1 and 5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form
10-K for more information on Aberdeen.

Other investments decreased $30.2 million, or 8%, in 2004 from December 31, 2003, primarily attributable to the
return of seed money held in separate accounts and the liquidation of a hedge fund investment.

Availahle-for—sale debt and equity securities pledged as collateral decreased $71.2 million, or 5%, in 2004 from
December 31, 2003, primarily due to the liquidation of securities to fund the paydown of non-recourse
collateralized obligations.

Deferred policy acquisition costs increased $62.2 million, or 5%, in 2004 from December 31, 2003, due primarily
to policy acquisition costs deferred of $164.7 million plus $7.7 million for the effect of unrealized investment
losses included in other comprehensive income, less amortization of $110.2 million. See Note 3 to our
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

Composition of Deferred Acquisition Costs by Product: As of December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 Change
Variable UnIVETSALIITE .....ovvoiiier et $ 3325 $ 3287 $ 3.8
UNIVErsal LIfe ......ooiieiiiie e e e e et 216.0 169.3 46.7
Variable @nnUITIES i .o.oviiiiricrie ettt etve et ebeeeneeesrbe s s e sre e esteeanesebae s 275.4 260.3 15.1
FIXEA @IIUITIES ... veiiie ittt etb et etbeeeeeeevbeaeaeeeeaeeaaesabeeannearens 46.0 45.2 0.8
Participating life ......cococoriiiiiciiicii e 523.0 536.7 (13.7)
OET ettt ettt e ettt et e ra e et et et eraeereas 37.0 27.5 9.5
Total deferred acquisition COSES................cccoviriiniiiine e $ 1,4299 $ 1,367.7 3 62.2

The increase in deferred acquisition costs reflects growing blocks of funds under deposit for variable universal life
and variable annuities, while the decrease for participating life reflects the fact that this block is in runoff.

Policyholder deposit funds decreased $150.3 million, or 4%, in 2004 from December 31, 2003, primarily due to
net withdrawals from variable annuity guaranteed interest sub-accounts.

Indebtedness increased $51.8 million, or 8%, in 2004 from December 31, 2003, primarily due to the issuance of
surplus notes of $175.0 million, due in 2034, and borrowings of $25.0 million on our bank credit facility. These
increases were offset by the repurchase of $144.8 million of our surplus notes, which were due in 2006. See Note
6 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.

Non-recourse collateralized obligations decreased $116.8 million, or 8%, in 2004 from December 31, 2003, due
to distributions to investors in non-recourse collateralized obligations and a decrease in the fair value of non-
recourse derivative cash flow hedges as a result of higher interest rates. See Note 7 to our consolidated financial
statements in this Form 10-K for additional information.
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

Contractual Obligations and
Commercial Commitments:

(8 amounts in millions) Total 2005 2006 -2007 2008 - 2009  Thereafter
Contractual Obligations Due

INAEDIEANESS. <o rerrs s $ 6839 $ 250 $ 302 § 1537 $ 4750
Stock purchase contracts® ............ccooovevenn, -- -- -- --
Operating lease obligations..........ccccceccrviveenee. 31.0 8.8 14.3 6.1 1.8
Other purchase liabilities™® ...........ccc.cooouu... 169.7 38.6 79.7 34.6 16.8
Total fixed contractual obligations ................. 384.6 72.4 124.2 194.4 493.6
Other long-term liabilities™...........cc..c..ccovues 43,148.7 1,020.7 2,549.5 2,532.0 37,046.5
Subtotal...........ccooiiniiiiee e $ 44,033.3 $ 1,093.1 $ 2,673.7 $ 2,7264 $ 37,540.1
Non-recourse collateralized obligations(é) ...... 1,253.3 -- -- -- 1,253.3
Total contractual obligations ....................... $ 45,286.6 $ 1,093.1 $ 2,673.7 $ 2,726.4 $ 38,793.4
Commercial Commitment Expirations

Standby letters of credit e .evr.errorrrsenre $ 906 $ 90 § - 0§ o~ 5
Other commercial commitments“®............... 182.6 50.8 13.5 64.0 54.3
Total commercial commitments .................. $ 1916 3 59.8 $ 13.5 $ 64.0 $ 54.3

D Indebtedness amounts include principal only. $153.7 million of indebtedness represents mandatorily convertible debt to be
settled with our stock in February 2006.

@ Stock purchase contracts are prepaid forward contracts issued by us that will be settled in shares of HRH, as further
described in Note 6 of our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K.

® Other purchase liabilities relate to open purchase orders, required pension funding and other contractual obligations.

® Commitments related to recent business combinations are not included in amounts presented in this table. See the
discussion on the following pages.

® Policyholder contractual obligations represent estimated benefit payments, net of reinsurance and offset by expected future
deposits and premiums on in-force contracts, from life insurance and annuity contracts issued by our life insurance
subsidiaries. Future obligations are based on our estimate of future investment earnings, mortality, surrenders and
applicable policyholder dividends. Included in the amounts above are policyholder dividends of $8.5 billion, generated by
estimated favorable future investment and mortality, in excess of guaranteed amounts for our closed block. Actual
obligations in any single year, or ultimate total obligations, may materially vary from these estimates as actual experience
emerges. Because future obligations anticipate future investment earnings, total policyholder contractual obligations
exceed policyholder liabilities on our balance sheet (policy liabilities and accruals: $13,132.3 million; and policy deposit
funds: $3,492.4 million) at December 31, 2004.

Policyholder contractual obligations also include separate account liabilities, which are contractual obligations of the
separate account assets established under applicable state insurance laws and are legally insulated from our general account
assets.

©®Non-recourse obligations are not direct liabilities of ours, as they will be repaid from investments pledged as collateral
recorded on our consolidated balance sheet. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for
additional information.

) Our standby letters of credit automatically renew on an annual basis.

® Other commercial commitments relate to venture capital partnerships (8136.5 million) and private placements ($46.1
million). The venture capital commitments can be drawn down by private equity funds as necessary to fund their portfolio
investments through the end of the funding period as stated in each agreement. The amount collectively drawn down by
the private equity funds in our portfolio during the year ended December 31, 2004 was $59.2 million. The obligations
related to private placements are due to be funded by March 15, 2005.

In addition during 2004, we signed a seven-year $120.0 million services agreement with EDS under which we
will receive information technology infrastructure services.
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Commitments Related to Recent Business Combinations

Under the terms of purchase agreements related to certain recent business combinations, we are subject to certain
contractual obligations and commitments as follows:

Kayne Anderson Rudnick

We have an arrangement in which we are required to redeem the mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling
membership interests, or noncontrolling interests, of Kayne Anderson Rudnick. These interests which represent
an additional 15% interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick are redeemable at a rate of one-third per year at December
31, 2004, 2005 and 2006. The total redemption price will equal net investment advisory fees for each year times
4.5 times 5.0% (the proportionate interest purchased). Such amounts are paid during the following quarter.
Under certain circumstances, the redemptions may be accelerated.

In January 2004, one member of Kayne Anderson Rudnick accelerated his portion of the 15% noncontrolling
interest redemptions, at which time we redeemed an additional 0.3% of the company. Phoenix Investment
Partners has accrued $11.4 million related to the remaining 4.9% acquisition required as of December 31, 2004.
The two remaining 4.9% noncontrolling interest acquisitions will be accounted for when the purchase price
contingency resolves.

There is also an agreement executed at the time of acquisition, which allows for the redemption and reissuance
with respect to the remaining 25% of the noncontrolling membership interests. The purchase price for these
noncontrolling interests will be equal to investment advisory fees for the relevant contract year multiplied by 4.5
multiplied by the amount of membership interest purchased. The contract year is defined as the twelve months
ending December 31, 2006 and each calendar year thereafter. The pricing on the agreements will be determined
within 60 days after each such year-end and can be exercised within 60 days of the finalization of the price.
These agreements may expire unexercised should Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s operating results decline from the
acquisition date. Any noncontrolling interests redeemed will be reissued to members/employees of Kayne
Anderson Rudnick. The reissuance process involves Phoenix Investment Partners contributing the interests to
Kayne Anderson Rudnick and then Kayne Anderson Rudnick selling the interests to the members/employees.
The members/employees will not pay cash for these purchases but will enter into a note payable agreement with
Kayne Anderson Rudnick. Phoenix Investment Partners will have preferential distribution rights with respect to
payments of principal and interest on these notes. Under certain circumstances, these interests can be issued
without a note payable or other consideration. In addition, in certain circumstances, the redemptions may be
accelerated. Once these interests are redeemed and then reissued, the amount of cash that Phoenix Investment
Partners will need to pay to redeem them in the future will be based on the growth in Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s
revenues since the reissuance dates. There is no expiration date for the agreements. There is no cap or floor on
the redemption price.

In January 2004 and August 2003, certain members of Kayne Anderson Rudnick accelerated their noncontrolling
interest arrangements. The purchase price for their interests totaled $1.7 million and $4.5 million, respectively,
which was recorded as additional purchase price by Phoenix Investment Partners and allocated to goodwill and
definite-lived intangible assets.

PFG

In 2003, we acquired the remaining interest in PFG, the holding company for our private placement operation, not
already owned by us for initial consideration of $16.7 million. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we
may be obligated to pay additional consideration of up to $86.5 million to the selling shareholders, including
$10.0 million during 2005 through 2007 based on certain financial performance targets being met, and the balance
in 2008 based on the appraised value of PFG as of December 31, 2007. During the year ended December 31,
2004, we paid $3.0 million under this obligation.
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We have accounted for our acquisition of the remaining interest in PFG as a step-purchase acquisition.
Accordingly, we recorded a definite-lived intangible asset of $9.8 million related to the present value of future
profits acquired and a related deferred tax liability of $3.4 million. The present value of future profits intangible
asset will be amortized over the remaining estimated life of the underlying insurance in force acquired, estimated
to be 40 years. The remaining acquisition price plus transaction costs of $7.6 million has been assigned to
goodwill. We have not presented pro forma information as if PFG had been acquired at the beginning of January
2003, as it is not material to our financial statements. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements in this
Form 10-K for more information.

Seneca

We have arrangements with respect to the noncontrolling membership interests in Seneca not owned by Phoenix
Investment Partners that allow for the redemption and reissuance with respect to the noncontrolling membership
interests. The purchase price for these interests is equal to Seneca’s investment advisory fees for the relevant year
multiplied by 3.5 multiplied by the amount of the interest purchased. The pricing on these arrangements is
determined within 60 days after each calendar year-end and can be exercised within 60 days of the finalization of
the price. These arrangements may expire unexercised should Seneca’s operating results decline from the initial
measurement date. Any noncontrolling interests redeemed will be reissued to members/employees of Seneca.
The reissuance process involves Phoenix Investment Partners contributing the interests to Seneca and then Seneca
selling them to the members/employees. The members/employees do not pay cash for these purchases, but enter
into a note payable agreement with Seneca. Phoenix Investment Partners has preferential distribution rights with
respect to payments of principal and interest on these notes. Since these interests have already been redeemed by
Phoenix Investment Partners and reissued at least once, the amount of cash that Phoenix Investment Partners will
need to pay to redeem them in the future will be the amount related to the growth in Seneca’s revenues since the
various reissuance dates. There is no cap or floor on the redemption price. These agreements will expire after the
year ended December 31, 2007. The estimated amount that will be payable in 2005 by PNX under these
agreements is $5.9 million.

Obligations Related to Pension and Postretirement Employee Benefit Plans

We provide our employees with postemployment benefits that include retirement benefits, through pension and
savings plans, and other benefits, including health care and life insurance. Employee benefit expense related to
these plans totaled $16.5 million, $33.1 million and $24.9 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

We have two defined benefit pension plans covering our employees. The employee pension plan, covering
substantially all of our employees, provides benefits up to the amount allowed under the Internal Revenue Code.
The supplemental plan provides benefits in excess of the primary plan. Retirement benefits under both plans are a
function of years of service and compensation. The employee pension plan is funded with assets held in a trust,
while the supplemental plan is unfunded.

As of May 31, 2004 we revalued our employee benefit assets and liabilities in connection with the sale of our
retail affiliated broker-dealer operations. As a result of the revaluation, we recognized a net curtailment gain of
$6.8 million ($4.4 million after taxes). In addition, as of September 30, 2004 we revalued our employee benefit
assets and liabilities in connection with employee terminations associated with the information technology
services agreement with EDS. As a result of this revaluation, we recognized an additional net curtailment gain of
$1.6 million ($1.1 million after taxes) for the year ended December 31, 2004.
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Funded Status of Qualified and Non-Qualified Employee Plan Supplemental Plan

Pension Plans: ~ As of December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2004 2003
Plan assets, end 0f Year........ccooovvevieeeeeeeeiceee s en s $ 3964 $ 3689 $ -- $ -
Projected benefit obligation, end of year.........ccccoeeevvenennnnee (499.0) (460.6) (134.6) (124.8)
Plan assets less than projected benefit obligations,

ENA OF YEAT ....coeioiticiieieccre et $§ (1026 S (91.7) § (1346) S (124.8)

We expect to contribute $43.3 million to the employee pension plan through 2008, including $6.5 million during
2005. For the estimated 2004 contribution, quarterly payments of $2.5 million each were made to the pension
plan in April, July and October 2004. In September 2004, we made a payment of $1.6 million, related to the 2003
minimum contribution. As soon as reasonably possible following a change in control, as defined in the plan, we
are required to make an irrevocable contribution to a trust in an amount sufficient to pay the benefits due under
the supplemental plan.

The postretirement plan is unfunded. The projected benefit obligation and, therefore, its funded status was
$(70.3) million and $(78.7) million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The increases in the
projected benefit obligations of the employee plan and the supplemental plan at December 31, 2004 as compared
to December 31, 2003 is principally the result of accrued service cost, interest cost and the effects of the lowering
of the assumed discount rate from 6.0% at December 31, 2003 to 5.75% at December 31, 2004,

We have entered into agreements with certain key executives of the Company that will, in certain circumstances,
provide separation benefits upon the termination of the executive’s employment by the Company for reasons
other than death, disability, cause or retirement, or by the executive for “good reason,” as defined in the
agreements. For most of these executives, the agreements provide this protection only if the termination occurs
following (or is effectively connected with) the occurrence of a change of control, as defined in the agreements.
As soon as reasonably possible upon a change in control, as so defined, we are required to make an irrevocable
contribution to a trust in an amount sufficient to pay benefits due under these agreements.

See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for more information.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2004, we did not have any significant off-balance sheet arrangements as defined by Ttem
303(a)(4)(ii) of SEC Regulation S-K. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K for
more information on variable interest entities.

Reinsurance

We maintain life reinsurance programs designed to protect against large or unusual losses in our life insurance
business. Based on our review of their financial statements and reputations in the reinsurance marketplace, we
believe that these third-party reinsurers are financially sound and, therefore, that we have no material exposure to
uncollectible life reinsurance.

Statutory Capital and Surplus and Risk-Based Capital

Phoenix Life’s consolidated statutory basis capital and surplus (including AVR) increased from $962.4 million at
December 31, 2003 to $1,035.8 million at December 31, 2004. The principal factors resulting in this increase

were net income, earnings appreciation in Aberdeen and other equity appreciation and the issuance of a net
additional $30.2 million of surplus notes offset by a dividend of $69.7 million to the parent and a $17.5 million
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special non-insurance reserve established in connection with the issuance of $175 million of surplus notes in
2004. ‘

Section 1322 of New York Insurance Law requires that New York life insurers report their RBC. RBC is based
on a formula calculated by applying factors to various asset, premium and statutory reserve items. The formula
takes into account the risk characteristics of the insurer, including asset risk, insurance risk, interest rate risk and
business risk. Section 1322 gives the New York State Insurance Department explicit regulatory authority to
require various actions by, or take various actions against, insurers whose Total Adjusted Capital (capital and
surplus plus AVR plus one-half the policyholder dividend liability) does not exceed certain RBC levels. Each of
our other life insurance subsidiaries is also subject to these same RBC requirements.

The levels of regulatory action, the trigger point and the corrective actions required are summarized below:

Company Action Level — results when Total Adjusted Capital falls below 100% of Company Action Level at
which point the company must file a comprehensive plan to the state insurance regulators;

Regulatory Action Level — results when Total Adjusted Capital falls below 75% of Company Action Level
where in addition to the above, insurance regulators are required to perform an examination or analysis
deemed necessary and issue a corrective order specifying corrective actions;

Authorized Control Level — results when Total Adjusted Ce{pital fal‘i;7 below 50% of Cbmpany Action Level
where in addition to the above, the insurance regulators are permitted but not required to place the company
under regulatory control; and '

Mandatory Control Level — results when Total Adjusted Capital falls below 35% of Company Action Level
where insurance regulators are required to place the company under regulatory control.

At December 31, 2004, Phoenix Life’s and each of its insurance subsidiaries’ RBC levels were in excess of 300%
of Company Action Level. '

See Note 135 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K regarding the Life Companies’ statutory
financial information and regulatory matters.

Net Capital Reqhirements

Our broker-dealer subsidiaries are each subject to the net capital requirements imposed on registered broker-
dealers by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Each is also required to maintain a ratio of aggregate
indebtedness to net capital that does not exceed 15:1. At December 31, 2004 the largest of these subsidiaries had
net capital of approximately $11.4 million, which is $10.7 million in excess of its required minimum net capital of
$0.7 million. The ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital for that subsidiary was 1:1. The rat1os of
aggregate indebtedness to net capital for each of our other broker- dealer subsidiaries were also below the
regulatory ratio at December 31, 2004 and their respective net capital each exceeded the applicable regulatory
minimum.

Related Party Transactions

State Farm currently owns of record more than five percent of our parent’s outstanding common stock. During
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, our subsidiaries incurred total compensation of $32.4 million and
$25.8 million, respectively, to entities which were either subsidiaries of State Farm or owned by State Farm
employees, for the sale of our insurance and annuity products. During the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003, we made payments of $32.7 million and $24.6 million, respectively, to State Farm entities for this
compensation.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

For information about our management of market risk, see Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, in the Enterprise Risk Management section.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See Table of Contents.

Item 9. Changgs in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Ttem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Conclusion regarding disclosure controls and procedures

We have carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
our Principal Executive Officer and our Principal Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any
system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or
overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can
only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives. Based upon our evaluation, these officers
have concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, the disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide
reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports Phoenix files and submits under the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter and year ended
December 31, 2004 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting

Our management, including our Principal Executive Officer and our Principal Financial Officer, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may
not prevent or detect misstatements. Management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004. In making its assessment, management has utilized the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in /nternal Control —
Integrated Framework. Management concluded that based on its assessment, our internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2004. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report which appears on pages F-1 through F-2
below.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART I11

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by Items 401 and 405 of Regulation S-K, except for Item 401 with respect to the
executive officers as disclosed below, is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under
Proposal 1 of our definitive proxy statement (which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange
Act within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year) under the following headings: “Corporate Governance,”
“Ownership of Common Stock,” “Audit Committee Charter and Report,” “Compensation Committee Report,”
“Compensation of Executive Officers,” “Performance Graphs” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance.”

Set forth below is a description of the business positions held during at least the past five years by the current
executive officers of Phoenix. All ages are as of March 1, 2005.

DONA D. YOUNG, age 51, has been: Chief Executive Officer of PNX and Phoenix Life since January 2003;
President and a Director of PNX since 2000; a Director of Phoenix Life since 1998; and President of Phoenix Life
since 2000. Before then, she was: Chief Operating Officer from 2001 until 2003; Executive Vice President,
Individual Insurance and General Counsel of Phoenix Life from 1994 until 2000; and Senior Vice President and
General Counsel of Phoenix Life from 1989 until 1994. Mrs. Young also serves as a director of Wachovia
Corporation and Foot Locker, Inc.

DANIEL T. GERACI, age 47, has been Executive Vice President, Asset Management, of PNX and President and
Chief Executive Officer of Phoenix Investment Partners since May 2003. From 2001 until May 2003, he was
President and Chief Executive Officer of Pioneer Investment Management USA, Inc. From 1995 to 2001, he held
several senior executive positions with Fidelity Investments, including president of Fidelity’s Wealth
Management Group. From 1988 through 1995, he was with Midland Walwyn Capital, Inc. (later Merrill Lynch
Canada), where he held successive distribution and management positions, including founder and president of its
asset management subsidiary, Atlas Asset Management, Inc.

MICHAEL E. HAYLON, age 47, has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PNX and
Phoenix Life since January 1, 2004. Before then, he was Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer
of PNX and of Phoenix Life from 2002 through 2003. He joined Phoenix Life in 1990, as a Vice President, and
became Senior Vice President in 1993, '

PHILIP K. POLKINGHORN, age 47, has been Executive Vice President, Life and Annuity Manufacturing since
March 2004. Before then, he had served since 2001 as a Vice President of Sun Life Financial Company with
responsibility for overall management of its annuity business, which it acquired from Keyport Life Insurance
Company in 2001. Mr. Polkinghorn served as President of Keyport Life from 1999 until its acquisition by Sun
Life. From 1996 to 1999, he served as Chief Marketing Officer for American General.

TRACY L. RICH, age 53, has been Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of PNX
and Phoenix Life since 2002. Before then, he was Senior Vice President and General Counsel of PNX and
Phoenix Life from 2000 to 2002 and Senior Vice President and Deputy General Counsel of Massachusetts Mutual
Life Insurance Company from 1996 until 2000.
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JOHN F. SHARRY, age 52, has been Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since September 2004.
From 1995 until September 2004, he held several senior management positions with Phoenix Investment Partners,
Ltd. From 1992 until 1995, he was Managing Director of Putnam Investments. From 1988 until 1992, he was
First Vice President with Dean Witter (now Morgan Stanley).

JAMES D. WEHR, age 47, has been-Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer since February 2005.
Before then, he had been Senior Vice President and Chief Investment Officer of PNX and Phoenix Life since
January 1, 2004. Before then, he was Senior Managing Director and Portfolio manager of Phoenix Investment
Partners from 1995 through 2003. He joined Phoenix in 1981 and has held a series of increasingly senior
investment positions.

Code of Ethics

We have a code of ethics that is applicable to all of our Company directors and employees, including our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. A copy of this code (our “Code of
Conduct”) may be reviewed on our website at www.PhoenixWealthManagement.com, in the Investor Relations
section. The latest amendments to the Code of Conduct will be reflected, together with a description of the nature
of any amendments, other than ones that are technical, administrative or non-substantive, on the above website.

In the event we ever waive compliance with the code by our principal executive officer, our principal financial
officer, or our principal accounting officer, we will disclose the waiver on that website. Copies of our code may
also be obtained without charge by sending a request either by mail to: Corporate Secretary, The Phoenix
Companies, Inc., One American Row, P.O. Box 5056, Hartford, Connecticut 06102-5056, or by e-mail to:
corporate.secretary@phoenixwm.com.

Ttem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 402 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the sections entitled: “Corporate Governance,” Compensation of Executive Officers,” “Compensation
Commiitee Report,” and “Performance Graphs™ of our definitive proxy statement, which will be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act, within 120 days after the close
of PNX’s fiscal year.

In February 2005, the Compensation Committee (and in the case of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board)
approved the performance-based long-term incentive grants for the 2005 through 2007 cycle under the Company's
2003 Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Unit and Long Term Incentive Plan for the named executive officers.

The target number of RSUs for this incentive cycle are as follows: Mrs. Young ~ 151,274; Mr. Geraci - 83,599;
Mr. Haylon - 42,118; Mr. Sharry - 37,818; and Mr. Wehr - 22,691. Actual awards, which could range from zero
to two times the above targets, will be determined and paid in 2008 based on actual performance results against
pre-established performance targets.

In connection with Mr. Wehr’s promotion to Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer on February
4, 2005, the Company plans to amend his change of control agreement. The principal difference from Mr. Weht's
current agreement, a copy of which is contained as an exhibit to this Form 10-K, is the size of the lump sum he
would be entitled to receive in the event of a change of control, as defined in the agreement. That would increase
from two times to two and a half times his combined annual salary and certain incentive payments.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by Item 403 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the section entitled “Ownership of Common Stock” of our definitive proxy statement, which will be
filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act within 120 days after the close of PNX’s fiscal year.
The information required by Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K follows.

. Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth information as of the end of the Company’s 2004 fiscal year with respect to
compensation plans under which equity securities of the Company are authorized for issuance.

(A) B ©
Number of securities
Number of securities to be | Weighted-average issue remaining available for
Plan Category issued upon exercise of price of outstanding future issuance under
outstanding options, options, warrants and equity compensation
warrants and rights rights plans, excluding securities

reflected in column (A)

Equity compensation plans

approved by the Company’s

shareholders:

¢ 2003 Restricted Stock,
Restricted Stock Unit and
Long-Term Incentive Plan" 2,500,235 $9.59 3,499,765

Equity compensation plans not
approved by the Company’s

shareholders:
e Stock Incentive Plan® 4,124,483 $15.00 1,130,253
e Directors Stock Plan® 205,500 $16.20 819,343
e Retirement and Transition

Agreement” 573,477% $13.95 -
¢ Executive Employment .

Agreement” 394,737 $7.60 -
Total 7,798,432 $12.84 5,449,361

WA copy of the 2003 Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Unit and Long-Term Incentive Plan was filed as an exhibit to the
2003 Proxy Statement filed by the Company with the SEC on March 21, 2003.

@ This figure consists of the shares underlying 424,716 RSUs that vest over time, 1,818,560 RSUs that are subject to
performance contingencies (including 77,070 RSUs that were determined in 2005 to have met or exceeded threshold
performance contingencies based on 2004 performance results), and 256,959 RSUSs that are subject to no contingencies
(but which are not currently convertible).

® A copy of the Stock Incentive Plan was filed as an exhibit to the Form S-1 filed by the Company with the SEC on February
9, 2001. The following summary of the material features of the plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text
of the plan, which is hereby incorporated by reference.

Under the Company’s Stock Incentive Plan, the Compensation Committee (or if the committee delegates such authority to
the CEO, the CEO) may grant stock options to officers, employees and insurance agents of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares issuable under the plan with respect to officers, employees and insurance
agents of the Company other than Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd, (including those who are also employees, officers or
directors of Phoenix Investment Partners and those individuals who were officers or employees of the Company on April
17, 2000) is the aggregate of 5% (approximately 5.25 million) of the shares outstanding on June 26, 2001 (approximately
105 million shares) reduced by the shares issuable pursuant to options or other awards granted under the Company’s
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Directors Stock Plan and, with respect to officers and employees of Phoenix Investment Partners (other than those officers,
employees or insurance agents described above), 1% (approximately 1.05 million) of the shares outstanding on June 26,
2001. The maximum number of shares which may be subject to award under the plan: prior to June 25, 2003, shall not
exceed 75% of the shares available under the plan; prior to June 25, 2004, shall not equal 85% of the shares available under
the plan; and prior to June 25, 2003, shall not exceed 100% of the shares available under the plan. During any five-year
period, no participant may be granted options in respect of more than 5% of the shares available for issuance under the
plan. The Board may terminate or amend (subject, in some cases, to the approval of its shareholders and, prior to June 25,
2006, to the approval of the New York Superintendent of Insurance) the plan, but such termination or amendment may not
adversely affect any outstanding stock options without the consent of the affected participant. The plan will continue in
effect until it is terminated by the Board or until no more shares are available for issuance.

The exercise price per share subject to an option will be not less than the fair market value of such share on the option’s
grant date. Each option will generally become exercisable in equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of
the grant date, except that no option was exercisable prior to June 25, 2003 nor may any option be exercised after the tenth
anniversary of its grant date. Options may not be transferred by the grantee, except in the event of death or, if the
committee permits, the transfer of non-qualified stock options by gift or domestic relations order to the grantee’s
immediate family members. Upon a grantee’s death, any outstanding options previously granted to such grantee will be
exercisable by the grantee’s designated beneficiary until the earlier of the expiration of the option or five years following
the grantee’s death. If the grantee terminates employment by reason of disability or retirement, any outstanding option will
continue to vest as if the grantee’s service had not terminated and the grantee may exercise any vested option until the
earlier of five years following termination of employment or the expiration of the option. If the grantee’s employment is
terminated for cause, the grantee will forfeit any outstanding options. If the grantee’s employment terminates in
connection with a divestiture of a business unit or subsidiary or similar transaction, the committee may provide that all or
some outstanding options will continue to become exercisable and may be exercised at any time prior to the earlier of the
expiration of the term of the options and the third anniversary of the grantee’s termination of service. If the grantee
terminates employment for any other reason, any vested options held by the grantee at the date of termination will remain
exercisable for a period of 30 days and any then unvested options will be forfeited.

Generally, upon a change of control (as defined in the plan), each outstanding option will become fully exercisable.
Alternatively, the committee may: (i) require that each option be canceled in exchange for a payment in an amount equal to
the excess, if any, of the price paid in connection with the change of control over the exercise price of the option; or (ii) if
the committee determines in good faith that the option will be honored or assumed by, or an alternative award will be
issued by, the acquirer in the change of control, require that each option remain outstanding without acceleration of vesting
or exchanged for such alternative award. '

*)This figure consists of the shares which underlie the options issued under the Stock Incentive Plan (2,588,242 of which are
fully vested and 1,536,241 of which are subject to vesting with the passage of time).

) A copy of the Directors Stock Plan was filed as an exhibit to the Form S-1 filed by the Company on February 9, 2001. The
following summary of the material features of the plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the plan,
which is hereby incorporated by reference.

Under the Directors Stock Plan, the Board of Directors may grant options to outside directors, provided that: (a) prior to
June 25, 2006 such options will be in substitution for a portion of the cash fees that would otherwise have been payable to
such directors; and (b) the aggregate number of shares issuable pursuant to options will not exceed 0.5% of the total shares
outstanding on June 26, 2001, or 524,843 shares. Each option entitles the holder to acquire one share of our Common
Stock at the stated exercise price. The exercise price per share will not be less than the fair market value of a share on the
day such option is granted and the option will be exercisable from the later of June 25, 2003 or the day the option is
granted until the earlier of the tenth anniversary of such grant date or the third anniversary of the day the outside director
ceases to provide services for the Company. Under the Directors Stock Plan, the Board of Directors may require the
outside directors to receive up to one-half of their directors fees in shares instead of cash and the outside directors may
elect to receive any portion of such fees in shares instead of cash. The aggregate number of shares that may also be issued
in lieu of cash fees may not exceed 500,000 shares, bringing the total available under this plan to 1,024,843 shares.

) This figure consists of the shares which underlie the options issued under the Directors Stock Plan.

A copy of the Retirement and Transition Agreement with Robert W. Fiondella, retired Chairman, was filed as an exhibit to
the Form 8-K filed by the Company on October 9, 2002. The following summary of the material features of the RSUs
subject to that agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the agreement, which is hereby
incorporated by reference.
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The Company’s Retirement and Transition Agreement with Mr. Fiondella provided for the issuance to him of $8,000,000
worth of RSUs upon his retirement in March 2003. This equated to 573,477 RSUs, based on the closing price of $13.95 on
September 27, 2002, the date of measurement. Each unit represents the right to receive one share of Common Stock after
June 25, 2006. The agreement expressly prohibits the actual issuance of stock to Mr. Fiondella prior to the fifth
anniversary of the effective date of Phoenix Life’s demutualization (i.e., prior to June 25, 2006). The agreement further
provides that while Mr. Fiondella holds the RSUs, he will not have any right to vote or to direct the vote of the related
shares of stock. Moreover, he is expressly prohibited from disposing of the underlying shares of stock, or of any economic
interest related to the shares of stock, other than upon his death (in which case, the Company will distribute the shares of
stock to his estate after June 25, 2006). The Company will credit each RSU with an amount equal to cash dividends on the
shares of stock underlying the RSUs, or dividend equivalents, and interest thereon, both to be distributed promptly
following June 25, 2006.

@) This figure consists of the shares which underlie the RSUs issued or issuable pursuant to the related agreement.

% A copy of the Company’s Executive Employment Agreement with Mrs. Young was filed as an exhibit to the Form 8-K
filed by the Company as of January 1, 2003. The following summary of the material features of the RSUs subject to that
agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the agreement.

The Company’s Executive Employment Agreement with Mrs. Young provides for the issuance to her of that number of
RSUs equal to the number resulting from dividing $3,000,000 by the closing price of our Common Stock on December 31,
2002 ($7.60) (i.e. 394,737 RSUs). The agreement expressly provides, assuming the RSUs have by then vested, for the
issuance of stock to Mrs. Young on the later of: (a) June 26, 2006; or (b) the 15" day after termination of her employment
with the Company (the period from the grant date of January 1, 2003 to that date being the “Restricted Period”). The
agreement further provides that while Mrs. Young holds the RSUs, she will not have any right to vote or to direct the vote
of the underlying shares of stock. Moreover, she is expressly prohibited from disposing of the underlying shares of stock,
or of any economic interest related to the shares of stock, other than upon her death (in which case, the Company will
distribute the shares of stock to her estate after June 25, 2006). The Company will credit each RSU with dividend
equivalents and interest thereon, both to be distributed to Mrs. Young at the end of the Restricted Period.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by Item 404 of Reguiation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the section entitled “Proposal 1: Election of Directors” (under the caption “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions”) of our definitive proxy statement, which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under
the Exchange Act of 1934 within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 9(C) of Schedule 14A is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth in the section entitled “Fees Incurred for Services Performed by PwC”, under Proposal 3 of our definitive
proxy statement, which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents filed as part of this Form 10-K include:

1. Financial Statements. The financial statements listed in Part II of the Table of Contents to this Form
10-K are filed as part of this Form 10-K;
2. Financial Statement Schedules. All financial statement schedules are omitted as they are not
applicable or the information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto; and
3. Exhibits.
i. These management contracts and compensatory plans listed in the Exhibit Index in Section E of
this report which are marked with an (¥) are filed with this report.
ii. Financial statement schedules required by instruction to Item 15(c) — Regulation S-X.

* * * * *

We make our periodic and current reports available, free of charge, on our website, at
www.PhoenixWealthManagement.com, in the Investor Relations section, as soon as reasonably practicable after
the material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
(Registrant)

Dated: March 8, 2005 By: /s/Dona D. Young

Dated: March 8, 2005

Dated: March 8, 2005

Dona D. Young
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/Michael E. Haylon

Michael E. Haylon

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

By: /s/Scott R. Lindquist

Scott R. Lindquist

Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below, dated
March 8, 2005, by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated.

/s/Sal H. Alfiero -
Sal H. Alfiero, Director

{s/Jean S. Blackwell
Jean S. Blackwell, Director

/s/Peter C. Browning
Peter C. Browning, Director

/s/Arthur P. Byrne
Arthur P, Byme, Director

{s/Sanford Cloud, Jr.
Sanford Cloud, Jr., Director

/s/Richard N. Cooper
Richard N. Cooper, Director

/s/Gordon J. Davis
Gordon J. Davis, Director

/s/Ann M. Gray
Ann M. Gray, Director

/s/John E. Haire
John E. Haire, Director

/s/Jerry J. Jasinowski
Jerry J. Jasinowski, Director

/s/Thomas S. Johnson
Thomas S. Johnson, Director

/s/Marilyn E. LaMarche
Marilyn E. LaMarche, Director

/s/Dona D. Young
Dona D. Young, Chairman

93




PRICEAVATERHOUSE( QOPERS @

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
100 Pearl Street

Hartford CT 06103-4508
Telephone (860) 241 7000
Facsimile (860) 241 7590

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Phoenix Companies, Inc.:

We have completed an integrated audit of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.’s 2004 consolidated financial statements
and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and 2002
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in stockholders’ equity present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting
for goodwill and other intangible assets in 2002.

F-1




PRICEWAERHOUSE(QOPERS

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Phoenix Companies, Inc. -
Page 2

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is
fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is to express
opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting
includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

W LLP

March 8, 2005

F-2



THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
($ amounts in millions, except share data)
December 31, 2004 and 2003

ASSETS:

Available-for-sale debt securities, at falr VAIUE ...........ooovriiiieiieeeee e
Available-for-sale equity securities, at fair ValUe .......coccovrieriiiinceieenc e
Trading equity securities, at fair value.........cocoooooriovriniiire s
Mortgage loans, at unpaid principal balances..........cooovivveiiiiiiie i
Venture capital partnerships, at equity In NS ASSELS .....ocvvvriereceririree e
Affiliate equity securities, at eQUILY 10 NET BSSELS.....cerierririiireiie it ere et e ceceveenen
Policy loans, at unpaid principal balances ... e
Other INVESMENLS ....eeviiieete ettt sttt et e st sts e sresess e

Available-for-sale debt and equity securities pledged as collateral, at fair value.......................
TOtal INVESTIMENTS .....ooviiiii ittt ettt st sebe st
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ...... .o e r et e
Accrued INVESIMENT INCOIMNE w...ooiiiiriiiie ettt caatsirainivstraansaneacsairarsnecaceaes
RECEIVADIES ...ttt ettt et ettt e reb e ettt et
Deferred policy aCqUISTEION COSTS....iiiirieiiiiierteiie ittt e etas st eiae e ree e e eneaen
Deferred INCOME tAXES ....coviiiiiiiiiieir et ettt e et
IEANZIDIE BSSELS...evueriiiietiriit ettt ettt ettt ettt b e et sa e st ee et et se et b
GOOAWILL ..ottt et
OHNET BSSEES .eve ettt ettt et e sttt cr e s et ek e bt
Separate ACCOUTMLE ASSELS........coiiiierriiereeteer ettt re ettt st e s re st et re e n e r e v e ens
TOAN ASSEES .....oi.iliiece ettt et es et e e et ens et e en e

LIABILITIES:

Policy liabilities and ACCTUAIS ........cc....ovioveeoieiveeee e
Policyholder deposit funds ..........ccooiiioiiiiii e s
Stock purchase CONLTACES ........vecvveveveericiereries e et
INAEDEEANESS ...ttt ettt ettt e
OLher HADITITIES ....eoviuieiiiierere ettt ettt ettt ettt ekt er s e ses et e e et ene e
Non-recourse collateralized obHZAtIONS ......cc.oviiiiiiiiiicii e
Separate account Habilities ............coueveiereniriirerene e e
Total HAbIlItIEs ..o e e s

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTES 16,17 & 18)

MINORITY INTEREST:
Minority interest in net assets of consolidated subsidiaries ....................cccocviicin

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Common stock, $.01 par value: 106,394,959 and 106,376,363 shares issued.........c.ccccoverenene.
Additional paid-in CapItal.......cooecirieieieie e et
Deferred compensation on restricted StOCK UNIES ....c..oooiiiiiriiiieiiece e
Accumulated defiCito.. ..o e
Accumulated other cOmprehensive INCOME ........cooviiriiecc i
Treasury stock, at cost: 11,517,387 and 11,930,647 shares...........coooovimiiiniininiiinin,
Total stockholders® equity...........c..coooocoriiiiiiiii e et
Total liabilities, minority interest and stockholders’ equity ...

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2004 2003
$ 13,4763  $13273.0
304.3 312.0
87.3 -
207.9 284.1
255.3 234.9
- 47.5
2,196.7 22414
371.8 402.0
16,899.6 16,794.9
1,278.8 1,350.0
18,178.4 18,144.9
435.0 4479
2223 2223
135.8 224.9
1,429.9 1,367.7
30.7 58.7
308.4 335.1
427.2 419.9
244.6 254.6
6,950.3 6,083.2
$28,362.6 % 27,559.2
$ 13,1323 §13,088.6
3,492 4 3,642.7
131.9 128.8
690.8 639.0
546.3 5345
1,355.2 1,472.0
6,950.3 6,083.2
26,299.2 25,588.8
41.0 22.6
1.0 1.0
2,435.2 24314
(3.6) (3.6)
(285.6) (355.3)
58.0 63.7
(182.6) (189.4)
2,022.4 1,947.8
$28362.6 S 27,559.2




THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income

($ amounts in millions, except per share data)
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002

REVENUES:
PIOIMIUINIS ....ooviitiviciieiee et ettt se bttt te e st ettt sasebessebe s etenserenranes $ 9906 $ 1,042.2 $ 1,082.0
Insurance and investment product fees........ccooveereeriviiniiineicrereere e 534.9 500.9 493.8
Broker-dealer commission and distribution fee revenues..........cccocecevveeerivennnes 56.9 81.5 85.0
Investment income, net Of EXPENSES ...cooveierieeiriiierieie ettt 1,075.7 1,107.4 940.5
Unrealized gain on trading equity SECUTTLIES......ccvereeerieeerireetrrieeee e 85.9 -- --
Net realized investment gains (10SSes)......ccivveeiiinineniicc s (0.8) (98.5) (133.9)
TOLAL FEVEIMUES .....c..oiiiiiiiiiieireciirts et ereebe e ee et e esbe e tsabe b sbeabe st easensenaanees 2,743.2 2,633.5 2,467.4
BENEFITS AND EXPENSES:
Policy benefits, excluding policyholder dividends ........c.ococvvivrvncccnccnninenne, 1,422.2 1,454.0 1,436.1
Policyholder dividends ..........cocoovvviriireeiiniinesecies et 404.7 418.8 401.8
Policy acquisition cOSt AMOTHZAHON ..........c.ueveriverresresierererssssisseesssns e ssssinnes 110.2 94.1 59.2
Intangible asset AMOTIZAION .......eecvectioeeerreeeesree e ste et evesen e sa e eeenee e eraesraennens 338 33.2 98.8
Interest expense on INAebtedness. ... ..o vvvireriirei e 40.8 39.6 314
Interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations..........cceceevenivnnnnen 33.6 48.9 30.5
Other OPErating EXPENSES.......c.ccuvrvverererriencreererres et sestesestssnereseereseseesessesensens 560.7 565.1 613.2
Total benefits and eXPenSes...............ccomveieriniie it ene 2,606.0 2,653.7 2,671.0
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, »

minority interest, equity in earnings of affiliates and cumulative effect

0f acCOUNNG ChANEES .....cocviirriiiireree et e et s ere e 137.2 (20.2) (203.6)
Applicable income tax (benefit) EXPense. ...cccceerrirereiinrerieinie e 40.5 (18.3) (58.8)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before minority interest, equity

in earnings of affiliates and cumulative effect of accounting changes ............ 96.7 (1.9 (144.8)
Minority interest in net income of consolidated subsidiaries .............cccceeerennnne -- 0.49) (0.5)
Equity in undistributed earnings (losses) of affiliates...............corervvecremnnirencnene (10.4) (1.8) 4.6
Income (loss) from continuing operations and

before cumulative effect of accounting changes..................ccccccinniennne 86.3 “.1) (140.7)
Income (loss) from discontinued Operations.........cccoevvrerrecrseseereereeeenrennnenes 0.1 (2.1) (1.3)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting changes..................... 86.4 (6.2) (142.0)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes.........ccccveveeeniieriiniencerecnrne e -- -= (130.3)
Net inComMe (J0SS) ..ottt $ 86.4 $ 62 § (272.3)
EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations — basic.............coververeireeiecnneniennn, $ 0.91 $ 0.04 § (1.44)
Eamings (loss) from continuing operations — diluted..........cccooeeenervveenierenene $ 0.86 $ (004 $ (149
Earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change — basic ............ b 0.91 $§ (007 § (145
Earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change — diluted ......... $ 0.86 $§ 007 § (149
Net earnings (108S) — DASIC....cvcveiceiiivieieiriseseeteee sttt ee e ebe s eees $ 0.91 $ 0o $ (2.78)
Net earnings (1088) — Aited vvviviiie et $ 0.86 $ 0oy §  (2.7%
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding (in thousands)................. 94,676 94,218 97,854
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding (in thousands)............. 100,775 94,218 97,854
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Net inCOME (J0SS) ....cocooiiiiiiiiiiii et s e $ 86.4 $ 6.2) $ (272.3)
Other comprehensive income (1055).............ooeceiiinenniiciinnc e 5.7 135.2 (74.3)
Comprehensive income (I0SS)............cccooviriiniiiiinier et $ 80.7 $ 129.0 $  (346.6)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
($ amounts in millions)
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Premiums COIECTEd ... .ottt ettt $ 9939 $ 1,0249 $ 1,0682
Insurance and investment product fees collected.........coovvvnverninicinieenncieenne. 601.2 592.2 597.5
Investment inComeiColected .......oooviiiiveiii e, 1,002.1 1,026.2 954.7
Policy benefits paid, excluding policyholder dividends ..........cccoevverivnrinencan. (1,373.7) (1,017.9) (1,036.2)
Policyholder dividends paid ........ccccoirireriiiiinniiercrceiene e (395.9) (396.1) - (387.0)
Policy acquisition COSLS Paid.......cccovrvvrioreriiieniceecerereere e e (164.7) (205.5) (217.0)
Interest expense on indebtedness Paid.........ccccveeiieccineniiine e (37.3) (36.5) (32.6)
Interest expense on collateralized obligations paid .............ccccovevviivrveesirineans (33.6) (48.9) (30.5)
Other operating eXpenses Paid..........cveveiieereiinicciicee e (533.4) (547.4) (605.9)
Income taxes refunded...........ccocooieiiiiiiiii e 0.5 6.6 12.3
Cash from continUing OPErations.........ccecvererieeriairiesiereiteeeteeeeenerreereniearesieas 59.1 397.6 3235
Discontinued OPETations, TEL ......c.cvrerrririireereerirrere s e sersessessesesresesesesseens 14.9 (36.5) (59.1)
Cash from operating activities.................ccocoviiiiiniec e 74.0 361.1 264.4
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: :
Investment purchases (INOTE 5) ..o.ooviiviiiiiiiiiie e (4,163.9) (5,630.0) (4,977.3)
Investment sales, repayments and maturities (NOte 5) ....cocvevvinnenciiininiennnnnns 4,220.7 4417.2 3,418.6
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral purchases .........cccccceeeernennn (17.2) (56.9) (891.6)
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral sales .............ccoievecvicccnnne 97.0 171.5 96.0
SubSidiary PUICHASES «......c.viiereiieeierete et e ettt st eaaees e sresee e anes (36.9) (23.4) (136.1)
SUDSIAIALY SALES ...osiveiiiietirierieiereee e ettt 17.1 -~ --
Premises and equipment additions........ s (9.3) (17.6) (15.7)
Premises and equipment diSPoSals........cco.oiviiviiiiriceiieaie e 26.4 -- --
Discontinued Operations, Nt ........ccvvriiriririeeioeieneieiteerr e seeesesens 6.5 4.4 373
Cash from (for) investing activities ............c..c.ccconinnn i, 140.4 (1,143.6) (2,468.8)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Policyholder deposit fund deposits ...........ccccrrmencciiiiicniiieneeecce e 917.3 1,334.2 2,560.8
Policyholder deposit fund withdrawals.........coccoeevvccineiniinine e, (1,067.6) (1,087.2) (911.2)
Stock purchase CONtracts ProCeeds ........oovieievrrirecciinieierrirnne e -- -- 1339
EqUIty UNits ProCEEdS.....c.ocoviiicririiieriiiice ettt et e e -- -- 149.1
Other indebtedness ProCeeds .......ccoceriiviiirieniine ettt 196.6 -- --
Indebtedness FEPAYINENLS .......covoveeerere e crtiiecteeterie et eresb et cereeaeeeeeve s esbessnnseeaons (155.2) -- (125.1)
Common Stock purchases .........ccoociviiiii i - -- (131.1)
Collateralized obligations Proceeds............ccecvinireriiniinccinieee e -- -- 841.6
Collateralized obligations repayments.........cccoveieerinrrereciinceieeneeeeeeeeeeeennes . (90.8) (99.6) --
Common stock dividends paid........c.ccocceiiiiiinriiieic e (15.1) (15.1) (15.8)
Minority interest diStribUtions ..........ccociiiiiiiiiiniieiie e (12.5) (12.4) (10.6)
Cash from (for) financing activities .................cccccciiiiiini e, (227.3) 119.9 2,491.6
Change in cash and cash equivalents ..., (12.9) (662.6) - 2872
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year........cccccvvvvninciiineiereninenen, 4479 1,110.5 8233
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ..............c.ocovvviiiiiiiniiie e, $ 4350 $ 4479 $ 1,110.5

Included in cash and cash equivalents above is cash pledged as collateral of $61.0 million, $72.0 million, and $57.0 million at
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Included in policy benefits paid for the 2004 period are a group of scheduled surrenders or withdrawals of $184.2 million
from a group of large corporate-owned life insurance policies.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

($ amounts in millions, except share data)
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002

COMMON STOCK AND ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL:
Restricted stock units awarded as compensation

(213,045; 701,598; and 573,477 units)................ et $ 2.6 $ 5.1 $ 8.0
Restricted stock units (161,768 UNILS).....coiveriveeieiieieseiee et -- L5 -
Stock options awarded as compensation (566,070; and 572,504 options)......... 1.0 0.4 --
Exercise of stock options (18,542 shares) ........coc.ooovveeviivmireieicereie e 02" -- --
INCOME taX DENETIL . .oiveiiverieiriireiis e sttt ss e eaes -- -- 59
Present value of future contract adjustment payments on equity units............... - - (2.8)
DEFERRED COMPENSATION ON RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS:
Compensation deferred on restricted stock units awarded............ccooceveierennnnne. (1.9) (5.0) --
Compensation expense recognized — restricted stock Units........c.cccceevmeiniennnee 1.9 1.4 --
RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED DEFICIT): ‘
Net ICOME (10SS).c.viviiirirtieiieine ettt ne 86.4 (6.2) (272.3)
Common stock dividends declared ($0.16 per share) ..o, (15.1) (15.hH (15.8)
Excess of cost over fair value of common shares contributed to

employee SaVINES Plan ......cccoevriiieiee e e s (1.6) (2.6) --
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)........ 5.7 1352 (74.3)
TREASURY STOCK:
Common shares purchased (7,871,500 shares)........c.ccocovvevveivevmvenieviieieeens -- -- (129.7)
Common shares contributed to employee savings plan

(412,239 and 399,353 ShATeS)....covverireieeire e 6.8 .63 --
Change in stockholders’ equity ....... et n et : 74.6 121.0 (481.0)
Stockholders’ equity, beginning of Year..........ccocvvoviiviviieir e 1,947.8 1,826.8 2,307.8
Stockholders’ equity, end of year ... § 20224 $ 1,947.8 $ 1,826.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
($ amounts in millions, except per share and per unit data)
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

1. Organization and Operations

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Phoenix Companies, Inc., its subsidiaries and
certain sponsored collateralized obligation trusts as described in Note 8. The Phoenix Companies, Inc. is a
holding company whose operations are conducted through subsidiaries, the principal ones of which are Phoenix
Life Insurance Company, or Phoenix Life, and Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd., or Phoenix Investment
Partners. We have eliminated significant intercompany accounts and transactions in consolidating these financial
statements. We have reclassified certain amounts for 2003 and 2002 to conform with 2004 presentation.

We have prepared these financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, or
GAAP. In preparing these financial statements in conformity with GAAP, we are required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at reporting dates and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results will differ from these estimates and
assumptions. We employ significant estimates and assumptions in the determination of deferred policy
acquisition costs; policyholder Jiabilities and accruals; the valuation of intangible assets; the valuation of
investments in debt and equity securities and venture capital partnerships; pension and other postemployment
benefits liabilities; and accruals for contingent liabilities. Significant accounting policies are presented
throughout the notes in italicized type.

Accounting changes

Share-Based Payment: On December 16, 2004 the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued
FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, or SFAS 123(R), which requires that
compensation cost related to share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements at the fair
value of the instruments issued. While prior to the issuance of SFAS 123(R), recognition of such costs at fair
value was optional, we elected to do so for all share-based compensation that we awarded after December 31,
2002. We anticipate adopting the provisions of SFAS 123(R) on a modified prospective basis effective July 1,
2005, which will not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: As of January 1, 2002, we adopted a new accounting standard for
goodwill and other intangible assets and recorded the cumulative effect of the adoption as a charge to earnings.
We describe the adoption of this standard further in Note 4.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairments: Portions of Emerging Issues Task Force Abstract EITF 03-1, The Meaning
of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments, or EITF 03-1, are effective for
fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2004. EITF 03-1 provides guidance as to the determination of other-than-
temporary impaired securities and requires additional disclosures with respect to unrealized losses. These
accounting and disclosure requirements largely codify our existing practices and thus, are not anticipated to have
a material effect on our consolidated financial statements. The effective date of certain portions of EITF 03-1 has
been delayed pending further interpretive guidance. Because significant uncertainty remains surrounding what
form the gutdance will ultimately take, we cannot predict what effect, if any, adoption of the pending portions will
have on our financial results.
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Postretirement Benefits: On May 19, 2004, the FASB, issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 106-2, Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of
2003, or the FSP. For employers that sponsor postretirement benefit plans, or plan sponsors that provide
prescription drug benefits to retirees, the FSP requires any effects of the anticipated federal tax subsidy related to
those drug benefits be treated as an actuarial gain. The eftect of the FSP is not material to our consolidated
financial statements. 4 '

Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and Separate Accounts: Effective January 1, 2004, we adopted the
AICPA’s Statement of Position 03-1, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certam
Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts, or SOP 03-1. SOP 03-1 provxvd,‘_es guidance
related to the accounting, reporting and disclosure of certain insurance contracts and separate accounts, including
guidance for computing reserves for products with guaranteed benefits such as guaranteed minimum death
benefits and for products with annuitization benefits such as guaranteed minimum income benefits. In addition,
SOP 03-1 addresses the presentation and reporting of separate accounts, as well as rules concerning the
capitalization and amortization of sales inducements. Since this new accounting standard largely codifies certain
accounting and reserving practices related to applicable nontraditional long-duration contracts and separate
accounts that we already followed, our adoption did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

Effective July 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 150, Accounnng Jor Certain Financial Inslruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity, or SFAS 150. The effect of our adoptlon was to reclassify the
mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests related to our asset management sub51d1arles from “minority
interest” to “other liabilities” in our consolidated balance sheet. In addition, within our consolidated statement of
operations, we reclassified earnings attributed to those interests from the caption “minority interest in net income
of subsidiaries” to “other operating expenses”. These changes in presentation were not material to our
consolidated financial statements.

Variable Interest Entities: In January 2003, a new accounting standard was issued, FASB Interpretatlon No. 46,
or FIN 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51, that 1nterprets the existing
standards on consolidation. FIN 46 was subsequently reissued as FIN 46(R) in December 2003, with FIN 46(R)
providing additional interpretation as to existing standards on consolidation. FIN 46(R) clarlﬁes the application
of standards of consolidation to certam entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a
controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support from other parties (variable interest entities). Variable interest entities
are required to be consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if they do not effectively disperse risks among all
parties involved. The primary beneﬁc1ary of a variable interest entity is the party that absorbs a majority of the
entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of its expected residual returns, or both, as a result of holding variable
interests. As required under the original standard, on February 1, 2003, we adorted the new standard for variable
interest entities created after January 31, 2003 and for variable interest entities in which we obtained an interest
after January 31, 2003. In addition, as required by the revised standard, on December 31, 2003 we adopted
FIN 46(R) for Special Purpose Entities, or SPEs, in which we hold a variable interest that we acquired prior to
February 1, 2003. The effect of our adoption of the foregoing provisions of FIN 46(R) is described further in
Note 8. FIN 46(R) requires our application of its provisions to non-SPE variable interest entities for periods
ending after March 15, 2004. The adoption of FIN 46(R) for our non-SPE variable interest entities did not have a
material effect on our consolidated financial statements. '

Stock-based Compensation: A new standard was issued by the FASB in 2002 which amends an existing standard
on accounting for stock-based compensation. The new standard provides methods of transition for a voluntary
change to fair value accounting for stock-based compensation. We édopted fair value accounting for stock-based
compensation in 2003 using the prospective method of transition provided by the new standard, which results in
expense recognition for stock options awarded after December 31, 2002.
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Pro forma earnings and earnings per share, as if we had applied the fair value method of accounting for stock-
based compensation awarded prior to December 31, 2002, follow:

Pro forma Results Related to Stock-based Compensation Year Ended December 31,
Awarded Prior to December 31, 2002: 2004 2003 2002
(8 amounts in millions)
Net income (1088), S TEPOItEd .......coveeevroiirirereceicerc e $ 86.4 $ (62) § (272.3)
Add: Employee stock option compensation expense included in net income
(loss), net of applicable INCOME tAXES ........coeirerieriinc e 0.7 04 --
Deduct: Employee stock option compensation expense determined under
fair value accounting for all awards, net of applicable income taxes .............. 5.2 5.0 6.5
Pro forma net income (I088) ...t $ 81.9 $ (108 § (2788
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
AS TEPOTLEd .oveveeieiiieiee ettt et et tes bt b et sr s e s e $ 0.91 $  (007) § (2.78)
PrO O ....ocvcvcveeeececii ettt bbbt s s aes s rs e s eassssns o $ 087 $ (0.11) $ (2.8
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
AS TEPOTEEA ...ttt ettt ettt et st st etebasbe et e neare e e e $ 0.86 $ 007) 8§ (2.78)
PrO fOTMA. ....cviiiiiececectctce ettt s et ae e se bt ene s $ 0.81 $ 0.11) % (2.85)

The weighted-average fair values of options granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $4.24, $4.07 and $8.18 per
share, respectively, using the Black-Scholes option valuation model.

Valuation and related assumption information used for the options granted include these key variables: weighted-
average expected volatility, weighted-average risk-free interest rate and weighted-average common share
dividend yield.

See Note 11 for additional information related to stock-based compensation.
Business combinations and dispositions

On November 19, 2004, we received payment in full of a $27.5 million convertible subordinated note issued by
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC, or Aberdeen, a United Kingdom-based asset management company.
Concurrently we relinquished our contractual right to one of two Aberdeen board seats we held related to our
16.5% equity interest in Aberdeen, at which point we concluded that in our judgment, we no longer had the ability
to significantly influence Aberdeen’s operations. Accordingly, effective November 19, 2004, we changed our
method of accounting for our equity holdings in Aberdeen from the equity method of accounting to the fair value
method of accounting under SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Based on
our intent to sell our equity holdings in Aberdeen in the near-term, we designated our equity holdings as trading
securities under the fair value method of accounting. Under the fair value method, the changes in fair value,
based on the underlying value of Aberdeen’s shares as traded on the London Stock Exchange, as compared to our
carrying value under the equity method are presented as an after-tax realized investment gain of $55.1 million in
our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004. In addition, our fourth quarter
and full year 2004 consolidated statement of operations includes a $14.7 million after-tax, non-cash charge related
to the accounting for our proportionate share of Aberdeen’s December 2004 settlement of alleged misselling
activities with the United Kingdom’s Financial Services Authority. This charge has been accounted for by us
under the equity method of accounting as it pre-dates our November 19, 2004 change in accounting for Aberdeen
from the equity method to the fair value method. On January 14, 2005, we closed the sale to third parties of our
equity holdings in Aberdeen for net proceeds of $70.4 million, resulting in an after-tax realized investment loss of
$7.0 million, which will be recognized as a realized investment loss in our first quarter 2005 consolidated
statement of operations. The January 2005 sale of our equity holdings in Aberdeen completed our disposition of
our direct financial interests in Aberdeen. See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K
for more information on our holdings in Aberdeen.
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On October 25, 2004, we entered into an agreement with Friends Provident plc, or Friends Provident, to sell our
12% interest in Lombard International Assurance S.A., or Lombard, and to relinquish $17.5 million in notes
receivable from Lombard’s affiliate, Insurance Development Holdings A.G., or IDH. This transaction closed on
January 11, 2005 for consideration of $59.0 million and, under the terms of the sale, we may be entitled to
additional consideration, in the form of cash, based on Lombard’s financial performance through 2006.

In July 2004, we sold the stock of Phoenix Global Solutions (India) Pvt. Ltd., our India-based information
technology subsidiary, and essentially all of the assets of its United States affiliate, Phoenix Global Solutions,
Inc., to Tata Consultancy Services Limited, a division of Tata Sons Ltd. This transaction is not material to our
consolidated financial statemnents.

Effective May 31, 2004, we sold our retail affiliated broker-dealer operations to Linsco/Private Ledger Financial
Services, or LPL. As part of the transaction, advisors affiliated with WS Griffith Securities, Inc., or Griffith, and
Main Street Management Company, or Main Street, had the opportunity to move to LPL as independent
registered representatives. Revenues net of eliminations and direct expenses net of deferrals and certain
transaction related costs included in our consolidated financial statements related to our retail affiliated broker-
dealer operations sold during 2004 are as follows:

Revenues and Direct Expenses of . Year Ended December 31,

Retail Affiliated Broker-Dealer Operations: 2004 2003 2002

(8 amounts in millions)

Insurance and investment product fee revenues, net of eliminations................ $ 32.0 $ 60.8 $ 61.8
Direct other operating expenses, net of deferrals..........ccccooovniiii, $ 38.7 $ 72.8 $ 74.4

During 2004, we incurred a $3.6 million net after-tax charge for an impairment of goodwill related to Main Street,
offset by a $2.7 million after-tax gain on the sale of the retail affiliated broker-dealer operations. Both the charge
and the gain were recorded to realized investment gains and losses. In addition, we incurred a $10.2 million net
after-tax charge related to severance and lease termination costs, offset by a $4.4 million after-tax gain related to
curtailment accounting in connection with employee benefit plans.

In March 2004, we completed the sale of 100% of the common stock held by us in Phoenix National Trust
Company. The effect of this transaction is not material to our consolidated financial statements. Phoenix
National Trust Company is included as a discontinued operation in our consolidated financial statements for all
periods presented.

In March 2004, we acquired the remaining minority interests in Walnut Asset Management LLC and Rutherford
Brown & Catherwood, LLC for $2.1 million. This additional purchase price was accounted for as a step-
acquisition by Phoenix Investment Partners and was allocated to goodwill and definite-lived intangible assets,
accordingly.

In 2002 we acquired a 60% equity interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick, LLC, or Kayne Anderson Rudnick, for
$102.4 million. This acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method under FASB Statement No. 141,
Business Combinations, or SFAS 141. In connection with this acquisition, the Acquisition Agreement and the
related Amended and Restated Operating Agreement resulted in the creation of mandatorily redeemable
noncontrolling interests, or noncontrolling interests, representing 40% of Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s members’
interests held by certain of its members. Certain of these noncontrolling interests in Kayne Anderson Rudnick
have scheduled redemption dates (5% at each date) as of December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006, at a price based
upon operating results of Kayne Anderson Rudnick for the year then ended. These 15% noncontrolling interests,
as well as the rematning 25% of Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s noncontrolling interests, are mandatorily redeemable
upon death of a member and, as such, are included in other liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet and in our
consolidated statement of income as a part of other operating expenses in accordance with SFAS 150, Separate
agreements in connection with the 25% noncontrolling interests held by certain Kayne Anderson Rudnick’s
members give the noncontrolling interest-holders the right to require Phoenix Investment Partners to redeem all or
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a part of their noncontrolling interest at specified future dates and at a price determined based upon operating
results of Kayne Anderson Rudnick. Conversely, the terms of these agreements also give Phoenix Investment
Partners the right to redeem the outstanding minority interests at the same price as the noncontrolling interest-
holder may exercise its right to sell. These agreements may expire unexercised should Kayne Anderson
Rudnick’s operating results decline from the initial measurement date. |

In addition to the initial cost of the purchase of Kayne Anderson Rudnick in the first quarter of 2004, we made a
payment of $30.1 million in contingent cons1derat10n which was based upon management fee revenues for the
purchased business through the end of 2003. Phoenix Investment Partners had accrued for this payment as of
December 31, 2003 and allocated it entirely to goodwill.

In January 2004, one member of Kayne Anderson Rudnick accelerated his portion of the 15% noncontrolling
interest redemption, at which time we acquired an additional 0.3% of the company. Phoenix Investment Partners
has accrued $11.4 million related to the remaining 4.9% redemption required as of December 31, 2004, has
accounted for this payment as a step-acquisition and has allocated the purchase price to goodwill and definite-
lived intangible assets, accordingly. The two remaining 4.9% noncontrolling interest redemptions will be
accounted for as step-acquisitions as the purchase price contingency resolves.

In 2003, we acquired the outstanding minority interests in PFG Holdings, Inc., or PFG, and Capital West Asset
Management, LLC, or Capital West. Additional information on these acquisitions can be found in Note 3 and
Note 4, respectively.

2. Business Segments

We are a manufacturer of insurance, annuity and asset management products for the accumulation, preservation
and transfer of wealth. We provide products and services to affluent and high-net-worth individuals through their
advisors and to institutions directly and through consultants. We offer a broad range of life insurance, annuity
and asset management products through a variety of distributors. These products are managed within two
operating segments — Life and Annuity and Asset Management. We report our remaining activities in two non-
operating segments — Venture Capital and Corporate and Other.

The Life and Annuity segment includes individual life i 1nsurance and annuity products including participating
whole life, universal life, variable life, term life and fixéd and variable annuities. The Asset Management
segment includes private client and institutional investment management and distribution, including managed
accounts, open-end mutual funds and closed-end funds. We provide more information on the Life and Annuity
and Asset Management operating segments in Note 3 and Note 4, respectively.

The Venture Capital segment includes our equity share in the operating income and the realized and unrealized
investment gains of our venture capital partnership investments held in the general account of Phoenix Life, but
outside the closed block. We provide more information on this segment in Note 5. The Corporate and Other
segment includes all interest expense, as well as several smaller subsidiaries and investment activities which do
not mieet the thresholds of reportable segments. These include international operations and the run-off of our
group pension and guaranteed investment contract businesses.

We evaluate segment performance on the basis of segment income. Realized investment gains and losses and
some non-recurring items are excluded because we do not consider them when evaluating the financial
performance of the segments. The size and timing of realized investment gains and losses are often subject to our
discretion. The non-recurring items are removed from segment after-tax operating income if, in our opinion, they
are not indicative of overall operating trends. While some of these items may be significant components of net
income, we believe that segment income is an appropriate measure that represents the earnings attributable to the
ongoing operations of the business.




The criteria used to identify an item that will be excluded from segment income include: whether the item is
infrequent and is material to the segment’s income; or whether it results from a business restructuring, or a change
in regulatory requirements, or relates to other unusual circumstances (e.g., non-routine litigation). We include
information on other items allocated to our segments in their respective notes for information only. Items
excluded from segment income may vary from period to period. Because these items are excluded based on our
discretion, inconsistencies in the application of our selection criteria may exist, Segment income is not a
substitute for net income determined in accordance with GAAP and may be different from similarly titled
measures of other companies.

We allocate indebtedness and related interest expense to our Corporate and Other segment. We allocate capital to
our Life and Annuity segment based on risk-based capital, or RBC, for our insurance products. We used 300% of
RBC levels for the three years ended December 31, 2004. Capital within our life insurance companies that is
unallocated is included in our Corporate and Other segment. We allocate capital to our Asset Management
segment on the basis of the historical capital within that segment. We allocate net investment income based on
the assets allocated to the segments. We allocate certain costs and expenses to the segments based on a review of
the nature of the costs, time studies and other methodologies. Investment income on debt and equity securities
pledged as collateral as well as interest expense on non-recourse collateralized obligations, both related to three
consolidated collateralized obligation trusts we sponsor, are included in the Corporate and Other segment. Excess
investment income on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral represent investment advisory fees earned
by our asset management subsidiary and are allocated to the Asset Management segment as investment product
fees for segment reporting purposes only.

Segment Information on Assets: As of December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Segment Assets

Life and BNnUILY SEZIMENT. ... c.oiiiiihiariiearireeerareeareistsreestasencasaseesesasststsessasessesmsasesseanesasssseseess $ 25,117.0 $ 24,2195
ASSEt MANAZEIMNENT SEZIMEIIE.....cveuririeerieririreteaerereurerenrirse s ereeteesseseeneststesesretrsesesbenesnessennebenensnee 3339 851.2
OPperating SEZMENE ASSELS ..........cccoviirriiieieceiece et eere e be et e s et eseetseaess e se s et e s sereensstnnssons 25,950.9 25,070.7
Venture capital SEEMENT ......coiiiiiiiiiriit et ettt et et et 202.9 196.3
Corporate and Other SEGMENT ..........ocuivrirrirrertiiiiiie sttt ere s ess s essabe st sbnesasessassssn 2,185.8 2,264.0
TOotal SEZMIENT ASSELS ......c.ovieeeviiiiiniieeiiii e sttt bt b ettt e e et esnse e saensees 28,339.6 27,531.0
Net assets of discontinued operations (INOtE 14).....ccoviiviiercvniererr e e e e 23.0 28.2
TOUAL ASSELS ...ttt ettt st b bttt bbb e sttt en e $ 28,362.6 $ 27,559.2
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Segment Information on Revenues and Income:
(8 amounts in millions)

Life and annuity SEZMENL........cocecvierivirreeeineierrnerieerene e sceeesieseste s seeeas
Asset MANAZEMENT SEEMENT ....c.eovieriiiieierete et rere et raesaneeseennne
Elimination of inter-segment reVENUES ........c.ceeuirrriiceireniereneerenereneeeieereseoneas
Operating Segment FeVEIMUES...........cc..oocur ittt
Venture capital SEZMENT ........cecvieiiririinierineererenr s et erennens
Corporate and other SEZMENt........cccovii it e
Total SEZMENT FEVEIUES .......cceiiiiiiiieiir et rteene e st beceiae et e e e e esirestbeesieeenee
Unrealized gain on trading eqUity SECUITHES. .....ecveeirerririrenieerircceriereererreranes
Net realized investment gains (I0SSES)........o.vvrrermevrerseseeresesesesesnsessss s
Total FEVEMUES ..ottt

Segment Income (Loss)
Life and annuity SEQIMENL..........occeveiiiriiriine sttt teseer ettt ereeen e
ASSet MANAZEMENT SEZMENL.....c..viverirriririererretrrerrirenerensecoreenenessesesesensieneeseens
Operating segment pre-tax inCoOMe .............ooovceeiiiiiiiniinn e
Venture Capital SEZMENT ......cooriiiririiiit ettt e seens
Corporate and other segment:

Interest expense on INAebtedNesS.........cvevvvvereiereriirri e

Total segment income (loss) before INCOME tAXES ......oovrervriieerinieerrenns
Applicable income taxes (BEnefit) .......ccrrernirerininirenrcceee e
Total segment iNCoOMe (J0SS) ......ccoovirviieioiiriiinccnce e e
Income (loss) from discontinued Operations.........cccecveveecviririernrnivinnnincncneeas
Net realized investment income (losses),

net of income taxes and other offSets..........ccovvivinie i
Unrealized gains (losses) on equity investment in Aberdeen,

NEt Of INCOME LAXES 1.vviviivrirc oot er st a e ta e aa e e srae st aere e saes e srne
Share of Aberdeen extraordinary charge for FSA settlement

NEL OF INCOME LAXES ...vviveivvirieieeeee ettt ee et esese b bt en et ebere et et eaesna s es s s
Restructuring and early retirement costs, net of iInCome taxes..........cocevvieveenne.
Surplus notes tender costs, net Of INCOME tAXES....voveveriericarvieriinrrereerieeeerae s
Other income, net 0f INCOME tAXES ...voocvvvveriireee e seriee e eeeee e eaeeeeeneeeaeen
Deferred acquisition cost adjustment, net of INCOME tAXES......covveerrerrenereennens
Demutualization related items, net of INCOME 1AXES ......ceevvvvveiveveieeerierecerieenns
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of income taxes........cccoceveevnnenn.
Net inCOME (JOSS) .....cccvvii ittt et esabae s s e sean e e e eanes

While revenues derived from outside of the United States are not material to our consolidated financial

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
$ 23128 $ 2,3684 $ 23445
266.7 252.8 269.1
5.9 (5.8) (7.5)
2,585.4 2,6154 2,606.1
19.3 36.2 (59.3)
534 80.4 54.5
2,658.1 2,732.0 2,601.3
85.9 -- --
(0.8) (98.5) (133.9)
$ 2,743.2 $ 2,633.5 $ 24674
§ 1428 $ 994 $ 80.3
0.1 (8.7) (69.9)
142.9 90.7 104
19.3 36.2 (59.3)
(40.8) (39.6) (31.4)
(18.3) (8.2 (8.6)
103.1 79.1 (88.9)
22.5 21.8 (28.5)
80.6 57.3 (60.4)
0.1 2.1 (1.3)
(7.2) 0.8 (65.6)
559 (55.0) --
(14.7) -- --
(21.9) (8.5) (28.5)
(6.4) - --
-- 1.3 --
-- -- 15.1
-- -- (1.3)
- -- (130.3)
$ 86.4 S (6.2) $ (272.3)

statements, as of December 31, 2004 we had international investments, the principal ones of which are located in
the United Kingdom (Aberdeen 16.5% owned, Note 5) and Luxembourg (Lombard 12% owned, Note 5) and

Argentina.
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3. Life and Annuity Segment

The Life and Annuity segment includes individual life insurance and annuity products of Phoenix Life and certain

of its subsidiaries and affiliates (together, our Life Companies), including universal life, variable universal life,
term life and fixed and variable annuities. It also includes the results of our closed block, which consists
primarily of participating whole life products. Segment information on assets, segment income and deferred

policy acquisition costs follows:

Life and Annuity Segment Assets: _ As of December 31,

($ amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Investments................. bttt ettt et e e e s b s e re e e e $ 16,2734 $ 16,2169
Cash and cash eqUIVALENLS ... c.ccoiri ittt s se e eresas 255.2 250.5
RECEIVADIES ..ottt et et e et et et bt e as e est e as e ame e s st e s e rbaebaeemsaeareeneanaen 2222 228.1
Deferred policy acquiSitIon COSES. ..ot iiiiiiiei ettt sttt eas e s e sebenaenen 1,429.9 1,367.7
Deferred INCOME tAXES ...ovevreriiiriiiii ittt ettt eabe e PRSPPI - 40.2
Goodwill and other INtanGIDIE ASSELS ....ciiiviriiiriiireti ettt e e st et s sae s sba s ensane 10.2 153
Other Zeneral ACCOUNTE ASSELS.....crviuiriiiiriirtiieie ettt ettt earete et e st est e e e s sasaseenserseseeeeasesaesns 118.9 190.5
SEPATALE ACCOUNTS .ottt eeer e e e st eate et et sty se et e en e eneestene e e s e te e e etneobeeeree e sne s e 6,807.2 5,910.3
TOtal SEBIMEMT ASSELS ....o.iiiiietiiiieiites sttt ettt bttt bs e sane s bt sesaen $ 25,117.0 $ 24,219.5
Life and Annuity Segment Income: Year Ended December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
PLemMIUINIS ...ttt ettt e te ettt et e et e b ess et et e b et ans e e e e sanseens s $ 9906 $ 1,042.2 $ 1,082.0
Insurance and investment product fEes......coorevirr i 296.9 2784 2595
Broker-dealer commission and distribution fee revenues.........o.occveeereerereonns 28.8 . 546 55.6
NEt INVESHMENT INCOIME ..c.eecviiretiririciecetie e atre et eaere b s cateenassenbsmaesaesessens 996.5 993.2 947.4
Total SEEMENt FEVENUES .........cccoioviiiariniiii ettt e et rene s 2,312.8 2,368.4 2,344.5
Policy benefits, including policyholder dividends........cccocovvivvinivnccnnnnn, 1,314.8 1,869.9 1,867.6
Policy acquisition COSt aMOMIZAtION ....oervivierriire ettt 110.6 98.2 88.5
Other OPETALING EXPEISES . .vvrereereriererrerasesreerersresessassessssaresesssresessneresessesssassassees 244.6 300.5 307.5
Total segment benefits and eXPenses.............c.cooevernireiinriieneecniinncneeneneeens 2,170.0 2,268.6 2,263.6
Segment income before income taxes and minority iNterest .........ocveereervevennnn, 142.8 99.8 80.9
Allocated income taxes........cocvovevereiiennnas ettt bbb aas et 36.4 31.1 28.0
Segment income before minority INterest...........ccocinviiiniiciniccrenee : 106.4 68.7 529
Minority interest in segment income of consolidated subsidiaries .................... -- 0.4 0.6
SegMENt INCOME ..ottt 106.4 68.3 523
Net realized investment losses, net of income taxes and other offsets .............. (2.5 4.7 (15.0)
Restructuring charges, net of inCOME tAXES ...vvvecivieirereeeceeice e (7.3) (1.3) --
Deferred acquisition cost adjustment, net of iNCOME tAXES.......oveverveerririrrvecareas -- - 15.1
Segment et INCOME...............ivriniiniiiirc e e $ 9.6 $ 62.3 $ 52.4




Premium and fee revenue and related expenses

Revenues for annuity and universal life products consist of net investment income and mortality, administration
and surrender charges assessed against the fund values during the period. Related benefit expenses include
universal life benefit claims in excess of fund values and net investment income credited to fund values. We
recognize premiums for participating life insurance products and other long-duration life insurance products as
revenue when due from policyholders. We recognize life insurance premiums for short-duration life insurance
products as premium revenue pro rata over the related contract periods. We match benefits, losses and related
expenses with premiums over the related contract periods.

Life and Annuity Segment Revenues by Product: Year Ended December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Premiums

Term if8 INSUTAIICE ....vvevvevcvceeiie e eveteveer et ess s st sssssseserassassrns 3 13.8 $ 12.8 $ 10.2
Other [ife INSUTANCE ..ot e 14.4 15.9 17.6
Total, non-participating life iNSUIANCE. .........ccovvneiiiicininiin e 28.2 28.7 27.8
Participating life inSUrance ... 962.4 1,013.5 1,054.2
Total Premiums. ..........c.ocooieviiiiiiii e s 990.6 1,042.2 1,082.0
Insurance and investment product fees

Variable universal [ife INSUTANCE .....cvoeioviiieniirrnee et 111.2 109.1 102.0
Universal life IMSUIAIICE ...o.vivioiieeeireicierae e et esraebe st see e saenbeseas 113.0 68.7 87.4
Other 1ife INSUTANCE .. c..covviiieirierreeniieeceetiec et e e s e e e sea e e easeseneerne b 3.5 6.3 6.3
Total, e MSUIANCE .....ocvviii e eerr ettt seeres et eace e e neneeeecararecnees 227.7 2141 195.7
ATITIUIEIES. 1ot iee e et ettt e etreetaesbereressseasaessaessaeseaeseeanesesereresacenesmbemeeeanermessae 69.2 64.3 63.8
Total insurance and investment product fees..................oceovvrinirninvecncene 296.9 2784 259.5
Broker-dealer commission and distribution fee revenues...................c........ 28.8 54.6 55.6
Net Investment iNCOMIE ...........cccocovieiiiiesrienieneere e seescereresreaae e eser e raesnsansens 996.5 993.2 947.4
SegMENT FEVENUES ....o.cooveiiiiiecieceet b s $ 23128 $ 2,3684 $ 2,344.5

Broker-dealer commissions are related to our retail affiliated broker-dealer operations, which we sold May 31,
2004 as further described in Note 1.

Reinsurance

We use reinsurance agreements to provide for greater diversification of business, allow us to control exposure to
potential losses arising from large risks and provide additional capacity for growth.

We recognize assets and liabilities related to reinsurance ceded contracts on a gross basis. The cost of
reinsurance related to long-duration contracts is accounted for over the life of the underlying reinsured policies
using assumptions consistent with those used to account for the underlying policies.

We remain liable to the extent that reinsuring companies may not be able to meet their obligations under
reinsurance agreements in effect. Failure of the reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to us;
consequently, estimates are established for amounts deemed or estimated to be uncollectible. To minimize our
exposure to significant losses from reinsurance insolvencies, we evaluate the financial condition of our reinsurers
and monitor concentration of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities, or economic
characteristics of the reinsurers.
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Our reinsurance program varies based on the type of risk, for example:

s On direct policies, the maximum of individual life insurance retained by us on ény one life is $10 million
for single life and joint first-to-die policies and $12 million for joint last-to-die policies, with excess
amounts ceded to reinsurers.

o We reinsure 80% of the mortality risk on the in-force block of the Confederation Life Insurance
Company, or Confederation Life, business we acquired in December 1997.

¢  We entered into two separate reinsurance agreements in 1998 and 1999 to reinsure 80% and 60%,
respectively, of the mortality risk on a substantial portion of our otherwise retained individual life
insurance business.

e We reinsure 80% to 90% of the mortality risk on certain new issues of term life insurance.

¢ We reinsure 100% of guaranteed minimum death benefits on a block of variable deferred annuities issued
between January 1, 1996 through December 31, 1999, including subsequent deposits. We retain the
guaranteed minimum death benefits risks on the remaining variable deferred annuities in force that are not
covered by this reinsurance arrangement.

e We assume and cede business related to the group accident and health block in run-off.. While we are not
writing any new contracts, we are contractually obligated to assume and cede premiums related to
existing contracts. '

Direct Business and Reinsurance in Continuing Operations: Year Ended December 31,

($ amounts in millions) ' 2004 2003 2002
DAFECE PLEIMHUIIS ...covevvvivieier et ceesse st e v sttt ettt b et st ab s et seeaesen e $ 10543 § 10021 $ 1,1042
Premiums assumed from Ieinsureds ........ooo.cvevernieiienorininsineseece e 2.8 15.5 16.9
Premiums ceded 10 TEIMSUTETS c....oveviiriireicririeetete ettt eae e renesaeerens (66.5) (65.9) (39.1H
PYemiUmms. ...cooooooiriiiniiiicn e s e, 3 990.6 $ 10422 § 1,082.0
Percentage of amount assumed 0 Net Premivms .....vvevceecvriecnrireeieieeeenns 0.3% 1.5% 1.6%
Direct policy benefits incurred .......oocvoviveitieieieieee v $ 4163 S 4029 § 357.5
Policy benefits assumed from reinsureds.........c.ocoveeiivieviiereiivieiereeie e 3.9 13.5 12.6
Policy benefits ceded t0 TEIMSUTETS ........ocevveevieininiieiciccte et (52.9) (56.9) (44.8)
Policy DENefits ......coooviiiiiice et 3 3673 % 3595 § 3253
Direct life InSUFANCe 10 fOTCE ..o.vviiioeee e st st e $126,367.9 $120,931.3 $110,529.8
Life insurance in force assumed from reinsureds ..........ooeevvvvevveeveeiivieivieeencene. 1,759.5 1,837.3 1,831.2
Life insurance in force ceded to r&INSUTEIS.......ccceviveirieiviiriseree e (80,040.1) (77,222.3) (74,575.2)
Life insurance in force........................... et bbbt et ns $ 48,087.3 % 455463 § 37,7858
Percentage of amount assumed to net insurance in force ........cooeveevivvereenennn, 3.7% 4.0% 4.8%

The policy benefit amounts above exclude changes in reserves, interest credited to policyholders, withdrawals and
policyholder dividends, which total $1,447.5 million, $1,510.4 million and $1,542.3 million, net of reinsurance,
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Irrevocable letters of credit aggregating $48.1 million at December 31, 2004 have been arranged with commercial
banks in our favor to collateralize the ceded reserves.
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Business combinations and significant reinsurance assumed transaction

In 2003, we acquired the remaining interest in PFG, the holding company for our private placement operation, for
initial consideration of $16.7 million. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we may be obligated to pay
additional consideration of up to $86.5 million to the selling shareholders, including $10.0 million during 2005
through 2007 based on certain financial performance targets being met, and the balance in 2008 based on the
appraised value of PFG as of December 31, 2007. During the year ended December 31, 2004, we paid $3.0
million under this obligation.

In July 2002, we acquired the variable life and variable annuity business of Valley Forge Life Insurance Company
(a subsidiary of CNA Financial Corporation), effective July 1, 2002. The business acquired had a total account
value of $557.0 million at June 30, 2002. This transaction was effected through a combination of coinsurance and
modified coinsurance.

Deferred policy acquisition costs

The costs of acquiring new business, principally commissions, underwriting, distribution and policy issue
expenses, all of which vary with and are primarily related to production of new business, are deferred. In
connection with our acquisitions of PFG (2003), we recognized an asset for the present value of future profits
representing the present value of estimated net cash flows embedded in the existing contracts acquired. This
asset is included in deferred acquisition costs.

We amortize deferred acquisition costs and present value of future profits based on the related policy’s
classification. For individual participating life insurance policies, we amortize deferred acquisition costs and
present value of future profits in proportion to estimated gross margins. For universal life, variable universal life
and accumulation annuities, deferred acquisition costs and present value of future profits are amortized in
proportion to estimated gross profits. Policies may be surrendered for value or exchanged for a different one of
our products (internal replacement); the deferred acquisition costs balance associated with the replaced or
surrendered policies is amortized to reflect these surrenders. ‘

The amortization process requires the use of various assumptions, estimates and judgments about the future. Our
primary assumptions relate to anticipated expenses, investment performance, mortality and contract cancellations
(i.e., lapses, withdrawals and surrenders). These assumptions, which we review on a regular basis, are generally
based on our past experience, industry studies, regulatory requirements and judgments about the future. Changes
in estimated gross margins and gross profits based on actual experiences are reflected as an adjustment to total
amortization to date resulting in a charge or credit to earnings. Finally, we periodically assess whether there are
sufficient gross margins or gross profits to amortize our remaining deferred acquisition cost balances.
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Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs: Year Ended December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Acquisition costs deferred ............covviviiiiiiee e $ 1647 $ 2055 $ 2170
Acquisition costs recognized in:

PFG minority Interest acqUiSItion .........covvcerieornerivrineriee s e sesceeesnenens -- 9.8 --

Valley Forge Life reinsurance assumed transaction ............ccccoveveveevvrrerniennes -- -- 48.5
Costs amortized to expenses:

Recurring costs related to segment income ....c...coceevvveveeecennn. JRRTRRTTOT (110.6) (98.2) (88.5)

{Cost) credit related to realized investment gains or losses (Note 5)............... 0.4 4.1 7.2

Change in actuarial aSSUMPLION ........ccvirviririeiiiinerece et -- oo 22.1
Offsets to net unrealized investment gains or losses '

included in other comprehensive income (NOte 12) ..c.cccvoiiiioencineniiicenne 7.7 12.4 (95.9)
Change in deferred policy acquisition costs ..., 62.2 133.6 1104
Deferred policy acquisition costs, beginning of year............cccovvevrnicinnenennns 1,367.7 1,234.1 1,123.7
Deferred policy acquisition costs, end of year ................cccooviniviicicnnnn, $ 14299 $ 1,367.7 $ 1,234.1

In 2002, we revised the mortality assumptions used in the development of estimated gross margins for the
traditional participating block of business to reflect favorable experience. This revision resulted in a decrease in
deferred policy acquisition cost amortization of $22.1 million ($14.4 million after income taxes). Also in 2002,
we revised our long-term market return assumption for the variable annuity block of business from 8% to 7%. In
addition, we recorded an impairment charge related to the recoverability of our deferred acquisition cost asset
related to the variable annuity business. The revision in long-term market return assumption and the impairment
charge resulted in a $13.5 million pre-tax ($8.8 million after income taxes) increase in our policy acquisition cost
amortization expense in the third quarter of 2002.

Policy liabilities and accruals

Future policy benefits are liabilities for life and annuity products. We establish liabilities in amounts adequate to
meet the estimated future obligations of policies in force. Future policy benefits for traditional life insurance are
computed using the net level premium method on the basis of actuarial assumptions as to contractual guaranteed
rates of interest, mortality rates guaranteed in calculating the cash surrender values described in such contracts
and morbidity. Future policy benefits for variable universal life, universal life and annuities in the accumulation
phase ave computed using the deposit-method, which is the sum of the account balance, unearned revenue
liability and liability for minimum policy benefits. Future policy benefits for term and annuities in the payout
phase that have significant mortality visk are computed using the net premium method on the basis of actuarial
assumptions at the issue date of these contracts for rates of interest, contract administrative expenses, mortality
and surrenders. We establish liabilities for outstanding claims, losses and loss adjustment expenses based on
individual case estimates for reported losses and estimates of unreported losses based on past experience.

Policyholder liabilities are primarily for participating life insurance policies and universal life insurance policies.
For universal life, this includes deposits received from customers and investment earnings on their fund balances,
which range from 4.0% to 6.0% as of December 31, 2004, less administrative and mortality charges.

Certain of our annuity products contain guaranteed minimum death benefits. The guaranteed minimum death
benefit feature provides annuity contract holders with a guarantee that the benefit received at death will be no less
than a prescribed amount. This minimum amount is based on the net deposits paid into the contract, the net
deposits accumulated at a specified rate, the highest historical account value on a contract anniversary, or more
typically, the greatest of these values. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the difference between the guaranteed
minimum death benefit and the current account value (net amount at risk) for all existing contracts was $123.5
million and $183.1 million, respectively, for which we had established reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables,
of $9.1 million and $7.6 million, respectively.
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Participating life insurance

Participating life insurance in force was 35.6% and 38.8% of the face value of total individual life insurance in
force at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Fair value of investment contracts

For purposes of fair value disclosures (Note 9), we determine the fair value of guaranteed interest contracts by
assuming a discount rate equal to the appropriate United States Treasury rate plus 150 basis points to determine
the present value of projected contractual liability payments through final maturity. We value the fair value of
deferred annuities and supplementary contracts without life contingencies with an interest guarantee of one year
or less at the amount of the policy reserve. In determining the fair value of deferred annuities and supplementary
contracts without life contingencies with intevest guarantees greater than one year, we use a discount rate equal
to the appropriate United States Treasury rate plus 150 basis points to determine the present value of the
projected account value of the policy at the end of the current guarantee period.

Deposit type funds, including pension deposit administration contracts, dividend accumulations, and other funds
left on deposit not involving life contingencies, have interest guarantees of less than one year for which interest
credited is closely tied to rates earned on owned assets. For these liabilities, we assume fair value to be equal to
the stated liability balances.

Policyholder deposit funds

Policyholder deposit funds primarily consist of annuity deposits received from customers, dividend accumulations
and investment earnings on their fund balances, which range from 1.8% to 12.3% as of December 31, 2004, less
administrative charges.

Demutualization and Closed Block

In 1999, we began the process of reorganizing and demutualizing our then principal operating company, Phoenix
Home Life Mutual Insurance Company. We completed the process in June 2001, when all policyholder
membership interests in this company were extinguished and eligible policyholders of the company received
shares of common stock of The Phoenix Companies, Inc., together with cash and policy credits, as compensation.
To protect the future dividends of these policyholders, we established a closed block for their existing policies.

The closed block assets, including future assets from cash flows generated by the assets and premiums and other
revenues from the policies in the closed block, will benefit only holders of the policies in the closed block. The
principal cash flow items that affect the amount of closed block assets and liabilities are premiums, net investment
income, investment purchases and sales, policyholder benefits, policyholder dividends, premium taxes and income
taxes. The principal income and expense items excluded from the closed block are management and maintenance
expenses, commissions, investment income and realized investment gains and losses on investments held outside
the closed block that support the closed block business. All of these excluded income and expense items enter into
the determination of total gross margins of closed block policies for the purpose of amortization of deferred
policy acquisition costs.

In our financial statements, we present closed block assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses together with all
other assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Within closed block liabilities, we have established a
policyholder dividend obligation to record an additional liability to closed block policyholders for cumulative
closed block earnings in excess of expected amounts calculated at the date of demutualization. These closed
block earnings will not inure to stockholders, but will result in additional future dividends to closed block
policyholders unless otherwise offset by future performance of the closed block that is less favorable than
expected.
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Because closed block liabilities exceed closed block assets, we have a net closed block liability at each period-
end. This net liability represents the maximum future earnings contribution to be recognized from the closed
block and the change in this net liability each period is in the earnings contribution recognized from the closed
block for the period. To the extent that actual cash flows differ from amounts anticipated, we may adjust
policyholder dividends. If the closed block has excess funds, those funds will be available only to the closed
block policyholders. However, if the closed block has insufficient funds to make policy benefit payments that are
guaranteed, the payments will be made from assets outside of the closed block.

Closed Block Assets and Liabilities: As of December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) ' 2004 2003 Inception
DEDE SECULITIES ....viiviiceeceiete ettt ee et eree s et ee v b beereereebesbeteees vt ssnebeenran § 6,949.6 $ 6,906.4 $ 4,773.1
EqQUILY SECUTILIES ....viveveveeiieririereieceersieseereesrsenrestese e sassesesesesaeesesenesesnons e 90.8 82.9 --
MOTZAZE LOANS ....veveiieie ittt ettt ettt et s s ettt s sea et b sen e senas 181.9 228.5 399.0
Venture capital partnerships .......o.o.eooviereereriieiiee oot esese s 524 38.6 --
POICY J0IS 1ttt e rae st sn e st sttt eene 1,363.4 1,386.8 1,380.0
Other INVESTEd ASSELS ...vvveeiiiiiieiireeinireretreserirraesetesttearsae st besrrearssesebesereassesssesens 60.0 46.7 --
Total closed block INVESIMENTS. ....c.c.ccviiiuiiveeirieecreetre et erresane s 8,698.1 8,689.9 6,552.1
Cash and cash equivalents ........c.ccocevveciniiiniinii 100.5 40.5 --
Accrued Investment INCOME ......ocvciveeriieeseiee et erreseree e e sre e stresbeeenesraessenesens 118.8 120.2 106.8
RECEIVADIES ..vvi et ettt e 327 430 352
Deferred INCOME tAXES ......ccovviiiiieereieecie et sttt esteste e sre e esbeerrereesreenneenes 359.7 377.0 389.4
Other closed BIOCK @SSELS......ccoviiiiieeicieert ettt ere et e e eaneas 24.0 62.3 6.2
Total closed DIOCK @SSELS..........coveevieiiiietiiee ettt srees e s srt et 9,333.8 9,332.9 7,089.7
Policy liabilities and accruals ........c.ocoeieieeiiinniirenecene e e 9,686.9 9,723.1 8,301.7
Policyholder dividends payable.........cocoviviniiiinece 365.5 369.8 325.1
Policyholder dividend 0bLigation............eecvviererevirriiereeeeeanieesesereeeeeessennenns 535.9 519.2 --
Other closed block Habilities .....c..oveeeueiriirierirereeisie s seeeeeree e sreesre e e srbenteens 41.5 63.0 12.3
Total closed block Habilities ..............cccooooiiiiinie e 10,629.8 10,675.1 8,639.1
Excess of closed block liabilities over closed block assets.................c.ceuc... $ 1,296.0 $ 1,342.2 $ 1,549.4
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Closed Block Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Cumulative

Policyholder Dividend Obligations: From Year Ended December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) ‘ Inception 2004 2003
Closed block revenues

PIEIMIUINS .....veueeeeverieirerereeseteeisbere e eteveteenessssebeeseeenes ettt $ 5,170.8 § 9328 $ 1,000.1
Net INVESTMENT INCOIIE .vveivvveeiireerierireaieeresrerreesseeessreessrossneessareseassssessresssaessees 2,771.2 560.0 573.1
Net realized investmMENt 10SSES. ......coveriiviriiiciiiireie et OL.1) (2.0) (9.4)
TOtAL FEVEIUES .......ocvieiriieciee ettt ee et et eve et eeseneeabe st e saaesabeesstesaneesns 7,850.9 1,490.8 1,563.8
Policy benefits, excluding dividends ..........cocoovveiiiiiiinnininne e 5,367.6 1,007.1 1,058.0
Other Operating EXPEINSES.....c.eiiuiiuircriieerieriereereese e e cerestresresnestseneenseeanenne 57.9 8.9 10.0
Total benefits and expenses, excluding policyholder dividends.........c..c...c.c... 5,425.5 1,016.0 1,068.0
Closed block contribution to income before dividends and income taxes......... 2,4254 474.8 495.8
Policyholder dividends .........ccoeeieereeiiiirc et 2,000.2 403.9 4194
Closed block contribution to income before income taxes.........ccoveveeeeerrnnrne 4252 70.9 76.4
APPlICable INCOME tAXES .. .veviverriiereeeieerierteie et seesrb e areb b seet e bese b ees 149.3 24.7 26.8
Closed block contribution to Income................ccooooiiviiieniiiieecee e $ 2759 $ 46.2 $ 49.6

Policyholder dividend obligation

Policyholder dividends provided through earnings ........cc.ccooveveiinicenincnnn. § 2,0454 $ 4039 § 4194
Policyholder dividends provided through other comprehensive income........... 436.5 3.8 (45.5)
Additions to policyholder dividend liabilities....................c..o.cc 2,481.9 407.7 373.9
Policyholder dividends paid..........c.cccoiiiniiiiniii (1,905.6) (395.3) (395.6)
Change in policyholder dividend liabilities..............occoooviiini, 576.3 12.4 217
Policyholder dividend liabilities, beginning of period...........cccovvvivreeririeneennnas 325.1 889.0 910.7
Policyholder dividend liabilities, end of period.........cooceevvreeicnennnninneenean 901.4 901.4 889.0
Less: policyholder dividends payable, end of period............cccccoovrevererrerrnnnn 365.5 365.5 369.8
Policyholder dividend obligation, end of period ............. et $ 5359 $ 5359 $ 519.2

In addition to the closed block assets, we hold assets outside the closed block in support of closed block liabilities.
We recognize investment earnings on these invested assets, less deferred policy acquisition cost amortization and
allocated expenses, as an additional source of earnings to our stockholders.

4. Asset Management Segment

We conduct activities in Asset Management with a focus on two customer groups — private client and
institutional. Through our private client group, we provide asset management services principally on a
discretionary basis, with products consisting of open-end mutual funds, closed-end funds and managed accounts.
Managed accounts include intermediary programs sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated broker-dealers and
direct managed accounts which are sold and administered by us. Our private client business also provides transfer
agency, accounting and administrative services to our open-end mutual funds.

Through our institutional group, we provide discretionary and non-discretionary asset management services
primarily to corporations, multi-employer retirement funds and foundations, as well as to endowment and special
purpose funds. In addition, we manage alternative financial products, including structured finance products.
Structured finance products include collateralized obligations backed by portfolios of public high yield bonds,
commercial mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities or bank loans. See Note 8 for additional information.

We offer asset management services through our affiliated asset managers. We provide these affiliated asset
managers with a consolidated platform of distribution and administrative support, thereby allowing each manager
to devote a high degree of focus to investment management activities. On an ongoing basis, we monitor the
quality of the affiliates’ products by assessing their performance, style consistency and the discipline with which
they apply their investment processes.
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Asset Management Segment Assets: As of December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
INVESHIMEIES ....vuveveieiiieeit ettt ettt ettt et s see b st et es e sns st et eseeses et esenbesesbese s abesnsbeneesens $ 12.8 $ 11.8
Cash and cash equIVAlENts ...........cccniiiiniiiii e 50.0 39.6
RECEIVADIES ..ottt ettt st sttt b r e 342 36.0
INTANZIDIE @SSELS. ....evveiiiiiieeeete ittt sttt st ettt b et b e et s besn e et b e e eb e ene 3084 335.1
Goodwill.......ccooooviiririien ettt ettt e eh e h bt ra AR b A e R R oAb bR bane b s et be b st ebene 416.9 408.1
ORET BSSEES...uiitiiet ittt et ettt bt sttt be b b r e 11.6 20.6
Total SEZMENT ASSEES ...t e $ 8339 $ 8512
| :
Asset Management Segment Income: Year Ended December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Investment product fEeS........ccvieveurircieii e § 2379 $ 2253 $ 2386
Broker-dealer commission and distribution fee revenues............ccocoeeeeerenenee 28.0 26.8 29.5
Net investment iNCOME .......covvrerrevirerreernnns JO U VU R TUTUUROTOTOTRO 0.8 0.7 1.0
Total SEZMENt FEVEMUES ...........ccoeiiiie ettt ettt anc s e eeeene e 266.7 252.8 269.1
Intangible asset AMOTHZALION ......cceeririiciiniciiieeee et 338 33.2 325
Intangible asset IMPAIIMEIIES ......ccvivirerirreeiriieerterereeer e ereni et seenes - -- 66.3
Other OPerating EXPEINSES...cc.cevrreieerereeretieerieareereeererbesteesaesrasaceasesresaeseeesaeaaees 232.8 228.3 240.2
Total segment eXPenSes ...........cceveeiiiiiiiiniciii e 266.6 261.5 339.0
Segment income (10ss) before iNCOME tAXES. ....eeveeririiererirrriiiiree e 0.1 (8.7) (69.9)
Allocated income taxes (BEnefit) .........oceveeiireiieiieiceree e 2.3 3.3 (6.0)
SEEIMENE HOSS .....cvievieicii ettt e e e 2.2) (5.4) (63.9)
Net realized investment gains (losses), net of income taxes.................... R 1.8 (0.3) --
Restructuring charges, net of INCOME tAXES .......oevvvmrrercereiinireee el (1.2) 4.0) (8.4)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes............ccocevvenereee -- -- (119.9)
Segment Net J0SS ..ot S (1.6) 8§ 9.7y § (192.2)

In 2004, 2003 and 2002, our Asset Management segment incurred restructuring charges primarily in connection
with organizational and employment-related costs of $1.9 million ($1.2 million after-tax), $6.2 million (§4.0
million after-tax) and $12.9 million ($8.4 million after-tax), respectively.

Fee Revenues

Investment management fees and mutual fund ancillary fees included in investment product fees are recorded as
income during the period in which services are performed. Investment management fees are generally computed
and earned based upon a percentage of assets under management and are paid pursuant to the terms of the
respective investment management contracts, which generally require monthly or quarterly payment.
Management fees contingent upon achieving certain levels of performance are recorded when the contingencies
are resolved.

Mutual fund ancillary fees consist of distribution fees, administrative fees, shareholder service agent fees, fund
accounting fees, dealer concessions and underwriter fees. Dealer concessions and underwriting fees earned (net
of related expenses) from the distribution and sale of affiliated mutual fund shares and other securities are
recorded on a trade date basis.

Business combinations

In 2001, we acquired a 65% interest in Capital West for $5.5 million. In June 2003, we acquired the remaining
interest in Capital West not already owned by us for $1.1 million. We have accounted for our acquisition of the
remaining interest as a step-purchase. We recorded $0.7 million for definite-lived investment management

contracts and assigned the remaining acquisition price of $1.0 million to goodwill.
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In 2002, we acquired a 60% interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick for $102.4 million as further described in
Note 1. In addition to the initial cost of the purchase, we made a payment of $30.1 million in the first quarter of
2004 based upon growth in management fee revenue for the purchased business through 2003. We had fully
accrued for this estimated payment as of December 31, 2003 and have allocated it entirely to goodwill. In
January 2004, one member of Kayne Anderson Rudnick accelerated his portion of the 15% noncontrolling
interest acquisitions, at which time we acquired an additional 0.3% of the company. Phoenix Investment Partners
has accrued $11.4 million related to the remaining 4.9% redemption required as of December 31, 2004, has
accounted for this payment as a step-acquisition and has allocated the purchase price to goodwill and definite-
lived intangible assets, accordingly. The two remaining 4.9% noncontrolling interest redemptions will be
accounted for as step-acquisitions as the purchase price contingency resolves. Related to the initial purchase in
2001, we allocated $0.3 million of the initial purchase price to tangible net assets acquired and $102.1 million to
intangible assets ($58.3 million to investment management contracts and $43.8 million to goodwill). Kayne
Anderson Rudnick’s results of operations for the period from January 30, 2002 through December 31, 2002 are
included in our results of operations for the year 2002.

The mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests in each of our less than wholly-owned asset management
subsidiaries are subject to certain agreements, which were executed at the time of acquisition, that may provide
for one or all of the following: (a) a contingent purchase price payment; (b) a requirement for Phoenix Investment
Partners to redeem a predetermined percentage of the outstanding noncontrolling membership interests at
predetermined future dates; and/or (¢) agreements associated with the purchase of these subsidiaries’
noncontrolling membership interests that are subject to the occurrence of certain events. The redemption price
associated with each of these agreements is contingent upon the operating results of the respective subsidiary. As
additional redemptions of noncontrolling interests occur, the related payments are accounted for in accordance
with SFAS 141 as either contingent purchase price, or as a step-acquisition whereby the purchase price is
allocated to the portion of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based upon their respective fair values,
goodwill, and other intangible assets. For each type of agreement, the redemption price is calculated similarly
and is equal to (1) investment advisory fees, or growth in investment advisory fees, as applicable, for the relevant
year multiplied by an agreed upon multiple, multiptied by (2) the amount of noncontrolling membership interest
being purchased. The redemption price is determined within 60 days after year-end and the payment is made
within 60 days of the finalization of the price. There is no cap or floor on the redemption price for any of the
agreements. Notwithstanding (a), (b), and (c) above, these interests are redeemable upon death of a member and,
as such, are included in other liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet and as earnings attributable to
mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests as a part of other operating expenses on our consolidated
statement of income. Earnings attributable to mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests and the related
liabilities are not material to our consolidated financial statements. We recorded $15.2 million and $34.5 million
of additional redemption or purchase price in 2004 and 2003, respectively, related to the redemption of
noncontrolling membership interests that existed at the time of acquisition with certain of our majority-owned
subsidiaries.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted the new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible assets,
including amounts reflected in our carrying value of equity method investments. Under this new standard, we
discontinued recording amortization expense on goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives, but we
continue recording amortization expense for those intangible assets with definite estimated lives. For goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets, we perform impairment tests at the reporting-unit level at least annually.
To test for impairments, we calculate the fair value of each reporting unit based on the sum of a multiple of
revenue and the fair value of the unit’s tangible net assets. We calculate the fair value of definite-lived intangible
assets based on their discounted cash flows. We compare the calculated fair value to the recorded values and
record an impairment, if warranted. Amortization expense for definite-lived intangible assets is calculated on a
straight-line basis.
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Upon adoption of the new accounting standard, we recorded a before-tax cumulative effect charge of $141.7
million to reduce the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives to fair value, of
which $131.3 million pertained to our Asset Management segment and $10.4 million pertained to an international
equity investment in our Corporate and Other segment (Note 5). After applicable income tax benefits, the charge
reduced earnings by $130.3 million or $1.33 per share. In the third quarter of 2002, we performed an impairment
test at the Asset Management segment reporting-unit level and recorded a before-tax charge of $66.3 million to
further reduce the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets.

Asset management segment intangible assets and goodwill

Carrying Amounts of Intangible Assets and Goodwill: As of December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Asset management contracts with definite lives ... $ 4012 $ 3961
Less: accumulated amMOrtIZAION .....coiiveiieicie ettt ettt bbbt 166.1 134.3
Intangible assets with definite lIVeS ..o 2351 2618
Asset management contracts with indefinite 1IVes.......cocooeiriiiiiiiii e 733 733
INtan@Ible ASSES...........ooviiiiiiiiiiee ettt $ 3084 § 3351
Goodwill..........ocooeoviiii OO U TSROSO $ 4169 $  408.1
Activity in Intangible Assets and Goodwill: : Year Ended December 31,
($ amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Intangible assets

ASSET PUTTHASES ..vviviieiecvieee ettt ettt ettt bt a e b et e s sttt eass s et et ens $ 7.1 $ 33
ASSEL AIMOTHZATION «...vevitiie ettt ettt a e aeb ettt n et et ne st e bt bt enb s eaas (33.8) (33.2)
Change in intangible assets ... e (26.7) 29.9)
Balance, beginning 0f PEiod. .. coviiiiiiiir i it seeseb e e s en e st en s s 335.1 365.0
Balance, end of Period...............co.oiiiii i $ 3084 $ 3351
Goodwill .

GoOAWILL ACQUITEA ...oviviieeeceteeet et ettt et ettt b et teete et e b e b et easas s s e b esaereens $ 8.8 b 325
Balance, beginning 0f PEIIOd ......cccoiiiiiriiieee i 408.1 375.6
Balance, end of Period..........cccoovviiiiiiiii e $ 4169 $ 408.1

The estimated aggregate intangible asset amortization expense in future periods includes: 2005, $32.9 million;
2006, $28.7 million; 2007, $28.0 million; 2008, $27.7 million; 2009, $§26.5 million and thereafter, $91.3 million.
At December 31, 2004, the weighted-average amortization period for definite-lived intangible assets is eight
years.

5. Investing Activities
Debt and equity securities

Our debt and equity securities classified as available-for-sale are reported in our balance sheet at fair value.
Trading securities are carvied at fair value and changes in fair value are recorded in net income as they occur.
Fair value is based on quoted market price, wherve available. When quoted market prices are not available, we
estimate fair value by discounting debt security cash flows to reflect interest rates currently being offered on
similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality (private placement debt securities), by quoted market prices of
comparable instruments (untraded public debt securities) and by independent pricing sources or internally
developed pricing models (equity securities).
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For mortgage-backed and other asset-backed debt securities, we recognize income using a constant effective yield
based on anticipated prepayments and the estimated economic lives of the securities. When actual prepayments
differ significantly from anticipated prepayments, the effective yield is recalculated to reflect actual payments to
date and any resulting adjustment is included in net investment income. For certain asset-backed securities,
changes in estimated yield are recorded on a prospective basis and specific valuation methods are applied to
these securities to determine if there has been an other-than-temporary decline in value.

See Note 8 for information on available-for-sale debt and equity securities pledged as collateral.

Fair Value and Cost of Debt and Equity Securities: As of December 31,
(3 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
: Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost

United States government and agency.........ccoceoveererencersereneen. § 6791 § 6254 § 7570 § 7145
State and political SUbAiVISION .......coccocevviieiiiiieiii e 446.5 413.7 5103 468.4
FOreign SOVEINMENT. .. ..c.covereuerirircnricrearcvecarveencecinencinencsne 314.8 284.0 260.4 239.0
Corporate............... et aa et b ettt ettt s n e b s 7,365.4 7,040.7 6,765.8 6,412.4
MOrtgage-backed ........c.oovivriireerin e 3,2534 3,122.9 3,097.5 2,963.4
Other asset-backed.......cooveevecniciiiini i 1417.1 1,405.0 1,882.0 1,863.6
Debt SECURILIES ...........ceeeeeieieietceree e $ 13,476.3 $ 12,891.7 $ 13,273.0 $ 12,661.3
Amounts applicable to the closed block ........c.occovccecninnnnene, $ 6,949.6 $ 6,515.2 $ 6,906.4 $ 6471.1
Hilb Rogal and Hobbs, or HRH, common stock ..................... $ 1313 $ 421 $ 1162 $ 422
Lombard International Assurance, S.A.......ccccoevvvvveveeevnieennns 43.3 43.3 4]1.1 41.1
Other equity SECUIIES .....ivvvririiereerrerit e secereneree e s 129.7 1139 154.7 139.1
Equity Securities..........c.cocooveoviviriecninenesecen $ 3043 § 1993 §  312.0 S 2224
Amounts applicable to the closed block ..o, $ 90.8 $ 78.3 $ 82.9 $ 75.0

Our holdings in HRH common stock as of December 31, 2004 are pledged for use in November 2005 to settle
certain stock purchase contracts issued by us. Upon settlement of such stock purchase contracts, we will
recognize a gross investment gain of $91.8 million ($32.4 million net of offsets for applicable deferred acquisition
costs and deferred income taxes). See Note 6 for additional information.

In January 1005, we sold our equity investment in Lombard as further described in Note 1.
In 2003, we sold our 3.0% and 3.1% equity interests in two life insurance subsidiaries of General Electric
Company for $72.0 million and realized a gain of $21.6 million ($14.0 million after income taxes). Also in 2003,

we sold our 9.3% equity interest in PXRE Group Ltd., a property catastrophe reinsurer, for $23.1 million and
realized a gain of $13.7 million ($8.9 million after income taxes).
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Unrealized Gains and Losses from ; As of December 31,

General Account Securities: 2004 2003
(8 amounts in millions) Gains Losses Gains Losses
United States government and agency..........ccoceeveverreverieeinnnn. $ 55.4 $ a7 3 44.0 $ (1.5)
State and political SUbdivision ........ccccovviveniennvicinneeccne, 34.4 (1.6) 43.5 (1.6)
FOreign SOVEIMMENL.........ccoeirvinreiieciren e 311 (0.3) 23.2 (1.8)
COPOTALE ..ottt et s e te st sae s ens 364.2 (39.5) 400.4 (47.0)
Mortgage-backed.........ccooorviirniiiiiiinrcc e 137.0 (6.5) 143.4 9.3)
Other asset-backed ..o 324 (20.3) 55.6 (37.2)
Debt securities gains and 108SeS........ooovvernnis! e § 6545 $§ (699 § 7101 $ (9849
Debt securities net 8ains..............ccc..c.ooooveeeeeniieee e, $ 584.6 § 6117
Hilb Rogal and Hobbs, or HRH, common stock ........c............ $ 89.2 $ -- $ 74.0 3 --
Other eqUIty SECUTITIES ...vvvveviireeerireirieaeeresbes e sreeenrere e 19.1 (3.3) 174 (1.%)
Equity securities gains and [0SS€S...........ccovevieierieeerereerennenn, $ 1083 $ 3.3 § 914 $ (1.9
Equity securities net ains ................o.ooocvvrviniccscinn $ 1050 $ 89.6
Aging of Temporarily Impaired As of December 31, 2004
Debt and Equity Securities: Less than 12 months  Greater than 12 months Total
(8 amounts in millions) ‘ Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Debt Securities
United States government and agency....... $§ 86 § (14 3% 49 § (03 $ 95 $ (7D
State and political subdivision................... 41.6 (1.2) 9.0 (0.4) 50.6 (1.6)
Foreign government........c.coeeevrvienienns -- - 10.6 (0.3) 10.6 0.3)
COIPOTALE ..ot 1,212.6 (16.1) 418.8 (23.4) 1,631.4 (39.5)
Mortgage-backed........ocoeveeireiiciininine, 589.4 (4.8) 113.6 (1.7) 703.0 (6.5)
Other asset-backed.........cccooverveneinrnnnnn. 444.6 (5.3) 96.8 (15.0) 541.4 (20.3)
Debt securities.........cococooeevninevenicnnnnns $23738 § (288) § 6537 § @411 $3,0275 § (69.9)
Common StocK ........coccoovvvnnniceiiien, 15.3 24 5.4 0.9 20.7 3.3)
Total temporarily impaired securities... _$ 2,389.1 § (31.2) § 659.1 § (42.0) §$3,0482 § (73.2)
Amounts inside the closed block............. $§ 7020 8§ (167 § 3479 § (@16.2) §$1,0499 §$ (269
Amounts outside the closed block .......... $16871 $ (205 § 3112 § (258) $19983 § (46.3)
Amounts outside the closed block

that are below investment grade .......... $§ 668 § 22) $ 683 § (122) § 1351 § (144
After offsets for deferred acquisition :

cost adjustment and taxes.................... $ (0.8) § (49 $ (5.3)

The securities with gross unrealized losses are considered to be temporarily impaired at December 31, 2004 as
each of these securities has performed, and is expected to continue to perform, in accordance with their original
contractual terms. ‘ ‘

Mortgage loans
We report morigage loans at unpaid principal balances, net of valuation reserves on impaired mortgages. We
consider a mortgage loan to be impaired if we believe it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts

of contractual interest and principal as scheduled in the loan agreement. We do not accrue interest income on
impaired mortgage loans when the likelihood of collection is doubtful.
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For purpose of fair value disclosures (Note 9), we estimate the fair value of mortgage loans by discounting the
present value of scheduled loan pavments. We base the discount rate on the comparable United States Treasury
rates for loan durations plus spreads of 130 to 800 basis points, depending on our internal quality ratings of the
loans. For in-process-of-foreclosure or defaulted loans, we estimate fair value as the lower of the underlying
collateral value or the loan balance.

Mortgage loans are collateralized by the related properties and are generally no greater than 75% of the
properties’ value at the time the loans are originated.

Carrying Values of Investments in Mortgage Loans: As of December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Carrying Carrying

Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Property type
Apartment Buildings .........cccooeovviirreieniisre e $ 81.8 $ 82.8 § 1051 $ 1067
Office bUlldINgS .....cooevvoreeniiieic e, 18.0 18.2 49.0 49.7
Retail STOTES ..ot 92.5 93.6 109.0 110.7
Industrial bUuildings .......cccocovvrivmeinirnieece s 254 25.7 33.7 34.2
OMhET ..o 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
SUBLOLAL ..ot 217.8 2204 296.9 301.4
Less: valuation allowances ..........ccocovevevieneenene e 9.9 - 12.8 -
Mortgage loans..............cccooveiiiiiiincinin e $ 2079 $ 2204 $ 284.1 $ 3014
Amounts applicable to the closed block .......c.ccccoveevennennn § 1819 § 1841 $§ 2285 § 2424

We had no delinquent or in-process-of-foreclosure mortgage loans as of both December 31, 2004 and 2003. The
carrying values of mortgage loans on which the payment terms have been restructured or modified were $12.9
million and $25.8 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. We have provided valuation
allowances for restructured or modified mortgage loans.

Mortgage Loan Valuation Allowance Activity: Year Ended December 31,

($ amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Valuation allowance, beginning of year ..........cccovvviicinivninceieciiccn, $ 12.8 $ 15.5 $ 15.0
Additions charged t0 INCOME .........cooviiriiiiiiiirii e -- 0.8 0.6
Deductions for write-offs and disposals .........ccccocvvivvviincniiiinncce e 2.9 (3.5) (0.1)
Valuation allowance, end of year ................ccccooiriiiiiiniice e, $ 9.9 $ 12.8 $ 15.5

During the three years ended December 31, 2004, the amount of interest that was foregone due to the restructuring
of mortgage loans and to non-income producing loans is not material to our consolidated financial statements.
Refinancing of mortgage loans was not material in any of the three years ended December 31, 2004.

Venture capital partnerships

We invest as a limited partner in venture capital limited partnerships. Generally, these partnerships focus on
early-stage ventures, primarily in the information technology and life science industries and leveraged buyout
funds. We also have direct equity investments in leveraged buyouts and corporate acquisitions.

We record our equity in the earnings of venture capital partnerships in net investment income using the most

recent financial information received from the partnerships and estimating the change in our share of partnership
earnings for the quarter to eliminate any lag in reporting.
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To estimate the net equity in earnings of the venture capital partnerships for each quarter, we developed a
methodology to estimate the change in value of the underlying investee companies in the venture capital
partnerships. For public investee companies, we used quoted market prices at the end of each quarter, applying
liguidity discounts to these prices in instances where such discounts were applied in the underlying partnerships’
financial statements. For private investee companies, we applied a public industry sector index to estimate
changes in valuations each quarter. We apply this methodology consistently each quarter with subsequent
adjustments to reflect market events reported by the partnerships (e.g., new rounds of financing, initial public
offerings and writedowns by the general partners). Our methodology recognizes both downward and upward
adjustments in estimated values based on the indices, but when the general partner reduces the value of a private
investee company, we do not adjust the fair value upward (by applying the public sector index) in excess of the
most recent value reported by the general partner. Finally, we revise the valuations we have assigned to the
investee companies annually to reflect the valuations in the audited financial statements received from the venture
capital partnerships.

Components of Net Investment Income Related to Year Ended December 31,
Venture Capital Partnerships: 2004 2003 2002

(8 amounts in millions) ,

Net realized gains (losses) on partnership cash and stock distributions ............ $ 13.7 $ 17.4 $ 4.7)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on partnership Investments ...........lcoeveeeccrreennen. 14.4 38.2 (47.2)
Partnership operating EXpPenSeS..........coeeerieererrereriereiierierentetcseneorereseesessensonens (2.6) (6.6) 74
Net investment income (I0SS)............coceovviiieeniiiiiiieice e $ 25.5 S 49.0 $  (59.3)
Amounts applicable to the closed BIock .......ccoivreiiiniciicrr e $ 6.2 $ 12.8 $ --
Amounts applicable to the venture capital Segment........cccoveveviereinrneriiennennnns $ 19.3 $ 36.2 3 (593

As indicated above, we record our equity in earnings of venture capital partnerships based on the most recent
financial information and by estimating the earnings for any lag in partnership reporting. As a result, the effect of
our adjusting our estimates to actual results reflected in partnership financial statements was to increase net
investment income as follows:

Adjustment of Venture Capital Investment Income Related to Year Ended December 31,
Receipt of Financial Statements 2004 2003 2002

(8 amounts in millions)

C1OSEA BIOCK ..ottt ettt bt sss s b s ssas s snesbeben $ 1.0 $ -- § --
Venture capital SEZMENT ... c..cicririiririrrrceirinesseeeeresteresesesenesesessesesesnssesseresasesen 6.8 334 12.8
TOAL....c.oiiiii et e bbb $ 7.8 3 33.4 M) 12.8
Investment Activity in Venture Capital Partnerships: Year Ended December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
CONMIDULIONS ..ttt ettt sr ket eb s e bbbt sr et s na s resene e $ 59.2 $ 41.3 $ 43.0
Equity in earnings (losses) of partnerships ........occcveeviivecriniencenneineeneens 25.5 49.0 (59.3)
DUSHEDULIONS ¢.1ovcrvriiiseietseseessenssessessessenssesssesessassessessesssassessessansssssessessnssessessans (64.3) (43.6) 417N
Proceeds from sale of partnership interests ......coovvvveevierecirinieneeiensreceseneeenene -- (26.1) --
Realized loss on sale of partnership INterests ........cccveecreirerriereercenrneinreenens -- (14.3) (5.1
Change in venture capital partnerships..........c.oeeverrieieiecnierereseeesersrness s seseeeens 20.4 6.3 (63.1)
Venture capital partnership investments, beginning of period ..........c.coeeeeee. 234.9 228.6 291.7
Venture capital partnership investments, end of period ......................c....... $ 2553 § 2349 § 2286
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Unfunded Commitments and Investments in Venture Capital Partnerships: : As of December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Unfunded commitments

CLOSEA DIOCK ...ovvoe ettt tet et et e ettt a st s v e et etsarteaeaas e srsaneeetareeresrnenas $ 83.0 $ 483
Venture capital SEGMENT ......cccccirieriiriiiii ittt sbe st st eseerseren 53.5 76.7
Total unfunded COMMUILIMENTS. .........c..oeeeiiiiie it eree et e e ereeeereeesreeseesenbe e ereeseaesbrensseans $  136.5 $ 125.0

Venture capital partnerships

Closed blocK .....coccivivinciiiicc i, e s $ 52.4 $ 38.6
Venture capital SEEMENE ..........oeviiiiiiet ittt sttt et eseesr et ss e etesb e senerasbe s sesenenee 202.9 196.3
Total venture capital PArtRErsHIPS..........cocoocoviiiiiirieiiin et $ 2553 $ 2349

In February 2003, we sold a 50% interest in certain of our venture capital partnerships to an outside party and
transferred the remaining 50% interest to our closed block. The carrying value of the partnerships sold and
transferred totaled $52.2 million after realizing a loss of $5.1 million in 2002 and $14.3 million in 2003 to reflect
the proceeds received.

Affiliate equity securities

Our investments in affiliate equity securities represent investments in operating entities in which we own less than
a majority of the outstanding common stock and where we exercise significant influence over the operating and
financial policies of the companies. We use the equity method of accounting for our investments in common stock
of these affiliates. We evaluate our equity method investments for an other-than-temporary impairment at each
balance sheet date considering quantitative and qualitative factors including quoted market price of underlying
equity securities, the duration the carrying value is in excess of fair value and historical and projected earnings
and cash flow capacity.

Carrying Value and Cost of Affiliate Securities: As of December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2003
Carrying
Value Cost
Aberdeen COMIMON STOCK .......cciiiiiiiiiiiiiti ettt eesveesreeaeeenseesserestnassanreans $ 383 $ 20.0
OBRET oottt ettt et et se ettt e et e et eta b e et stsete et ete et esn et et e ete st etetbereaeas ' 9.2 18.9
Affiliate eqUity SECUITHES. ........o.ooiiiiiiiiiir e e $ 47.5 $ 38.9

The cost basis of Aberdeen common stock is adjuéted to reflect an other-than-temporary impairment of $89.1
million, which we recognized as a realized investment loss in 2003.

Sources of Earnings from Affiliate Securities: For the Years Ended December 31,
(% amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Aberdeen common Stock dividends.........ocovviiiiiriiiiiie e $ 3.0 $ 2.7 $ 3.8
Equity in Aberdeen undistributed income (10SS) ...covoveeceveniivveenenisiire e, (21.9) 2.0) 2.3
HRH common stock dividends........c.cooiiirieiinecrr it -- -- 0.5
Equity in HRH undistributed INCOME ......c..ccooveveriiiiieaieeciiiriees e aeeineseeneeenanis - -- 2.5
ONET 1ttt sttt s b etttk na e bt r s 1.7 2.7 (3.2)
Affiliate equity securities investment income (108S) ..........c.cccccoovininnnennn. $ (172 8§ 2.00 § 5.9
Aberdeen convertible notes and bonds .........c.ccoeeeeiiioieiiiiee e $ 2.0 $ 25 $ 3.8
Aberdeen 5.875% convertible NOtes .........veeiiii i -- 0.1 1.3
Affiliate debt securities investment income .................cccoooveieeeiininenienecnnns $ 2.0 $ 2.6 $ 51
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Aberdeen. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, we owned 38.1 million.shares of Aberdeen common stock,
which represented 16.5% of its outstanding common shares. We acquired these shares between 1996 and 2001 at
a total cost of $109.1 million, which, through November 18, 2004, we accounted for under the equity method of
accounting based on our ability to significantly influence Aberdeen’s operations.

During the second quarter of 2003, we recorded a non-cash realized investment loss of $89.1 million ($55.0
million after income taxes) related to an other-than-temporary impairment of our equity investment in Aberdeen.
In addition, as of December 31, 2003 we owned $27.5 million in Aberdeen convertible subordinated notes which
were repaid in full to us on November 19, 2004. Concurrent with this paydown, we relinquished our contractual
right to one of two Aberdeen board seats held related to our 16.5% equity interest in Aberdeen at which point we
concluded that in our judgment, we no longer had the ability to significantly influence Aberdeen’s operations.
Accordingly, effective November 19, 2004, we changed our method of accounting for our equity holdings in
Aberdeen from the equity method of accounting to the fair value method of accounting under SFAS No. 115,
Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Based on our intent to sell our equity holdings
in Aberdeen in the near-term, we designated our equity holdings as trading securities under the fair value method
of accounting. Under the fair value method, the changes in fair value, based on the underlying value of
Aberdeen’s shares as traded on the London Stock Exchange, as compared to our carrying under the equity method
are presented as an after-tax realized investment gain of $55.1 million in our consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended December 31, 2004. In addition, our fourth quarter and full year 2004 consolidated statement
of operations includes a $14.7 million after-tax, non-cash charge related to the accounting for our proportionate
share of Aberdeen’s December 2004 settlement of alleged misselling activities with the United Kingdom’s
Financial Services Authority. This charge has been accounted for by us under the equity method of accounting as
it pre-dates our November 19, 2004 change in accounting for Aberdeen from the equity method to the fair value
method.

After-tax Effect of Equity Interest in Aberdeen: Year Ended December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) . 2004 2003 2002
Equity in undistributed earnings (losses) of affiliates.........cccovvereirivccennnnnnnn, $ (123 % 0.5 $ 3.7
Unrealized gain on trading SECUTTES.........ovreereereiere e seeereeesiee e 55.1 -- --
Realized investment gain (J0S8) ....ccovevrerereininreneninree et -- (55.0) --
INet INCOME (L0SS) .....c.eoiriiriiiiiri et et et 3 42.8 S (545 § 3.7

The carrying value of our equity investment in Aberdeen is $87.3 million at December 31, 2004 and is presented
as a trading equity security on our consolidated balance sheet.

On January 14, 2005, we closed on the sale to third parties of our equity holdings in Aberdeen for net proceeds of
$70.4 million, resulting in an after-tax realized investment loss of $7.0 million, which will be recognized as a
realized investment loss in our first quarter 2005 consolidated statement of operations. The January 2005 sale of
our equity holdings in Aberdeen completed our disposition of our direct financial interests in Aberdeen. We
continue to participate in sub-advisory arrangements related to several of our asset management product offerings
with Aberdeen, the financial effects of which are not material to our consolidated financial statements.

HRH. HRH is a Virginia-based property and casualty insurance and employee benefit products distributor traded
on the New York Stock Exchange. We owned 6.4% of its common shares, as well as convertible debt securities
which, if converted, would have represented 16.8% of HRH’s common stock outstanding. Prior to November
2002, we had a contractual right to designate two nominees for electic?n to its board of directors.

In November 2002, we converted our HRH note into additional shares of HRH common stock, resulting in total
HRH holdings with a fair value of $167.1 million. On the day following the conversion, we sold shares of HRH
common stock in a secondary public offering for $23.5 million and issued stock purchase contracts for $133.9
million, which ¢ontracts require us to deliver shares of HRH common stock on November 13, 2005 (Note 6).
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As a result of these transactions, we recorded a gross realized investment gain of $15.3 million in 2002 and a
gross deferred investment gain of $91.8 million. Net of offsets for applicable deferred policy acquisition costs
and deferred income taxes, our realized gain was $6.4 million and our deferred gain was $32.4 million. We
calculated our gains using the specific identification of the securities sold. The deferred gain will be realized on
settlement of the stock purchase contracts in the fourth quarter of 2005. In addition, in 2003 we sold shares of
HRH common stock in the open market for $9.4 million and recorded a gross realized investment gain of $6.9
million ($4.5 million after income taxes). As a result of the transactions we completed in November 2002, it was
no longer appropriate to consider HRH as an aftiliate for accounting and reporting purposes.

Policy loans and other invested assets

Policy loans are carried at their unpaid principal balances and are collateralized by the cash values of the
related policies. For purposes of fair value disclosures (Note 9), we estimate the fair value of fixed rate policy
loans by discounting loan interest and loan repayments. We base the discount rate on the 10-year United States
Treasury rate. We assume that loan interest payments are made at the fixed rate less 17.5 basis points and that
loan repayments only occur as a result of anticipated policy lapses. For variable rate policy loans, we consider
the unpaid loan balance as fair value, as interest rates on these loans are reset annually based on market rates.

Other investments primarily include leveraged lease investments and other partnership and joint venture
interests. Leveraged lease investments represent the net amount of the estimated residual value of the lease
assets, rental receivables and unearned and deferred income to be allocated over the lease term. Investment
income is calculated using the interest method and is recognized only in periods in which the net investment is
positive. Other partnership and joint venture interests in which we do not have control or a majority ownership
interest are recorded using the equity method of accounting. These investments include affordable housing,
mezzanine and other partnership interests.

Our derivative instruments primarily include interest rate swap agreements. We report these contracts at fair
values, which are based on current settlement values. These values are determined by brokerage quotes that
utilize pricing models or formulas based on current assumptions for the respective agreements.

Other Invested Assets: As of December 31,

(% amounts in millions) 2004 2003

Transportation and other eqUIPMENt IEASES .....ccoccvivierirririeriiiiee et se e b e $ 67.8 $ 68.7
Separate account QUILY INVESIMENES ...c.cccveverreeereeeriirieereriesresesse e eereseeneessressseanenssnesessens 40.0 49.2
MEZZANINE PAITNETSHIPS ...vevviriieiiiieeiaiaeeetetrereseae s s e ste s estesseseeavessesaastesstbesbenbeassesesasessestessessssns 61.7 50.9
Affordable housing PartnershiPS......coovvscesvrveeieensisirissieess ettt e nrs s 23.4 24.8
Derivative instruments (INOtE 9) ....ccovovrcirrirneriee et seeiree st ere e e 27.4 40.3
Other Affiliate INVESHIIEMES. c...veeueereeeereeriesierierereartetert et st et stete st eseere st aresbesessassasestesesssaresaesans 8.8 15.5
REAL BSTALE....ceeiviitiiiitiiiet e e s 70.1 64.0
Other PartnershiP INTETESES ... coiveiieeieciieeeri st sas et et e et er e b e b esbe st eebe s et aessae e ennrssesaasaaseesen 72.6 88.6
OUREE INVESTRA ASSELS ..ot eee e ev e et eeeeeatseeetesaaaeesseeasserenaeeeesreassansaeeseneenns $ 3718 $ 4020
Amounts applicable to the closed BIOCK ........ccovivieeeerieiriiieei e ae e s $ 60.0 $ 46.7

Net investmentincome and net realized investment gains (losses)

We recognize realized investment gains and losses on asset dispositions on a first-in, first-out basis and when
declines in fair value of debt and equity securities are considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired. We
adjust the cost basis of these written down investments to fair value at the date the determination of impairment is
made and do not change the new cost basis for subsequent recoveries in value. The closed block policyholder
dividend obligation, applicable deferred policy acquisition costs and applicable income taxes, which offset
realized investment gains and losses, are each reported separately as components of net income.
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Sources of Net Investment Income: Year Ended December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
DEDt SECUTIHIES «....cveviviviiceiee ettt ettt et b et b e st s s e aeansbasne $ 7721 $ 7653 $ 73038
EQUILY SECUITIIES ...vucvoireeiieiiii ettt et ettt 4.5 4.6 4.2
Mortgage [0ans ... 225 326 404
Venture capital partnerships 25.5 49.0 (59.3)
POLICY TOANS ..ottt b e ebae e 167.1 171.7 171.8
Other INVESIMEIIES .....veiveveiirieiireeiie et ere et ste ettt ere b sbes e e s atae s peneea e 48.8 35.0 18.9
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ......ccoiiiiiiicii e 4.9 7.0 11.9
Total INVESTMENT IICOMIC. ...eivvierierieriereeeeiveeereeetrevee e ere e ereeteeebestsineeereeateeneseees 1,045.4 1,065.2 918.7
L.8SS) INVESTMENT EXPEIISES ...oveiviivriiereiriasraceraesreiesresiesrereesrassereesssarabesiensareessares 9.8 10.0 9.2
Net investment income, general account investments.............c..cccoceveenne, 1,035.6 1,055.2 909.5
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral (Note 8).....ccooovvvvvvircernrennn, 40.1 52.2 31.0
Net inveStment iNCOME .............cooovvieiriiiieir et e e e $ 1,075.7 $ 1,107.4 $ 9405
Amounts applicable to the closed BIOCK ......c...ooovivveeviimeicnicere e, $ 5600 § 5731 $ 5620

For 2004, 2003 and 2002, net investment income was lower by $9.5 million, $10.4 million and $6.2 million,
respectively, due to non-income producing debt securities. Of these amounts, $5.8 million, $5.5 million and $5.2

million, respectively, related to the closed block.

Sources of Realized Investment Gains (Losses): Year Ended December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) ‘ 2004 2003 2002
Debt SECUTTLY IMPAITIMENLS ....vevvirerireririiersiaeeetssarerssesssnsasesasmnsasnsesessesereseserasasas § (155 § (76.1) § (114.3)
Equity security impairiMents ..........c..cocueverieerieivereeieniesiesece et essesse s (1.5) (4.3) (9.8)
Mortgage loan impairments...........cccc.coecvneee. -- 4.1) (0.6)
Venture capital partnership impairments - (4.6) 5.D
Affiliate equity security impairments........ (12.6) (96.9) --
Other invested asset IMPAITNENTS .......c.o..voeeioeeee et (3.3) (16.5) (22.0)
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral impairments ...........ccooeeenee. {16.6) (8.3) (34.9)
TMPaIrmMEnt 10SSeS ..o (49.5) (210.8) (186.7)
Debt security transaction GAINS.......coevivererereeereierierrennens s sessseeeasssesseeenns 39.0 93.7 943
Debt security transaction LOSSES....cvvvieviiirireeeriernre e e etrecenreasee e srae e srae e seeae (10.6) (29.0) (45.9)
Equity SeCUrity transaction GaiNS ........co...coecerreoerieernsioranoessessisnsssssescss s s 17.7 58.8 24.5
Equity SeCUrity tranSaction [OSSES ......c.o..cvriiviveerririiviceieeseeresieessesaes s ese s (3.1) (9.6) (22.4)
Mortgage loan transaction gains (I0SSES)......covcvviciviirerireece e 0.2 (1.3) 0.2
Venture capital partnership transaction 10SS€S........coceevvvivveneinieni e -- (9.7) “-
Other invested asset transSaction GaIMNS........c.cocveoerrereirernrcierircsesersncasisseesesnsecsas 5.5 5.4 2.1
Net transaction Sains ... 48.7 1123 52.8
Net realized investment LOSSeS ... $ 08 §$ (985 % (1339
Net realized investment gains (I0SSE8)........vveverervircorririii et cetreenncenas $ (08 § (9835 § (1339
Applicable closed block policyholder dividend obligation (reduction).............. 3.7 (5.9) (40.3)
Applicable deferred policy acquisition costs {(benefit) ...........occcereerenricenenns, (0.4) 4.1 (7.2)
Applicable deferred income tax expense (benefit)........ccocorrcriveiinrionninn, 3.1 (35.6) (20.8)
Offsets to realized investment income (10SS€S)........vcvriericcrnicrireeierieecenen, 6.4 (45.6) (68.3)
Net realized investment losses included in net income....................coocooneees, $ (7.2) § (5.9 §  (65.6)

Included in realized impairment losses on debt and equity securities pledged as collateral above, are impairments
relating to our direct investments in the consolidated collateralized obligation trusts of $3.7 million, $5.9 million

and $8.6 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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On May 25, 2004, we sold our Enfield, Connecticut office facility for a loss of $1.0 million ($0.7 million after-
tax). In anticipation of that sale, we had recorded a $6.2 million ($4.0 million after-tax) realized impairment loss
in 2003.

Unrealized investment gains (losses)

We recognize unrealized investment gains and losses on investments in debt and equity securities that we classify
as available-for-sale. We report these gains and losses as a component of other comprehensive income, net of the
closed block policyholder dividend obligation, applicable deferred policy acquisition costs and applicable
deferred income taxes.

Sources of Changes in Net Unrealized Investment Gains (Losses): Year Ended December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
DEDE SECUTTHES ..oviiievtiiecrire ettt ettt eaa et e e st r bbb sabe e eane e $ @71y & (66.1) § 4042
EQUILY SECUIEIES 1vevveviveirieteeeecceeanecanaee e seeanenessee b s sbee s st e ensnesenesreneeseseennens 154 (39.4) 108.5
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral .............coovvviciniininioennnnnan 7.8 116.4 42.6
Other INVESIMENIS ........oueieiricriiiieeciiicircieit et riesrc bt rcaceseatnarineseeceaeanen 0.1 7.0 24
Net unrealized investment gains (108Ses)..............oocccviivrinninenii e $ 38 8 17.9 § 5529
Net unrealized investment gains (I0SSES) .....cocvveriireriieevririeetieeieeser s $ 3.8 § 17.9 $§ 55209
Applicable policyholder dividend obligation .........ccooovnivionenicnneee 3.6 (45.5) 369.4
Applicable deferred policy acqUISItION COSIS ...eovvirirriiiirerreieieie e (7.7 (12.4) 95.9
Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit).........ccoecvveeiinncninciniiiec s (4.0) (9.8) 15.8
Offsets to net unrealized investment gains (10SS€8) ......covvereereermivririnrrennene (8.1) {67.7) 481.1
Net unrealized investment gains included in

other comprehensive income (Note 12) ... $ 4.3 $ 85.6 $ 71.8

Investing cash flows

Investment Purchases, Sales, Repayments and Maturities: Year Ended December 31,

($ amounts in millions) - 2004 2003 2002
Debt SECUTTLY PUICHASES ....oviniiiiriie ettt st $ (4,056.8) 8 (53949) $ (4,7424)
Equity security PpUrChases ...........ooovviiiiiimiinne e s (66.3) (129.9) (59.8)
Venture capital partnership inveStments. .........co..ooeiieivireiveoeve e ercesaenns (59.3) (41.6) (43.0)
Affiliate equity and debt security purchases.............cco.coovvoiversenrerreoseinsonnon. -- -- (28.0)
Other invested as$et PUICHASES 1...vovvveveeiiiiri ettt (26.2) (27.2) (73.0)
Policy 10an advances, NEL............ccvciiiiiciiiriirie ettt e 44.7 (36.4) (LD
Investment PUrChases .............ccoooviiiiiiriiiinii e $ (4,163.9) $ (5,630.0) $ (4,977.3)
DDEDt SECUTTTIES SALES. .. v evvreteeieeeriireereeere et e s eere st erese e st eeresenereebeseneresaeereeeeneane $ 24052 $ 2,1247 $ 1.807.6
Debt securities maturities and repayments ..........coceceeereerierenreiecnennieierennens 1,483.0 1,792.0 1,305.6
EqUIty SECUTILY SAIES ...oiiiviiieiie ittt e e st bt e e e a e e eeas 111.2 2357 1393
Mortgage loan maturities and principal repayments........ocooveverererevencinnrncnnnens 77.2 1803 67.7
Venture capital partnership capital distributions ..........o.ccceeveeinieincneieecens 594 54.2 28.5
ATTiliate SECUITEIES SALES...cu.iiviiiireieeieieiert et 1.0 -- -
Real estate and other invested assets SalES.......ocvvviriierieiriniiieniereieeerenceene 83.7 30.3 . 69.9
Investment sales, repayments and maturities ... $ 4,220.7 $ 4,417.2 $ 3,418.6
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The maturities of general account debt securities and mortgage loans, by contractual sinking fund payment and
maturity, as of December 31, 2004 are summarized in the following table. Actual maturities will differ from
contractual maturities as certain borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or
prepayment penalties, we have the right to put or sell certain obligations back to the issuers and we may refinance
mortgage loans. Refinancing of mortgage loans was not significant during the three years ended December 31,
2004.

Maturities of General Account Debt Securities : Debt Mortgage

and Mortgage Loans at Cost: Securities Loans Total

(3 amounts in mitlions)
DUe in 0N YEAT OF L858 -..eiveveereiiricreicretrier ettt ettt eneees § 1674 $ 25.1 $ 1925
Due after one year through five Years.......c.ccooveioniiineinenne e 2,356.0 89.3 2,445.3
Due after five years through ten years .......cccovevrneiinneeric e 3,642.4 59.8 3,702.2
DUE AftEr TEN YEATS ...ovi vttt cre ettt ettt s et s et st ea e ans 6,725.9 337 6,759.6
TOLAL ... ettt $ 12,8917 $ 2079 $ 13,099.6

6. Financing Activities
Stock purchase contracts and indebtedness

We have recorded our stock purchase contract obligation as a liability on our balance sheet at estimated
settlement amount. This liability includes a premium representing the fair value of a net purchased option
contained in the purchase contract. We amortize the premium over the life of the purchase contract. Contract
adjustment payments and premium amortization on the purchase contracts are recorded in other expenses in our
statement of income.

We have recorded indebtedness at unpaid principal balances of each instrument net of issue discount, In
connection with our senior unsecured bond offering, we entered info an interest rate swap agreement on half of
the offering amount to reduce market risks from changes in interest rates. We have recorded the interest rate
swap at fair value based on the settlement value of the swap. For purposes of fair value disclosures (Note 9), we
have determined the fair value of indebtedness based on contractual cash flows discounted at market rates for
surplus notes and on quoted market prices for bonds and equity units.

Stock Purchase Contracts: As of December 31,
{8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
Stock purchase contracts stated amount ................ e $ 1411 $§ 1319 § 1442 $ 12838
Settlement amount adjustment..........ccccvvveerircrvennenievenenennens 9.2) -- (15.4) --
Stock purchase contracts ... $ 1319 $ 1319 $ 1288 $ 1288 H

In November 2002, we issued 3,622,500 stock purchase contracts in a public offering at $38.10 per contract
{$138.0 million aggregate) and raised net proceeds of $133.9 million. The stock purchase contracts are prepaid
forward contracts issued by us that we will settle in shares of HRH common stock. Under each purchase contract,
we will make quarterly contract adjustment payments at the annual rate of 7.00% of the stated contract amount.
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We are obligated to deliver shares of HRH common stock to holders of the stock purchase contracts in November
2005. The number of HRH common shares that we are obligated to deliver is based on the volume weighted-
average daily trading price of HRH common stock over the 20-trading day period ending on the third trading day
prior to November 13, 2005. The maximum number of HRH common shares that we are obligated to deliver,
subject to anti-dilution adjustments, is 3,622,500, or one share of HRH common stock per purchase contract. The
minimum number is 2,969,363 shares, or 0.8197 share of HRH common stock per purchase contract. We have
pledged 3,622,500 shares of HRH common stock as collateral for our obligations under the purchase contracts
(Note 5). Upon issuance of the stock purchase contracts, we designated the embedded derivative instrument as a
hedge of the forecasted sale of our investment in HRH, whose shares underlie the stock purchase contracts. All
changes in the fair value of the embedded derivative instrument are recorded in other comprehensive income.

Indebtedness: As of December 31,
($ amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value
6.95% SUIPIUS TIOLES ..vvevevinieei ettt $ 30.2 $ 344 $ 1750 $ 1888
7.15% SUIplus NOLES ...veriieiiniircriii e 173.9 174.8 -- --
EQUILY UNIES. ..ottt et 153.7 227.8 153.7 232.1
Senior unsecured BONAS ........cooveiverevirri e 300.0 306.7 300.0 311.2
Revolving credit facility ...oooovevreinineicrcne s 25.0 25.0 -- -
INEEIESt TALE SWAD .vevveeererereriaerire e reeieeerec e ercenbe s resnesieenees 8.0 8.0 10.3 10.3
Total indebtedness ...............coovveivriiiennnicer e $ 6908 $ 7767 $ 6390 $ 7424

Our 6.95% and 7.15% surplus notes are an obligation of Phoenix Life and are due December 1, 2006 and
December 15, 2034, respectively. The carrying value of the 2034 notes is net of $1.1 million of unamortized
original issue discount. Interest payments are at an annual rate of 6.95% and 7.15%, respectively, require the
prior approval of the Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York and may be made only out of surplus
funds which the Superintendent determines to be available for such payments under New York Insurance Law.
The 6.95% surplus notes have no early redemption provisions. The 7.15% surplus notes may be redeemed at the
option of Phoenix Life at any time at the “make-whole” redemption price set forth in the offering circular. New
York Insurance Law provides that the notes are not part of the legal liabilities of Phoenix Life. On December 15,
2004, Phoenix Life repurchased $144.8 million of the previously issued $175.0 million outstanding principal on
its 6.95% surplus notes and recognized a non-recurring after-tax charge of $6.4 million for costs incurred,
including the tender premium. Concurrent with the closing of the tender, Phoenix Life issued $175.0 million,
7.15% surplus notes.

In December 2002, we issued 6,147,500 of 7.25% equity units in a public offering at $25 per unit for gross
proceeds of $153.7 million (net proceeds of $149.1 million). Each equity unit is composed of an unsecured,
subordinated note and a purchase contract (equity forward on our common stock collateralized by the note). The
notes bear interest at an annual rate of 6.6% and $25 principal amount per note is initially due in February 2008.
On or after November 2005 the notes will be remarketed as senior unsecured obligations and the interest rate will
be reset at that time. The holders of the purchase contracts will be paid a contract adjustment payment at a rate of
0.65% per year and have agreed to purchase a minimum 2.8343 shares (17,423,859 shares aggregate) and a
maximum of 3.4578 shares (21,256,826 shares aggregate) of our common stock, depending on its quoted market
price, in February 2006. The present value of the future contract adjustment payments of $2.8 million was
recorded as a charge to paid-in capital at inception.

Our senior unsecured bonds were issued in December 2001 for gross proceeds of $300.0 million (net proceeds of
$290.6 million) and mature in January 2032. We pay interest at an annual rate of 7.45%. We may redeem any or
all of the bonds from January 2007 at a redemption price equal to 100% of principal plus accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date. We also have the right to redeem the bonds in whole in certain circumstances if
we are unable to deduct interest paid on the bonds.
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On November 22, 2004, we entered into a new $150.0 million three-year, unsecured senior revolving credit
facility to replace our prior $150.0 million credit facility that was to expire on December 20, 2004. The prior
facility consisted of two tranches: a $112.5 million, 364-day revolving credit facility and a $37.5 million three-
year revolving credit facility. Potential borrowers on the new credit line are The Phoenix Companies, Inc.,
Phoenix Investment Partners and Phoenix Life. We unconditionally guarantee any loans under this new facility to
Phoenix Life and Phoenix Investment Partners. Base rate loans will bear interest at the greater of Wachovia
Bank, National Association’s prime commercial rate or the federal funds rate plus 0.50%. Eurodollar rate loans
will bear interest at LIBOR plus an applicable percentage based on our Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s ratings.
The $25 million drawn by Phoenix Investment Partners on the prior facility was refinanced using this new facility
at the Eurodollar rate.

The new credit facility contains covenants that require us at all times to maintain consolidated stockholders’
equity, in accordance with GAAP, excluding the accounting effects of FIN 46(R), of $1,648.4 million, plus 50%
of positive quarterly net income and 100% of equity issuances and a maximum consolidated debt-to-capital ratio
of 30% and limits consolidated indebtedness, subject to certain exceptions, to $750.0 million. In addition,
Phoenix Life must maintain a minimum RBC ratio of 250% and a minimum A.M. Best financial strength rating of
“A-". The new facility no longer has a fixed charge coverage covenant. Borrowings under the facility are not
conditioned on the absence of a material adverse change.

Future minimum annual principal payments on indebtedness as of December 31, 2004 are: 2006, $30.2 million;
2007, $25.0 million; 2008, $153.7 million; 2032, $300.0 million and 2034, $175.0 million.

Interest Expense on Indebtedness, including Year Ended December 31,
Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs: 2004 2003 2002

(8 amounts in millions)

Stock purchase contract adjustment expense..............cccoccecreneneienennireens $ 7.8 $ 8.2 $ 1.0
SUIPIUS NOTES ..vveveriiriririeieieeeeete ettt et s b sttt b bbb es $ 12.8 $ 12.2 3 122
EQUILY UIIES ..ottt sttt et sttt ebe e sb sttt 12.1 12.1 0.3
Senior unsecured DONAS .........cccevveirieiei ettt 14.8 14.9 15.5
Bank credit facility and other ..o, 1.1 0.4 3.4
Interest expense on indebtedness .............c.cocooceveinvrinnnn $ 40.8 ) 39.6 3 31.4

Stock purchase contract adjustment payments are included in other operating expenses.
Common stock and stock repurchase program

We have authorization for the issuance of 1,000,000,000 shares of our common stock. In connection with our
demutualization and initial public offering, we issued 106,376,417 common shares (56,180,517 shares to our
policyholders in exchange for their interests in the mutual company and 50,195,900 shares in sales to the public).
As of December 31, 2004, we had 94,877,572 shares outstanding, net of 11,517,387 common shares of treasury
stock. We also had 28,975,127 common shares reserved for issuance at that date under the purchase contracts
included with our equity units (21,256,826 shares), our stock option plans (6,281,458 shares) and our restricted
stock units (1,436,843 shares), or RSUs.

We have authorization from our board of directors to repurchase an additional 670,000 shares of our common
stock. As of December 31, 2004, we had repurchased 12,330,000 shares of our common stock at an average price
of $15.87 per share, including zero, zero and 7,781,500 shares in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During
2004, we contributed 412,239 treasury shares to fund the employer match for our saving and investment benefit
plans. These shares had a cost basis of $6.5 million (weighted-average cost of $15.87 per share) and an aggregate
market value of $4.9 million.
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State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company, or State Farm, currently owns of record more than five
percent of our outstanding common stock. In 2004 and 2003, our subsidiaries incurred $32.4 million and $25.8
million, respectively, as compensation costs for the sale of our insurance and annuity products by entities that
were either subsidiaries of State Farm or owned by State Farm employees.

7. Separate Account Assets and Liabilities

Separate account products are those for which a separate investment and liability account is maintained on behalf
of the policyholder. Investment objectives for these separate accounts vary by fund account type, as outlined in
the applicable fund prospectus or separate account plan of operations. Our separate account products include
variable annuities and variable life insurance contracts.

Separate account assets and liabilities related to policyholder funds are carried at market value. Deposits, net
investment income and realized investment gains and losses for these accounts are excluded from revenues, and
the related liability increases are excluded from benefits and expenses. Fees assessed to the contractholders for
management services are included in revenues when services are rendered.

Separate Account Assets and Liabilities: As of December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Life and annuity segment SEParate aCCOUNLS........c.corirerirreirenieenorirterenerinresreesre st aeseseseesreseesons § 6,807.2 § 5,9103
Corporate and other segment SEPArate ACCOUNLS ........ccoueririiinieieieieeerenieeeeieeer et se s se e 143.1 172.9
Total separate account assets and liabilities.................c.ccooeiiiiin e, $ 6,950.3 $ 6,083.2

8. Investments Pledged as Collateral and Non-Recourse Collateralized Obligations

We are involved with various entities in the normal course of business that may be deemed to be variable interest
entities and, as a result, we may be deemed to hold interests in those entities. In particular, we serve as the
imvestment advisor to eight collateralized obligation trusts that were organized to take advantage of bond market
arbitrage opportunities, including the three in the table below. These eight collateralized obligation trusts are
investment trusts with aggregate assets of $3.0 billion that are primarily invested in a variety of fixed income
securities acquired from third parties. These collateralized obligation trusts, in turn, issued tranched collateralized
obligations and residual equity securities to third parties, as well as to our principal life insurance subsidiary’s
general account. Our asset management affiliates earned advisory fees of $8.0 million, $10.4 million and $7.9
millich during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These advisory fees are either
recorded as investment product fees for unconsolidated trusts or reflected as investment income on debt and
equity securities pledged as collateral, net of interest expense on collateralized obligations and applicable minority
interest related to third-party equity investments for consolidated trusts on our consolidated statement of income.
The collateralized obligation trusts reside in bankruptcy remote SPEs for which we provide neither recourse nor
guarantees. Accordingly, our financial exposure to these collateralized obligation trusts stems from our life
insurance subsidiary’s general account direct investment in certain debt or equity securities issued by these
collateralized obligation trusts. Our maximum exposure to loss with respect to our life insurance subsidiary’s
direct investment in the eight collateralized obligation trusts is $79.9 million at December 31, 2004 ($30.9 million
of which relates to trusts that are consolidated). Of that exposure, $54.7 million ($20.0 million of which relates to
trust that are consolidated) relates to investment grade debt securities and loss of management fees.

We consolidated three collateralized obligation trusts as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. As of December
31, 2004, our direct investment in the three consolidated collateralized obligation trusts is $30.9 million ($20.0
million of which is an investment grade debt security). We recognized investment income on debt and equity
securities pledged as collateral, net of interest expense on collateralized obligations and applicable minority
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interest, of $3.4 million, $3.6 million and $2.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, related to these three consolidated obligation trusts.

Five variable interest entities not consolidated by us under FIN 46(R) represent collateralized obligation trusts
with approximately $1.6 billion of investment assets pledged as collateral. Our general account’s direct
investment in these unconsolidated variable interest entities is $49.0 million ($34.7 million of which are
investment grade debt securities at December 31, 2004). We recognized investment advisory fee revenues related
to the unconsolidated variable interest entities of $4.6 million, $6.8 million and $5.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Consolidated Variable Interest Entities: As of December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) : 2004 2003
Assets Pledged as Collateral, at Fair Value }

PhoenixX CDO ...ttt ettt es e st nase s esnans $ 94.4 $ 1488
Phoenix CDO ..ottt ettt e er e et 294.5 332.6
Phoenix-Mistic 2002-1 CDO ..ottt a s ers e ST 967.0 963.4
Total ... et te et et e et e et e se e b et e b e R s s se et e s e e seebens $ 1,3559 $ 1,444.8
Non-recourse Collateralized Obligations

Phoenix CDO I (March 2011 maturity) . .cocooeeeiieeere e earae e $§ 1273 § 1832
Phoenix CDO I (December 2012 mandatorily redeemable)......cocovviinnvnineinieereceeeen 329.4 375.6
Phoenix-Mistic 2002-1 CDO (September 2014 MAtUIITY )1.cieccivrrieiorenceieeiressassesssseseacessssesenss 898.5 913.2
TOAL ...ttt es sttt ettt st na et et ern e 5 1355.2 $ 14720

Assets pledged as collateral consist of available-for-sale debt and equity securities at fair value of $1,278.8
million and $1,350.0 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In addition, cash and accrued
investment income of $77.1 million and $94.8 million are included in these amounts at December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Non-recourse collateralized obligations are comprised of callable collateralized obligations of $1,253.4 million
and $1,344.2 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and non-recourse derivative cash flow hedge
liabilities of $101.8 million (notional amount of $1,118.2 million with maturities of 2005-2013) and $127.7
million (notional amount of $1,211.3 million with maturities of 2005-2013) at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Minority interest liabilities related to third-party equity investments in the consolidated variable
interest entities is $37.7 million and $22.3 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Collateralized obligations for which Phoenix Investment Partners is the sponsor and actively manages the assets,
where we are deemed to be a primary beneficiary as a result of our variable interests, and where there is not a
significant amount of outside third-party equity investment in the trust, are consolidated in our financial
statements. Qur financial exposure is limited to our share of equity and bond investments in these vehicles held in
our general account as available-for-sale debt and equity securities, as applicable, and there are no financial
guarantees from, or recourse, 10 us, for these collateralized obligation trusts.

Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral are recorded at fair value with any applicable unrealized
investment gains or losses reflected as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of
applicable minority interest. We recognize realized investment losses on debt and equity securities in these
collateralized obligations when declines in fair values, in our judgment, are considered to be other-than-
temporarily impaired. Non-recourse obligations issued by the consolidated collateralized obligation trusts at
Jace value and are recorded at unpaid principal balance. Non-recourse derivative cash flow hedges are carried
on our consolidated balance sheet at fair value with an offsetting amount recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income.
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Effect of Consolidation of Collateralized Obligation Trusts: As of and for the

(8 amounts in millions) Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Decrease in net income or increase in NEt 108 ....ocovvvvccimiciiiieiienan § (129 8 24 § (263
Reduction to stockholders” eqUity ......covvvevevviiiirei e $§ (675 $ (773 § (2049

The above non-cash charges to earnings and stockholders’ equity primarily relate to realized and unrealized
investment losses within the collateralized obligation trusts. Upon maturity or other liquidation of the trusts, the
fair value of the investments pledged as collateral will be used to settle the non-recourse collateralized obligations
with any shortfall in such investments inuring to the third-party note and equity holders. To the extent there
remains a recorded liability for non-recourse obligations after all the assets pledged as collateral are exhausted,
such amount will be reduced to zero with a corresponding benefit to earnings. Accordingly, these investment
losses and any future investment losses under this method of consolidation will ultimately reverse upon the
maturity or other liquidation of the non-recourse collateralized obligations. These non-recourse obligations
mature between 2011 through 2014 but contain call provisions. The call provisions may be triggered at the
discretion of the equity investors based on market conditions and are subject to certain contractual limitations.

GAAP requires us to consolidate all the assets and liabilities of these collateralized obligation trusts which results
in the recognition of realized and unrealized losses even though we have no legal obligation to fund such losses in
the settlement of the collateralized obligations. The FASB continues to evaluate, through the issuance of FASB
staff positions, the various technical implementation issues related to consolidation accounting. We will continue
to assess the impact of any new implementation guidance issued by the FASB as well as evolving interpretations
among accounting professionals. Additional guidance and interpretations may affect our application of
consolidation accounting in future periods.

Fair Value and Cost of Debt and Equity Securities As of December 31,

Pledged as Collateral: 2004 2003

(8 amounts in millions) Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
Debt securities pledged as collateral............ccoooeveiivcreinnrnenns $ 1,276.9 $ 1,159.9 $ 1,348.8 $ 1,2386
Equity securities pledged as collateral..........ccccoovvieinecennnan, 1.9 04 1.2 0.7
Total debt and equity securities pledged as collateral........ $ 1,278.8 $ 1,160.3 $ 1,350.0 $ 1,239.3
Gross and Net Unrealized Gains and Losses from As of December 31,

Debt and Equity Securities Pledged as Collateral: 2004 2003

(8 amounts in millions) Gains Losses Gains Losses
Debt securities pledged as collateral............ccococvreveierccinnnnn $ 1313 $ (143) § 1385 $ (283)
Equity securities pledged as collateral..........c.cccevvcrrcnienenne. 1.6 0.1} 0.7 {0.2)
TOtAL.....c.ooviieiitiee e e e $ 1329 $ (144 § 1392 $ (285
Net unrealized ains ............cccoccvvriiirriieiinneine s $ 1185 $  110.7
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Aging of Temporarily Impaired As of December 31, 2004

Debt and Equity Securities Pledged Less than 12 months  Greater than 12 months Total
as Collateral: Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(8 amounts in millions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
COTPOTALE ...t $ 162 § 02 & 252 ¢ 40y § 414 § (4.2)
Mortgage-backed.......coovvcvenriconinnininn -- -- 239 (8.3) 23.9 (8.3)
Other asset-backed.......cccooovvonnicnnicnen -- -- 21.0 (1.8) 21.0 (1.8)
Debt securities...........c.ccoovvvriniiiinerienencns $ 162 § 02 $ 701 $ (141) $ 863 $ (14.3)
Equity securities pledged as collateral .... -- -- -~ 0.1) -~ 0.1y
Total temporarily impaired securities

pledged as collateral .............................. $ 162 § 02) $ 701 § (142) § 863 S§ (144

Gross unrealized losses related to debt securities pledged as collateral whose fair value is less than the security’s
amortized cost totals $14.3 million at December 31, 2004. Gross unrealized losses on debt securities with a fair
value less than 80% of the security’s amortized cost totaled $7.8 million at December 31, 2004. The majority of
these debt securities are investment grade issues that continue to perform to their original contractual terms at
December 31, 2004,

Maturity of Debt Securities Pledged as Collateral: 2004

(8 amounts in millions) Cost

DUe IN ONIE YEAT OF 1ESS ..o et 3 20.7
Due after one year through fIVe YEarS.......ccciviriiriiiii ittt et 2943
Due after five years through 111 YEAIS .....c.ocvoiirriiiireie ettt et st et b 689.8
DUE GFEET tEN YEATS ..ve ittt ettt sttt et st b e e st ete ettt sbesae e es Fesn et e s rene s b e en et n et eees 155.1
Total debt SECUTIties...............coooviiiiiiiecceec e s $ 1,159.9

The amount of CDO-related derivative cash flow hedge ineffectiveness recognized through earnings for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 is ($0.7) million and $0.0 million, respectively. See Note 5 to our
consolidated financial statements for information on realized investment losses related to these CDOs.

9, Derivative Instruments and Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Derivative instruments

We maintain an overall interest rate risk-management strategy that primarily incorporates the use of interest rate
swaps as hedges of our exposure to changes in interest rates. Our exposure to changes in interest rates primarily
results from our commitments to fund interest-sensitive insurance liabilities, as well as from our significant
holdings of fixed rate financial instruments.

We recognize all derivative instruments on the balance sheet at fair value. Generally, we designate each
derivative according to the associated exposure as either a fair value or cash flow hedge at its inception as we do
not enter into derivative contracts for trading or speculative purposes.

Except for the foreign currency swaps discussed below, all fair value hedges are accounted for with changes in
the fair value of related interest rate swaps rvecorded on the balance sheet with an offsetting amount recorded to
the hedged item’s balance sheet carrying amount. Changes in the fair value of foreign currency swaps used as
hedges of the fair value of foreign currency denominated assets are reported in current period earnings with the
change in value of the hedged asset attributable to the hedged risk.
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Cash flow hedges are generally accounted for with changes in the fair value of velated interest rate swaps
recorded on the balance sheet with an offsetting amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income.
The effective portion of changes in fair values of derivatives hedging the variability of cash flows related to
Jorecasted transactions are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings
in the periods during which earnings are affected by the variability of the cash flows of the hedged item.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments and ineffective portions
of hedges are recognized in net investment income in the period incurred.

Derivative Instruments Held in As of December 31,

General Account: 2004 2003

(8 amounts in millions) Notional
Amount  Maturity Asset Liability Asset Liability

Interest rate swaps

Fair value hedges......c..ccovrieiicncnnnne, $ 150 2032 $ 80 % - $§ 103 § --
Cash flow hedges.......c.cocovvnicninne, 30 2007 2.8 - 4.5 -
Non-hedging derivative instruments....... 360 2007 16.5 14.0 25.1 21.7
Other............... ettt 50 2004-2008 0.1 -~ 0.4 -
Total general account
derivative instrument positions ............. $ 59 § 274 § 140 S8 403 § 217

Fair value hedges. We currently hold interest rate swaps that convert a portion of our fixed rate debt portfolio to
variable rate debt. We account these hedges for under the shortcut method and, therefore, record no hedge
ineffectiveness in current period earnings associated with these interest rate swaps.

Cash flow hedges. We currently hold interest rate swaps that effectively convert variable rate bond cash flows to
fixed cash flows in order to better match the cash flows of associated liabilities. We account for these hedges
under the shortcut method and, therefore, recorded no hedge ineffectiveness in earnings for 2004, 2003 and 2002.
We do not expect to reclassify any amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings
over the next twelve months with respect to these hedges.

Total Return Swaps. The Company uses total return swaps to hedge against market risks from declining equity
prices and changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Under total return swaps, the Company agrees with
another party (referred to as the counterparty) to exchange the appreciation or depreciation of an equity holding in
return for a floating rate payment. The appreciation or depreciation of the equity holding includes both changes
from the underlying price of the security in its home currency and changes in the foreign currency exchange rate
between its home currency and United States dollar. Counterparties to such financial instruments expose the
Company to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance, but we do not expect any counterparties to fail
to meet their obligations given their high credit ratings. The credit exposure of total return swaps is the fair value
(market value) of contracts with a positive fair value (market value) at the reporting date. The Company had one
total return swap with an expiration of April 1, 2005 at the end of the statement period.

Non-hedging derivative instruments. We also hold interest rate swaps that were initially entered into as hedges of
an anticipated purchase of assets associated with an acquisition of a block of insurance liabilities. Subsequently,
we took offsetting swap positions to lock in a stream of income to supplement the income on the assets purchased.

We are exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to these derivative instruments.
We do not expect that counterparties will fail to meet their financial obligation as we only enter into derivative
contracts with a number of highly rated financial institutions. The credit exposure of these instruments is the
positive fair value at the reporting date, or $27.4 million as of December 31, 2004. We consider the likelihood of
any material loss on these instruments to be remote. ‘
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Fair value of financial instruments

Carrying Amounts and Estimated Fair Values

of Financial Instruments:
(3 amounts in millions)

Cash and cash equivalents.............cccovveereeennne,
Available-for-sale debt securities (Note 5)
Available-for-sale equity securities (Note 5)
Trading equity SECUTIHES ........cccooeeecrevirreiaeenne
Mortgage 10ans (NOte 5).....cccvvrrerrernrenrerennniens
Debt and equity securities pledged as collateral (Note 8)
Derivative financial instruments..........c.cocee.e..
Policy loans (NOt€ 5) ..vvvvveeeeceiiece e
Financial assets ..............ccocooveiiinicniinnienne

Investment contracts (Note 3)....c.ccooevvveereninnnne
Non-recourse collateralized obligations (Note &)

Stock purchase contracts (Note 6)

........................... 3043
....................... 87.3
....................... 207.9

Indebtedness (NOtE 6)......ceveeeeiniiieieiieeriene
Derivative financial instruments........................
Financial liabilities....................ccooevevinnnn.o

...................... § 4350

...................... 27.4
...................... 2,196.7

.................... 1,355.2
...................... 131.9
...................... 690.8
...................... 14.0

As of December 31,
2004 2003

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value
$ 435.0 $ 4479 $ 4479
13,4763 13,476.3 13,273.0 13,273.0
304.3 312.0 312.0

87.3 -- -
220.4 284.1 3014
........ 1,278.8 1,278.8 1,350.0 1,350.0
274 40.3 40.3
2,318.0 2,241.4 2,370.0
$ 18,013.7 $ 18,147.5 $ 17,948.7 $ 18,094.6
$ 3,4924 $ 3,510.8 $ 3,642.7 $ 3,680.8
1,355.9 1,472.0 1,444 8
131.9 128.8 128.8
776.7 639.0 742 4
14.0 21.7 21.7
$ 5,684.3 $ 5,789.3 $ 5,904.2 $ 6,018.5

10. Income Taxes

We recognize income tax expense or benefit based upon amounts reported in the financial statements and the
provisions of currently enacted tax laws. We allocate income taxes to income, other comprehensive income and

additional paid-in capital, as applicable.

We recognize current income tax assets and liabilities for estimated income taxes refundable or payable based on
the current year’s income tax returns. We recognize deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the estimated
Sfuture income tax effects of temporary differences and carvyforwards. Temporary differences are the differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases, as well as the
timing of income or expense recognized for financial reporting and tax purposes of items not related to assets or
liabilities. If necessary, we establish valuation allowances to reduce the carrying amount of deferred income tax
assets to amounts that are movre likely than not to be realized. We periodically review the adequacy of these

valuation allowances and record any reduction in allowances through earnings.

Allocation of Income Taxes: Year Ended December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) ‘ 2004 2003 2002

Income taxes (benefit) applicable to
CUITENT .ottt ettt ettt sttt eteete s et s b st et ea s esees bt st es s esessen st e csseseens $  (152) 3 54 $ (42
DEferTed ..ot e bbb 55.7 (12.9) (44.6)
CONtiNUING OPETAtIONS. .....c.ectererterererierirterteteeeeertereeeesenesestesessesseeeseseeressesneseneas 40.5 (18.3) (58.8)
Equity in earnings of affiliates.........ccovveiriiiiiiiccre e (6.8) 0.2) 2.6
Discontinued OPETATIONS ......c.vvvivierereriereiirieee s esiereesteestesrereesaesesroresbesna s e ssns (1.2) (1.2) (0.6)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes...........c..c....... ettt e -- -- (11.4)

Net income (J0SS) .......coriiiiirii e 325 19.7) (68.2)

Other comprehensive Income (10S8) ..o, (20.5) 4.2 14.2

Comprehensive income (F0SS).........cccovvnuiiieciiieiiniiee e $ 12.0 $ (239 § (54.0)
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Effective Income Tax Rate: Year Ended December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Income tax expense (benefit) at statutory rate of 35%...c..ceecoverericcinieierivennnnnn. $ 48.0 $ 7. $ (2
Tax-advantaged INVEStMENt MNCOME .....co.vvruveeiiieiieiiieie et (10.8) (6.8) (12.6)
Intangible asset amortization and IMPaIrMENts........ccocevvrrererieierviere e, - - 19.5
Realized losses on available-for-sale securities pledged as collateral ............... 4.5 0.9 9.2
STALE INCOIME TAXES o.veveeerrrieriierieerireesieeereasrestre st aess e sceteetbeseeeabesenenaeaneeasesstans 0.1 (4.3) (1.2)
TaX INLETESE TECOVEIIES .cuvverveeiriertriiie et ettt er ettt eneereneen e ne e e -- (1.1) --
OLhET, DEL...o.eiiiiiiieiii ettt e et bbbttt (1.3) 0.1 (2.9
Income tax expense (benefit) applicable to continuing operations.............. $ 40.5 $ (183 § (58.8)
Effective INCOME fAX TALES ...coereirierieenrininiee et seere st et seste e encnnane 29.5% (90.6)% (28.9)%
Deferred Income Tax Balances Attributable to Temporary Differences: As of December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Deferred income tax assets

Future policyholder BENeTits ..........oooi ittt et $ 2141 § 2152
Unearned premiums / deferred reVEIUES ... ...ttt 118.1 125.1
EMPLOYEE DENETILS ..ovetieieeieiiceetee sttt sttt st b e en et sb et sseasns 98.3 91.1
INtANGIDIE ASSEIS. .. euroeieiierrt ettt sttt sttt ausa st antas s ss et ansaseasatanen 19.2 18.0
TIVESTIMIENTS ...ttt s ettt e s b e s a e st et a s besabe e e 76.8 114.1
Net operating 1088 CarTyOVer DENETILS ......veviriiiiiiiirii e 59.5 54.3
Foreign tax credits Carryover BENETILS .........ccoceveiiiiieieei ettt eee s 0.1 0.1
Low income housing tax credits.......... ettt ettt b e h et be et e ekt eb et sttt en e 12.3 12.3
L0 1111 OO OO USSR 11.6 9.1
Valuation allOWEANEE .......cccoiuiiiiiiiii i e e e {(7.9) (4.6)
Gross deferred INCOME tAX ASSEES ...t et 602.1 634.7

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred policy aCqUISITION COSES...cuvvviitiiiiiitiiriere ettt st se e es e e e sbenaa e sene e e e (339.0) (316.1)
IEIVESTITIEIIES 1. ettt bbb b ettt et e e b et st se bkt en et et en et n e enn (137.0) (160.5)
Investment management CONIACTS........cereviiiueerieriiiercee e etetreceete e beseaaseeesraeseas sreeseaasaesraesaesanas (86.6) (94.2)
OET ettt ettt ettt et ettt h e b e bbbt e st (8.8) (5.2)
Gross deferred income tax Habilities..............ccocooooiiiiiiciin e (571.4) (576.0)
Deferred iNCOME taX @SSEL........c.cociiiiiiiiiiiit et et $ 30.7 3 58.7

We have elected to file a consolidated federal income tax return for 2004 and prior years. Within the consolidated
tax return, we are required by regulations of the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, to segregate the entities into
two groups: life insurance companies and non-life insurance companies. We are limited as to the amount of any
operating losses from one group that can be offset against taxable income of the other group. These limitations
affect the amount of any operating loss carryforwards that we have now or in the future.

As of December 31, 2004, we had deferred tax assets of $51.6 million related to net operating losses for federal
income tax purposes and $7.9 million for state income tax purposes. The related federal net operating losses are
scheduled to expire as follows: $61.2 million in 2017, $12.5 million in 2018, $1.1 million in 2019, $1.8 million in
2022, $33.51n 2023 and $44.8 in 2024. The state net operating losses relate to the non-life subgroup and are
scheduled to expire as follows: $29.8 million in 2012 and 2013 and $72.0 million in 2019 through 2023. Due to
the inability to combine the life insurance and non-life insurance subgroups for state income tax purposes, we
established a $7.9 million and a $4.6 million valuation allowance at the end of 2004 and 2003, respectively,
relative to the state net operating loss carryforwards.

As of December 31, 2004, our deferred income tax asset of $0.1 million related to foreign tax credit carryovers
was expected to expire between the 2006 and 2008 tax years.

F-43




As of December 31, 2004, our deferred income tax assets of $12.3 million related to low income housing tax
credits are expected to expire as follows: $4.1 million in 2022, $4.1 million in 2023 and $4.1 million in 2024,

We have determined, based on our earnings and future income, that it is more likely than not that the deferred
income tax assets after valuation allowance already recorded as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 will be realized.
In determining the adequacy of future income, we have considered projected future income, reversal of existing

temporary differences and available tax planning strategies that could be implemented, if necessary.

Our federal income tax returns are routinely audited by the IRS, and estimated provisions are routinely provided
in the financial statements in anticipation of the results of these audits. While it is often difficult to predict the
outcome of these audits, including the timing of any resolution of any particular tax matter, we believe that our

reserves, as reported on our consolidated balance sheet, are adequate for all open tax years. Unfavorable

resolution of any particular issue could result in additional use of cash to pay liabilities that would be deemed
owed to the IRS. Additionally, any unfavorable or favorable resolution of any particular issue could result in an
increase or decrease, respectively, to our effective income tax rate to the extent that our estimates differ from the
ultimate resolution. Tax-advantaged investment income for 2004 includes a $5.7 million benefit related to the

favorable resolution of certain tax matters with the IRS.

11. Employee Benefit Plans and Employment Agreements

Pension and other postemployment benefits

We provide our employees with postemployment benefits that include retirement benefits, through pension and
savings plans, and other benefits, including health care and life insurance. The components of pension and

postretirement benefit costs follow:

Components of Pension and Other Postemployment Benefit Cost:

($ amounts in millions)
Cost components

Recurring pension benefit €XPense.......cocvrvurreieiviireienieecere s e
Recurring other postretirement benefit €Xpense .........ococvvvvereeeneenennees
Savings plans EXPEenSE ......ccciririniieiriri et e
Total continuing operations reCurring eXPenSe.........coveveerreerrernererercenrnercecnns

Total non-recurring and discontinued operations expense (benefit)

Total pension and other postemployment benefit cost ..............................

Principal Rates and Assumptions:

Assumptions Used to Determine Benefit Obligations

Projected benefit obligation diSCOUNE TAtE ......ccvecveriiririeriierceniei e
Future compensation INCIrease rate..........oveirreereeniereevecnrerennereecerenssnerensens
Pension plan assets long-term rate of TeUIM ......vecevveerninerncrinnceeres
Deferred investment gain/loss amortization cOrridor .........ocevvveieervereerennenns
Future health care cost increase rate, age 64 and younger............cccoceeuveennne
Future health care cost increase rate, age 65 and older............cccvevincencnne,

Assumptions Used to Determine Benefit Expense

Projected benefit obligation discount rate .........cccvvreccvninieniene e,
Future COMPENSation INCIEASE FALE. ... ireeeerrrirereasrerteseesrasinseseenseesenessrnseseesnens
Pension plan assets long-term rate of TeUIM . ...oveeiiiiveivie v
Deferred investment gain/loss amortization corridor .........ov.ecvervrecvienenne.
Future health care cost increase rate, age 64 and younger...........cvvevveeeenne
Future health care cost increase rate, age 65 and older...........coccecvrenrinncen,

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
16.0 22.8 $ 15.2
3.8 3.6 42
5.1 5.4 4.9
249 31.8 24.3
(8.4) 1.3 0.6
16.5 33.1 $ 24.9
Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
5.75% 6.0% 6.5%
4.0% 3.5% 3.5%
8.5% 8.5% 8.5%
5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
8.5% 9.25% 10.0%
10.5% 11.25% 12.0%
6.0% 6.5% 7.0%
3.5% 3.5% 4.0%
8.5% 8.5% 9.0%
5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
9.25% 10.0% 5.5%
11.25% 12.0% 5.5%




Our investment policy and strategy employs a total return approach combining equities, fixed income, real estate
and other assets to maximize the long-term return of the plan assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk tolerance is
determined based on consideration of plan liabilities and plan-funded status. The investment portfolio contains a
diversified blend of equity, fixed income, real estate and alternative investments. The equity investments are
diversified across domestic and foreign markets, across market capitalizations (large, mid and small cap), as well
as growth, value and blend. Derivative instruments are not typically used for implementing asset allocation

" decisions and are never used in conjunction with leverage. Investment performance is measured and monitored
on an on-going basis through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, annual liability measurement, and periodic
presentations by asset managers included in the plan.

We use a building block approach in estimating the long-term rate of return for plan assets. Historical returns are
determined by asset class. The historical relationships between equities, fixed income and other asset classes are
reviewed. We apply long-term asset return estimates to the plan’s target asset allocation to determine the
weighted-average long-term return. Our long-term asset allocation was determined through modeling long-term
returns and asset return volatilities. The allocation reflects proper diversification and was reviewed against other
corporate pension plans for reasonability and appropriateness.

Employee Pension Plan Asset Allocation: As of December 31,
2004 2003
Asset Category
EQUITY SECUTTLIES ....eouiioiiierriate st et eetesebesete et beseceacesacambesensemcambesae e et eme e neenneestnesenenbseieenreoteanne 67% 63%
DIEDE SECULTLIES -.cvvvveeiieriiiieet et tee e siee e sttt st s se bbbt sb e b er e sae b sb e s e eb e bt sbeebeenreabasb e b sbsaneneans 24% 28%
REAT BSTALE. ...ttt ettt e e bbbt b et b et eat bt s bbbt bt 6% 6%
NI -ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e e e bb et ee et ab e £ e eseabe e b hen e et ab e R e etaebe s R e te et se b e as et e aeeae s as 3% 3%
TORAL......ooei e ettt ettt bttt r et b e bR e b et b ke bt 100% 100%

We recognize pension and other postretirement benefit costs and obligations over the employees’ expected service
periods by discounting an estimate of aggregate benefits. We estimate aggregate benefits by using assumptions
Jfor employee turnover, future compensation increases, rates of return on pension plan assets and future health
care costs. We recognize an expense for differences between actual experience and estimates over the average
future service period of participants. We recognize an expense for our contributions to employee and agent
savings plans at the time employees and agents make contributions to the plans. We also recognize the costs and
obligations of severance, disability and related life insurance and health care benefits to be paid to inactive or
Sformer employees after employment but before retirement.

We use a December 31 measurement date for our pension and postemployment benefits.

In 2004 and 2003, as a result of the sale of our retail affiliated distribution operations and staff reduction
initiatives, there was a curtailment credit for the employee pension plan and postretirement plan in the aggregate
amount of $8.4 million and $0.8 million, respectively.

Pension plans

We have two defined benefit pension plans covering our employees. The employee pension plan, covering
substantially all of our employees, provides benefits up to the amount allowed under the Internal Revenue Code.

The supplemental plan provides benefits in excess of the primary plan. Retirement benefits under both plans are a
function of years of service and compensation.
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Components of Pension Benefit Expense: Year Ended December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
SEIVICE COSL..vuvruririreniririetnrinier st rter et asnese e st sbsee st se e nen e eb s ercan s bncnee N 10.4 3 12.4 $ 14.0
INTETESE COSE.oinniitieteiire ettt ettt sttt e et e et esneebn e e 32.8 33.0 345
Plan assets eXpected FEMUIMI ........ccccivvevirereereae e eteesssisseses e cersneseses s esesesnsesns (30.6) (27.4) (34.5)
Net gain aMOITIZATION .....voviiiiveierere ettt sttt csie oo seraet e ereee et seeneneas 49 6.2 1.7
Prior Service Cost aMOTTIZALION ....c..e.veeiereririeneieere et 0.9 1.1 2.0
Net transition asset AMOTTIZALION ..c..e.viverreererierienerieriesierereiesersieseeseesrescereieenens (2.4 (2.5) (2.5)
Recurring pension benefif CoSt ........vviiiiiiniiiiniie et 16.0 22.8 15.2
Special retirement Programs COSt.......orireriiereienee st -- 33 0.6
CUTTAIIMEIIT ....coi e e sttt 1.3 -- --
Non-recurring and discontinued Operations COSt .......ceccorerrairecinneercrineenenienes 1.3 3.3 0.6

Pension benefit COSt ...ttt e $ 17.3 3 26.1 $ 15.8

The employee pension plan is funded with assets held in a trust. The assets within the plan include corporate and
government debt securities, equity securities, real estate and venture capital partnerships. The supplemental plan
is unfunded. Upon a change in control (as defined in the plan) of The Phoenix Companies, Inc., we are required
to make an irrevocable contribution to a trust to fund the benefits payable under the supplemental plan.

Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations: Employee Plan Supplemental Plan
(3 amounts in millions) Year Ended December 31,

2004 ‘ 2003 2004 2003
Plans’ Assets
Plan assets’ actual Gain ...........coocvevrveivereieeanerseeeeeereeee e $ 443 $ 66.4 $ -- $ -
Employer contributions ..........ccocccverneiiiin e 8.9 - 5.7 5.1
Participant benefit payments........cccoceovvvvnvorncaecnereirena, (25.7) (25.2) (5.7) (5.
Change in plan @SSetS.......occvririrircreniie e enens 27.5 41.2 -- --
Plan assets, beginning of year.........cocecvvvevenivinneeie s 368.9 327.7 -- -
Plans’ assets, end of year..............ccocccveienicininnnn e $ 3964 $ 3689 $ -- $ --
Plans’ Projected Benefit Obligation
Service and interest COSt acCIUal.......ccovereveiviieciire e $ (B61) $ (371 % (7.0)  § (8.9)
Actuarial gain (108S)....ccccoviiiiriiiieieieiie ettt s (35.5) (39.9) (11.2) 7.6
Curtailment gain (10SS) «..ccoieiviereniirere e 7.5 1.3 2.7 2.2)
Participant benefit payments..........ccoceeevrvneirinnierereeenreeeennene 25.7 25.2 57 5.1
Change in projected benefit obligation.............ccccovvviriienen. (38.4) (50.5) (9.8) 21
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year..............ccceen. (460.6) (410.1) (124.8) (126.9)
Projected benefit obligation, end of year............................. $ (499.0) § (460.6) § (1346) § (124.8)
Accumulated benefit obligation.....................oooin $ 4745 $ 434.6 $ 1266 $ 1129

In addition to the liability for the excess of accrued pension cost of each plan over the amount contributed to the
plan, we recognize a liability for any excess of the accumulated benefit obligation of each plan over the fair value
of plan assets. The offsef to this additional liability is first recognized as an intangible asset, which is limited to
unrecognized prior service, including any unrecognized net transition obligation. Any additional offsets are then
recognized as an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income.
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Funded Status of Pension Plans: Employee Plan Supplemental Plan

(8 amounts in millions) Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2004 2003

Excess of accrued pension benefit cost over amount

contributed t0 Plan .......c.ccvcviiiriererieee e e $ @700 $ (383) $ (86.0) $ (82.0)
Excess of accumulated benefit obligation over plan assets .... (41.2) (27.4) (40.6) (30.9)
Accrued benefit obligation in other liabilities ........... ervrerenens (78.2) (65.7) (126.6) (112.9)
Intangible St ... 8.0 11.0 -- -
Minimum pension liability adjustment in accumulated

other comprehensive INCOME ......ccvevvvrriercrieriineeceeneeeeeene 33.2 16.4 40.6 30.9
Funding status recognized in balance sheet..........c.coceevvenneens (37.0) (38.3) (86.0) (82.0)
Net unamortized [0SS ... (57.6) (44.8) (52.6) (47.6)
Unamortized prior service (cost) credit .......ccvecereninvnrneennns (8.0) (11.0) 4.0 4.8
Net unamortized transition asset........c.cooveereeverrrenereeeerenienns -- 24 -- --
Funding status unrecognized in balance sheet...........c.cc.cooe.... (65.6) (53.4) (48.6) (42.8)
Plan assets less than projected benefit obligations,

€A OF YA ....c.oooiiiiiiiiit i $§ (1026 $ (91.7) § (1346) § (1248

We expect to contribute $43.3 million to the employee pension plan through 2009, including $6.5 million during
2005. For the estimated 2004 contribution, quarterly payments of $2.5 million each were made to the pension
plan in April, July and October 2004. In September 2004, we made a payment of $1.6 million, related to the 2003
minimum contribution.

Other postemployment benefits

Components of Postretirement Benefit Cost: Year Ended December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
SEIVICE COSEuuvareiariiareiiieretesi st et eties e eee st er et et et s e st b b esasnebese s st eb st sssssssess st abebeseans $ 1.8 $ 1.7 $ 2.0
TNEETESE COSE.cniiiiinieeti ittt sttt e a e be e s saeeeeenes 43 4.8 4.9
Net gain amOTtiZAtION ......ocvviereiiirecicrientiie et eis e sere e st eeeeneenns (0.3) 0.1) 2.5
Prior service COSt AMOTTHZALION ..o..ecvierreerireiririieet et s (2.0) (2.8) (0.2)
Recurring other postretirement benefit COSt......vvvviiiiieriiiirireier e 3.8 3.6 4.2
CUTERIIMENES ©v. vttt seeset et es e sass s ss bbbt s s nsnsesseseseis 9.7 (2.0) --
Other postretirement benefit cost (benefit) ... $ 59 3 1.6 $ 4.2
Changes in Plan Projected Benefit Obligation: Year Ended December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Service and INtErest COSt ACCTUEA ......voveririrriirieeiieriitieiesictis ettt e e e re e s ebe s se st sbenrans $ 6.1) § (6.5)
ACTUATIAL ZAIN (LOSS).cuiiverietiiiecteiiee ettt et e b se et s ettt s b e e st st et esnetessebeeseessateseseesesasnnes 4.4 (5.9
CUTTATITIEIIES ..o.titiitietiie et c ettt ettt sttt st e rae s bt bt st e ae st e s bt ek e e meenasae e ssensa e eabesteseranen 3.6 0.5
Participant benefit PAYMENTS.........ccovvevriieniiiirini et eee sttt st ere st s stas e sesreseenesbesnorens 6.5 7.4
Change in projected benefit Obligation .........ccccoiiiiiriiiicii et e 8.4 4.5)
Projected benefit obligations, beginning 0f YEAr ........coevvivrererrneircirieirre i ccree e (78.7) (74.2)

Projected benefit obligations, end of year .............ccccoooeinivniiniinn e $ ((703) §$ (787
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Funded Status of Other Postretirement Benefit Plans: As of December 31,

($ amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Accrued benefit obligation inciuded in other Habilities......cococoveevevierii i $  (88.0) § (100.5)
NEet UNAMOTHIZEA ZAIN.....vciieiiiiietice ettt ettt sh e e ba s saeteesne e ene e 10.3 6.3
Unamortized prior SErVICE CTEAIES. ....ceiitririrtereeet ettt et e s sbe e sesanene e 7.4 15.5
Funding status unrecognized in balance Sheet...........coooveiiiiiivniiei e 17.7 21.8
Plan assets less than projected benefit obligations, end of year.......................ccee.. U $ (763 §$ (787

The health care cost trend rate has a significant effect on the amounts reported. For example, increasing the
assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage point in each year would increase the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation by $1.0 million and the annual service and interest cost by $0.1 million.
Decreasing the assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage point in each year would decrease the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by $1.0 million and the annual service and interest cost by $0.1
million.

Savings plans

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, we incurred costs of $5.1 million, $5.4 million and $4.9 million, respectively, for
contributions to our employer-sponsored savings plans.

During 2004 and 2003, we contributed 412,239 and 399,353 treasury shares, respectively, to fund the employer
match for our saving and investment benefit plans. These shares had a cost basis of $6.5 million and $6.3 million
(weighted-average cost of $15.87 per share for both periods) and an aggregate market value of $4.9 million and
$3.8 million.

In connection with the sale of our retail affiliated broker-dealer operations, we have begun the process of
terminating our employer-sponsored savings plan for affected employees. The effect of this termination is not
expected to be material to our financial statements.

Stock options

We have stock option plans under which we grant options for a fixed number of common shares to employees and
non-employee directors. Our options have an exercise price equal to the market value of the shares at the date of
grant. A new standard was issued which amends an existing standard on accounting for stock-based
compensation. Our adoption of the new standard results in expense recognition for stock options awarded after
December 31, 2002 over the service period of the options equal to their fair value at issuance. We calculate the
Jair value of options using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. During 2002, a previous standard allowed
Jor us to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method which did not result in expense
recognition because at issuance date, the market price of our common stock was equal to the exercise price of the
options.

During the three years ended December 31, 2004, we granted options to employees and non-employee directors.
Each option, once vested, entitles the holder to purchase one share of our common stock. The employees’ options
vest over a three-year period while the directors’ options vested immediately. No options were exercisable until
June 25, 2003, the second anniversary of our initial public offering. All options terminate ten years from the date
of grant. The Stock Incentive Plan authorizes the issuance to officers and employees of up to that number of
options equal to 5% of the total number of common stock shares outstanding immediately after the initial public
offering in June 2001, or approximately 5,250,000 shares, plus an additional 1%, or approximately 1,050,000
shares, for Phoenix Investment Partners officers and employees, less the number of share options issuable under
the Directors’ Stock Plan. The Directors’ Stock Plan authorizes the issuance to non-employee directors of up to
that number of options equal to 0.5%, or approximately 525,000 shares, of the total number of common stock
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shares outstanding immediately after the initial public offering in June 2001, plus 500,000 shares, bringing the
total to approximately 1,025,000 shares.

Stock Option Activity: Year Ended December 31,
(8 amounts in millions, except per share data) 2004 2003
Weighted- Weighted-
Number of Average Number of Average
Common Exercise Common Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of year .............ccocccoevivnvennrinnn, 4,627,856 § 1545 4,409,558 $ 16.20
GIanted .........oouvireeriiiirceereirereere ettt 566,070 11.24 572,504 9.00
EXETCISEd ...ovvevierietieeeieieiiie ittt s (18,542) 9.07 - 15.63
Canceled ......ooviieeii e (845,401) 14.68 (354,206) 14.13
Outstanding, end of year............ccocevvvecriininennne. R 4,329,983 $ 15.05 4,627,856 $ 1545

At December 31,2004, 2,793,742 of outstanding stock options were exercisable, with a weighted-average
exercise price of $15.89. The exercise prices of exercisable stock options ranged from $7.93 to $16.20 per share.
At December 31, 2004 the weighted-average remaining contractual life for all options outstanding was 7.8 years.

Key Assumptions Used in Option Valuation: Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003
Weighted-average expected VOIAtIHLY ......cccooi it ' 30.8% 43.7%
Weighted-average ISt TALE ........ovvcueeieeiriieeetcrte sttt ee et ee sttt se e ssss et bss st sesesssases 4.2% 3.5%
Weighted-average common share dividend yield........c.coovvinniicinicicicnnceeene 1.5% 1.8%

Restricted stock units and restricted stock

We record deferred compensation for the fair value of restricted stock unit awards and present deferred
compensation as a separate, offSetting component of stockholders’ equity. We recognized compensation expense
over the vesting period of the RSUs.

Generally, shares undertying those awards which are or become vested will be issued on the later of June 26, 2006
or each employee’s and each director’s respective termination or retirement.

RSU Activity at Weighted-Average Issue Price: Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003
Issue Issue
RSUs Price RSUs Price
Outstanding, beginning of year .............c.cococvoivrennreenene. 1,436,843 $ 1047 573,477 $§ 1395
Awarded to officers and directors............cooceevviveveeciiiiieeeces 213,045 11.59 701,598 7.95
Issued to officers in satisfaction of
deferred compensation labilities ..........ccoccooervniiniriiinncecne, -- -- 161,768 9.07
Qutstanding, end of year.............c.ceceiiiiiiiiciiie e, 1,649,888 $ 10.61 1,436,843 $ 10.47

In addition to the RSU activity above, 1,818,560 RSUs are subject to future issuance based on the achievement of
performance criteria established under certain of our incentive plans. '

Management restructuring expense and employment agreements
We have entered into agreements with certain key executives of the Company that will, in certain circumstances,

provide separation benefits upon the termination of the executive’s employment by the company for reasons other
than death, disability, cause or retirement, or by the executive for “good reason,” as defined in the agreements.
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For most of these executives, the agreements provide this protection only if the termination occurs following {or
is effectively connected with) the occurrence of a change of control, as defined in the agreements. Upon a change
in control, as defined, we are required to make an irrevocable contribution to a trust as soon as possible following
such change in control in an amount equal to pay such benefits payable under such agreements.

We recorded a non-recurring expense of $33.7 million ($21.9 million after income taxes), $11.4 million ($7.2
million after income taxes) and $43.4 million ($28.5 million after income taxes) in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, primarily in connection with organizational and employment-related costs. The 2004 charges relate
mainly to the sale of our retail affiliated broker-dealer operations and the outsourcing of our information
technology infrastructure services. Reserves for management restructuring agreements are not material to our
consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

12. Other Comprehensive Income

We record unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, minimum pension liability adjustments in
excess of unrecognized prior service cost, foreign currency translation gains and losses and effective portions of
the gains or losses on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges in accumulated other comprehensive
income. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recorded in other comprehensive
income until the related securities are sold, reclassified or deemed to be impaired. Minimum pension liability
adjustments in excess of unrecognized prior service cost are adjusted or eliminated in subsequent periods to the
extent that plan assets exceed accumulated benefits. Foreign currency transiation gains and losses are recorded
in accumulated other comprehensive income. We also consider unrealized foreign currency losses when
evaluating investments for impairment. The effective portions of the gains or losses on derivative instruments
designated as cash flow hedges are reclassified into earnings in the same period in which the hedged transaction
affects earnings. If it is probable that a hedged forecasted transaction will no longer occur, the effective portions
of the gains or losses on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are reclassified into earnings
immediately.

Sources of Other Comprehensive Income: Year Ended December 31,
(8 amounts. in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments... $§ 392 § 267 § 131.8 § 1596 § 6034 §$§ 1046
Net realized investment losses on
available-for-sale securities

included in net iNCOME........eovvvecvrreerrenne (43.0) (22.4) (113.9) (74.0) (50.5) (32.8)
Net unrealized investment gains.................. (3.8) 43 17.9 85.6 552.9 71.8
Minimum pension liability adjustment........ (26.5) (17.2) 1.7 1.1 (26.8) (17.4)
Net unrealized foreign currency

translation adjustment ...........cccoceneirnneane, (4.6) (0.6) 11.9 8.2 7.1 1.2
Net unrealized derivative instruments

and other gains (10S8€S).......cocvvverirrrvrcnen. 4.6 7.8 41.6 40.3 (128.0) (129.9)
Other comprehensive income (loss) ............ (30.3)  § {5.7) 731§ 1352 4052 5 (743)
Applicable policyholder

dividend obligation...........ccceveevevirirnrnenne 3.6 (45.5) 369.4
Applicable deferred policy acquisition

€OSt BMOTHZALON.....ccoviiiie e (1.7 (12.4) 95.9
Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit). (20.5) (4.2) 14.2
Offsets to other comprehensive income....... (24.6) (62.1) 479.5
Other comprehensive income (loss).......... $ (5.7) $ 1352 3 (74.3)
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Components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income:
(8 amounts in millions)

Unrealized gains on INVESHMENTS ...c..covveruirinieeiieiearceeneene e
Minimum pension liability adjustment (Note 11)......coccceiniiininnenen.
Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustment ............ccccoocoeenen
Unrealized losses on derivative instruments and other..........cc.coovevenee.
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME .........c.ooivveeeeesrirnrirarreene
Applicable policyholder dividend obligation ..........cccoceveninnrininnene.
Applicable deferred policy acquisition CoStS.......ccooveereerceiiiviereeeee,
Applicable deferred INCOME tAXES ...covevveeverieirierenieiie e,
Offsets to accumulated other comprehensive income..........o.ooceeeeeneee,
Accumulated other comprehensive income..............c.ocooevveirnnn,

13. Earnings Per Share

As of December 31,

2004 2003
Gross Net Gross Net
$ 8081 § 2116 § 8120 § 2073
(73.8) (47.9) (47.3) (30.7)
5.7 3.5 10.3 4.1
(125.0) (109.2) (129.7) (117.0)
6150 § 580 6453 § 637
436.3 4327
86.4 94.1
34.3 54.8
557.0 581.6
$ 580 $ 637

We calculate earnings per share, EPS, on two bases: basic and diluted. We calculate basic EPS by dividing
earnings available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. We calculate diluted EPS similarly except that, if applicable, we adjust earnings to reflect
earnings had the dilutive potential common shares been issued during the period, and we increase the weighted-

average number of shares to include the issuance of the dilutive potential common shares.

Shares Used in Calculation of Earnings Per Share:
(shares in thousands)

Weighted-average common shares outstanding.................ccceeviincne.

Weighted-average effect of dilutive potential common shares:

Restricted stock units awarded and outstanding .......cc.ocoeevveievcnninniornceens
Employee stock options assumed 1SSUEd .......ccooeeoirririeiiiiiicneenes e

Equity units assumed 1SSUEd ........coovvriririiriinnienee e

Potential COmMmMON SHATES .....uviviieiiiieie ettt eeabaae e

Less: Potential common shares excluded from calculation

dUe t0 OPETratiNg 10SSES....viiiiriiiiiieire e
Dilutive potential commOon Shares .........oocvvvcvevieiiiiiii e

Weighted-average common shares outstanding, including

dilutive potential common Shares..............c....occoeeieiieiiniiiriineee e

Employee stock options and equity units excluded from
calculation due to anti-dilutive exercise prices
(i.e., in excess of average common share market prices)

SEOCK OPLIONS 1..vveivie ettt ettt s raesr e e e eeeasesssenrens
EQUILY NS ..o creeti ettt sttt et

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
94,676 94,218 97,854
1,510 1,236 143
101 12 --
4,488 1,096 --
6,099 2,344 143
-- 2,344 143
6,099 -- --
100,775 94,218 97,854
3,632 4,187 4,410
-- -- 17,424

There are no adjustments to net income (loss) for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002 for purposes of calculating

earnings per share.

14. Discontinued Operations

During the first quarter of 2004, we sold 100% of the common stock held by us in Phoenix National Trust

Company. The financial statement effect of this transaction is not material to our consolidated financial
statements. The net after-tax income (loss) included in discontinued operations for the years ended 2004, 2003

and 2002 was $0.1 million, $(2.1) million and $(1.3) million, respectively.
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During 1999, we discontinued our reinsurance operations as further described in Note 17.

We have excluded assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations from the assets and liabilities of continuing
operations and on a net basis included them in other assets on our consolidated balance sheet.

15. Phoenix Life Statutory Financial Information and Regulatory Matters

Our insurance subsidiaries are required to file, with state regulatory authorities, annual statements prepared on an
accounting basis prescribed or permitted by such authorities.

As of January 1, 2001 the New York State Insurance Department adopted the NAIC, Codification of Statutory
Accounting Principles guidance, with the exception for accounting for deferred income taxes. Codification
guidance replaced the accounting practices and procedures manual as the NAIC’s primary guidance on statutory
accounting; it also provides guidance for areas where statutory accounting has been silent and changed current
statutory accounting in other areas. The effect of adoption decreased the statutory surplus of our insurance
subsidiaries by $66.4 million, primarily as a result of non-admitting certain assets and recording increased
investment reserves. As of December 31, 2002, the New York State Insurance Department adopted the NAIC
codification guidance for accounting for deferred income taxes.

As of December 31, 2004, statutory surplus differs from equity reported in accordance with GAAP for life
insurance companies primarily as follows:

policy acquisition costs are expensed when incurred;

investment reserves are based on different assumptions;

surplus notes are included in surplus rather than debt;

postretirement benefit expense allocated to Phoenix Life relate only to vested participants and expense is
based on different assumptions and reflect a different method of adoption;

life insurance reserves are based on different assumptions; and

e net deferred income tax assets in excess of 10% of previously filed statutory capital and surplus are not

recorded.

Statutory Financial Data for Phoenix Life: As of or for the Year Ended December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Statutory capital, surplus, and SUrplus NOtES........covvvercererirnrnirerrrceineenenes $ 8146 $§ 7629 $ 861.0
Asset valuation reserve, of AVR ..o 213.6 198.6 147.0
Statutory capital, surplus, surplus notes and AVR .......cccc.oceennionininnnnes $ 1,028.2 $ 9615 $ 1,008.0
Statutory gain from operations ...............cooccecnnirnnienininne e $ 35.1 3 69.7 $ 44.5
Statutory Net INCOME ..........cooooviiiiiieceeeeeee e bbb $ 47.1 $ 21.5 $ 7.5

New York Insurance Law requires that New York life insurers report their RBC. RBC is based on a formula
calculated by applying factors to various assets, premium and statutory reserve items. The formula takes into
account the risk characteristics of the insurer, including asset risk, insurance risk, interest rate risk and business
risk. New York Insurance Law gives the New York Superintendent of Insurance explicit regulatory authority to
require various actions by, or take various actions against, insurers whose total adjusted capital does not exceed
certain RBC levels. Each of the United States insurance subsidiaries of Phoenix Life is also subject to these same
RBC requirements. Phoenix Life and each of its insurance subsidiaries’ RBC was in excess of 300% of Company
Action Level (the level where a life insurance enterprise must submit a comprehensive plan to state insurance
regulators) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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Under New York Insurance Law, Phoenix Life can pay stockholder dividends to us in any calendar year without
prior approval from the New York State Insurance Department in the amount of the lesser of 10% of Phoenix
Life’s surplus to policyholders as of the immediately preceding calendar year or Phoenix Life’s statutory net gain
from operations for the immediately preceding calendar year, not including realized capital gains. Phoenix Life
paid dividends of $69.7 million in 2004 and is able to pay $35.1 million in dividends in 2005 without prior
approval from the New York State Insurance Department. Any additional dividend payments, in excess of $35.1
million in 2005, would be subject to the discretion of the New York Superintendent of Insurance.

16. Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment, consisting primarily of office buildings occupied by us, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. We depreciate buildings on the straight-line method over 10 to 45
vears and equipment primarily on a modified accelerated method over 3 to 10 years. We amortize leasehold
improvements over the terms of the related leases.

Cost and Carrying Value of Premises and Equipment: As of December 31,
(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003

Carrying Carrying

Cost Value Cost Value

REAL ESLALE ... vttt $ 1160 $ 45.7 $ 1488 $ 63.5
EQUIPIMENT....oviieiiiiiie et e 178.0 26.0 188.3 31.8
Leasehold improvements.......ocevvvveevvrvcvneeccrieesieeeseeeeennane 8.5 33 10.5 6.8
Premises and equipment cost and carrying value................... 302.5 $ 75.0 347.6 $ 1021
Accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ccooevrenee. (227.5) (245.5)
Premises and equipment ..., $ 75.0 $ 1021

Depreciation and amortization expense for premises and equipment for 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $13.5
million, $19.3 million and $21.4 million, respectively.

On May 25, 2004, we sold our Enfield, Connecticut office facility for a loss of $1.0 million ($0.7 million after-
tax). In anticipation of that sale, we had recorded a $6.2 million ($4.0 million after-tax) realized impairment loss
in 2003.

Rental expenses. for operating leases for continuing operations, principally with respect to buildings, amounted to
$10.5 million, $11.4 million and $12.1 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Future minimum rental
payments under non-cancelable operating leases for continuing operations were $31.0 million as of December 31,
2004, payable as follows: 2005, $8.8 million; 2006, $7.8 million; 2007, $6.5 million; 2008, $4.2 million; 2009,
$1.9 million and thereafter, $1.8 million.

17. Contingent Liabilities

In addition to the matters discussed below, we are, in the normal cause of business, involved in litigation both as a
defendant and as a plaintiff. The litigation naming us as a defendant ordinarily involves our activities as an
insurer, employer, investment advisor, investor or taxpayer. In addition, various regulatory bodies regularly make
inquiries of us and, from time to time, conduct examinations or investigations concerning our compliance with,
among other things, insurance laws, securities laws and laws governing the activities of broker-dealers. While it
is not feasible to predict or determine the ultimate outcome of all pending investigations and legal proceedings or
to provide reasonable ranges of potential losses, we believe that their outcomes are not likely, either individually
or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition. However, given the
large or indeterminate amounts sought in certain of these matters and litigation’s inherent unpredictability, it is
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possible that an adverse outcome in certain matters could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations or cash flows.

Recently, there has been a significant increase in federal and state regulatory activity relating to financial services
companies, particularly mutual fund companies. These regulatory inquiries have focused on a number of mutual
fund issues, including late-trading and valuation issues. Our mutual funds, which we offer directly to retail
investors and qualified retirement plans as well as through the separate accounts associated with certain of our
variable life insurance policies and variable annuity products, entitle us to impose restrictions on frequent
exchanges and trades in the mutual funds and on transfers between sub-accounts and variable products. We, like
many others in the financial services industry, have received requests for information from the SEC and state
authorities, in each case requesting documentation and other information regarding various mutual fund
regulatory issues. We continue to cooperate fully with these regulatory agencies in responding to these requests.
In addition, representatives from the SEC’s Office of Compliance, Inspections and Examinations are conducting
compliance examinations of our mutual fund, variable annuity and mutual fund transfer agent operations.

A number of companies have announced settlements of enforcement actions with various regulatory agencies,
primarily the SEC and the New York Attorney General’s Office. While no such action has been initiated against
us, it is possible that one or more regulatory agencies may pursue an action against us in the future.

These types of lawsuits and regulatory actions may be difficult to assess or quantify, may seek recovery of
indeterminate amounts, including punitive and treble damages, and the nature and magnitude of their outcomes
may remain unknown for substantial periods of time. While it is not feasible to predict or determine the ultimate
outcome of all pending investigations and legal proceedings or to provide reasonable ranges of potential losses,
we believe that their outcomes are not likely, either individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial condition.

Discontinued Reinsurance Operations

In 1999, we discontinued our reinsurance operations through a combination of sale, reinsurance and placement of
certain retained group accident and health reinsurance business into run-off. We adopted a formal plan to stop
writing new contracts covering these risks and to end the existing contracts as soon as those contracts would
permit. However, we remain liable for claims under those contracts. We also purchased aggregate excess-of-loss
reinsurance to further protect us from unfavorable results from this discontinued business. On February 7, 2005
we notified the aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurer that we were exercising our option to commute this contract.
The commutation will be effective during the second quarter of 2005. The effect of the commutation will not be
material to our consolidated financial statements.

We have established reserves for claims and related expenses that we expect to pay on our discontinued group
accident and health reinsurance business. These reserves are based on currently known facts and estimates about,
among other things, the amount of insured losses and expenses that we believe we will pay, the period over which
they will be paid, the amount of reinsurance we believe we will collect under our aggregate excess-of-loss
reinsurance, the amounts we believe we will collect from our retrocessionaires and the likely legal and
administrative costs of winding down the business.

‘Our total reserves, including coverage available from our aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance and reserves for
amounts recoverable from retrocessionaires, were $110.0 million as of December 31, 2004. Our total amounts
recoverable from retrocessionaires related to paid losses were $60.0 million as of December 31, 2004. We did not
recognize any gains or losses related to our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance business during
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

We expect our reserves and reinsurance to cover the run-off of the business; however, the nature of the underlying
risks is such that the claims may take years to reach the reinsurers involved. Therefore, we expect to pay claims

out of existing estimated reserves for up to ten years as the level of business diminishes. In addition, unfavorable
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or favorable claims and/or reinsurance recovery experience is reasonably possible and could result in our
recognition of additional losses or gains, respectively, in future years. Given the uncertainty associated with
litigation and other dispute resolution proceedings, as described below, as well as the lack of sufficient claims
information (which has resulted from disputes among ceding reinsurers leading to delayed processing, reporting
blockages and standstill agreements among reinsurers), the range of any reasonably possible additional future
losses or gains is not currently estimable. However, it is our opinion, based on current information and after
consideration of the provisions made in these financial statements, as described above, that any future adverse or
favorable development of recorded reserves and/or reinsurance recoverables will not have a material effect on our
financial position.

Additional information with respect to our group accident and health reinsurance run-off exposures follows:
Unicover Managers, Inc.

A significant portion of the claims arising from our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance business
arises from the activities of Unicover Managers, Inc., or Unicover. Unicover organized and managed a group, or
pool, of insurance companies, or Unicover pool, and two other facilities, or Unicover facilities, which reinsured
the life and health insurance components of workers’ compensation insurance policies issued by various property
and casualty insurance companies. We were a member of the Unicover pool but terminated our participation in
the pool effective March 1, 1999.

We are involved in disputes relating to the activities of Unicover. Under Unicover’s underwriting authority, the
Unicover pool and Unicover facilities wrote a dollar amount of reinsurance coverage that was many times greater
than originally estimated. As a member of the Unicover pool, we were involved in several proceedings in which
the pool members asserted that they could deny coverage to certain insurers that claimed that they purchased
reinsurance coverage from the pool. Those matters were settled. Also, the pool members were involved in
proceedings arising from business ceded to the London market. Those proceedings were settled.

Further, we were, along with Sun Life Assurance of Canada, or Sun Life, and Cologne Life Reinsurance
Company, or Cologne Life, a retrocessionaire (meaning a reinsurer of other reinsurers) of the Unicover pool and
two other Unicover facilities, providing the pool and facility members with reinsurance of the risks that the pool
and facility members had assumed. In September 1999, we joined an arbitration proceeding that Sun Life had
begun against the members of the Unicover pool and the Unicover facilities. In this arbitration, we and Sun Life
sought to cancel our retrocession agreements on the grounds that material misstatements and nondisclosures were
made to us about, among other things, the amount of risks we would be reinsuring. The arbitration proceeded
only with respect to the Unicover pool because we, Sun Life and Cologne Life reached settlement with the two
Unicover facilities in the first quarter of 2000. In October 2002, the arbitration panel issued its decision that the
agreement by which we provided retrocessional reinsurance to the pool was valid only to the extent of business
bound or renewed to that agreement on or before August 31, 1998. This decision had the effect of granting us a
substantial discount on our potential liabilities, because most of the business was bound or renewed to the
agreement after August 31, 1998. In a clarification dated January 4, 2003, the arbitration panel confirmed its
decision. Subsequently, billing disputes have arisen between certain pool members and the retrocessionaires,
including us, concerning certain losses ceded to the retrocession agreements. A significant portion of our
remaining potential liabilities as a retrocessionaire of the Unicover pool has been recovered from certain of our
retrocessionaires, and additional amounts may be recovered from one other retrocessionaire, as discussed below
under “Related Proceedings.” '

In one of the Unicover facilities’ settlements, the Reliance facility settlement of January 2000, we paid a
settlement amount of $97.9 million and were released from all of our obligations as a retrocessionaire of the
facility. Subsequently, we were reimbursed by one of our retrocessionaires for $38.8 million of the amount we
paid under the settlement. A significant portion of the remainder of the settlement payment may be recovered
from one other retrocessionaire, as discussed below under “Related Proceedings.”
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In the other Unicover facilities’ settlement, the Lincoln facility settlement of March 2000, we paid a settlement
amount of $11.6 million and were released from all of our obligations as a retrocessionaire of the facility.
Subsequently, we were reimbursed by one of our retrocessionaires for $6.0 million of the amount we paid under
the settlement. '

The amounts paid and the results achieved in the above settlements and arbitration decision were consistent with
the amounts previously reflected in our consolidated financial statements.

Related Proceedings

In our capacity as a retrocessionaire of the Unicover business, we had an extensive program of our own
reinsurance in place to protect us from financial exposure to the risks we had assumed. We have been involved in
disputes with certain of our own retrocessionaires who had sought on various grounds to avoid paying any
amounts to us. Most of those disputes, as described below, have been resolved.

Currently, we remain involved in a London arbitration proceeding with one of those retrocessionaires. The
arbitration concerns an agreement under which the retrocessionaire reinsures us for up to $45 thousand per loss in
excess of a $5 thousand retention. In June 2003, the arbitration panel issued its decision, which upheld in all
material respects the retrocessional obligations to us. The retrocessionaire appealed the arbitration decision only
with respect to the Unicover business. We received a favorable decision from the Court of Appeal in December
2004. The retrocessionaire submitted a request to the House of Lords to review the decision. Two other disputes
with this retrocessionaire were settled in March 2004 and did not have a material effect on our reinsurance
recoverable balances. As of December 31, 2004, the reinsurance recoverable balance from this retrocessionaire
related to paid losses was $45.0 million, subject to further development.

A dispute with another retrocessionaire was the subject of arbitration proceedings that we initiated in December
2003. The purpose of the arbitration proceedings was to confirm the validity and enforce the terms of the
retrocessional contracts. In December 2004, we settled the dispute and discontinued the arbitration proceedings.
The amount received and the results achieved in the settlement were consistent with the amounts previously
reflected in our consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2004, the reinsurance recoverable balance
from this retrocessionaire was $0.0 million.

A dispute with a third retrocessionaire, which sought to avoid an excess-of-loss retrocession agreement, a surplus
share retrocession agreement and a quota share retrocession agreement, was the subject of an arbitration in
November 2003. In December 2003, the arbitration panel issued its interim decision, which is confidential. The
financial implications of the interim decision are consistent with our current financial provisions. Since then, this
retrocessionaire has paid $8.0 million to bring the account current. As of December 31, 2004, the reinsurance
recoverable balance from this retrocessionaire related to paid losses was $0.0 million, subject to further
development. In June 2004 the arbitration panel relinquished its jurisdiction.

Because the same retrocession program that covers our Unicover business covers a significant portion of our other
remaining group accident and health reinsurance business, we could have additional material losses if one or more
of our remaining retrocessionaires disputes and successfully avoids its obligations. At this stage, we cannot
estimate the amount at risk related to these potential disputes with a reliable degree of certainty. This is due in
part to our lack of sufficient claims information (which has resulted from disputes among ceding reinsurers that
have led to delayed processing, reporting blockages, and standstill agreements among reinsurers). This applies
with regard both to business related to Unicover and business not related to Unicover.

Other Proceedings
Another set of disputes involves personal accident business that was reinsured in the London reinsurance market

in which we participated from 1994 to 1997. These disputes involve multiple layers of reinsurance and
allegations that the reinsurance programs created by the brokers involved in placing those layers were interrelated
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and devised to disproportionately pass losses to a top layer of reinsurers. Many companies who participated in
this business are involved in litigation or arbitration in attempts to avoid their obligations on the basis of
misrepresentation. Because of the complexity of the disputes and the reinsurance arrangements, we and many of
these companies have participated in negotiations that have resulted in settlements of disputes relating to the 1994
and 1995 contract years. The amounts paid and the results achieved in the 1994 and 1995 contract year
settlements are consistent with the amounts previously reflected in our consolidated financial statements.
Although we are vigorously defending our contractual rights in respect of the 1996 and 1997 contract year
disputes, we remain actively involved in attempts to reach negotiated business solutions. At this stage, we cannot
predict the outcome, nor can we estimate the remaining amount at risk with a reliable degree of certainty. This is
due in part to our lack of sufficient claims information (which has resulted from disputes among ceding reinsurers
that have led to delayed processing, reporting blockages, and standstill agreements among reinsurers). However,
it is our opinion based on current information that amounts included in our reserves as of December 31, 2004 are
adequate with respect to the 1996 and 1997 contract year disputes.

18. Other Commitments

During the third quarter of 2004, we entered into a seven-year information technology infrastructure services
agreement with Electronic Data Systems, or EDS, under which we expect to make aggregate payments of
approximately $120.0 million.

During the normal course of business, the Company enters into agreements to fund venture capital partnerships
and to purchase private placement investments. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had committed $182.6
million under such investments, of which $50.8 million is expected to be disbursed by December 31, 2005.

19. Condensed Financial Information of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

A summary of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. (parent company only) financial information follows:

Parent Company Financial Position: As of December 31,

(3 amounts in millions) 2004 2003
Assets

Cash and cash eqUIVALENES ..........cccceiiveriiiieicteceee ettt sttt e et et eseer e ne $ 61.0 $ 22.8
Investment in PhOENIX Life......ccooiiiiiiiiiiiicieces ettt e sr e sttt s enve e enb s sabraanae e 1,700.9 1,637.6
Investment in Phoenix INvestment PArtners........c.ocoivvieeeieiieriiiiiceeetcereere e nne et envesreesreseaseens 2263 231.0
Investments in Other SUDSIAIATIES ......cccoviiiiiiiiirieciie e s e 105.7 123.5
Loans to Phoenix Investment Partners.............ccccceoveevreenns ettt e e e ene e ne s 366.0 377.0
AdVvances tO SUDSIAIATIES ......eceeeiiiiiiiiierce ettt et s bbb ene e e e 208.9 234.2
Hilb Rogal and Hobbs, or HRH, common stock, at fair value (Note 5) ..cccocooiiviiiiiiiiiciiieienne . 131.3 116.2
Intangible assets (INOE 11) oottt ettt ettt st stb et eenenseneas 8.0 11.0
Deferred IMCOIME tAXES ... cveviriiieeeieieiitirte st esseesbeesee st e e teeabeebe et e aseessaessesseesseerseasseessesssesssessenns 39.0 21.6
OIET @SSEES. .. uvienieeuiaattitieeteetreetteetae e ettt e st aessesse e st esseeme e neeebeetsassaneesseersesssesesrnean e aaseessasssantenes 111.2 103.2
TOUAL ASSEES ......ooveeiiiieiece ettt e e s e b e et e cte s tbeetbeebeesasasaesreesressnbestserteenssereens $ 2,958.3 $ 2,878.1
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Stock purchase contracts (NOE 6) .....cuovvvrrriiiiieciiii et § 1319 § 1288
Indebtedness (INOE 6).......oiiiiiirieeri ettt ettt a e e es et ettt aan e sra s b s te e ceneanes 461.7 464.0
Accrued pension and postemployment benefits (Note 11).........ccooovvveiireiiiei e 275.1 281.1
Other HADIIITIES 1.vveriuii ettt et beetb e eve et e sbeeseerneemeeens e ebesssenseessanseaes 67.2 56.4
TOtal HADIHEIES ........c.ooiiiiiiiiit ettt ettt eb ettt esa e e b e e e crebeneens 935.9 930.3
Total StockhOlders” BQUILY ....cvecverieririie ettt ettt s reonen 2,022.4 1,947.8
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity...........c.ccocooceiiiriniin e S 2,958.3 $ 2,878.1
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Parent Company Results of Operations: Year Ended December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Revenues

Dividends received from subsidiary, Phoenix Life ........cccooooeovveeieriieiiee $ 69.7 $ 44.5 § 1138
Investment income, principally from subsidiary,

Phoenix Investment Partners........c.ccooveeinenoiuenieinince e 22.5 23.0 15.2
Net realized INVESIMENT ZAINS..c.cccvreereiririrerie ettt eve e - (0.1) 1.7
TOtal TEVENUES........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiricc et et e 92.2 67.4 130.7
INEEIESt EXPENSE ....ivviveeecetiee ettt ettt e n e 27.4 26.9 15.8
Demutualization @XPEIISE .......coveerirrertiicreeieiieeseeieseaesteessesaessssseseeresese et eerones -- -- 1.8
Other OPErating EXPENSES «...c..vveveiveerriririreerrensertenete s reneeeeeenesesercreesaeenenesesaeasanes 259 18.8 7.2
Total eXPeNSeS.......cccoviiiiiii e 53.3 45.7 24.8
Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed losses

OF SUDSIAIATIES. c..cvevveicte ettt sttt st e 389 217 105.9
Income tax Benefit.......cccooo i (12.3) (8.5) (2.2)
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries.............ccocc..... 51.2 30.2 108.1
Equity in undistributed earnings (losses) of subsidiaries ...........cccccecrvririririnnn 35.2 (36.4) (3804)
Net INCOME (JOSS).....coorieiiiiiiieri ettt e $ 86.4 $ 6.2) § (2723)
Parent Company Cash Flows: Year Ended December 31,

(8 amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
Operating Activities

Cash dividends received from subsidiary ........cccovoiicniiniinnieccnn $ 69.7 3 44.5 $ 67.0
Investment iNCOME FECEIVEA .....uivviiiiirieiiirie e 10.6 9.7 11.7
Interest, income taxes and other expenses paid, NEL .......c.coceeveninirececienennnnn. (19.1) (21.0) (17.4)
Cash from operating activities.................cceooiiiiiii . 61.2 33.2 61.3
Advances to subsidiaries and capital contributed to subsidiaries ............co....... (4.0) (7.8) (287.4)
Purchase of SUbSIAIATIES.....c.iiviiiiecie et (4.0) (17.9) --
Equity SEcUrity PUICRASES ...c.ovvrviviiriiririei ittt bbb -- -- (157.4)
Debt and equity SECUTItY SAIES ..ot -- - 72.8
Cash for investing activities ...............ccocooreiiii (8.0 (25.7) (372.0)
Stock purchase contract and indebtedness proceeds.........c..ooeveceniininnienns = - 133.9
Equity Units proCeeds. ...t e -- -- 149.1
Common StOCK ISSUAINICE .....ecvrviieeiiieeieiiie ettt ettt earencere e 0.1 -- --
Common StOCK rEPUICHASE. ... ...eeiiiieiee e -- -- (131.1)
Common stock dividend paid........cccecoeiiiininii e (15.1) (15.1) (15.8)
Payments to subsidiary to reimburse policyholder

credits and payments in 1€t of StOCK........ccoviiiiiiniii -- -- --
Cash (for) from financing activities ...................cccooiii (15.0) __{15.1H 136.1
Change in cash and cash equivalents....................c..ccocooenno OO 38.2 (7.6) (174.6)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year....................... 22.8 304 205.0
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ...................cccccoiniicinninin, $ 61.0 3 22.8 $ 304

20. Additional Operating Cash Flow Information
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.
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Operating Cash Flows on Indirect Basis: Years Ended December 31,

($ amounts in millions) 2004 2003 2002
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income (loss) from continuing OPerations...........cccoieeiieeeniireieeieie e nseeeneas $ 86.3 $ 4.1 § (407
Net realized InvestMent LOSSES ....c.oovevireeriiiiieriie et e 0.8 98.5 133.9
Unrealized gain on trading equity SECUTITIES ....ovveeririrrereerireeriereencsieieaenencns (85.9) -- -
Amortization and depreciation ...t 49.1 52.5 122.4
Investment (ains) 10SS......oivreriiirire et s (73.6) 78.5 74.4
Equity in (earnings) 108ses Of affiliates .......ocovveuriernrinriieninicencrieienene 17.2 2.0 (7.2)
Deferred income tax (benefit) EXPense .....ocoveeveriieriiinmnescnn e 48.5 (11.9) (42.4)
Decrease (increase) in reCeivables ........ccoviiirierireicierren e 383 (7.7) (8.3)
Deferred policy acquisition COSES INCIEASE .....e.uerviieierrreriieriereinieir e eeesireeeneeas (54.5) (111.4) (206.4)
Increase in policy liabilities and accruals.......o.ocovveniiiiicii 60.1 4541 473.4
Other assets and other liabilities net change...........ccoovivrnccinicccinn (27.2) (152.9) (75.6)
Cash from continuing OPerations ..........ccccoiriieiireccinincieiie e et 59.1 397.6 323.5
Discontinued 0perations, NEE.........cceeiuereererrsierie s ereee st ese s 14.9 (36.5) (59.1)
Cash from operating activities ... S 74.0 $ 3611 3 2644

21. Supplemental Unaudited Financial Information

Summarized Selected Quarterly Financial Data: Quarter Ended
(8 amounts in millions, except per share amounts) Mar 31, June 30, Sept 30, Dec 31,
2004
REVEIIUES .....vovieieiee et cteev ettt et es s et bes st § 671.0 § 6669 $ 6619 § 7434
Income from continuing OPerations..........cocvverenrecrererreercrerannas $ 163 § 146 $ 7.1 $ 483
NEE IMCOME....eevieviieiiereieiieie ettt ca et eta et sassa st e eae b $ 166 § 144 $ 7.1 $ 483
Earnings per share:
Basic.....ccovevnne. et reter et r et bRt e et ke ee s b b et a st ea et ae s s b $§ 0.8 § 014 $ 007 $ 0.51
DIIUIEA ..ottt e $ 016 § 0.14 $ 007 $ 0.48
Summarized Selected Quarterly Financial Data: Quarter Ended
(8 amounts in millions, except per share amounts) Mar 31, June 30, Sept 30, Dec 31,
2003
REVEIIUES ...voociieerareeticneininens st esissssess st e ssb b sesessaesssssasaresenns $ 6613 $ 5577 $ 698.6 $ 7159
Income (loss) from continuing Operations ..........c.cecereevereecerrenenns $ 1.7 $ 492 § 13.6 $ 298
Net INCOME (1088 ).cvvuvvirieeeiririciieee ettt $ 1.3 $ 496 $§ 132 $ 289
Earnings (loss) per share:
BASIC vttt bbb et $ 0.01 § (053 § 0.14 $ 0.31
DIEIEd oo $ 0.01 $ (053) § 013 $ 0.29
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Revenues as reported above differ from amounts previously reported in our respective Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q due to our equity in earnings of affiliates, which was reclassified from revenue to “equity in undistributed
earnings of affiliates” on our consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income. The 2004 amounts
reclassified were $(2.8) million, $0.0 million and $1.0 million for the first, second and third quarter, respectively.
The 2003 amounts reclassified were $2.1 million, $(0.8) million and $0.0 million for the first, second and third
‘quarter, respectively.
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Life and Annuity Product
Development

Joseph E. Kelleher, FLMI
Senior Vice President

New Business, Underwriting and
Distribution Administration

Senior Vice President
and Chief Information Officer

Robert G. Lautensack Jr., FSA
Senior Vice President
and Chief Risk Officer

Scott R. Lindquist, CPA, CIA
Senior Vice President and

Chief Accounting Officer
Corporate Finance

Bonnie J. Malley

Senior Vice President

Human Resources and Corporate
Services

Gina Collopy O’Connell, CLU,
FSA,MAAA, ChFC

Senior Vice President

Life and Annuity Operations

Robert E. Primmer
Senior Vice President
Life Distribution and Sales

Senior Vice President
Actuarial Financial
Life and Annuity

John F. Sharry

Senior Vice President

Chief Marketing Officer and
Strategic Business Development

Mark Tully
Senior Vice President
Annuity Distribution and Sales

Christopher M. Wilkos, CFA
Senior Vice President
Corporate Portfolio Management

Walter H. Zultowski, PhD
Senior Vice President
Business and Market Development

1. Retired as of April 28, 2005
2. As of Morch |, 2005

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. will be held
on April 28,2005 at 10:00 a.m. Eastern time at One American Row, Hartford,

Connecticut.

Security Listings

The common stock of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. is traded on the New York
Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “PNX." Our 7.25 percent equity units
are traded on the NYSE under the symbol "PNX PrA™” Our 7.45 percent bond is
traded on the NYSE under the symbol “PFX”

Transfer Agent and Registrar

For information or assistance regarding your account, please contact our transfer

agent and registrar:

The Bank of New York, Shareholder Services Department-12E
PO. Box 1258, Church Street Station, New York, NY 102866

Toll-free: [-800-490-4258, e-mail: pnxshareholders@bankofny.com

Web: www.stockbny.com

Other Information

The company submitted, in 2004, to the New York Stock Exchange a certificate of
the Chief Executive Officer of the company certifying that she is not aware of any

violation by the company of New York Stock Exchange corporate governance listing

standards. The company has included as Exhibits 31 and 32 to its Annual Report on
Form 10-K for fiscal year 2004 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
certificates of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the
company certifying the quality of the company’s public disclosure.

For More Information

To see our Code of Conduct, Board of Directors Corporate Governance Principles,
Director Independence Standards, Shareholder Communication Procedures, and the
compoasition and charters of certain of our Board committees, please go to cur
Web site at PhoenixWealthManagement.com, in the Investor Relations section.

To receive additional information, including financial supplements and Securities and
Exchange Commission filings along with access to other shareholder services, visit

the Investor Relfations Section on our Web site at PhoenixVWealthManagement.com
or contact our nvestor Relations Department at:

Investor Relations, The Phoenix Companies, Inc., One American Row,

PO. Box 5056, Hartford, CT 06102-5056

Phone: |-860-403-7100
Fax: 1-860-403-7880
e-mail: pax.ir@phoenixwm.com

For more information on our products and services, call your Phoenix
representative or visit our Web site at PhoenixVWealthManagement.com.
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